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EXHIBIT 10.2( 

2010-12 Performance Perio< 

UGI CORPORATION 
2004 OMNIBUS EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN 

PERPORMANCE UNIT GRANT LETTER 

This PERFORMANCE UNIT GRANT, dated April 23, 2012 (the "Date of Grant"), is delivered by UGI Corporation 
("UGI") to Monica Gaudiosi (the "Participant"). 

RECITALS 

The UGI Corporation 2004 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan (the "Plan") provides for the grant of 
performance units ("Performance Units") with respect to shares of common stock of UGI ("Shares"). The Compensatior 
and Management Development Committee ofthe Board of Directors of UGI (the "Committee") has decided to grant 
Performance Units to the Participant. 

.. NOW, THEREFORE, the parties to this Grant Letter, intending to be legally bound hereby, agree as follows: , 

1. Grant of Performance Units . Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Grant Letter and in the Plan, 
the Committee hereby grants to the Participant a target award of Performance Units (the "Target Award"). 
The Performance Units are contingently awarded and will be eamed and payable if and to the extent that the 
performance goals and other conditions ofthe Grant Letter are met. The Performance Units are granted with Dividend 
Equivalents (as defined in Section 9). 

2. Performance Goals. 

(a) The Participant shall earn the right to payment ofthe Performance Units if the performance goals describe( 
in subsection (b) below are met for the measurement period, and if the Participant continues to be employed by, or 
provide service to, the Company (as defined in Section 9) through December 31,2012. The measurement period is the 
period beginning January 1, 2010 and ending December 31, 2012. 

(b) The Target Award level of Performance Units and Dividend Equivalents will be payable if UGl's Total 
Shareholder Retum (TSR) equals the median TSR of a peer group for the measurement period. The peer group is the 
group of companies that comprises the S&P Utilities Index as ofthe beginning ofthe measurement period; provided th; 
if a company is added to the S&P Utilities Index during the measurement period, that company is not included in the 
TSR calculation. A company that is included in the S&P Utilities Index at the beginning ofthe measurement period wi 
be removed from the TSR calculation only if the company ceases to exist during the measurement period. The actual 
amount ofthe award of Performance Units may be higher or lower than the Target Award, or it may be zero, based on 
UGLs TSR percentile rank relative to the companies in the S&P Utilities Index, as follows; 



UGl's TSR Rank Percentage of Target Award Eamed 
(Percentile) 

Highest 
90th 
75th 
60th 
50th 
40th 

200% 
175% 
150% 
125% 
100% 
50% 

less than 40th 0% 

The award percentage eamed will be interpolated between each ofthe measuring points. 

(c) TSR shall be calculated by UGI using the comparative retums methodology used by Bloomberg L.P. or its 
successor at the time ofthe calculation. The share price used for determining TSR at the beginning and the end ofthe 
measurement period will be the average price for the 90-day period preceding the beginning ofthe measurement period 
(i.e., the 90-day period ending on December 31,2009) and the 90-day period ending on the last day ofthe measiu*ement 
period (i.e., the 90-dayperiod ending on December 31, 2012), respectively. The TSR calculation gives effect to all 
dividends throughout the three-year measurement period as if they had been reinvested. . . ,. 

(d) The Target Award is the amount designated for 100% (50th TSR rank) performance. The Participant can 
earn up to 200% ofthe Target Award if UGl's TSR rank exceeds the 50th TSR rank, according to the foregoing 
schedule. 

(e) At the end ofthe measurement period, the Committee will determine whether and to what extent the 
performance goals have been met and the amount to be paid with respect to the Performance Units. Except as described 
in Section 3 below, the Participant must be employed by, or providing service to, the Company on December 31, 2012 in 
order for the Participant to receive payment with respect to the Performance Units. 

3. Terniuiation of Employment or Service . 

(a) Except as described below, if the Participant's employment or service with the Company terminates before 
December 31, 2012, the Performance Units and all Dividend Equivalents credited under this Grant Letter will be 
forfeited. 

(b) If the Participant terminates employment or service on account of Retirement (as defined in Section 9), 
Disability (as defined in Section 9) or death, the Participant will earn a pro-rata portion ofthe Participant's outstanding 
Performance Units and Dividend Equivalents, if the performance goals and the requirements ofthis Grant Letter are met. 
The prorated portion will be determined as the amount that would otherwise be paid after the end ofthe measurement 
period, based on achievement ofthe performance goals, multiplied by a fraction, the numerator of which is the number 
of calendar years during the measurement period in which the Participant has been employed by, or provided service to, 
the Company and the denominator of which is 



three. For purposes ofthe proration calculation, the calendar year in which the Participant's termination of employment 
or service on account of Retirement, Disability, or death occurs will be counted as a Ml year. 

(c) In the event of termination of employment or service on account of Retfrement, Disability or death, the 
prorated amount shall be paid after the end ofthe measurement period, pursuant to Section 5 below. 

4. Coordination with Severance Plan . Notwithstanding anything in this Grant Letter to the contrary, if the Participant 
receives severance benefits under a Severance Plan (as defined in Section 9) and the terms of such benefits require that 
severance compensation payable imder the Severance Plan be reduced by benefits payable under this Plan, any amount 
payable to the Participant with respect to Performance Units and Dividend Equivalents after the Participant's terminatioi 
of employment or service shall be reduced by the amount of severance compensation paid to the Participant under the 
Severance Plan, as required by, and according to the terms of, the Severance Plan. 

5. Payment with Respect to Performance Units . If the Committee determines that the conditions to payment ofthe 
Performance Units have been met, the Company shall pay to the Participant, between Januaty 1,2013 and March 15, 
2013, (i) Shares equal to the number of Performance Units to be paid according to achievement ofthe performance 
goals, up to the Target Award, provided that the Company may withhold Shares to cover required tax withholding in an 
amount equal to the minimum statutory tax withholding requirement in respect ofthe Performance Units eamed up to 
the Target Award, and (ii) cash in an amoimt equal to the Fair Market Value (as defined in the Plan) ofthe number of 
Shares equal to the Performance Units to be paid in excess of the Target Award. 

6. Dividend Equivalents with Respect to Performance Units . 

(a) Dividend Equivalents shall accme with respect to Performance Units and shall be payable subject to the 
same performance goals and terms as the Performance Units to which they relate. Dividend Equivalents shall be credited 
with respect to the Target Award of Performance Units from the Date of Grant until the payment date. If and to the 
extent that the imderlying Performance Units are forfeited, all related Dividend Equivalents shall also be forfeited. 

(b) While the Performance Units are outstanding, the Company will keep records in a bookkeeping accoimt for 
the Participant. On each payment date for a dividend paid by UGI on its common stock, the Company shall credit to the 
Participant's accoimt an amount equal to the Dividend Equivalents associated with the Target Award of Performance 
Units held by the Participant on the record date for the dividend. No interest will be credited to any such accoimt. 

(c) The target amount of Dividend Equivalents (100% ofthe Dividend Equivalents credited to the Participant's 
account) will be eamed if UGI's TSR rank is at the 50th TSR rank for the measurement period. The Participant can earn 
up to 200% ofthe target amount of Dividend Equivalents if UGl's TSR rank exceeds the 50th TSR rank, according to 
the schedule hi Section 2 above. Except as described in Section 3(b) above, if the Participant's employment 



or service with the Company terminates before December 31, 2012, all Dividend Equivalents will be forfeited. 

(d) Dividend Equivalents will be paid in cash at the same time as the underlying Performance Units are paid, 
after the Committee determines that the conditions to payment have been met. Notwithstanding anything in this Grant 
Letter to the contrary, the Participant may not accme Dividend Equivalents in excess of $750,000 during any calendar 
year under all grants under the Plan. 

7. Withholding . The Participant shall be required to pay to the Company, or make other arrangements satisfactory to 
the Company to provide for the payment of, any federal, state, local or other taxes that the Company is required to 
withhold with respect to the payments under this Grant Letter. 

8. Change of Control. If a Change of Control (as defined in the Plan) occurs during the measurement period, the 
outstanding Performance Units and Dividend Equivalents shall be paid in cash in an amount equal to the greater of (i) 
the Target Award amount or (ii) the award amount that would be paid as if the measurement period ended on the date of 
the Change of Control, based on the Company's achievement ofthe performance goals as ofthe date ofthe Change of 
Control, as determined by the Committee. If a former Participant is entitled to receive a prorated award for the 
measurement period pursuant to Section 3(b) above, the award will be the prorated portion ofthe amount described in 
the preceding sentence. The Performance Units and Dividend Equivalents shall be paid on the closing date ofthe 
Change of Control. 

9. Definitions . For purposes ofthis Grant Letter, the following terms will have the meanings set forth below: 

(a) "Company" means UGI and its Subsidiaries (as defmed in the Plan). 

(b) " Disability " means a long-term disability as defined in the Company's long-term disability plan 
applicable to the Participant. 

(c) "Dividend Equivalent" means an amount determined by multiplying the number of shares of UGI common 
stock subject to the target award of Performance Units by the per-share cash dividend, or the per-share fair market value 
of any dividend in consideration other than cash, paid by UGI on its common stock. 

(d) "Employed by, or provide service to, the Company" shall mean employment or service as an employee or 
director ofthe Company. 

(e) "Performance Unit" means a hypothetical unit that represents the value of one share of UGI common 
stock. 

(f) " Retirement" means the Participant's retirement under the Retirement Income Plan for Employees of UGI 
Utihties, Inc., if the Participant is covered by that Retirement Income 



Plan. "Retirement" for other Company employees means termination of employment after attaining age 55 with ten or 
more years of service with the Company. 

(g) "Severance Plan " means any severance plan maintained by the Company that is applicable to the 
Participant, 

10. Grant Subject to Plan Provisions and Companv Policies . 

(a) This grant is made pursuant to the Plan and the Terms and Conditions established by the Committee with 
respect to the Plan, both of which are incorporated herein by reference, and in all respects shall be interpreted in 
accordance with the Plan. The grant and payment of Performance Units and Dividend Equivalents are subject to 
interpretations, regulations and determinations conceming the Plan established from time to time by the Committee in 
accordance with the provisions ofthe Plan, including, but not limited to, provisions pertaining to (i) the registration, 
qualification or listing ofthe Shares, (ii) changes in capitalization ofthe Company and (iii) other requirements of 
applicable law. The Committee shall have the authority to interpret and constme the grant pursuant to the terms ofthe 
Plan, and its decisions shall be conclusive as to any questions arising hereunder. 

(b) All Shares issued pursuant to this Performance Unit grant shall be subject to the UGI Corporation Stock 
Ownership Policy. This Performance Unit grant and all Shares issued pursuant to this Performance Unit grant shall be 
subject to any applicable clawback and other policies implemented by the Board of Directors of UGI, as in effect fi'om 
time to time. 

11. No Employment or Other Rights . The grant of Performance Units shall not confer upon the Participant any right 
to be retained by or in the employ or service ofthe Company and shall not interfere in any way with the right ofthe 
Company to termmate the Participant's employment or service at any time. The right ofthe Company to terminate at 
will the Participant's employment or service at any time for any reason is specifically reserved. 

12. No Shareholder Rights . Neither the Participant, nor any person entitied to exercise the Participant's rights in the 
event ofthe Participant's death, shall have any ofthe rights and privileges of a shareholder with respect to the Shares 
related to the Performance Units, unless and until certificates for Shares have been issued to the Participant or successor. 

13. Assignment and Transfers . The rights and interests of the Participant under this Grant Letter may not be sold, 
assigned, encumbered or otherwise transferred except, in the event ofthe death ofthe Participant, by will or by the laws 
of descent and distribution. If the Participant dies, any payments to be made under this Grant Letter after the 
Participant's death shall be paid to the Participant's estate. The rights and protections ofthe Company hereunder shall 
extend to any successors or assigns ofthe Company and to the Company's parents, subsidiaries, and affiliates. 

14. Applicable Law . The validity, constmction, interpretation and effect ofthis instrument shall be governed by and 
constmed in accordance with the laws ofthe Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, without giving effect to the conflicts of 
laws provisions thereof 



15. Notice • Any notice to UGI provided for in this instrument shall be addressed to UGI in care ofthe Corporate 
Secretary at UGl's headquarters, and any notice to the Participant shall be addressed to such Participant at the current 
address shown on the payroll ofthe Company, or to such other address as the Participant may designate to the Company 
in writing. Any notice shall be delivered by hand, sent by telecopy or enclosed in a properly sealed envelope addressed 
as stated above, registered and deposited, postage prepaid, in a post office regularly maintained by the United States 
Postal Service. 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, UGI has caused its duly authorized officers to execute and attest this Grant Letter, 
and the Participant has executed this Grant Letter, effective as ofthe Date of Grant. 

UGI Corporation 
Attest 

Corporate Secretary 
By: 

I hereby acknowledge receipt ofthe Plan and the Terms and Conditions incorporated herein. I accept the Performance 
Units described in this Grant Letter, and I agree to be bound by the terms ofthe Plan, including the Terms and 
Conditions, and this Grant Letter. I hereby further agree that all the decisions and determinations ofthe Committee shall 
be final and binding on me and any other person having or claiming a right under this Grant. 

Participant 



EXHIBIT 10.21 

2011-13 Performance Period 

UGI CORPORATION 
2004 OMNIBUS EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN 

PERFORMANCE UNIT GRANT LETTER 

This PERFORMANCE UNIT GRANT, dated April _ , 2012 (the "Date of Grant"), is delivered by UGI Corporation 
("UGI") to Monica Gaudiosi (the "Participant"). 

RECITALS 

The UGI Corporation 2004 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan (the "Plan") provides for the grant of 
performance units ("Performance Units") with respect to shares of common stock of UGI ("Shares"). The Compensation 
and Management Development Committee ofthe Board of Directors of UGI (the "Committee") has decided to grant 
Performance Units to the Participant. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties to this Grant Letter, intending to be legally bound hereby, agree as follows: 

1. Grant of Performance Units . Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Grant Letter and in the Plan, 
the Committee hereby grants to the Participant a target award of Performance Units (the "Target Award"). 
The Performance Units are contingently awarded and will be eamed and payable if and to the extent that the 
performance goals and other conditions ofthe Grant Letter are met. The Performance Units are granted with Dividend 
Equivalents (as defined in Section 9). 

2. Performance Goals . 

(a) The Participant shall cam the right to payment ofthe Performance Units if the performance goals described 
in subsection (b) below are met for the measurement period, and if the Participant continues to be employed by, or 
provide service to, the Company (as defined in Section 9) through December 31, 2013. The measurement period is the 
period beginning January 1,2011 and ending December 31,2013. 

(b) The Target Award level of Performance Units and Dividend Equivalents will be payable if UGl's Total 
Shareholder Retum (TSR) equals the median TSR of a peer group for the measurement period. The peer group is the 
group of companies that comprises the Russell Midcap Utilities Index, excluding telecommunications companies, as.of 
the beginning ofthe measurement period, as set forth on the attached Exhibit A . If a company is added to the Russell 
Midcap Utilities Index during the measurement period, that company is not included in the TSR calculation. A company 
that is included in the Russell Midcap Utilities Index at the beginning ofthe measurement period will be removed fi"om 
the TSR calculation only if the company ceases to exist as a publicly traded company during the measurement period 
(including by way of a merger or similar transaction in which the company is not the surviving company). Companies 
that are designated at the beginning ofthe measurement period as telecommimications companies in the 



Russell Midcap Utilities Index shall be excluded fi-om the TSR calculation. The actual amount ofthe award of 
Performance Units may be higher or lower than the Target Award, or it may be zero, based on UGl's TSR percentile 
rank relative to the companies in the Russell Midcap Utilities Index, excluding telecommunications companies, as 
follows: 

UGl's TSR Rank Percentage of Target Award Eamed 
(Percentile) 

Highest 
90th 
75th 
60th 
50th 
40th 

200% 
175% 
150% 
125% 
100% 
50% 

less than 40th 0% 

The award percentage eamed will be interpolated between each ofthe measuring points. 

(c) TSR shall be calculated by UGI usmg the comparative returns methodology used by-Bloomberg L.P.or its 
successor at the time ofthe calculation. The share price used for determming TSR at the beginning and the end ofthe 
measurement period will be the average price for the 90-day period preceding the beginning ofthe measurement period 
(i.e., the 90-day period ending on December 31, 2010) and the 90-day period ending on the last day ofthe measurement 
period (i.e., the 90-day period ending on December 31,2013), respectively. The TSR calculation gives effect to all 
dividends throughout the three-year measurement period as if they had been reinvested. 

(d) The Target Award is the amount designated for 100% (50th TSR rank) performance. The Participant can 
cam up to 200% ofthe Target Award if UGl's TSR rank exceeds the 50th TSR rank, according to the foregoing 
schedule. 

(e) At the end ofthe measiFement period, the Committee will determine whether and to what extent the 
performance goals have been met and the amount to be paid with respect to the Performance Units. Except as described 
in Section 3 below, the Participant must be employed by, or providing service to, the Company on December 31, 2013 ir 
order for the Participant to receive payment with respect to the Performance Units. 

3. Termination of Employment or Service . 

(a) Except as described below, if the Participant's employment or service with the Company terminates before 
December 31, 2013, the Performance Units and all Dividend Equivalents credited under this Grant Letter will be 
forfeited. 

(b) If the Participant terminates employment or service on account of Retirement (as defined in Section 9), 
Disability (as defined in Section 9) or death, the Participant will cam a pro-rata portion ofthe Participant's outstanding 
Performance Units and Dividend Equivalents, if 



the performance goals and the requirements ofthis Grant Letter are met. The prorated portion will be determined as the 
amount that would otherwise be paid after the end ofthe measurement period, based on achievement ofthe performance 
goals, multiplied by a fraction, the numerator of which is the number of calendar years during the measurement period in 
which the Participant has been employed by, or provided service to, the Company and the denominator of which is three. 
For purposes ofthe proration calculation, the calendar year in which the Participant's termination of employment or 
service on account of Retirement, Disability, or death occurs will be counted as a ftill year. 

(c) In the event of termination of employment or service on account of Retirement, Disability or death, the 
prorated amount shall be paid after the end ofthe measurement period, pursuant to Section 5 below. 

4. Coordination with Severance Plan . Notwithstanding anything in this Grant Letter to the contrary, if the Participant 
receives severance benefits under a Severance Plan (as defined in Section 9) and the terms of such benefits require that 
severance compensation payable under the Severance Plan be reduced by benefits payable under this Plan, any amount 
payable to the Participant with respect to Performance Units and Dividend Equivalents after the Participant's termination 
of employment or service shall be reduced by the amount of severance compensation paid to the Participant under the 
Severance Plan, as required by, and according to the terms of, the Severance Plan. 

5. Payment with Respect to Performance Units . If the Committee determines that the conditions to payment ofthe 
Performance Units have been met, the Company shall pay to the Participant, between January 1, 2014 and March 15, 
2014, (i) Shares equal to the number of Performance Units to be paid according to achievement ofthe performance 
goals, up to the Target Award, provided that the Company may withhold Shares to cover requhed tax withholding in an 
amount equal to the minimum statutory tax withholding requirement in respect ofthe Performance Units eamed up to 
the Target Award, and (ii) cash in an amount equal to the Fair Market Value (as defined in the Plan) ofthe number of 
Shares equal to the Performance Units to be paid in excess ofthe Target Award. 

6. Dividend Equivalents with Respect to Performance Units . 

(a) Dividend Equivalents shall accme with respect to Performance Units and shall be payable subject to the 
same performance goals and terms as the Performance Units to which they relate. Dividend Equivalents shall be credited 
with respect to the Target Award of Performance Units from the Date of Grant until the payment date. If and to the 
extent that the underlying Performance Units are forfeited, all related Dividend Equivalents shall also be forfeited. 

(b) While the Performance Units are outstanding, the Company will keep records in a bookkeeping account for 
the Participant. On each payment date for a dividend paid by UGI on its common stock, the Company shall credit to the 
Participant's account an amount equal to the Dividend Equivalents associated with the Target Award of Performance 
Units held by the Participant on the record date for the dividend. No interest will be credited to any such account. 



(c) The target amount of Dividend Equivalents (100% ofthe Dividend Equivalents credited to the Participant': 
account) will be eamed if UGl's TSR rank is at the 50th TSR rank for the measurement period. The Participant can earn 
up to 200% ofthe target amount of Dividend Equivalents if UGl's TSR rank exceeds the 50th TSR rank, according to 
the schedule in Section 2 above. Except as described in Section 3(b) above, if the Participant's employment or service 
with the Company terminates before December 31, 2013, all Dividend Equivalents will be forfeited. 

(d) Dividend Equivalents will be paid in cash at the same time as the underlying Performance Units are paid, 
after the Committee determines that the conditions to payment have been met. Notwithstanding anything in this Grant 
Letter to the contrary, the Participant may not accme Dividend Equivalents in excess of $750,000 during any calendar 
year under all grants imder the Plan. 

7. Withholding . The Participant shall be required to pay to the Company, or make other arrangements satisfactory to 
the Company to provide for the payment of, any federal, state, local or other taxes that the Company is required to 
withhold with respect to the payments imder this Grant Letter. 

8. Change of Control. If a Change of Control (as defined in the Plan) occurs during the measurement period, the 
outstanding Performance Units and Dividend Equivalents shall be paid in cash in an amount equal to the greater of (i) 
the Target Award amount or (ii) the award amount that would be paid as if the measurement period ended on the date of 
the Change of Control, based on the Company's achievement ofthe performance goals as ofthe date ofthe Change of 
Control, as determined by the Committee. If a former Participant is entitled to receive a prorated award for the 
measurement period pursuant to Section 3(b} above, the award will be the prorated portion ofthe amoimt described in 
the preceding sentence. The Performance Units and Dividend Equivalents shall be paid on the closing date ofthe 
Change of Control. 

9. Definitions . For purposes ofthis Grant Letter, the following terms will have the meanings set forth below: 

(a) "Company" means UGI and its Subsidiaries (as defined in the Plan). 

(b) " Disability " means a long-term disability as defined in the Company's long-term disability plan 
applicable to the Participant. 

(c) "Dividend Equivalent" means an amount determined by multiplying the number of shares of UGI commor 
stock subject to the target award of Performance Units by the per-share cash dividend, or the per-share fair market value 
of any dividend in consideration other than cash, paid by UGI on its common stock. 

(d) "Employed by, or provide service to, the Company" shall mean employment or service as an employee or 
director ofthe Company. 



(e) "Performance Unit" means a hypothetical unit that represents the value of one share of UGI common 
stock. 

(f) " Retirement" means the Participant's retirement under the Retirement Income Plan for Employees of UGI 
Utilities, Inc., if the Participant is covered by that Retirement Income Plan. "Retirement" for other Company employees 
means termination of employment after attaining age 55 with ten or more years of service with the Company. 

(g) "Severance Plan " means any severance plan maintained by the Company that is applicable to the 
Participant. 

10. Grant Subject to Plan Provisions and Companv Policies . 

(a) This grant is made pursuant to the Plan and the Terms and Conditions established by the Committee with 
respect to the Plan, both of which are incorporated herein by reference, and in all respects shall be interpreted in 
accordance with the Plan. The grant and payment of Performance Units and Dividend Equivalents are subject to 
interpretations, regulations and determinations conceming the Plan established fi*om time to time by the Committee in 
accordance with the provisions ofthe Plan, including, but not limited to, provisions pertaining to (i) the registration, 
qualification or listing ofthe Shares, (ii) changes in capitalization ofthe Company and (iii) other requirements of 
applicable law. The Committee shall have the authority to interpret and constme the grant pursuant to the terms ofthe 
Plan, and its decisions shall be conclusive as to any questions arising hereunder. 

(b) All Shares issued pursuant to this Performance Unit grant shall be subject to the UGI Corporation Stock 
Ownership Policy. This Performance Unit grant and all Shares issued pursuant to this Performance Unit grant shall be 
subject to any apphcable clawback and other policies implemented by the Board of Directors of UGI, as in effect fi'om 
time to time. 

11. No Employment or Other Rights . The grant of Performance Units shall not confer upon the Participant any right 
to be retained by or in the employ or service ofthe Company and shall not interfere in any way with the right ofthe 
Company to terminate the Participant's employment or service at any time. The right ofthe Company to terminate at 
will the Participant's employment or service at any time for any reason is specifically reserved. 

12. No Shareholder Rights . Neither the Participant, nor any person entitled to exercise the Participant's rights in the 
event ofthe Participant's death, shall have any ofthe rights and privileges of a shareholder with respect to the Shares 
related to the Performance Units, unless and until certificates for Shares have been issued to the Participant or successor. 

13. Assignment and Transfers . The rights and interests ofthe Participant under this Grant Letter may not be sold, 
assigned, encumbered or otherwise transferred except, in the event ofthe death ofthe Participant, by will or by the laws 
of descent and distribution. If the Participant dies, any payments to be made under this Grant Letter after the 
Participant's death shall be paid to the Participant's estate. The rights and protections ofthe Company hereunder shall 
extend to any successors or assigns ofthe Company and to the Company's parents, subsidiaries, and affiliates. 



14. Applicable Law . The validity, constmction, interpretation and effect ofthis instmment shall be govemed by and 
constmed in accordance with the laws ofthe Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, without giving effect to the conflicts of 
laws provisions thereof 

15. Notice . Any notice to UGI provided for in this instrument shall be addressed to UGI in care ofthe Corporate 
Secretary at UGl's headquarters, and any notice to the Participant shall be addressed to such Participant at the current 
address shown on the payroll ofthe Company, or to such other address as the Participant may designate to the Company 
in writing. Any notice shall be delivered by hand, sent by telecopy or enclosed in a properly sealed envelope addressed 
as stated above, registered and deposited, postage prepaid, in a post office regularly maintained by the United States 
Postal Service. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, UGI has caused its duly authorized officers to execute and attest this Grant Letter, 
and the Participant has executed this Grant Letter, effective as ofthe Date of Grant. 

UGI Corporation 
Attest 

By: 
Corporate Secretary 

I hereby acknowledge receipt ofthe Plan and the Terms and Conditions incorporated herein. I accept the Performance 
Units described m this Grant Letter, and I agree to be bound by the terms ofthe Plan, including the Terms and 
Conditions, and this Grant Letter. I hereby fiirther agree that all the decisions and determinations ofthe Committee shall 
be final and binding on me and any other person having or claiming a right under this grant. 

Participant 



EXHIBIT A 

UGI CORPORATION 
PERFORMANCE UNIT PEER GROUP 

RUSSELL MIDCAP UTILITIES 
(EXCLUDING TELECOMS) 

as of 1/1/2011 

A-1 



AES Corp. (AES) 
AGL Resources (AGL) 

Allegheny Energy (AYE) 
Alliant Energy (LNT) 

Ameren Corporation (AEE) 
American Water Works (AWK) 

Aqua America Inc. (WTR) 
Atmos Energy (ATO) 
Calpine Corp. (CPN) 

Centerpoint Energy (CNP) 
CMS Energy Corp. (CMS) 

Consolidated Edison Inc. (ED) 
Constellation Energy (CEG) 

DPL Inc. (DPL) 
DTE Energy Co. (DTE) 

Edison Intemational (EIX) 
Energen Corp. (EGN) 
FirstEnergy Corp. (FE) 

Genon Energy Inc. (GEN) 
Great Plains Energy (GXP) 

Hawaiian Electric (HE) 
Integrys Energy (TEG) 

ITC Holdings Corp. (ITC) 

MDU Resource Group (MDU) 
National Fuel Gas Co. (NFG) 

NiSource Inc. (NI) 
Northeast Utilities (NU) 

NRG Energy (NRG) 
NStar (NST) 



NV Energy Inc. (NYE) 
OGE Energy Corp. (OGE) 

ONEOKInc.(OKE) 
Ormat Technologies (ORA) 

Pepco Holdings (POM) 
Pinnacle West Capital Corp. (PNW) 

PPL Corporation (PPL) 
Progress Energy (PGN) 

Questar Corp. (STR) 
Scana Corp. (SCG) 

Sempra Energy (SRE) 
Teco Energy Inc. (TE) 
UGI Corporation (UGI) 
Vectren Corp. (VVC) 

Westar Energy, Inc. (WR) 
Wisconsin Energy (WEC) 
XCEL Energy Inc. (XEL) 
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EXfflBIT 10.25 

AMERIGAS PROPANE, INC. 
DESCRIPTION OF COMPENSATION ARRANGEMENT 

FOR 
JERRY E. SHERIDAN 

Jerry E. Sheridan is President and Chief Executive Officer of AmeriGas Propane, Inc., the general partner of AmeriGas 
Partners, L.P. Mr. Sheridan has an oral compensation arrangement with AmeriGas Propane, Inc. which includes the 
following: 

Mr. Sheridan: 

is entitied to an annual base salary, which for fiscal year 2012 is $450,000, prorated for the 
number of months Mr. Sheridan served as President and Chief Executive Officer (Mr. 
Sheridan was promoted in March 2012); 

participates in AmeriGas Propane, Inc.'s annual bonus plan, with bonus payable based on the 
achievement of pre-approved financial and/or business performance objectives that support 
business plans and strategic goals; 

participates in AmeriGas Propane, Inc.'s long-term compensation plans, the 2010 Long-Term 
Incentive Plan, with annual awards as determined by the Compensation/Pension Committee, 
and UGI Corporation's 2004 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan, with annual awards as 
determined by the UGI Corporation Compensation and Management Development 
Committee; 

will receive cash benefits upon termination of his employment without cause following a 
change in control of AmeriGas Propane, Inc., AmeriGas Partners, L.P. or UGI Corporation; 
and 

participates in AmeriGas Propane, Inc.'s benefit plans, including the AmeriGas Propane, Inc. 
Senior Executive Employee Severance Plan and the AmeriGas Propane, Inc. Supplemental 
Executive Retirement Plan. 

AMERIGAS PROPANE, INC. 
DESCRIPTION OF COMPENSATION ARRANGEMENT 

FOR 
JOHN S. lANNARELLI 

John S. lannarelli is Vice President - Finance and ChiefFinancial Officer of AmeriGas Propane, Inc., the general partne: 
of AmeriGas Partners, L.P. Mr. lannarelli has an oral compensation arrangement with AmeriGas Propane, Inc. which 
includes the following: 

Mr. lannarelli: 

1. is entitled to an annual base salary, which for fiscal year 2012 is $243,620; 

2. participates in AmeriGas Propane, Inc.'s annual bonus plan, with bonus payable based on the 
achievement of pre-approved financial and/or business performance objectives that support 
business plans and strategic goals; 



3. participates in AmeriGas Propane, Inc.'s long-term compensation plans, the 2010 Long-Term 
Incentive Plan, with annual awards as determined by the Compensation/Pension Committee, 
and UGI Corporation's 2004 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan, with annual awards as 
determined by the UGI Corporation Compensation and Management Development 
Committee; 

4. will receive cash benefits upon termination of his employment without cause following a 
change in control of AmeriGas Propane, Inc., AmeriGas Partners, L.P. or UGI Corporation; 
and 

5. participates in AmeriGas Propane, Inc.'s benefit plans, including the AmeriGas Propane, Inc. 
Senior Executive Employee Severance Plan and the AmeriGas Propane, Inc. Supplemental 
Executive Retirement Plan. 

AMERIGAS PROPANE, INC. 
DESCRIPTION OF COMPENSATION ARRANGEMENT 

FOR 
R. PAUL GRADY 

R. Paul Grady is Vice President and Chief Operating Officer of AmeriGas Propane, Inc., the general partner of 
AmeriGas Partners, L.P. Mr. Grady has an oral compensation arrangement with AmeriGas Propane, Inc. which includes 
the following: 

Mr. Grady: 

1. is entitled to an annual base salary, which for fiscal year 2012 is $400,000, prorated based on 
his commencement of employment with AmeriGas Propane, Inc.; 

2. participates in AmeriGas Propane, Inc.'s annual bonus plan, with bonus payable based on the 
achievement of pre-approved financial and/or business performance objectives that support 
business plans and strategic goals; 

3. participates in AmeriGas Propane, Inc.'s long-term compensation plans, the 2010 Long-Term 
Incentive Plan, with annual awards as determined by the Compensation/Pension Committee, 
and UGI Corporation's 2004 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan, with annual awards as 
determined by the UGI Corporation Compensation and Management Development 
Committee; 

4. will receive cash benefits upon termination of his employment without cause following a 
change in control of AmeriGas Propane, Inc., AmeriGas Partners, L.P. or UGI Corporation; 
and 

5. participates in AmeriGas Propane, Inc.'s benefit plans, including the AmeriGas Propane, Inc. 
Senior Executive Employee Severance Plan and the AmeriGas Propane, Inc. Supplemental 
Executive Retirement Plan. 



EXHIBIT 10.3i 

SUMMARY OF DIRECTOR COMPENSATION 
OF 

AMERIGAS PROPANE, INC. (the General Partner of AmeriGas Partners, L.P.) 

The table below shows the components of director compensation effective October 1, 2012. A director who is an officei 
or employee of the Registrant or its subsidiaries is not compensated for service on the Board of Directors or on anj 
Committee of the Board. With respect to Mr. Greenberg, following his retirement as Chief Executive Officer of UGI 
Corporation in the spring of 2013, Mr. Greenberg will serve as Non-Executive Chairman of the Board of Directors ol 
AmeriGas Propane, Inc. In consideration for Mr. Greenberg's service as Non-Executive Chairman, AmeriGas Propane, 
Inc.'s Board of Directors approved an annual retainer, pro-rated for the number of months Mr. Greenberg serves as Non-
Executive Chairman during Fiscal 2013, of $200,000. 

DIRECTORS' COMPENSATION 

CASH EQUITY 
COMPONENT COMPONENT 

Annual retainer $65,000 1,100 Phantom Units 

Additional annual retainer for 
Audit Committee Members 
(other than the Chairperson) 

(Representing 
AmeriGas Partners, L.P. 
Common Units to be 

awarded January 1,2013). 

$20,000 

Additional retainer for 
Audit Committee Chairperson $25,000 

Additional retainer for $7,500 
Corporate Govemance 
Committee Chairperson 

Additional retainer for $7,500 
Compensation/Pension 
Committee Chairperson 

Additional retainer for 
Presiding Director 

$15,000 

The Directors are also offered employee rates on propane purchases. 



SUBSIDIARIES OF UGI CORPORATION 

EXHIBIT 21 

SUBSIDIARY 
AMERIGAS, INC. 

AMERIGAS PROPANE, INC. 
AmeriGas Partners, L.P. 

AmeriGas Finance Corp. 
AmeriGas Eagle Finance Corp. 
AP Eagle Finance Corp. 
AmeriGas Finance LLC 

AmeriGas Propane, L.P. 
AmeriGas Propane Parts & Service, Inc. 
AmeriGas Eagle Holdings, Inc. (CP Holdings, Inc.) 

AmerE Holdings, Inc. 
Active Propane of Wisconsin, LLC 

Heritage Operating GP, LLC 
Heritage Operating, L.P. 

Heritage Service Corporation 
Heritage Energy Resources, LLC 
M-P Oils, Ltd. 

902 Gilbert Street, LLC 
Metro Lawn, LLC 

AmeriGas Technology Group, Inc. 
Petrolane Incorporated 

FOUR FLAGS DRILLING COMPANY, INC. 
ASHTOLA PRODUCTION COMPANY 

UGI ETHANOL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
NEWBURY HOLDING COMPANY 
UGI ENTERPRISES, INC. 

EASTFIELD INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, INC. 
EUROGAS HOLDINGS, INC. 
UGI BLACK SEA ENTERPRISES, INC. 
UGI CHINA, INC. 
UGI ENERGY SERVICES, INC. (d/b/a GASMARK ® and d/b/a 
POWERMARK) 
Energy Services Funding Corporation 
Hellertown Pipeline Company 
Homestead Holding Company 
UGI Asset Management, Inc. 
UGI Development Company 

UGID Holding Company 
UGI Hunlock Development Company 

UGI LNG, Inc. 

OVmERSHIP 
100% 
100% 

(1) 

(2) 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 

(3) 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 

100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 

STATE OF 
INCORPORATION 

PA 
PA 
DE 
DE 
DE 
DE 
DE 
DE 
PA 
DE 
DE 
DE 
DE 
DE 
DE 
OK 

CANADA 

NC 
DE 
PA 
PA 
PA 
PA 
PA 
DE 
PA 
DE 
DE 
PA 
DE 

PA 
DE 
PA 
DE 
DE 
PA 
DE 
PA 
DE 



SUBSIDIARY 
UGI Storage Company 

UGI HVAC ENTERPRISES, INC. 
UGI INTERNATIONAL (CHINA), INC. 
UGI INTERNATIONAL (ROMANIA), INC. 
UGI INTERNATIONAL ENTERPRISES, INC. 

UGI Europe, Inc. 
UGI Intemational Holdings BV 

Flaga GmbH (4) 

ECO Energietechnik GmbH 
Kosan Gas A/S 

Kosan Gas Sverige AB 
Kosan Gas Norge A/S 
Kosan Gas Finland Oy 
Kosan Gas Denmark A/S 

Flaga Suisse GmbH 
Zentraleuropa LPG Holding GmbH 

AmeriGas Polska Sp. z.o.o. 

Gaz Centrum Sp. z.o.o. 
Flaga GPL Romania S.r.l. 
Flaga LPG S A 
Flaga s.r.o. 

LPG Technik spol s.r.o. 
Propantrans s.r.o. 

Flaga spol s.r.o. 
ECO Energy Service spol s.r.o. 
Flaga Gaz Magyarorszag Kft. 
AmeriGas Polska Sp. z.o.o. 

Gaz Centrum Sp. z.o.o. 
UGI Bordeaux Holding 

Antargaz Belgium N.V. 
Antargaz Nederland B.V. 
Antargaz Luxembourg S.A. 
Gasbottling N.V. 
Energy Sud S.A. 

AGZ Holding 
Antargaz (8) 

Aquitaine Rhone Gaz 
Gaz Energie Distribution 
Norgal Gie 
Rhone Gaz 
Sigap Ouest 
Sobegal 

United Gas Belgium (9) 
UGI Midlands Limited 

OWNERSHIP 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 

77.99% 
100% 
100% 
50% 

100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 

(5) 
100% 
100% 

(6) 
(7) 

100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 

52.66% 
50.62% 

66% 
72% 
99% 
100% 

STATE OF 
INCORPORATION 

PA 
DE 
DE 
PA 
PA 
DE 

NETHERLANDS 
AUSTRIA 
AUSTRIA 

DENMARK 
SWEDEN 

NORWAY 
FINLAND 

DENMARK 
SWITZERLAND 

AUSTRIA 
POLAND 
POLAND 

ROMANIA 
ROMANIA 

CZECH REPUBLIC 
CZECH REPUBLIC 
CZECH REPUBLIC 

SLOVAKIA 
SLOVAKIA 
HUNGARY 
POLAND 
POLAND 
FRANCE 

BELGIUM 
NETHERLANDS 
LUXEMBOURG 

BELGIUM 
BELGIUM 
FRANCE 
FRANCE 
FRANCE 
FRANCE 
FRANCE 
FRANCE 
FRANCE 
FRANCE 

BELGIUM 

UNITED KINGDOM 



OWNERSHIP 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 

STATE OF 
INCORPORATION 

UNITED KINGDOM 
UNITED KINGDOM 

PA 
PA 
PA 
DE 
PA 
PA 
PA 
PA 
DE 
DE 
DE 
VT 

SUBSIDIARY 
AvantiGas Limited 

Amazon Gas Limited 
UGI ROMANIA, INC. 

UGI PROPERTIES, INC. 
UGI UTILITIES, INC. 

UGI ENERGY VENTURES, INC. 
UGI PENN NATURAL GAS, INC. 

UGI Penn HVAC Services, Inc. 
UGI CENTRAL PENN GAS, INC. 

UGI Central Penn Propane, LLC 
UGI Petroleum Products of Delaware, Inc. 

UGI STONERIDGE I, LLC 
UGI Stoneridge II, LLC 

UNITED VALLEY INSURANCE COMPANY 

(1) AmeriGas Propane, Inc. and its subsidiary, Petrolane Incorporated, hold a combined 26% (approx.) interest in AmeriGas Partners, 
L.P, 

(2) 1,0101% owned by AmeriGas Propane, Inc. the General Partner; and 98.9899% owned by AmeriGas Partners, L,P., the Limited 
Partner. 

(3) 99.999% owned by AmeriGas Propane, L.P. and .001% owned by Heritage Operating GP, LLC. 

(4) A nominal share Is held by Reinbard ScboSdlbauer. 

(5) .01% owned by UGI Bordeaux Holding and 99.99% owned by AGZ Holding, 

(6) 99.5% owned by Antargaz Belgium N.V. and .5% owned by Antargaz Luxembourg S.A. 

(7) 90%> owned by Antargaz Belgium N.V. and 10% owned by Antargaz Luxembourg S.A. 

(8) A nominal share is held by each of Lon R. Greenberg, Donald J. Groth, Matthew A. Woodward, Eric Naddeo and HC Conseil EURL 
( Mr. Herve Couffm). 

(9) The remaining 1% is owned by UGI Bordeaux Holdings, Inc. 



EXHIBIT 2: 

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Form S-3 (No. 333-167098) and Form S-8 (Nos. 333-
167099, 333-22305, 333-49080, 333-104938, 333-118147, and 333-142010) of UGI Corporation of our report dated November 20,2012 relating 
to the fmancial statements, financial statement schedules and the effectiveness of internal control over fmancial reporting, which appears in this 
Form 10-K. 

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
Philadelphia, PA 
November 20,2012 



EXHIBIT 31.1 
CERTIFICATION 

I, Lon R. Greenberg, certify that: 

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of UGI Corporation; 

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to 
make the statements made, in light ofthe circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period 
covered by this report; 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material 
respects the fmancial condition, results of operations and cash flows ofthe registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as 
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and intemal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have: 

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed imder our 
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by 
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared; 

(b) Designed such intemal control over financial reporting, or caused such intemal control over financial reporting to be designed under our 
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements 
for extemal purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; 

(c) Evaluated die effectiveness ofthe registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the 
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and 

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's intemal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most 
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably 
likely to materially affect, the registrant's intemal control over financial reporting; and 

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of intemal control over financial 
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee ofthe registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent 
functions): 

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of intemal control over financial reporting which are 
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and 

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's intemal 
control over financial reporting. 

Date: November 20, 2012 
Isl Lon R. Greenberg 

Lon R. Greenberg 
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of 
UGI Corporation 



EXHIBIT 31 
CERTIFICATION 

I, Kirk R. Oliver, certify that: 

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of UGI Corporation; 

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untme statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to 
make the statements made, in light ofthe circimistances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period 
covered by this report; 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material 
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows ofthe registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosiu-e controls and procedures (as 
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and i5d-15(e)) and intemal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have: 

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our 
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made knovm to us h 
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared; 

(b) Designed such intemal control over financial reporting, or caused such intemal control over financial reporting to be designed under ox 
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of fmancial statements 
for extemal purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; 

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness ofthe registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the 
effectiveness ofthe disclosure controls and procedures, as ofthe end ofthe period covered by this report based on such evaluation; anc 

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's intemal control over fmancial reporting that occurred during the registrant's mos 
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably 
likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and 

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of intemal control over financial 
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee ofthe registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent 
fimctions): 

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of intemal control over fmancial reporting which are 
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report fmancial information; and 

(b) Any fi^ud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's intern; 
control over financial reporting. 

Date: November 20,2012 

Isl Kirk R. Oliver 

Kirk R. Oliver 
ChiefFinancial Officer of UGI Corporation 



EXHIBIT 32 
Certification by the Chief Executive Officer and ChiefFinancial Officer 

Relating to a Periodic Report Containing Financial Statements 

I, Lon R. Greenberg, Chief Executive Officer, and I, Kirk R. Oliver, ChiefFinancial Officer, of UGI Corporation, a Pennsylvania 
corporation (the "Company"), hereby certify that to our knowledge: 

(1) The Company's annual report on Form 10-K for the period ended September 30,2012 (the "Form 10-K") Mly complies with the 
requirements of Section 13(a) ofthe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and 

(2) The information contained in the Form 10-K fairly presents, in all material respects, the fmancial condition and results of operations of 
the Company. 

* * * 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF FINANCL\L OFFICER 

Isl Lon R. Greenberg Isl Kirk R. Oliver 

Lon R. Greenberg Kirk R. Oliver 

Date: November 20,2012 Date: November 20,2012 
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UNITED STATES 
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 

WASHINGTON, D.C, 20549 

FORM 10-K 
ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTIONS 13 OR 15(d) 

OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2013 
Commission file number 1-11071 

UGI CORPORATION 
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter) 

Pennsylvania 23-2668356 
(State or Other Jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.) 
Incorporation or Organization) 

460 North Gulph Road, King of Prussia, PA 19406 
(Address of Principal Executive Offices) (Zip Code) 

(610)337-7000 
(Registrant's telephone number, including area code) 

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) ofthe Act: 

Name of each Exchange 
Title of Each Class on Which Registered 

Common Stock, without par value New York Stock Exchange, Inc. 

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act; None 

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 ofthe Securities Act. Yes 0 No • 

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) ofthe Act. Yes D No 0 
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) ofthe Securities Exchange Ac 
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subjec 
to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes 0 No D 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data 
File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 ofthis chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or 
for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files). 
Yes 0 No n 

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers piu-suant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K (§229.405 of this chapter) is not containe 
herein, and will not be contained, to the best of registrant's knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by referenc 
in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. 0 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reportin 
company. See the definitions of "large accelerated filer," "accelerated filer" and "smaller reporting company" in Rule 12b-2 ofthe Exchang 
Act. 

Large accelerated filer 0 Accelerated filer D Non-accelerated filer • Smaller reporting company D 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 ofthe Act). Yes D No 0 

Theaggregatemarket value ofUGI Corporation Common Stock held by non-affiliates ofthe registrant on March 31,2013 was $4,362,169,553 

At November 29,2013 , there were 114,478,990 shares of UGI Corporation Common Stock issued and outstanding. 

Portions of the Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on January 30, 2014 are incorporated by reference in 
Part III ofthis Form 10-K. 
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FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION 

Information contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K may contain forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27, 
of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"). Sue 
statements use forward-looking words such as "believe," "plan," "anticipate," "continue," "estmiate," "expect," "may," or other similar word 
These statements discuss plans, strategies, events or developments that we expect or anticipate will or may occur in the future. 

A forward-looking statement may include a statement of the assumptions or bases underlying the forward-looking statement. W 
believe that we have chosen these assumptions or bases in good faith and that they are reasonable. However, we caution you that actual resul 
almost always vary fi^m assumed facts or bases, and the differences between actual results and assumed facts or bases can be materia 
depending on the circumstances. When considering forward-looking statements, you should keep in mind the following important factors whic 
could affect our fiiture results and could cause those results to differ materially from those expressed in our forward-looking statements: (1 
adverse weather conditions resulting in reduced demand; (2) cost volatility and availability of propane and other liquefied petroleum gases, oi 
electricity, and natural gas and the capacity to transport product to our customers; (3) changes in domestic and foreign laws and regulation 
including safety, tax, consumer protection and accounting matters; (4) inability to timely recover costs through utility rate proceedings; (5) ll 
impact of pending and future legal proceedings; (6) competitive pressures from the same and ahemative ener^ sources; (7) failm-e to acquii 
new customers and retain current customers thereby reducing or limiting any increase in revenues; (8) liability for environmental claims; (i 
increased customer conservation measures due to high energy prices and improvements in energy efficiency and technology resulting in reduce 
demand; (10) adverse labor relations; (11) large customer, counterparty or supplier defaults; (12) liability in excess of insiurance coverage ft 
personal injury and property damage arising from explosions and other catastrophic events, including acts of terrorism, resulting from operatin 
hazards and risks incidental to generating and distributing electricity and transporting, storing and distributing natural gas and liquefie 
petroleum gases; (13) political, regulatory and economic conditions in the United States and in foreign counh-ies, including foreign currenc 
exchange rate fluctuations, particularly the euro; (14) capital market conditions, including reduced access to capital markets and interest rai 
fluctuations; (15) changes in commodity market prices resulting in significantiy higher cash collateral requirements; (16) reduced distributior 
from subsidiaries; (17) the timing of development of Marcellus Shale gas production; (18) the timing and success of our acquisition 
commercial initiatives and investments to grow our businesses; and (19) our ability to successfiiiiy integrate acquired businesses and achie\ 
anticipated synergies. 

These factors are not necessarily all ofthe important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially fi-om those expressed i 
any of our forward-looking statements. Other unknown or xmpredictable factors could also have material adverse effects on future results. W 
undertake no obligation to update publicly any forward-looking statement whether as a result of new information or fiiture events except i 
required by the federal securities laws. 

PART I: 

ITEMS 1. AND 2. BUSINESS AND PROPERTIES 

CORPORATE OVERVIEW 

UGI Corporation (the "Company") is a holding company that, through subsidiaries, distributes, stores, transports and markets ener 
products and related services. We are a domestic and intemational retail distributor of propane and butane (which are liquefied petroleum gas 
("LPG")); a provider of natural gas and electric service through regulated local distribution utilities; a generator of electricity; a regioi 
marketer of energy commodities; an owner and manager of midstream assets; and a regional provider of heating, ventilation, air conditionii 
refrigeration and electrical contracting services. Om- subsidiaries and affiliates operate principally in the following six business segments: 

• AmeriGas Propane 
• UGI Intemational - Antargaz 
• UGI Intemational - Flaga & Other 
• Energy Services 
• Electric Generation 
• Gas Utility 
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The AmeriGas Propane segment consists ofthe propane distribution business of AmeriGas Partners, L.P. ("AmeriGas Partners"), which 
is the nation's largest retail propane distributor, and, prior to its merger with and into AmeriGas Propane, L.P. ("AmeriGas OLP") on July 1, 
2013, Heritage Operating, L.P. ("HOLP" and, together with AmeriGas Partners, the "Partnership"). The Partnership's sole general partner is our 
subsidiary, AmeriGas Propane, Inc. ("AmeriGas Propane" or the "General Partner"). The common units of AmeriGas Partners represent limited 
partner interests in a Delaware limited partnership and they trade on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol "APU." We have an 
effective 26% ownership interest in the Partnership; Energy Transfer Partners, L.P., a Delaware limited partnership ("ETP"), has an effective 
24% ovmership interest in the Partnership and the remaining interest is publicly held. See Note 1 to Consolidated Financial Statements. 

The UGI Intemational - Antargaz segment consists ofthe LPG distribution business of our wholly owned subsidiary Antargaz, a French 
societe anonyme, and our LPG distribution businesses in the Benelux countries (consisting of Belgium, the Netherlands, and Luxembourg) 
(collectively, "Antargaz"). Antargaz is one ofthe largest retail distributors of LPG in France and the Netherlands and the largest retail distributor 
of LPG in Belgium and Luxembourg. 

The UGI Intemational - Flaga & Other segment consists of the LPG distribution businesses of (i) Flaga GmbH, an Austrian limited 
liability company, and its subsidiaries (collectively, "Flaga"), (ii) AvantiGas Limited, a United Kingdom private limited company 
("AvantiGas"), and (iii) ChinaGas Partners, L.P., a majority-owned Delaware limited partnership. Flaga is the largest retail LPG distributor in 
Austria and Denmark and one of the largest in Poland, the Czech Republic, Hungary, Slovakia, Norway, Sweden, and Finland. Flaga also 
distributes LPG in Romania and Switzerland. AvantiGas is an LPG distî ibutor in the United Kingdom. ChinaGas Partners is an LPG distributor 
in the Nantong region of China. The UGI Intemational - Antargaz and UGI Intemational - Flaga & Other segments are collectively referred to as 
"UGI Intemational." 

The Energy Services segment consists of energy-related businesses conducted by our wholly owned subsidiary, UGI Energy Services, 
LLC, which was formerly known as UGI Energy Services, Inc., and its subsidiaries. UGI Energy Services, Inc. was merged with and into UGI 
Energy Services, LLC, effective October 1,2013 ("Energy Services"). These businesses include (i) energy marketing in the Mid-Atlantic region 
of the United States, (ii) operating and owning a natural gas liquefaction, storage and vaporization facility and propane-air mixing assets, (iii) 
managing natural gas pipeline and storage contracts, and (iv) developing, owning and operating pipelines, gathering infrastmcture and gas 
storage facilities in the Marcellus Shale region of Pennsylvania. 

The Electric Generation segment consists of electric generation facilities conducted by Energy Services' wholly owned subsidiary, UGI 
Development Company ("UGID"). UGID has an approximate 5.97% (approximately 102 megawatt) ownership interest in a coal-fired 
generation station in Pennsylvania. UGID also owns and operates (i) a 130 megawatt natural gas-fueled generating station in Pennsylvania, (ii) 
an 11 megawatt landfill gas-fiieled generation plant in Pennsylvania, and (iii) 9.41 megawatts of solar-powered generation capacity in 
Pennsylvania, Maryland and New Jersey. The Energy Services and Electric Generation segments are collectively referred to as "Midstream & 
Marketing." 

The Gas Utility segment ("Gas Utility") consists of the regulated natural gas distribution businesses of our subsidiary, UGI Utilities, 
Inc. ("UGI Utilities"), and UGI Utilities' subsidiaries, UGI Penn Natural Gas, Inc. ("PNG") and UGI Central Penn Gas, Inc. ("CPG"). Gas 
Utility serves approximately 600,000 customers in eastem and cenhral Pennsylvania and several himdred customers in portions of one Maryland 
county. UGI Utilities' natural gas dishibution utility is referred to as "UGI Gas." Gas Utility is regulated by the Pennsylvania Public Utility 
Commission ("PUC") and, with respect to ite several hundred customers in Maryland, the Maryland Public Service Conmiission. 

In addition to the segments set forth herein, UGI Corporation also owns and operates (i) a regulated electric distribution business in 
Pennsylvania through UGI Utilities ("Electric Utility") and (ii) a heating, ventilation, air-conditioning, refrigeration and electrical contracting 
;ervice business in the Mid-Atlantic region ofthe United States through UGI HVAC Enterprises, Inc. ("HVAC"). 

business Strategy 

Our business strategy is to grow the Company by focusing on our core competencies of distributing, storing, transporting and marketing 
energy products and services. We are utilizing our core competencies from our existing businesses and our national scope, intemational 
ixperience, extensive asset base and access to customers to accelerate both intemal growth and growth through acquisitions in our existing 
tusinesses, as well as in related and complementary businesses. During Fiscal 2013, we completed a number of transactions in pursuit of this 
trategy and made progress on larger internally generated capital projects, including infrastmcture projects to support the development of natural 
;as in the Marcellus Shale region of Pennsylvania. A few of these transactions and projects are described below. 
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During the last fiscal quarter of Fiscal 2013, Flaga expanded its LPG business in Poland by purchasing an LPG distribution busines; 
that distributed more than 150 million gallons in Fiscal 2012 in Poland. See "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition am 
Results of Operations" and Note 5 to Consolidated Financial Statements. 

During Fiscal 2013, Energy Services commenced a (i) pipeline project to extend a gathering system in the Marcellus Shale region o; 
Pennsylvania, and (ii) a project to increase liquefaction capacity at its natural gas liquefaction, storage, and vaporization facility in Temple 
Pennsylvania. The pipeline extension project was completed during the first quarter of Fiscal 2014 and the liquefaction project in Temple 
Pennsylvania is expected to be completed during Fiscal 2014. 

In January of 2012, the Partnership acquired the subsidiaries of ETP that operated ETP's propane distribution business ("Heritagt 
Propane") and completed the integration of Heritage Propane into the Partnership's business during Fiscal 2013. See "Management's Discussioi 
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations." 

Corporate Information 

UGI Corporation was incorporated in Pennsylvania in 1991. UGI Corporation is not subject to regulation by the PUC. UGI Corporatioi 
is a "holding company" under the Public Utility Holding Company Act of 2005 ("PUHCA 2005"). PUHCA 2005 and the implementing 
regulations of the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission ("FERC") give FERC access to certain holding company books and records anc 
impose certain accounting, record-keeping, and reporting requirements on holding companies. PUHCA 2005 also provides state utilit; 
regulatory commissions with access to holding company books and records in certain circumstances. Pursuant to a waiver granted in accordancs 
with FERC's regulations on the basis of UGI Corporation's status as a single-state holding company system, UGI Corporation is not subject ti 
certain ofthe accounting, record-keeping, and reporting requirements prescribed by FERC's regulations. 

Our executive offices are located at 460 North Gulph Road, King of Pmssia, Pennsylvania 19406, and our telephone number is (610 
337-7000. In this report, the terms "Company" and "UGI," as well as the terms "our," "we," and "its," are sometimes used as abbreviatec 
references Xo UGI Corporation or, collectively, UGI Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries. Similarly, the terms "AmeriGas Partners" am 
the "Partnership" are sometimes used as abbreviated references to AmeriGas Partners, L.P. or, collectively, AmeriGas Partners, L.P. and iti 
subsidiaries and the term "UGI Utilities" is sometimes used as an abbreviated reference to UGI Utilities, Inc. or, collectively, UGI Utilities, Inc 
and its subsidiaries. The terms "Fiscal 2013" and "Fiscal 2012" refer to the fiscal years ended September 30, 2013 and September 30, 2012 
respectively. 

The Company's corporate website can be found at www.ugicorp.com. Information on our website is not intended to be incorporatec 
into this report. The Company makes available free of charge at this website (under the "Investor Relations and Corporate Govemance - SEC 
Filings" caption) copies of its reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) ofthe Exchange Act, including its Annual Reports oi 
Form 10-K, its Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and its Current Reports on Form 8-K. The Company's Principles of Corporate Governance; 
Code of Ethics for the Chief Executive Officer and Senior Financial Officers, Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for Directors, Officers an 
Employees, and charters of the Corporate Govemance, Audit, Compensation and Management Development, and Safety, Environmental an 
Regulatory Compliance Committees of the Board of Directors are also available on the Company's website, imder the captions "Investc 
Relations - Corporate Govemance - Committees." All of tiiese documents are also available free of charge by viriting to Treasurer, UG 
Corporation, P.O. Box 858, Valley Forge, PA 19482. 

AMERIGAS PROPANE 
Products, Services and Marketing 

Our domestic propane distiibution business is conducted through AmeriGas Partners. AmeriGas Propane is responsible for managin 
the Partnership. The Partnership serves over 2 million customers in all 50 states firom over 2,500 propane distribution locations. In addition t 
distributing propane, the Partnership also sells, installs and services propane appliances, including heating systems. Typically, the Partnership' 
locations are in suburban and rural areas where natural gas is not readily available. Our dish-ict offices generally consist of a busmess offict 
appliance showroom, warehouse, and service facilities, with one or more 18,000 to 30,000 gallon storage tanks on the premises. As part of i 
overall transportation and distribution infi^stmcture, the Partnership operates as an interstate carrier in 48 states throughout the continent: 
United States. It is also licensed as a carrier in the Canadian Provinces of Ontario, British Columbia and Quebec. 

The Partnership sells propane primarily to residential, commercial/industrial, motor fiiel, agricultural and wholesale customers. Tl 
Partnership distributed nearly 1.4 billion gallons of propane in Fiscal 2013. Approximately 92% ofthe Partaership's Fiscal 2013 sales (based c 
gallons sold) were to retail accounts and approximately 8% were to wholesale customers. Sales to 

http://www.ugicorp.com
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residential customers in Fiscal 2013 represented approximately 42% of retail gallons sold; commercial/industrial customers 33%; motor fiiel 
customers 12%; and agricultural customers 8%. Transport gallons, which are large-scale deliveries to retail customers other than residential, 
accounted for 5% of Fiscal 2013 retail gallons. No single customer represents, or is anticipated to represent, more than 5% ofthe Partnership's 
consolidated revenues. 

The Partnership continues to expand its AmeriGas Cylinder Exchange ("ACE") program. At September 30, 2013, ACE cylinders were 
available at nearly 47,500 retail locations throughout the United States. Sales of our ACE cylinders to retailers are included in 
commercial/indusfrial sales. The ACE program enables consumers to purchase propane cylinders or exchange their empty propane cylinders at 
various retail locations such as home centers, gas stations, mass merchandisers and grocery and convenience stores. We also supply retailers with 
large propane tanks to enable retailers to replenish customers' propane cylinders directly at the retailer's location. 

Residential customers use propane primarily for home heating, water heating and cooking purposes. Commercial users, which include 
hotels, restaurants, churches, warehouses and retail stores, generally use propane for the same purposes as residential customers. Industiial 
customers use propane to fire fiimaces, as a cutting gas and in other process applications. Other industrial customers are large-scale heating 
accounts and local gas utility customers who use propane as a supplemental fiiel to meet peak load deliverability requirements. As a motor fuel, 
propane is bumed in intemal combustion engines that power over-the-road vehicles, forklifts, commercial lawn mowers, and stationary engines. 
Agricultural uses include tobacco curing, chicken brooding, and crop drying. In its wholesale operations, the Partnership principally sells 
propane to large industrial end-users and other propane distributors. 

Retail deliveries of propane are usually made to customers by means of bobtail and rack tmcks. Propane is pumped from the bobtail 
tmck, which generally holds 2,400 to 3,000 gallons of propane, into a stationary storage tank on the customer's premises. The Partnership owns 
most of these storage tanks and leases them to its customers. The capacity of these tanks ranges from approximately 120 gallons to 
approximately 1,200 gallons. The Partnership also delivers propane in portable cylinders, including ACE cylinders. Some of these deliveries are 
made to the customer's location, where empty cylinders are either picked up or replenished in place. 

Propane Supply and Storage 

The Partnership has approximately 250 domestic and intemational sources of supply, including the spot market. Supplies of propane 
from the Partnership's sources historically have been readily available. During Fiscal 2013, approximately 90% ofthe Partnership's propane 
supply was purchased under supply agreements with terms of 1 to 3 years. The availability of propane supply is dependent upon, among other 
things, the severity of winter weather, tiie price and availability of competing fuels such as natural gas and crude oil, and the amount and 
availability of imported supply. Although no assurance can be given that supplies of propane will be readily available in the future, management 
currentiy expects to be able to seciu-e adequate supplies during fiscal year 2014. If supply fi-om major sources were intermpted, however, the cost 
of procuring replacement supplies and tiansporting those supplies fi-om ahemative locations might be materially higher and, at least on a short-
term basis, margins could be adversely affected. Enterprise Products Partners, L.P., Plains Marketing, and Targa Liquids Marketing & Trade 
supplied approximately 51% of the Partaership's Fiscal 2013 propane supply. No other single supplier provided more than 10% of tiie 
Partnership's total propane supply in Fiscal 2013. In certain geographical areas, however, a single supplier provides more than 50% ofthe 
Partnership's requirements. Dismptions in supply in these areas could also have an adverse impact on the Partaership's margins. 

The Partnership's supply contracts typically provide for pricing based upon (i) index fomiulas using the current prices established at a 
major storage point such as Mont Belvieu, Texas, or Conway, Kansas, or (ii) posted prices at the time of delivery. In addition, some agreements 
provide maximum and minimum seasonal purchase voliune guidelines. The percentage of contract purchases, and tiie amount of supply 
contracted for at fixed prices, will vary from year to year as determined by the General Partaer. The Partaership uses a number of interstate 
pipelines, as well as railroad tank cars, delivery tmcks and barges, to transport propane fi'om suppliers to storage and distribution facilities. The 
Partaership stores propane at various storage facilities and terminals located in strategic areas across the United States. 

Because the Partnership's profitability is sensitive to changes in wholesale propane costs, the Partaership generally seeks to pass on 
increases in the cost of propane to customers. There is no assurance, however, that the Partaership will always be able to pass on product cost 
increases fiilly, particularly when product costs rise rapidly. Product cost increases can be triggered by periods of severe cold weather, supply 
intermptions, increases in the prices of base commodities such as cmde oil and natural gas, or other unforeseen events. The General Partaer has 
adopted supply acquisition and product cost risk management practices to reduce the effect of volatility on selling prices. These practices 
currently include the use of summer storage, forward purchases and derivative commodity instmments, such as options and propane price swaps. 
See "Management's Discussion and Analysis 
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of Financial Condition and Results of Operations - Market Risk Disclosures." 

The following graph shows the average prices of propane on the propane spot market during the last 5 fiscal years at Mont Belvieu, 
Texas, a major storage area. 

Average Propane Spot Market Prices 
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General Industry Information 

Propane is separated from cmde oil during the refining process and also extracted from natural gas or oil wellhead gas at processing 
plants. Propane is normally transported and stored in a liquid state under moderate pressure or refiigeration for economy and ease of handling in 
shipping and distribution. When the pressure is released or the temperature is increased, it is usable as a flammable gas. Propane is colorless and 
odorless; an odorant is added to allow for its detection. Propane is considered a clean altemative fiiel under the Clean Air Act Amendments of 
1990, producing negligible amounts of pollutants when properly consumed. 

Competition 

Propane competes with other sources of energy, some of which are less costly for equivalent energy value. Propane distributors 
compete for customers with suppliers of electricity, fuel oil and nataral gas, principally on the basis of price, service, availability and portability. 
Electricity is currently more expensive than propane, but the convenience of elecdicity makes it an ath-active energy source for consumers. Fuel 
oil is also a major competitor of propane and is generally more expensive than propane. Fumaces and appliances that bum propane will not 
operate on fiiel oil, and vice versa, and, therefore, a conversion from one fiiel to the other requires the installation of new equipment. Propane 
serves as an altemative to natural gas in rural and suburban areas where natural gas is unavailable or portability of product is required. Natural 
gas is generally a significantiy less expensive source of energy than propane, although in areas where nataral gas is available, propane is used for 
certain industrial and commercial applications and as a standby fiiel during intermptions in natural gas service. The gradual expansion of the 
nation's natural gas distribution systems has resulted in the availability of natural gas in some areas that previously depended upon propane. 
However, nataral gas pipelines are not present in many areas ofthe counhy where propane is sold for heating and cooking purposes. 

For motor fuel customers, propane competes with gasoline, diesel fuel, electric batteries, fuel cells and, in certain applications, liquefied 
natural gas and compressed natural gas. Wholesale propane distribution is a highly competitive, low margin business. Propane sales to other 
retail distiibutors and large-volume, direct-shipment industiial end-users are price sensitive and frequently involve a competitive bidding 
process. 

Retail propane industry volumes have been declining for several years and no or modest growth in total demand is foreseen in tiie nexl 
several years. Therefore, the Partnership's ability to grow within the industry is dependent on its ability to acquire 
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other retail distributors and to achieve intemal growth, which includes expansion of the ACE program and the National Accounts program 
(through which the Partaership encourages multi-location propane users to enter into a supply agreement with it rather than with many 
suppliers), as well as the success of its sales and marketing programs designed to attiract and retain customers. The failure of the Partnership to 
retain and grow its customer base would have an adverse effect on its long-term results. 

The domestic propane retail distribution business is highly competitive. The Partnership competes in this business with other large 
propane marketers, including other fiill-service marketers, and thousands of small independent operators. Some rural electric cooperatives and 
fiiel oil distributors have expanded their businesses to include propane distribution and the Partnership competes with them as well. The ability 
to compete effectively depends on providing high quality customer service, maintaining competitive retail prices and controlling operating 
expenses. The Partaership also offers customers various payment and service options, including guaranteed price programs, fixed price 
arrangements and pricing arrangements based on published propane prices at specified terminals. 

In Fiscal 2013, the Partaership's retail propane sales totaled over 1.2 billion gallons. Based on the most recent annual survey by the 
American Petroleum Institate, 2011 domestic retail propane sales (armual sales for otaer than chemical uses) in the United States totaled 
approximately 8.9 billion gallons. Based on LP-GAS magazine rankings, 2011 sales volume ofthe ten largest propane companies (including 
AmeriGas Partners) represented approximately 40% of domestic retail sales. 

Properties 

As of September 30, 2013, the Partaership owned over 90%. of its approximately 950 distiict offices throughout tae country. The 
transportation of propane requires specialized equipment. The tmcks and railroad tank cars utilized for this purpose cany specialized steel tanks 
that maintain the propane in a liquefied state. As of September 30, 2013, the Partnership operated a transportation fleet with the following assets: 
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Other assets owned at September 30, 2013 included approximately 1.8 million stationary storage tanks with typical capacities of more 

than 120 gallons and approximately 4.5 million portable propane cylinders with typical capacities of 1 to 120 gallons. 

Trade Names, Trade and Service Marks 

The Partaership markets propane principally under tiie "AmeriGas®", "America's Propane Company®", "Heritage Propane®", "Titan 
Propane" and "Relationships Matter®" trade names and related service marks. The Partaership also markets propane under other various trade 
names throughout the United States. UGI owns, directly or indirectly, all tae right, title and interest in the "AmeriGas" name and related trade 
and service marks. The General Partner owns all right, title and interest in the "America's Propane Company" trade name and related service 
marks. The Partaership has an exclusive (except for use by UGI, AmeriGas, Inc., AmeriGas Gas Polska Sp. z.o.o. and the General Partaer), 
royalty-free license to use these trade names and related service marks. UGI and the General Partaer each have the option to terminate its 
respective license agreement (on 12 months prior notice in the case of UGI), without penalty, if the General Partaer is removed as general 
partaer of the Partnership other than for cause. If tae General Partner ceases to serve as the general partaer of the Partaership for cause, the 
General Partner has the option to terminate its license agreement upon payment of a fee to UGI equal to tae fair market value of the licensed 
trade names. UGI has a similar termination option; however, UGI must provide 12 months prior notice in addition to paying the fee to the 
General Partaer. 

Seasonality 

Because many customers use propane for heating purposes, the Partnership's retail sales volume is seasonal. During Fiscal 2013, 
approximately 65%. ofthe Partnership's retail sales volume occurred, and substantially all ofthe Partaership's operating income was eamed, 
during the peak heating season from October through March. As a result ofthis seasonality, sales are typically higher in the Partnership's first 
and second fiscal quarters (October 1 through March 31). Cash receipts are generally greatest 
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during the second and third fiscal quarters when customers pay for propane piu^chased during the winter heating season. 

Sales volume for the Partnership traditionally fiuctaates from year-to-year in response to variations in weather, prices, competition, 
customer mix and other factors, such as conservation efforts and general economic conditions. For information on national weataer statistics, see 
"Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resuhs of Operations." 

Government Regulation 

The Partnership is subject to various federal, state and local enviroiunental, health, safety and transportation laws and regulations 
governing the storage, distribution and transportation of propane and tae operation of bulk storage propane terminals. Generally, these laws 
impose limitations on the discharge of pollutants, establish standards for the handling of solid and hazardous substances, and require the 
investigation and cleanup of environmental contamination. These laws include, among others, the federal Resource Conservation and Recovery 
Act, the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act ("CERCLA"), the Clean Air Act, the Occupational Safety 
and Healta Act ("OSHA"), the Homeland Security Act of 2002, the Emergency Planning and Community Right to Know Act, tae Clean Water 
Act and comparable state statates. We incur expenses associated wita compliance with our obligations under federal and state environmental 
laws and regulations, and we believe that we are in material compliance wita all of our obligations. We maintain various permits taat are 
necessary to operate our facilities, some of which may be material to our operations. We continually monitor our operations whh respect to 
potential environmental issues, including changes in legal requirements. 

Hazardous Substances and Wastes 

The Partnership is investigating and remediating contamination at a number of present and former operating sites in the U.S., including 
former sites where we or our former subsidiaries operated manufactiired gas plants. CERCLA and similar state laws impose joint and several 
liability on certain classes of persons considered to have contributed to the release or threatened release of a "hazardous substance" into the 
environment without regard to fault or tae legality of the original conduct. Propane is not a hazardous substance within the meaning of federal 
and most state environmental laws. 

Health and Safety 

The Partnership is subject to the requirements of OSHA and comparable state laws that regulate the protection ofthe health and safety 
of our workers. These laws require the Partaership, among other things, to maintain information about materials, some of which may be 
hazardous or toxic, that are used, released, or produced in tae course of our operations. Certain portions of tais information must be provided to 
employees, state and local govemmental autaorities and responders, and local citizens in accordance with applicable federal and state 
Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act requirements. The Partaership's operations are also subject to the safety hazard 
communication requirements and reporting obligations set forth in federal workplace standards. 

All states in which the Partnership operates have adopted fire safety codes that regulate the storage and distiibution of propane. In some 
states, tiiese laws are administered by state agencies, and in others they are administered on a municipal level. The Partnership conducts tiaining 
programs to help ensure taat its operations are in compliance with applicable govemmental regulations. With respect to general operations. 
National Fire Protection Association ("NFPA") Pamphlets No. 54 and No. 58 and/or one or more of various intemational codes (including 
intemational fire, building and fiiel gas codes) establish rales and procedures goveming the safe handling of propane, or comparable regulations, 
which have been adopted by all states in which the Partnership operates. Management believes taat the policies and procedures currently in 
effect at all of its facilities for tae handling, storage and distribution of propane are consistent with industry standards and are in compliance in 
all material respects with applicable environmental, healta and safety laws. 

With respect to tiie transportation of propane by tmck, the Partnership is subject to regulations promulgated under federal legislation, 
including tae Federal Motor Carrier Safety Act and the Homeland Security Act of 2002. Regulations under these statutes cover the security and 
transportation of hazardous materials and are administered by the United States Department of Transportation ("DOT"), Pipeline and Hazardous 
Materials Safety Administiation. The Nataral Gas Safety Act of 1968 required the DOT to develop and enforce minimum safety regulations for 
the transportation of gases by pipeline. The DOT's pipeline safety regulations apply, among other things, to a propane gas system that supplies 
10 or more residential customers or 2 or more commercial customers from a single source and to a propane gas system any portion of which is 
located in a public place. The DOT's pipeline safety regulations require operators of all gas systems to provide operator qualification standards 
and tiaining and written instmctions for employees and third party contiactors working on covered pipelines and facilities, establish written 
procedures to minimize the hazards resulting from gas pipeline emergencies, and conduct and keep records of inspections and testing. Operators 
are subject to the Pipeline Safety Improvement Act of 2002. Management believes that the procedures currently 
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in effect at all of the Partaership's facilities for the handling, storage, transportation and distribution of propane are consistent wita industry 
standards and are in compliance, in all material respects, with applicable laws and regulations. 

Climate Change 

There continues to be concem, both nationally and internationally, about climate change and the contribution of greenhouse gas 
("GHG") emissions, most notably carbon dioxide, to global warming. Because propane is considered a clean altemative fliel under the federal 
Clean Air Act Amendments of 1990, we anticipate that this will provide us wita a competitive advantage over other sources of energy, such as 
fuel oil and coal, to the extent new climate change regulations become effective. At tae same time, increased regulation of GHG emissions, 
especially in the ft-ansportation sector, could impose significant additional costs on tae Partaership, suppliers and customers. The impact of new 
legislation and regulations will depend on a number of factors, including (i) which indusdy sectors would be impacted, (ii) the timing of required 
compliance, (iii) the overall GHG emissions cap level, (iv) the allocation of emission allowances to specific sources, and (v) tae costs and 
opportanities associated with compliance. 

Employees 

The Partnership does not directly employ any persons responsible for managmg or operating the Partnership. The General Partner 
provides these services and is reimbursed for its direct and indirect costs and expenses, including all compensation and benefit costs. At 
September 30, 2013, tae General Partner had nearly 8,500 employees, including nearly 600 part-time, seasonal and temporary employees, 
working on behalf of the Partnership. UGI also performs certain financial and administrative services for tae General Partaer on behalf of tae 
Partaership and is reimbursed by the Partnership. 

UGI INTERNATIONAL - ANTARGAZ 

Our UGI Intemational - Antargaz LPG distribution business is conducted in France and the Benelux countries (consisting of Belgium, 
tae Netaerlands, and Luxembourg). Antargaz also operates a natural gas marketing business in France and tae Benelux countries and sold 
approximately 4.8 miUion dekatherms of natural gas during Fiscal 2013. 

Products, Services and Marketing 

During Fiscal 2013, Antargaz sold approximately 258 million gallons of LPG in France and approximately 50 million gallons of LPG in 
the Benelux countries. Antargaz is one of tae largest LPG distributors in France and the Netherlands and the largest LPG distributor in Belgium 
and Luxembourg. Antargaz' customer base consists of residential, commercial, agricultural and motor fiiel customer accounts taat use LPG for 
space heating, cooking, water heating, process heat and transportation. Antargaz sells LPG in cylinders, and in small, medium and large tanks. 
Sales of LPG are also made to service stations to accommodate vehicles that run on LPG. Antargaz sells LPG in cylinders to approximately 
16,000 retail outlets, such as supermarkets, individually owned stores and gas stations. Supermarket sales represented approximately 77% of 
butane cylinder sales volume and approximately 14% of propane cylinder sales volume in Fiscal 2013. At September 30, 2013, Antargaz had 
approximately 223,000 bulk customers, approximately 8,000 natural gas customers and over 9 million cylinders in circulation. Approximately 
63% of Antargaz' Fiscal 2013 sales (based on volumes) were cylinder and small bulk, 16% medium bulk, 18% large bulk and 3% to service 
stations for automobiles. Antargaz also engages in wholesale sales of LPG and provides logistic, storage and other services to third-party LPG 
distributors. In addition, Antargaz operates a natural gas marketing business in France and the Benelux countries that services both commercial 
and residential customers. No single customer represents, or is anticipated to represent, more taan 5% of total revenues for Antargaz. 

Sales to small bulk customers represent tae largest segment of Antargaz' business in terms of volume, revenue and total margin. Small 
bulk customers are primarily residential and small business users, such as restaurants, taat use LPG mainly for heating and cooking. Small bulk 
customers also include municipalities, which use LPG for heating certain sports facilities and swimming pools, and the poultry industry for use 
in chicken brooding. 

Medium bulk customers use propane only, and consist mainly of large residential developments such as housing developments, 
hospitals, municipalities and medium-sized industiial enterprises, and poultry brooders. Large bulk customers include agricultural companies 
and companies that use LPG in their industrial processes. 

The principal end-users of cylinders are residential customers who use LPG supplied in this form for domestic applications such as 
cooking and heating. Butane cylinders accounted for approximately 54% of all LPG cylinders sold in Fiscal 2013, with propane cylinders 
accounting for the remainder. Propane cylinders are also used to supply fuel for forklifl tmcks. The market demand for cylinders has been 
declining, due primarily to customers gradually changing to otaer household energy sources for 
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cooking and heating, such as natural gas and electricity. 

LPG Supply and Storage 

Antargaz has an agreement with Totalgaz for the supply of butane in France, with pricing based on intemationally quoted market prices 
Under this agreement, approximately 50%o of Antargaz' requirements for butane are guaranteed until September 2015. Requirements are fixec 
annually and Antargaz has developed other sources of supply. In Fiscal 2013, Antargaz purchased more tiian 50% of its butane requirements ii 
France from SHV, TOTSA, and GUNVOR and purchased substantially all of its propane supply for its operations in France from SHV anc 
TOTSA. In the Benelux countries, Antargaz purchased substantially all of its butane and propane requirements from SHV and GUNVOR during 
Fiscal 2013. Antargaz also purchases propane on tiie intemational market and on the domestic market, under term agreements with intemationa 
oil and gas trading companies. In addition, purchases are made on tiie spot market fi'om intemational oil and gas companies and to a lesser exten 
from domestic refineries, including taose operated by Ineos and Esso SAP. 

Antargaz has three primary storage facilities in operation that are located at deep sea harbor facilities, and 29 secondary storagt 
facilities. It also manages an extensive logistics and transportation network. Access to seaborne facilities allows Antargaz to diversify its LPC 
supplies through imports. LPG stored in primary storage facilities is transported to smaller storage facilities by rail, sea and road. At secondar; 
storage facilities, LPG is filled into cylinders or tmcks equipped with tanks and then delivered to customers. 

Competition and Seasonality 

The LPG markets in France and the Benelux countries are matare, with modest declines in total demand due to competition wita othe: 
fiiels and otaer energy sources, conservation and tae economic climate. Sales volumes are affected principally by the severity of the weather anc 
customer migration to altemative energy forms, including nataral gas and electrici^. Because Antargaz' profitability is sensitive to changes ii 
wholesale LPG costs, Antargaz generally seeks to pass on increases in the cost of LPG to customers. There is no assurance, however, tha 
Antargaz will always be able to pass on product cost increases fiilly when product costs rise rapidly. Product cost increases can be triggered b; 
periods of severe cold weatiier, supply intermptions, increases in the prices of base commodities such as crude oil and natural gas, or othe 
unforeseen events. High LPG prices may result in slower than expected growth due to customer conservation and customers seeking les: 
expensive altemative energy sources. France derives a significant portion of its electricity from nuclear power plants. Due to the nuclear powe 
plants, as well as the regulation of electricity prices by the French govemment, electricity prices in France are generally less expensive fhar 
LPG. As a result, electricity has increasingly become a more significant competitor to LPG in France than in otaer countries where we operate 
In addition, govemment policies and incentives that favor altemative energy sources can result in customers migrating to energy sources othe 
taan LPG in bota France and tae Benelux countries. 

In France, Antargaz competes in all of its product markets on a national level principally with three LPG distribution companies 
Totalgaz (owned by Total France), Butagaz (owned by Societe des Petroles Shell) and Compagnie des Gaz de Petiole Primagaz (ovraed by SH> 
Holding NV), as well as with a regional competitor, Vitogaz. In recent years, competition has increased as supermarkets affiliate with LPC 
distributors to offer their own brands of cylinders and they are now competitors of Antargaz. Antargaz has partnered with one supermarket chai: 
in France in tais market. If Antargaz is unsuccessfiil in expanding its services to other supermarket chains, its market share through supermarkt 
sales may decline in France. In the Benelux countries, Antargaz competes in all of its product markets on a national level, principally wit 
Compagnie des Gaz de Petrole Primagaz, as well as with several regional competitors. In recent years, competition has increased in tae Benelu 
countiies as small competitors have reduced taeir price offerings. In the Netherlands, several LPG distributors offer their own brands c 
cylinders. Antargaz seeks to increase demand for its butane and propane cylinders through marketing and product innovations. Some c 
Antargaz' competitors are affiliates of its LPG suppliers. As a result, its competitors may obtain product at more competitive prices. 

Because many of Antargaz' customers use LPG for heating, sales volume is affected principally by the severity of the temperatart 
during the heating season months and traditionally fluctaate firom year-to-year in response to variations in weather, prices and other factors, sue 
as conservation efforts and the challenging economic climate. Demand for LPG is higher during tiie colder months of the year. Diuing Fisc: 
2013, approximately 65Vo of Antargaz' retail sales volume occurred, and substantially all of Antargaz' operating income was eamed, during ti 
six months from October through March. For historical information on weather statistics for Antargaz, see "Management's Discussion an 
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations." 

Government Regulation 

Antargaz' business is subject to various laws and regulations at tae national and European levels with respect to matters such 
protection ofthe environment, the storage and handling of hazardous materials and flammable substances, the discharge 
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of contaminants into the environment and the safety of persons and property. In Belgium and Luxembourg, Antargaz is also subject to price 
regulations taat permit Antargaz to increase the price of LPG sold to small bulk, medium bulk, large bulk and cylinder customers (up to a 
defined maximum price) when Antargaz' costs fluctuate. 

Properties 

Antargaz has 3 primary storage facilities in operation. One of these is a refrigerated facility. In addition, Antargaz is able to use 30,000 
cubic meters of capacity of a storage facility, Donges, by virtae of Antargaz' 50% ownership of Donges GIE. The table below sets forth details 
of Antargaz' 3 primary storage facilities: 

Antargaz Antargaz 
Storage Capacity - Storage Capacity -

Propane Butane 
Ownership % (m3) (1) (m3) (1) 

•Gffi}N0r^,g'W |> Î,-W?§;';||̂  
Geogaz Lavera 16.7 17,400 32,500 

Cobogar:/'^V:./:;/;i-;,1: ;-k5;:':t^^';^ 

(1) Cubic meters (1 cubic meter is equivalent to approximately 264 gallons). 

Antargaz has 29 seconciary storage facilities, 19 of which are wholly owned. The others are partially owned through joint ventures. 

Employees 

At September 30,2013, Antargaz had approximately 1,140 employees. 

UGI INTERNATIONAL - FLAGA & OTHER 

During Fiscal 2013, our UGI Intemational - Flaga & Other LPG distribution business was conducted principally in Europe through our 
wholly owned subsidiaries, Flaga and AvantiGas, and in China through our majority owned partnership, ChinaGas Partaers, L.P. Flaga is 
referred to in this section collectively wita its subsidiaries as "Flaga" unless the context otaerwise requires. Flaga operates in Austria, the Czech 
Republic, Denmark, Finland, Hungary, Norway, Poland, Romania, Slovakia, Sweden and Switzerland and expanded its operations in Poland 
through an acquisition in the last quarter of Fiscal 2013. AvantiGas operates in tiie United Kingdom. 

During Fiscal 2013, Flaga sold approximately 239 million gallons of LPG. Flaga is the largest distiibutor of LPG in Austria and 
Denmark and one of the largest distiibutors of LPG in Poland, the Czech Republic, Hungary, Slovakia, Norway, Sweden, and Finland. During 
Fiscal 2013, AvantiGas sold approximately 145 million gallons of LPG and our majority-owned partnership in China sold approximately 9 
million gallons of LPG. 

FLAGA 

Products, Services and Marketing 

During Fiscal 2013, Flaga sold approximately 239 million gallons of LPG (of which approximately 15 million gallons were to 
wholesale customers). Flaga serves customers that use LPG for residential, commercial, industrial, agricultaral, resale, and automobile fuel 
("auto gas") purposes. Flaga's customers primarily use LPG for heating, cooking, motor fiiel (including forklifts), leisure activities, constraction 
work, nianufactaring, crop drying, power generation and irrigation. Flaga sells LPG in cylinders and in small, medium, and large bulk tanks. At 
September 30,2013, Flaga had over 70,000 customers and 5.5 million cylinders in circulation. Approximately 27% of Flaga's Fiscal 2013 sales 
(based on volumes) were cylinder and small bulk, 21% auto gas, 46% large bulk, and 6% medium bulk. 

Flaga has a total of 18 sales oflices throughout the countries it serves, altaough it does not have sales offices in Norway, Sweden or 
Finland, largely due to the commercial and industiial nature of Flaga's business in those countries. Sales offices generally consist of an office 
location where customers can directly purchase LPG. Except for Poland, no single country's total gallons of LPG sold during Fiscal 2013 
represented more taan 13% of Flaga's total gallons in Fiscal 2013. Flaga dish-ibutes cylinders directly to its customers and through the use of 
distaibutors who resell the cylinders to end users imder the distributor's 
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pricing and terms. No single customer represents or is anticipated to represent more tiian 5% of total revenues for Flaga, with the exception o 
one auto gas customer that represented approximately 7% of Flaga's total revenues in Fiscal 2013. 

LPG Supply and Storage 

Flaga typically enters into an annual LPG supply agreement with TCO/Chevron. During Fiscal 2013, TCO/Chevron supplie 
approximately 33% of Flaga's LPG requirements, with pricing based on internationally quoted market prices. Flaga also purchases LPG on tii 
intemational market and on the domestic markets, under annual term agreements with intemational oil and gas trading companies, includin 
Vitol and Orlen Gas, and from domestic refineries, primarily OMV, Shell and Statoil. In addition, LPG purchases are made on the spot marke 
from intemational oil and gas traders. During Fiscal 2013, 80 suppliers accounted for approximately 67% of Flaga's LPG supply. 

Flaga operates 12 main storage facilities, including one in Denmark that is located at a deep sea harbor facility, one LPG import termine 
in Poland, and 60 secondary storage facilities. Flaga manages a widespread logistics and transportation network including approximately 20 
leased railcars, and also maintains various transloading and filling agreements with third parties. LPG stored in primary storage facilities i 
transported to smaller storage facilities by rail or track. 

Competition and Seasonality 

The retail propane industry in the Westem European countries in which Flaga operates is matare, with slight declines in overall deman 
in recent years, due primarily to the expansion of natural gas, customer conservation and economic conditions. In the Eastem European countiie 
in which Flaga operates, the demand for LPG is expected to grow. Competition for customers is based on contract terms as well as on produc 
prices. Flaga competes with other LPG marketers, including competitors located in other European countries, and also competes with provider 
of other sources of energy, principally natural gas, electricity and wood. 

Because many of Flaga's customers use LPG for heating, sales volumes in Flaga's sales territories are affected principally by th 
severity of the temperatures during the heating season months and traditionally fluctaate from year-to-year in response to variations in weathei 
prices and other factors, such as conservation efforts and the economic climate. Because Flaga's profitability is sensitive to changes in wholesal 
LPG costs, Flaga generally seeks to pass on increases in the cost of LPG to customers. There is no assurance, however, that Flaga will always b 
able to pass on product cost increases fiilly when product costs rise rapidly. In parts of Flaga's sales territories, it is particularly difficult to pas 
on rapid increases in the price of LPG due to the low per capita income of customers in several of its territories and the intensity of compelitior 
Product cost increases can be tiiggered by periods of severe cold weather, supply intermptions, increases in the prices of base commodities sue 
as crude oil and natural gas, or other unforeseen events. High LPG prices may result in slower than expected growth due to customs 
conservation and customers seeking less expensive altemative energy sources. In many of Flaga's sales territories, govemment policies an 
incentives that favor altemative energy sources may result in customers migrating to energy sources other than LPG. Rules and regulatior 
applicable to LPG industiy operations in many of the Eastem European countries where Flaga operates are still evolving, or are not consistent 
enforced, causing intensified competitive conditions in those areas. 

Government Regulation 

Flaga's business is subject to various laws and regulations at both the national and European levels with respect to matters such 
protection of tae environment and the storage and handling of hazardous materials and flammable substances. 

Employees 

At September 30,2013, Flaga had approximately 975 employees. 

AVANTIGAS 

Products, Services and Marketing 

During Fiscal 2013, AvantiGas sold approximately 145 million gallons of LPG (of which approximately 83 miUion gallons wc 
wholesale gallons). At September 30, 2013, AvantiGas had approximately 14,600 customers. AvantiGas serves customers that use LPG 
wholesale, aerosol, agricultaral, residential, commercial, industrial, and auto gas purposes. AvantiGas' customers primarily use LPG for heatii 
cooking, motor fuel (including forklifts), leisure activities, industrial processes and aerosol propellant. AvantiGas sells LPG in small, medin 
and large bulk tanks with small bulk sales representing approximately 6% of Fiscal 2013 sales (based on volumes), medium bulk sa 
representing approximately 36% of Fiscal 2013 sales and large 
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bulk sales representing approximately 58% of Fiscal 2013 sales. 

AvantiGas serves its customer base through a centralized customer service center and, therefore, does not have sales offices in the 
United Kingdom. Sales to wholesale customers represented approximately 58% of gallons sold; aerosol customers 20%; agricultural customers 
7%; residential customers 6%; and commercial, industrial and autogas 9%. Three wholesale customers and one aerosol customer collectively 
represented over 46% of AvantiGas' total revenues in Fiscal 2013. No other customer represents or is anticipated to represent more than 5% of 
total revenues for AvantiGas. 

LPG Supply and Storage 

AvantiGas has five-year agreements, which will terminate during the 2016 fiscal year, with Essar Energy pic's Stanlow refinery and 
STASCO's Mossmorran terminal for the supply of an aggregate of approximately 93% of AvantiGas' LPG requirements, with pricing based on 
intemationally quoted market prices. AvantiGas purchased the remainder of its LPG requirements fi-om other third party suppliers. 

AvantiGas operates 8 main storage facilities in England, Scotland and Wales. AvantiGas manages a logistics and tiansportation 
network, consisting of approximately 38 tmcks, and also maintains various transportation agreements with third parties. LPG stored in primary 
storage facilities is transported to smaller storage facilities or customers by tmck. 

Competition and Seasonality 

The retail propane industry in the United Kingdom is highly concentrated and is mature, with slight declines in overall demand in recent 
years, due primarily to the expansion of natural gas, customer conservation and challenging ecc>nomic conditions. Competition for customers is 
based on contract terms as well as on product prices, AvantiGas competes with other LPG marketers in the United Kingdom. 

Because many of AvantiGas' customers use gas for heating purposes, sales volumes in AvantiGas' sales territories are affected 
principally by the severity of the temperatures during the heating season months and traditionally fluctuate fi"om year-to-year in response to 
variations in weather, prices and other factors, such as energy conservation efforts and tae economic climate. During Fiscal 2013, over 55% of 
AvantiGas' retail sales volume occurred, and approximately 70% of AvantiGas' operating income was earned, during the peak heating season 
where AvantiGas operates. Because AvantiGas' profitability is sensitive to changes in wholesale LPG costs, AvantiGas generally seeks to pass 
on increases in the cost of LPG to customers. There is no assurance, however, that AvantiGas will always be able to pass on product cost 
increases fiilly when product costs rise rapidly. Product cost increases can be triggered by periods of severe cold weather, supply interraptions, 
increases in the prices of base commodities, such as cmde oil and natural gas, or other unforeseen events. High LPG prices may result in slower 
than expected growlh due to customer conservation and customers seeking less expensive altemative energy sources. 

Government Regulation 

AvantiGas' business is subject to various laws and regulations at both the national and European levels with respect to matters such as 
competition, protection of tae environment and the storage and handling of hazardous materials and flammable substances. 

Employees 

At September 30, 2013, AvantiGas had approximately 175 employees. 

ENERGY SERVICES 

Retail Energy Marketing 

Energy Services sells natural gas, liquid fiiels and electricity to approximately 17,000 commercial and industrial customers at 
ipproximately 4I,(X)0 locations. Energy Services serves customers in all or portions of Pennsylvania, New Jersey, Delaware, New York, Ohio, 
VIar>'land, Massachusetts, Virginia, North Carolina and tae District of Columbia. Energy Services distributes nataral gas tarough tae use of the 
iistribution systems of 36 local gas utilities. It supplies power to customers through the use ofthe ttansmission systems of 20 utiUty systems. 

Historically, a majority of Energy Services' commodity sales have been made under fixed-price agreements, which typically contain a 
ake-or-pay arrangement that permits customers to purchase a fixed amount of product for a fixed price during 
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a specified period, and to pay for the product even if the customer does not take delivery ofthe product. However, a growing number of Energy 
Services' commodity sales are currently being made imder requirements contracts, under which Energy Services is typically an exclusive 
supplier and will supply as much product as the customer requires. Energy Services manages supply cost volatility related to these agreements 
by (i) entering into fixed-price supply arrangements with a diverse group of suppliers, (ii) holding its own interstate pipeline transportation and 
storage contiacts to efficiently utilize gas supplies, (iii) entering into exchange-traded fiitares contiacts on the New York Mercantile Exchange, 
(iv) entering into over-the-counter derivative arrangements with major intemational banks and major suppliers, (v) utilizing supply assets taat it 
ovras or manages, and (vi) utilizing financial transmission rights to hedge price risk against certain transmission costs. Energy Services also 
bears the risk for balancing and delivering natural gas and power to its customers under various gas pipeline and utility company tariffs. See 
"Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations - Market Risk Disclosures." 

Midstream Assets 

Energy Services operates a natural gas liquefaction, storage and vaporization facility in Temple, Pennsylvania ("Temple Facility"), and 
propane storage and propane-air mixing stations in Betalehem, Reading, Hunlock Creek, and White Deer, Pennsylvania. It also operates propane 
storage, rail transshipment terminals, and propane-air mixing stations in Steelton and Williamsport, Permsylvania. These assets are used in 
Energy Services' energy peaking business that provides supplemental energy, primarily liquefied nataral gas and propane-air mixtares, to gas 
utilities on interstate pipelines at times of high demand (generally during periods of coldest winter weather). In Fiscal 2013, Energy Services 
expanded its energy peaking services at the Temple Facility and sold liquefied nataral gas to customers for use by ti^icks, drilling rigs, other 
motor vehicles and facilities located off tae gas grid. Energy Services also manages natural gas pipeline and storage contracts for UGI Utilities, 
subject to a competitive bid process, as well as storage capacity owned by Energy Services. 

A wholly owned subsidiary of Energy Services owns and operates underground natural gas storage and related high pressure pipeline 
facilities formerly owned by CPG, which have FERC approval to sell storage services at market-based rates. The storage facilities are located in 
the Marcellus Shale region of Pennsylvania and have a total storage capacity of 15 million decatherms and a maximum daily withdrawal quantity 
of 224,000 decatherms. In Fiscal 2013, Energy Services leased more taan 70% ofthe capacity at its underground nataral gas facilities to third 
parties. 

In Fiscal 2013, Energy Services began operating a new compressor station and is now able to receive natural gas from tae Tennessee 
Gas Pipeline for injection into the storage facility on a firm basis throughout tae year. 

In Fiscal 2013, Energy Services continued making investments in infrastmcture projects to support the development of nataral gas in 
tae Marcellus Shale region of Pennsylvania. During Fiscal 2013, Energy Services invested capital to extend its gathering system to transport 
natural gas from Wyoming County, Pennsylvania tiirough a newly constracted pipeline to an interstate pipeline in Luzeme County, 
Pennsylvania. This project was completed during the first quarter of Fiscal 2014. The gathering system will provide for (i) expanded capacity 
tarough additional compression; and (ii) additional delivery options by connecting the region served by PNG and two interstate pipelines with 
Marcellus producers. 

Futare plaimed investments are expected to cover a range of midstieam asset opportunities, including interstate pipelines, local 
gataering systems and gas storage facilities and complementary and related investments in natural gas exploration, production and refining. 

Competition 

Energy Services competes with other midstream operators to sell gathering, compression, storage, and pipeline transportation services. 
Energy Services competes in both tae regulated and non-regulated environment against interstate and intrastate pipelines that gather, compress, 
process, transport, and market nataral gas. Energy Services sells midstream services primarily to producers, marketers, and utilities on tae basis 
of price, customer service, flexibility, reliability, and operational experience. The competition in the midstream segment is significant and has 
grown recently in the northeast U.S. as more competitors seek opportunities offered by the development ofthe Marcellus and Utica shales. 

Energy Services also competes with other marketers, consultants, and local utilities to sell natural gas, liquid fiiels, electric power, and 
related services to customers in its service area principally on the basis of price, customer service, and reliability. Energy Services has faced an 
increase in competition as new markets for natural gas, liquid fiiels, electric power, and related services have emerged. 
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Government Regulation 

FERC has jurisdiction over the rates and terms and conditions of service of wholesale sales of electric capacity and energy, as well as 
the sales for resale of nataral gas and related storage and transportation services. Energy Services has a tariff on file with FERC pursuant to 
which it may make power sales to wholesale customers at market-based rates. Energy Services also has market-based rate authority for power 
sales to wholesale customers to the extent that Energy Services purchases power in excess of its retail customer needs. Two subsidiaries of 
Energy Services operate nataral gas storage facilities under FERC certificate approvals and offer services to wholesale customers at FERC-
approved market-based rates. Energy Services is also subject to FERC reporting requirements, market manipulation rales and other FERC 
enforcement and regulatory powers. 

Energy Services is subject to various federal, state and local environmental, safety and transportation laws and regulations goveming 
the storage, distribution and transportation of propane and the operation of bulk storage LPG terminals. These laws include, among others, the 
Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, CERCLA, the Clean Air Act, OSHA, tae Homeland Security Act of 2002, the Emergency Planning 
and Community Right to Know Act, the Clean Water Act and comparable state statates. CERCLA imposes joint and several liability on certain 
classes of persons considered to have contributed to the release or threatened release of a "hazardous substance" into the environment without 
regard to fault or the legality of the original conduct. Energy Services also is required to comply with the provisions of the Pipeline Safety Act 
and the regulations of tae U.S. DOT with respect to the operation of natural gas gathering and ttansportation pipelines. 

Employees 

At September 30, 2013, Energy Services had approximately 185 employees. 

ELECTRIC GENERATION 
Products and Services 

UGID has an approximate 5.97% (approximately 102 megawatt) ownership interest in the Conemaugh generation station 
("Conemaugh"), a 1,711 megawatt, coal-fired generation station located near Johnstown, Pennsylvania. Conemaugh is owned by a consortium of 
energy companies and operated by a unit of NRG Energy. UGID also owns and operates the Hunlock Station located near Wilkes-Barre, 
Pennsylvania, a 130-megawatt nataral gas-fiieled generating station. 

UGID also owns and operates a landfill gas-fiieled generation plant near Hegins, Permsylvania, with gross generating capacity of 11 
megawatts. The plant qualifies for renewable energy credits. 

UGID also owns and operates 9.41 megawatts of solar-powered generation capacity in Pennsylvania, Maryland and New Jersey. 
Several other solar generation projects are in development. 

Competition 

UGID competes with other generation stations on tae interface of PJM Interconnection, LLC ("PJM"), a regional transmission 
organization taat coordinates tae movement of wholesale electricity in certain states, including tae states in which we operate, and bases sales on 
bid pricing. Generally, each power generator has a small share ofthe total market on PJM. 

Government Regulation 

UGID owns electric generation facilities that are witain the control area of PJM and are dispatched in accordance wita a FERC-
approved open access tariff and associated agreements administered by PJM. UGID receives certain revenues collected by PJM, determined 
under an approved rate schedule. UGID is also subject to FERC reporting requirements, market manipulation mles and other FERC 
enforcement and regulatory powers. 

Employees 

At September 30,2013, UGID had approximately 25 employees. 

GAS UTILITY 

Gas Utility consists of tae regulated natural gas distribution businesses of our subsidiary, UGI Utilities, and UGI Utilities' subsidiaries, 
PNG and CPG. Gas Utility serves approximately 600,000 customers in eastem and central Pennsylvania and several hundred customers in 
portions of one Maryland coimty. Gas Utility is regulated by tae PUC and, with respect to its several hundred 
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customers in Maryland, tae Maryland Public Service Commission. 

Service Area; Revenue Analysis 

Gas Utility is authorized to distribute nataral gas to approximately 600,000 customers in portions of 46 eastem and central Pennsylvania 
counties through its distribution system of approximately 12,000 miles of gas mains. Contemporary materials, such as plastic or coated steel, 
comprise approximately 85% of Gas Utility's 12,000 miles of gas mains, with bare steel pipe comprising approximately 11% and cast iron pipe 
comprising approximately 4% of Gas Utility's gas mains. In accordance witii Gas Utility's agreement with tiie PUC, Gfas Utility will replace the 
cast iron portion of its gas mains by March of 2027 and the bare steel portion by March of 2043. The service area includes the cities of 
Allentown, Bethlehem, Easton, Harrisburg, Hazleton, Lancaster, Lebanon, Reading, Scranton, Wilkes-Barre, Lock Haven, Pittston, Pottsville, 
and Williamsport, Pennsylvania, and the boroughs of Honesdale and Milford, Pennsylvania. Located in Gas Utility's service area are major 
production centers for basic industries such as specialty metals, aluminum, glass and paper product manufacturing. Gas Utility also distributes 
natural gas to several hundred customers in portions of one Maryland county. 

System throughput (tae total volume of gas sold to or transported for customers witain Gas Utility's distribution system) for Fiscal 2013 
was approximately 192.1 billion cubic feet ("bcf). System sales of gas accounted for approximately 29% of system tiiroughput, while gas 
transported for residential, commercial and industrial customers who bought their gas from otiiers accounted for approximately 71% of system 
throughput. 

Sources of Supply and Pipeline Capacity 

Gas Utility is permitted to recover pmdently incurred costs of natural gas it sells to its customers. See "Management's Discussion and 
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations - Market Risk Disclosures" and Note 9 to Consolidated Financial Statements. Gas 
Utility meets its service requirements by utilizing a diverse mix of natural gas purchase contracts wita marketers and producers, along wita 
storage and transportation service contracts. These arrangements enable Gas Utility to purchase gas from Gulf Coast, Mid-Continent, 
Appalachian and Canadian sources. For the transportation and storage function, Gas Utility has long-term agreements with a number of pipeline 
companies, including Texas Eastem Transmission Corporation, Columbia Gas Transmission, LLC, Transcontinental Gas Pipeline Company, 
LLC, Dominion Transmission, Inc., ANR Pipeline Company, and Tennessee Gas Pipeline Company, L.L.C. 

Gas Supply Contracts 

During Fiscal 2013, Gas Utility purchased approximately 77.7 bcf of nataral gas for sale to core-market customers principally 
comprised of firm- residential, commercial and industrial customers that purchase their gas from Gas Utility ("retail core market")) and off-
system sales customers. Approximately 14% ofthe volumes purchased were supplied under agreements with 10 suppliers. The remaining 26% 
of gas purchased by Gas Utility was supplied by approximately 36 producers and marketers. Gas supply contiacts for Gas Utility are generally 
no longer than 1 year. Gas Utility also has long-term contracts with suppliers for nataral gas peaking supply during the months of November 
through March. 

Seasonal^ 

Because many of its customers use gas for heating purposes. Gas Utility's sales are seasonal. During Fiscal 2013, nearly 65% of Gas 
Utility's sales volume was supplied, and over 85%. of Gas Utility's operating income was eamed, during the peak heating season from Octobei 
tarough March. 

Competition 

Natural gas is a fiiel that competes with electricity and oil, and to a lesser extent, wita propane and coal. Competition among these fuels 
is primarily a flmction of their comparative price and the relative cost and efficiency of the equipment. Nattiral gas generally benefits from 
competitive price advantage over oil, electricity, and propane. Fuel oil dealers compete for customers in all categories, including industria 
customers. Gas Utility responds to tais competition with marketing and sales efforts designed to retain, expand, and grow its customer base. 

In substantially all of its service territories. Gas Utility is the only regulated gas distribution utility having tae right, granted by the PUC 
or by law, to provide gas distribution services. Since the 1980s, larger commercial and industiial customers have been able to purchase gas 
supplies from entities other than natural gas distribution utility companies. As a result of Pennsylvania's Natural Gas Choice and Competitioi 
Act, effective July 1,1999, all of Gas Utility's customers, including core-market customers, have been afforded this opportunity. 
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A number of Gas Utility's commercial and industrial customers have tae ability to switch to an altemate fuel at any time and, taerefore, 
are ser\'ed on an intermptible basis under rates that are competitively priced with respect to the altemate fuel. Margin from these customers, 
therefore, is affected by the difference or "spread" between the customers' delivered cost of gas and the customers' delivered cost ofthe altemate 
fiiel, as well as the frequency and duration of intermptions. See "Gas Utility Regulation and Rates - Permsylvania Public Utility Commission 
Jurisdiction and Gas Utility Rates." 

Approximately 34% of Gas Utility's commercial and industrial customers' annual throughput volume, including certain customers 
served under intermptible rates, have locations that afford taem the opportunity of seeking transportation service directly from interstate 
pipelines, thereby bypassing Gas Utility. Gas Utility has approximately 30 of such customers wita transportation contracts extending beyond 
Fiscal 2013. The majority of these customers are served under transportation conttacts having 3 to 20 year terms and all are among the largest 
customers for Gas Utility in terms of annual volumes. No single customer represents, or is anticipated to represent, more than 5% of Gas 
Utility's total revenues. 

Outlook for Gas Service and Supply 

Gas Utility anticipates having adequate pipeline capacity, peaking services and other sources of supply available to it to meet the fiill 
requirernents of all firm customers on its system tarough fiscal year 2014. Supply mix is diversified, market priced, and delivered pursuant to a 
number of long-term and short-term firm transportation and storage arrangements, including transportation conttacts held by some of Gas 
Utility's larger customers. 

During Fiscal 2013, Gas Utility supplied transportation service to 4 major co-generation installations and 6 electric generation facilities. 
Gas Utility continues to seek new residential, commercial and industtial customers for both firm and intermptible service. In Fiscal 2013, Gas 
Utility connected approximately 1,900 new commercial and industrial customers. In the residential market sector. Gas Utility connected over 
15,000 residential heating customers during Fiscal 2013. Nearly 8,800 of these customers converted to natural gas from otaer energy sources, 
mainly oil and electricity. New home constmction customers and existing non-heating gas customers who added gas heating systems to replace 
other energy sources primarily accounted for the otaer residential heating connections in Fiscal 2013. 

UGI Utilities continues to monitor and participate, where appropriate, in ralemaking and individual rate and tariff proceedings before 
FERC affecting the rates and the terms and conditions under which Gas Utility ttansports and stores natural gas. Among these proceedings are 
those arising out of certain FERC orders and/or pipeline filings that relate to (i) tae pricing of pipeline services in a competitive energy 
marketplace; (ii) the flexibility of tae terms and conditions of pipeline service tariffs and conttacts; and (iii) pipelines' requests to increase their 
base rates, or change tae terms and conditions of their storage and fransportation services. 

UGI Utilities' objective in negotiations with interstate pipeline and nataral gas suppliers, and in proceedings before regulatory agencies, 
is to assure availability of supply, transportation and storage altematives to serve market requirements at tae lowest cost possible, taking into 
account the need for security of supply. Consistent with that objective, UGI Utilities negotiates the terms of firm fransportation capacity on all 
pipelines serving it, arranges for appropriate storage and peak-shaving resources, negotiates with producers for competitively priced gas 
purchases and aggressively participates in regulatory proceedings related to transportation rights and costs of service. 

GAS UTILITY REGULATION AND RATES 

Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission Jurisdiction and Gas UtUity Rates 

Gas Utility is subject to regulation by the PUC as to rates, terms and conditions of service, accounting matters, issuance of securities, 
confracts and other arrangements with affiliated entities, and various otaer matters. Rates that Gas Utility may charge for gas service come in 
two forms: (1) rates designed to recover PGCs; and (2) rates designed to recover costs other than PGCs. Rates designed to recover PGCs are 
reviewed in PGC proceedings. Rates designed to recover costs other than PGCs are primarily established in general base rate proceedings. 

UGI Gas has two PGC rates: (1) applicable to small, firm, retail core-market customers consisting of the residential and small 
commercial and industrial classes; and (2) applicable to firm, contractaal, high-load factor customers served on three separate rates. The most 
recent general base rate increase for UGI Gas became effective in 1995. In accordance with a statutory mechanism, a rate increase for UGI Gas' 
retail core-market customers became effective October 1, 2000 along wita a PGC variable credit equal to a portion ofthe margin received from 
customers served under intermptible rates to the extent such intermptible customers use third-party pipeline capacity contracted for by UGI Gas 
for retail core-market customers. 
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PNG and CPG each have one PGC rate applicable to all customers. On August 11, 2011, the PUC approved CPG's base rate case 
settlement agreement, which resulted in an $8.9 million base rate operating revenue increase for CPG. The increase became effective on August 
30, 2011. On June 21, 2012, the PUC reversed its earlier decision solely related to the $0.9 million increase in revenues associated wita the 
Energy Efficiency and Conservation Plan filed by CPG as part of tiie August 11,2011 base rate case settlement. As a result, $0.9 million of base 
rate operating revenue that was collected as part ofthis plan has been refunded to customers. On August 27, 2009, the PUC approved PNG's 
base rate case settlement agreement, which resulted in a $19.75 million base rate operating revenue increase for PNG, effective August 28, 2009. 

The gas service tariffs for UGI Gas, PNG and CPG contain PGC rates applicable to firm retail rate schedules. These PGC rates permit 
recovery of substantially all of the pradently incurred costs of nataral gas that UGI Gas, PNG, and CPG sell to their customers. PGC rates are 
reviewed and approved annually by tae PUC. UGI Gas, PNG, and CPG may request quarterly or, under certain conditions, monthly adjustments 
to reflect the actaal cost of gas. Quarterly adjustments become effective on 1 day's notice to the PUC and are subject to review during the next 
annual PGC filing- Each proposed annual PGC rate is required to be filed with the PUC 6 months prior to its effective date. During this period, 
the PUC holds hearings to determine whether the proposed rate reflects a least-cost fiiel procurement policy consistent with the obligation to 
provide safe, adequate and reliable service. After completion of tiiese hearings, the PUC issues an order permitting the collection of gas costs at 
levels that meet taat standard. The PGC mechanism also provides for an annual reconciliation. 

FERC Market Manipulation Rules and Other FERC Enforcement and Regulatory Powers 

Gas Utility is subject to Section 4A of the Natural Gas Act and Section 222 of tiie Federal Power Act, which prohibit the use or 
employment of any manipulative or deceptive devices or contrivances in connection with the purchase or sale of nataral gas or nataral gas 
transportation subject to the jurisdiction of FERC, and FERC regulations that are designed to promote the transparency, efficiency, and integrity 
of gas markets. 

State Tax Surcharge Clauses 

UGI Utilities' gas service tariffs contain state tax surcharge clauses. The surcharges are recomputed whenever any of the tax rates 
included in their calculation are changed. These clauses protect UGI Utilities from the effects of increases in most of the Pennsylvania taxes to 
which it is subject. 

Utility Franchises 

UGI Utilities, PNG and CPG each hold certificates of public convenience issued by the PUC and certain "grandfather rights" predating 
the adoption ofthe Pennsylvania Public Utility Code and its predecessor statates, which each of them believes are adequate to authorize taem to 
carry on their business in substantially all of the territories to which they now render gas service. Under applicable Pennsylvania law, UGI 
Utilities, PNG and CPG also have certain rights of eminent domain as well as tae right to maintain taeir facilities in sfreets and highways in their 
territories. 

Other Government Regulation 

In addition to regulation by tae PUC and FERC, Gas Utility is subject to various federal, state and local laws goveming environmental 
matters, occupational health and safety, pipeline safety and other matters. Gas Utility is subject to the requirements of the federal Resource 
Conservation and Recovery Act, CERCLA and comparable state statates with respect to the release of hazardous substances on property owned 
or operated by Gas Utility. See Note 9 to Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Employees 

At September 30,2013, Gas Utility had approximately 1,335 employees. 

ELECTRIC UTILITY AND HVAC 

ELECTRIC UTILITY 

Elecfric Utility supplies electric service to approximately 62,000 customers in portions of Luzeme and Wyoming counties in 
northeastem Pennsylvania tarough a system consisting of over 1,900 miles of lines and 13 substations. At September 30, 2013, UGI Utilities' 
elecfric utility operations had approximately 70 employees. 
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In accordance with Elecfric Utility's defauh service settlement with the PUC effective January 1, 2010, Elecfric Utility is permitted to 
recover pmdently incurred elecfricity costs, including costs to obtain supply to meet its customers' energy requirements, pursuant to a supply 
plan filed with the PUC. UGI Utilities' electric utility operations are subject to regulation by the PUC as to rates, terms and conditions of service, 
accounting matters, issuance of securities, contracts and other arrangements with affiliated entities, and various other matters. The most recent 
general base rate increase for Electric Utility became effective in 1996. PUC default service regulations became applicable to Electric Utility's 
provision of default service effective January 1,2010 and Elecfric Utility, consistent wita these regulations, has received PUC approval through 
May 31, 2017 of (1) default service tariff mles, (2) a reconcilable default service cost rate recovery mechanism to recover the cost of acquiring 
default service supplies, (3) a plan for meeting the post-2009 requirements of tae Alternative Energy Portfolio Standards Act ("AEPS Act"), 
which requires Elecfric Utility to directly or indirectly acquire certain percentages of its supplies from designated ahemative energy sources, and 
(4) a reconcilable AEPS Act cost recovery rate mechanism to recover the costs of complying with AEPS Act requirements applicable to default 
service supplies for service rendered through May 31, 2017. Under these mles, default service rates for most customers are adjusted quarterly. 

In an order entered on Febmary 15, 2013, the PUC announced that it plans to seek legislative changes that would end tae defauh service 
obligations of Pennsylvania electric distribution companies. In October 2013, a Senate bill was proposed to terminate default service obligations 
in Pennsylvania effective June 1, 2015. Under the proposed legislation, customers who do not select a retail electricity supplier would be 
assigned a supplier. 

FERC has jurisdiction over the rates and terms and conditions of service of electric transmission facilities used for wholesale or retail 
choice tiansactions. Electric Utility owns electric fransmission facilities that are within the confrol area of PJM and are dispatched in accordance 
wita a FERC-approved open access tariff and associated agreements administered by PJM. PJM is a regional fransmission organization taat 
regulates and coordinates generation supply and the wholesale delivery of electricity. Electtic Utility receives certain revenues collected by PJM, 
determined under a formulary rate schedule that is adjusted in June of each year to reflect annual changes in Electric Utility's elecfric 
fransmission revenue requirements, when its transmission facilities are used by third parties. FERC has jurisdiction over tae rates and terms and 
conditions of service of wholesale sales of electric capacity and energy. Elecfric Utility has a tariff on file wita FERC pursuant to which it may 
make power sales to wholesale customers at market-based rates. 

HVAC 

We conduct our heating, ventilation, air-conditioning, refrigeration and elecfrical contracting service business through HVAC, which 
serves portions of eastem Pennsylvania and tae Mid-Atlantic region, including the Philadelphia suburbs and portions of New Jersey and nortaem 
Delaware. This business serves more than 90,000 customers in residential, commercial, indusfrial and new constmction markets. During Fiscal 
2013, HVAC generated approximately $84 million in revenues and had approximately 450 employees. 

BUSINESS SEGMENT INFORMATION 

The table stating the amounts of revenues, operating income (loss) and identifiable assets attributable to each of UGl's reportable 
business segments, and to the geographic areas in which we operate, for the 2013,2012 and 2011 fiscal years appears in Note 22 to Consolidated 
Financial Statements included in Item 8 of tais Report and is incorporated herein by reference. 

EMPLOYEES 

At September 30, 2013, UGI and its subsidiaries had over 12,800 employees. 

ITEM lA. RISK FACTORS 

There are many factors that may affect our business and results of operations. Additional discussion regarding factors that may affect 
our business and operating resuhs is included elsewhere in this Report. 
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Decreases in the demand for our energy products and services because of warmer-than-normal heating season weather mâ  
adversely affect our results of operations. 

Because many of our customers rely on our energy products and services to heat their homes and businesses, our results of operation 
are adversely affected by warmer-tiian-normal heating season weather. Weather conditions have a significant impact on tae demand for ou 
energy products and services for both heating and agricultural purposes. Accordingly, tae volume of our energy products sold is at its highes 
during the peak heating season of October through March and is directly affected by tae severity ofthe winter weataer. For example, historically 
approximately 60% to 70% of AmeriGas Partners' annual retail propane volume and Antargaz' annual retail LPG volume, and 60% to 65% o 
Gas Utility's natural gas throughput (the total volume of gas sold to or fransported for customers within our distribution system) has been soli 
during these months. There can be no assurance that normal winter weatiier in our market areas will occur in the fiiture. 

Our holding company structure could limit our ability to pay dividends or debt service. 

We are a holding company whose material assets are the stock of our subsidiaries. Our ability to pay dividends on our common stocl 
and to pay principal and accmed interest on our debt, if any, depends on the payment of dividends to us by our principal subsidiaries, AmeriGas 
Inc., UGI Utilities, Inc. and UGI Enterprises, Inc. (including Antargaz). Payments to us by taose subsidiaries, in turn, depend upon thei 
consolidated resuhs of operations and cash flows. The operations of our subsidiaries are affected by conditions beyond our confrol, includin] 
weather, competition in national and international markets we serve, the costs and availability of propane, butane, nataral gas, elecfricity, an( 
other energy sources and capital market conditions. The ability of our subsidiaries to make payments to us is also affected by the level o 
indebtedness of our subsidiaries, which is substantial, and the restrictions on payments to us imposed under the terms of such indebtedness. 

Our profitability is subject to LPG pricing and inventory risk. 

The retail LPG business is a "margin-based" business in which gross profits are dependent upon the excess of the sales price over tin 
LPG supply costs. LPG is a commodity, and, as such, its unit price is subject to volatile fluctaations in response to changes in supply or othe 
market conditions. We have no confrol over these market conditions. Consequently, tae unit price ofthe LPG tiiat our subsidiaries and othe 
marketers purchase can change rapidly over a short period of time. Most of otu- domestic LPG product supply confracts permit suppliers t( 
charge posted prices at the time of delivery or the cmrent prices established at major U.S. storage points such as Mont Belvieu, Texas o 
Conway, Kansas. Most of our intemational LPG supply confracts are based on intemationally quoted market prices. Because our subsidiaries 
profitability is sensitive to changes in wholesale propane supply costs, it will be adversely affected if we cannot pass on increases in the cost o 
propane to our customers. Due to competitive pricing in tae industry, our subsidiaries may not be able to pass on product cost increases to ou 
customers when product costs rise rapidly, or when our competitors do not raise their product prices. Finally, market volatility may cause ou 
subsidiaries to sell LPG at less than the price at which they purchased it, which would adversely affect our operating results. 

Energy efficiency and technology advances, as well as price induced customer conservation, may result in reduced demand for ou 
energy products and services. 

The frend toward increased conservation and technological advances, including installation of improved insulation and the developmer 
of more efficient fiimaces and other heating devices, may reduce the demand for energy products. Prices for LPG and nataral gas are subject t 
volatile fluctaations in response to changes in supply and other market conditions. During periods of high energy commodity costs, our price 
generally increase, which may lead to customer conservation and atfrition. A reduction in demand could lower our revenues and, taerefore, low* 
our net income and adversely affect our cash flows. State and/or federal regulation may require mandatory conservation measures, which woul 
reduce the demand for our energy products. We cannot predict the materiality of the effect of fiitare conservation measures or the effect that ar 
technological advances in heating, conservation, energy generation or other devices might have on our operations. 
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Volatility in credit and capital markets may restrict our ability to grow, increase the likelihood of defaults by our customers and 
counterparties and adversely affect our operating results. 

The volatility in credit and capital markets may create additional risks to our businesses in the fiiture. We are exposed to financial 
market risk (including refinancing risk) resulting from, among other things, changes in interest rates and conditions in the credit and capital 
markets. Developments in the credit markets during tae past few years increase our possible exposure to the liquidity, default and credit risks of 
our suppliers, counterparties associated with derivative financial instmments and our customers. Altaough we believe that current financial 
market conditions, if they were to continue for the foreseeable fiiture, will not have a significant impact on our ability to fund our existing 
operations, such market conditions could resfrict our ability to grow tarough acquisitions, could limit the scope of major capital projects if access 
to credit and capital markets is limited, or adversely affect our operating results. 

Economic recession, volatility in the stock market and the low interest rate environment may negatively Impact our pension liability. 

Economic recession, volatility in tae stock market and the low interest rate environment have had a significant impact on our pension 
liability and funded statas. Declines in the stock or bond market and valuation of slocks or bonds, combined with continued low interest rates, 
could fiirther impact our pension liabili^ and funded statas and increase the amount of required confributions to our pension plans. 

The adoption of financial reform legislation by the United States Congress and related regulations may have an adverse effect on 
our ability to use derivative instruments to hedge risks associated with our business. 

Congress adopted tae Dodd-Frank Wall Sfreet Reform and Consumer Protection Act in 2010, which contains comprehensive financial 
reform legislation. That act imposes regulation on the over-the-counter derivatives market and entities that participate in that market. The act 
reauires the Commodities Futures Trading Commission ("CFTC"), the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") and other regulators 
to implement tae act's provisions. Some rales and regulations under the act have been finalized but additional mles and regulations have yet to 
be adopted. While the effect on the Company of existing and futare rules and regulations under the act cannot be determined at this time, it is 
possible that die rales and regulations under the act may increase our cost of using derivative inshiiments to hedge risks associated wita our 
business or may reduce the availability of such instmments to protect against risks we encounter. Increased costs may arise from any new 
margin, clearing and frade-executiou requirements unposed upon individual fransactions, as well as from new capital, reporting, recordkeepmg, 
compliance and business conduct requirements imposed upon our counterparties to the extent those costs are passed through to us. Position 
limits may be imposed that could fiirther limit our ability to hedge risks. To tae extent new rules and regulations require more collateral or 
margin for individual fransactions, our available liquidity may be adversely affected. Additionally, new mles and regulations may restrict our 
ability to monetize or restmcture existing derivative confracts and require us to restmcture portions of our energy marketing and trading 
business. Accordingly, our business and operating results may be adversely affected if, as a result of the act and tae mles and regulations 
promulgated under the act, we are forced to reduce or modify our current use of derivatives. 

Supplier defaults may have a negative effect on our operating results. 

When the Company enters into fixed-price sales confracts with customers, it typically enters into fixed-price purchase contracts with 
suppliers. Depending on changes in the market prices of products compared to the prices secured in our confracts with suppliers of LPG, natural 
gas and electricity, a default of one or more of our suppliers under such contracts could cause us to purchase taose commodities at higher prices, 
which would have a negative impact on our operating results. 

We are dependent on our principal propane suppliers, which increases the risks from an interruption in supply and transportation. 

During Fiscal 2013, AmeriGas Propane purchased over 90% of its propane needs from twenty suppliers. If supplies from taese sources 
were intermpted, the cost of procuring replacement supplies and transporting those supplies from altemative locations might be materially higher 
and, at least on a short-term basis, our eamings could be affected. Additionally, in certain areas, a single supplier may provide more than 50% of 
AmeriGas Propane's propane requirements. Dismptions in supply in these areas could also have an adverse impact on our eamings. Our 
intemational businesses are similarly dependent upon their suppliers. There is no assurance that our international businesses will be able to 
continue to acquire sufficient supplies of LPG to meet demand at prices or within time periods that would allow them to remain competitive. 
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Changes in commodity market prices may have a significant negative effect on our liquidity. 

Depending on the terms of our contiacts with suppliers and some large customers, as well as our use of financial instruments to reduce 
volatility in tiie cost of LPG, electricity or nataral gas, and for all of our contracts with tae New York Mercantile Exchange, changes in tiie 
market price of LPG, elecfricity and nataral gas can create margin payment obligations for the Company or one of its subsidiaries and expose us 
to significant liquidity risks. 

Our operations may be adversely affected by competition from other energy sources. 

Our energy products and services face competition from other energy sources, some of which are less costly for equivalent energy 
value. In addition, we cannot predict the effect that the development of altemative energy sources might have on our operations. 

Our propane businesses compete for customers against suppliers of elecfricity, fuel oil and nataral gas. Electricity is a major competitor 
of propane and, except in France, is currently more expensive than propane for space heating, water heating and cooking. The convenience of 
electricity makes it an atfractive energy source for consumers. Fuel oil is also a major competitor of propane and is generally more expensive 
than propane. Fumaces and appliances that bum propane will not operate on fuel oil and vice versa, and, therefore, a conversion from one fuel to 
the otaer requires the installation of new equipment. Our customers generally have an incentive, to switch to fiiel oil only if fuel oil becomes 
significantly less expensive than propane. Except for certain industrial and commercial applications, propane is generally not competitive with 
natural gas in areas where natural gas pipelines ahready exist because natural gas is generally a significantly less expensive source of energy taan 
propane. The gradual expansion of nataral gas distribution systems in our service areas has resuhed, and may continue to resuh, in the 
availability of nataral gas in some areas that previously depended upon propane. As long as natural gas remains a less expensive energy source 
than propane, our propane business will lose customers in each region into which nataral gas distribution systems are expanded. In France, the 
state-owned natural gas monopoly, Gaz de France, has in the past extended France's nataral gas grid. In addition, due to the prevalence of 
nuclear electric generation in France, the cost of elecfricity is generally less expensive than that of LPG, particularly when the cost to install new 
equipment to convert to LPG is considered. 

Our natural gas businesses compete primarily wita elecfricity and fuel oil, and, to a lesser extent, with propane and coal. Competition 
among these fuels is primarily a function of tiieir comparative price and the relative cost and efficiency of fiiel utilization equipment. There can 
be no assurance that our natural gas revenues will not be adversely affected by this competition. 

Our ability to increase revenues is adversely affected by the decline ofthe retail LPG industry. 

The retail LPG distribution industry in the U.S. and each of the European counfries in which we operate is mature and has been 
declining over the past several years in tae United States, with no or modest growth in total demand foreseen. Given this forecast, we expect that 
year-to-year industry volumes will be principally affected by weataer pattems. Therefore, our ability to grow within tae LPG industry is 
dependent on our ability to acquire otaer retail disfributors and to achieve intemal growth, which includes expansion of tae domestic ACE and 
National Accounts programs in the U.S., as well as the success of our sales and marketing programs designed to attract and retain customers. 
Any failure to retain and grow our customer base would have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. 

Our ability to grow our businesses will be adversely affected if we are not successful in making acquisitions or integrating the 
acquisitions we have made. 

One of our sfrategies is to grow tarough acquisitions in the United States and in intemational markets. We may choose to finance firturt 
acquisitions with debt, equity, cash or a combination ofthe three. We can give no assurances taat we will find atfractive acquisition candidates ir 
tae fiitare, taat we will be able to acquire such candidates on economically acceptable terms, that we will be able to finance acquisitions ot 
economically acceptable terms, taat any acquisitions will not be dilutive to eamings or that any additional debt incurred to finance an acquisitioi 
will not affect our ability to pay dividends. 

In addition, the restractaring of the energy markets in the United States and intemationally, including the privatization of govemment 
owned utilities and the sale of utility-owned assets, is creating opportunities for, and competition from, well-capitalized competitors, which ma; 
affect our ability to achieve our business strategy. 

To the extent we are successful in making acquisitions, such acquisitions involve a number of risks. These risks include, but are no 
limited to, the assumption of material liabilities, the diversion of management's attention from the management of daily operations to thi 
integration of operations, difficulties in the assimilation and retention of employees and difficuhies in the assimilation of different cultares ani 
practices and intemal controls, as well as in tiie assimilation of broad and geographically 
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dispersed personnel and operations. The failure to successfully integrate acquisitions could have an adverse effect on our business, financial 
condition and results of operations. 

Expanding our midstream asset business by constructing new facilities subjects us to risks. 

One of tae ways we seek to grow our midstream asset business is by constracting new pipelines and gathering systems, expanding our 
LNG facility and improving our gas storage facilities. These constmction projects involve numerous regulatory, environmental, political and 
legal uncertainties beyond our confrol and require the expenditure of significant amounts of capital. These projects may not be completed on 
schedule, or at all, or at the anticipated costs. Moreover, our revenues may not increase immediately upon tae expenditare of funds on a 
particular project. We may constmct facilities to capture anticipated fixture growth in production and demand in an area in which anticipated 
growth and demand does not materialize. As a result, there is the risk that new and expanded facilities may not be able to attract enough 
customers to achieve our expected investment retams, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results 
of operations. 

Our need to comply with comprehensive, complex, and sometimes unpredictable government regulations may increase our costs and 
limit our revenue growth, which may result In reduced earnings. 

While we generally refer to our Gas Utility and Electric Utility segments as our "regulated segments," there are many govemmental 
regulations that have an impact on our businesses. Existing statates and regulations may be revised or reinterpreted and new laws and regulations 
may be adopted or become applicable to tae Company taat may affect our businesses in ways that we cannot predict. 

Regulators may not allow timely recovery of costs for UGI Utilities and its Subsidiaries in the future, which may adversely affect our 
results of operations. 

In our Gas Utility and Elecfric Utility segments, our disfribution operations are subject to regulation by the PUC. The PUC, among 
other things, approves the rates that UGI Utilities and its subsidiaries, PNG and CPG, may charge their utility customers, thus impacting the 
retums that UGI Utilities and its subsidiaries may earn on the assets that are dedicated to those operations. We expect that UGI Utilities will 
periodically file requests with the PUC to increase base rates that each company charges customers. If UGI Utilities is required in a rate 
proceeding to reduce tae rates it charges its utility customers, or if UGI Utilities is unable to obtain approval for timely rate increases from tae 
PUC, particularly when necessary to cover increased costs, UGI Utilities' revenue growth will be limited and eamings may decrease. 

We are subject to operating and litigation risks that may not be covered by insurance. 

Our business operations in the U.S. and other coimtries are subject to all of tae operating hazards and risks normally incidental to the 
handling, storage and disfribution of combustible products, such as LPG, propane and natural gas, and the generation of electricity. These risks 
could result in substantial losses due to personal injury and/or loss of life, and severe damage to and destmction of property and equipment 
arising from explosions and other catastrophic events, including acts of terrorism. As a result, we are sometimes a defendant in legal proceedings 
and litigation arising in tae ordinary course of business. There can be no assurance that our insurance will be adequate to protect us from all 
material expenses related to pending and future claims or that such levels of insurance will be available in the fiitare at economical prices. 

We may be unable to respond effectively to competition, which may adversely affect our operating results. 

We may be unable to timely respond to changes within the energy and utility sectors that may resuh from regulatory initiatives to 
fiuther increase competition within our industry. Such regulatory initiatives may create opportunities for additional competitors to enter our 
markets and, as a result, we may be unable to maintain our revenues or continue to pursue our current business sfrategy. 

Our net income and earnings will decrease if we are required to incur additional costs to comply with new governmental safety, 
health, transportation, tax and environmental regulations. 

We are subject to extensive and changing intemational, federal, state and local safety, health, fransportation, tax and environmental laws 
and regulations goveming tae storage, distribution and transportation of our energy products. 

New regulations, or a change in the interpretation of existing regulations, could result in increased expenditures. In addition, for many 
of our operations, we are required to obtain permits from regulatory authorities. Failure to obtain or comply with these permits or applicable laws 
could result in civil and criminal fines or tae cessation ofthe operations in violation. 

23 



Table of Contents 

Govemmental regulations and policies in the United States and Europe may provide for subsidies or incentives to customers who use altemative 
fuels instead of carbon fiiels. These subsidies and incentives may result in reduced demand for our energy products and services. 

We are investigating and remediating contamination at a number of present and former operating sites in the U.S., including former 
sites where we or our former subsidiaries operated manufactured gas plants. We have also received claims from third parties that allege taat we 
are responsible for costs to clean up properties where we or our former subsidiaries operated a manufactured gas plant or conducted other 
operations. Costs we incur to remediate sites outside of Pennsylvania cannot currentiy be recovered in PUC rate proceedings, and insurance may 
not cover all or even part of these costs. Our actaal costs to clean up these sites may exceed our current estimates due to factors beyond our 
confrol, such as: 

• the discovery of presently unknown conditions; 
• changes in envirormiental laws and regulations; 

judicial rejection of our legal defenses to the taird-party claims; or 
• the insolvency of other responsible parties at the sites at which we are involved. 

income. 

In addition, if we discover additional contaminated sites, we could be required to incur material costs, which would reduce our net 

Our operations, capital expenditures and financial results may be affected by regulatory changes and/or market responses to global 
climate change. 

There continues to be concem, both nationally and intemationally, about climate change and the confribution of greenhouse gas 
("GHG") emissions, most notably carbon dioxide, to global warming. While some states have adopted laws and regulations regulating the 
emission of GHGs for some industry sectors, there is currently no federal or regional legislation mandating the reduction of GHG emissions in 
the United States. Altaough Congress has not enacted federal climate change legislation, the EPA has begun adopting and implementing 
regulations to resfrict emissions of GHGs from motor vehicles and certain large stationary sources, and to require reporting of GHG emissions 
by certain regulated facilities on an armual basis. For the most part, our facilities are not currently subject to these regulations, but the potential 
increased costs of regulatory compliance and mandatory reporting by our customers and suppliers could have an effect on our operations or 
financial condition. The adoption of additional federal or state climate change legislation or regulatory programs to reduce emissions of GHGs 
could require us or our suppliers to incur increased capital and operating costs, wita resulting impact on product price and demand. The impact 
of new legislation and regulations will depend on a number of factors, including (i) which industry sectors would be impacted, (ii) the timing of 
required compliance, (iii) the overall GHG emissions cap level, (iv) tae allocation of emission allowances to specific sources, and (v) the costs 
and opportanities associated with compliance. At this time, we cannot predict the effect that climate change regulation may have on oui 
business, financial condition or operations in the fiitare. 

Our international operations could be subject to increased risks, which may negatively affect our business results. 

We currently operate LPG distribution businesses in Europe tarough our subsidiaries and we continue to explore the expansion of oit 
intemational businesses. As a result, we face risks in doing business abroad tiiat we do not face domestically. Certain aspects inherent ii 
fransacting business intemationally could negatively impact our operating results, including: 

• costs and difficulties in staffing and managing intemational operations; 
• tariffs and other trade barriers; 
• difficulties in enforcing contractaal rights; 
• longer payment cycles; 
• local political and economic conditions, including the current financial downtam in tae euro zone; 
• potentially adverse tax consequences, including resfrictions on repafriating eamings and the threat of "double taxation"; 
• fluctaations in currency exchange rates, which can affect demand and increase our costs; 
• intemal control and risk management practices and policies; 
• regulatory requirements and changes in regulatory requirements, including Norwegian, Swiss and EU competition laws that ma 

adversely affect the terms of confracts with customers, including with respect to exclusive supply rights, and stricter regulation 
applicable to the storage and handling of LPG; and 

• new and inconsistently enforced LPG industry regulatory requirements, which can have an adverse effect on our competitive position. 

In addition, there is new proposed tax legislation in France that would limit Antargaz' ability to deduct interest expense for tax purposes unde 
certain financing stractares. If adopted, the proposed legislation would be applied refroactively to tax years ending 
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on or after September 25, 2013. If the proposed tax legislation is adopted as currently drafted and our current financing stractare at Antargaz 
remains unchanged, the amount of income tax benefits that Antargaz would receive wita respect to certain financing arrangements will decrease. 
As a result, tae proposed tax legislation could have an adverse effect on our net income. 

Unforeseen difficulties with the operation of our information systems could adversely affect our internal controls and our 
businesses. 

We confracted with third-party consultants to assist us wita the design and implementation of an information system that supports the 
Partnership's Order-to-Cash business processes. The efficient execution ofthe Partaership's business is dependent upon the proper functioning 
of its intemal systems. Any significant failure or malfunction of the Partnership's or our other business units' information systems may result in 
dismptions of their operations. Our results of operations could be adversely affected if we encounter unforeseen problems with respect to tae 
operation of our information systems. 

ITEM IB. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS 

None. 

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 

With the exception of those matters set forfli in Note 16 to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 ofthis Report, no 
material legal proceedings are pending involving the Company, any of its subsidiaries, or any of their properties, and no such proceedings are 
known to be contemplated by govemmental authorities other than claims arising in tae ordinary course of business. 

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES 

None. 

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS 

Information regarding our executive officers is included in Part III of tais Report and is incorporated in Part I by reference. 
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PART II: 

ITEM 5, MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER 
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES 

Market Information 

Our Common Stock is fraded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol "UGI." The following table sets forth tae high and 
low sales prices for the Common Stock on tae New York Stock Exchange Composite Transactions tape as reported in The Wall Street Journal 
for each full quarterly period within the two most recent fiscal years: 

2013 Fiscal Year High Low 

3rd Quarter 

1st Quarter 

'j?mgAi^6;-A':^: 

42.11 

33.58 

•?;X\g;;.̂ ;;̂ 38^2;; 
36.43 

30.15 

2012 Fiscal Year High Low 

3rd Quarter 

1st Quarter 

Dividends 

Quarterly dividends on our Common Stock were paid in Fiscal 2013 andFiscal2012as follows 

2013 Fiscal Year 

$ 

-

•-^ ^-31.87^ 
29.77 
30.25 
30.22 

$ , . • ^ • 29.52^ 
26.30 
26.01 
24.07 

3rd Quarter 
pn:ag>,uarter^ 
1st Quarter 

Amount 

0.2825 
0.27 

•_ 0.27 
0.27 

2012 Fiscal Year 

MI«g5^^ gvit= : 
3rd Quarter 

1 St Quarter 

Record Holders 

On November 29,2013, UGI had 6,839 holders of record of Common Stock. 

Amount 

- 0.27" 
0.26 

. 0.26-
0.26 
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA 

Year Ended September 30, 

(Dollars in millions, except per share amounts) 2013 2012 (a) 2011 (a) 2010 (b) 2009 (b) 

FOR THE PERIOD: 
Income statement data: 

Revenues $ 7,194.7 $ 6,521.3 $ 6,090.9 1 . 5,591.1 , S - 5,739.3 

Net income $ 427.6 $ 197.7 $ 320.0 $ 346.6 $ 385.5 
(Deduct net income) add net loss attributable to • - -= • 
nonconfrolling interests, principally in 
AmeriGas Partners- - -.(149.5) 12.5 (74.6) - ---(94.8), ' . 1 .;(IZ4.5) 

Net income attributable to UGI Corporation $ 278.1 $ 210.2 $ 245.4 $ 251.8 $ 261.0 
Eamings per common share attributable to UGI 
stockholders: 

Basic $ 2.44 $ 1.87 $ 2.20 $ 2.30 $ 2.41 

Diluted $ 2.41 $ 1.85 $ 2.17 $ 2.28 $ 2.39 

Cash dividends declared per common share $ 1.105 $ 1.06 $ 1.02 $ 0.90 $ 0.785 

AT PERIOD END: 

Balance sheet data: 

Totalassets - • , $ 10,008.8 $ 9,676.9 $ 6,660.9 $ -/6iV3A '.. $ ': -'6M1.9' 

Capitalization: 
Debt; 

Bank loans — UGI Utilities 
Bank loans — AmeriGas Propane 
Bank loans — UGI Intemational 
Bank loans T~ other, . ,, . , 
Long-term debt (including current 
maturities): 

AmeriGas Propane 
UGI Intemational 
UGI Utilities 
Other 

Total debt 
UGI Corporation stockholders' equity 
Nonconfrolling interests, principally in 
AmeriGas Partners 

Total capitalization 

Ratio of capitalization: 
Tota! debt 
UGI Goiporatidn; stockholders' equity 
Nonconfrolling interests, principally in 
AmeriGas Partaers 

(a) Reflects revisions to correct an error in accoimting for commodity derivative instmments at Midsfream & Marketing and certain other 
immaterial errors. See Note 3, "Revisions and Restatements of Consolidated Financial Statements," of Notes to Consolidated Financial 
Statements included elsewhere in this Report on Form 10-K. 

(b) The Selected Financial Data for tae years ended September 30, 2010 and 2009 have been revised to correct an error in the accounting for 
commodity derivative instruments at Midsfream & Marketing and certain otaer immaterial corrections. For general information on the 
nature of the errors resulting in the corrections, see Note 3 to Consolidated Financial Statements included elsewhere in this Report on Form 
10-K. 
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$ 17.5 $ 
U6.9 - ,• 

6.5 
87.0, 

2,300.1 
654.4 
642.0 

12.9 

- - '3,837.3 ' -

2,492.5 

-* 1,055.4 ' -

$ 7,385.2 $ 

52.0% 
33.7% 

14.3% 

~A:k?AA9iMo%?k^k 

9.2 $ 
49.9 -
21.0 
.85.0. 

2,32?.6 
573.9 
600.0 

12.4 

3,679.4 - - ' 
2,229.8 

1,085.6 

6,994.8 $ 

52.6% 
' 31.9% 

15.5% 

:;-t^pp^^rv:i^ 

— $ 
, .95,5 

18.9 
24.3 _ , 

,.933.5 
571.3 
640.0 

12.9 

."2,296.4^- ^ -

1,973.5 

-213.0 • -

4,482.9 $ 

51.2% 
44.0% -

4.8% 

w;^V:i0( j^i"v | 

17.0 $ 
. 91.0^ -

92.4 

—.. - . -t 

. , 791.4 
561.1 
640.0 

13.3 

• -2/206.2"' -"' 

1,824.0 

- '237.4'' ~ ' 

4,267.6 $ 

51.7% 
- ,42.7%-

5.6% 

:̂:;::̂ lbO:0^ t̂-::4 ;̂v 

154.0' 
— 

9.1 
< -— 

' 865.6 
613.8 
640.0 

13.7 

• 2,29^6.2 

1,567.3 

=" -225.6 

4,089.1 

56.2% 
38.3% 

5.5% 

;t-:̂ '̂ J(5QrP%: 
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations ("MD&A") discusses our results of operations 
and our financial condition. MD&A should be read in conjunction with our Items 1 & 2, "Business and Properties," our Item 1 A, "Risk Factors," 
and our Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 below including "Segment Information" included in Note 22 to Consolidated Financial 
Statements. 

Revisions and Restatements of Previously Issued Financial Statements 

Historically, tae Company used what is commonly referred to as critical terms match to qualify certain of its derivative instiuments used in 
commodity energy transactions by Midsfream & Marketing's reportable segments (comprising Energy Services and Elecfric Generation) as cash 
flow hedges under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("GAAP"). During the preparation of the Fiscal 
2013 consolidated financial statements, management concluded that it had incorrectly accounted for these derivative instmments as cash flow 
hedges. Management had incorrectly applied tiie hedge accounting criteria when designating these derivative instiuments as cash flow hedges 
largely because its intended plans for supply fiilfilment at the time of the hedge inception were not met when we later chose to optimize supply 
for those hedged fransactions. As a result, changes in the fair values of these derivative instmments for which tae associated forecasted 
fransaction had not yet occurred have been reported as a component of cost of sales or revenues in the Consolidated Statements of Income rather 
taan in other comprehensive income. Management has discontinued tae use of hedge accounting for substantially all of Midsfream & 
Marketing's commodity derivative instruments and has reported changes in the fair values of unsettled commodity derivative instruments, and 
gains and losses on settled commodity derivative instiuments for which the associated forecasted fransactions have not yet occurred, in net 
income in the consolidated financial statements included in this Report on Form 10-K. 

Although the impact of the error was not material to the Company's historical annual consolidated financial statements, the Company 
decided to revise its consolidated financial statements and disclosures to correct this error in accounting for Fiscal 2012 and Fiscal 2011 and to 
record certain other immaterial corrections. Because management concluded that the error in accounting for derivative instraments used in 
commodity derivative transactions by Midsfream & Marketing's reportable segments and the other corrections were material to its consolidated 
financial statements for tae fiscal quarters ended March 31,2013, June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, it is restating the Company's financial 
statements for those periods while the Company's consolidated financial statements for other quarterly periods within Fiscal 2013 and Fiscal 
2012 have been revised. As a result of the revisions and restatements, changes in tae fair values of unsettled derivatives and gains and losses on 
settled derivative instruments not associated with current period fransactions are recorded in revenues or cost of sales in the Consolidated 
Statements of Income. This change has no effect on the Company's financial condition, day-to-day operations, cash flow or liquidity. For further 
information on the effects ofthe revisions and restatements, see Note 3 and Note 21 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. 

The following MD&A gives effect to the revisions to the Fiscal 2012 and Fiscal 2011 Consolidated Financial Statements as discussed in 
Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Executive Overview 

We recorded net income attributable to UGI Corporation of $278.1 million , equal to $2.41 per diluted share, for Fiscal 2013 compared 
to $210.2 million , equal to $1.85 per diluted share, for Fiscal 2012. Operating results in Fiscal 2013 were higher at each ofour businesses due in 
large part to winter heating season and early spring temperatares that were closer to normal compared to temperatares that were substantially 
warmer than normal in Fiscal 2012. The improved Fiscal 2013 resuhs also reflect tae full-year operations of Heritage Propane, which was 
acquired on January 12, 2012, the full-year benefits from tae integration ofthe Shell LPG businesses acquired in early Fiscal 2012 at UGI 
Intemational, and the completion ofthe Heritage Propane integration during Fiscal 2013 (see Note 5 to Consolidated Financial Statements for 
fiirtaer information on the Heritage Propane and Shell acquisitions). 

At AmeriGas Propane, temperatares based upon heating degree days were approximately 4.9%. warmer than normal but approximately 
16% colder than the prior year. The significantly colder weather, the full-year operations of Heritage Propane and the benefits of lower propane 
supply prices resulted in a $32.1 million increase in net income attributable to UGI Corporation from AmeriGas Propane. At UGI International, 
significantiy improved results at Antargaz, the result of a retum to near normal weather and higher unit margins, and improved results at Flaga 
and AvantiGas due in large part to colder weather and lower net operating costs, resuhed in an $17.5 million year-over-year increase in net 
income atfributable to UGI Corporation. Fiscal 2013 Gas Utility results were also significantly higher than the prior year reflecting the effects of 
colder Fiscal 2013 weather and, to a much lesser extent, customer growth principally due to customer conversions from oil. Midsfream & 
Marketing's Energy Services business also benefited in Fiscal 2013 from the effects of colder weather on natural gas marketing and midsfream 
asset activities, 
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while Midsfream & Marketing's Elecfric Generation business benefited from higher elecfricity volumes, increased electricity spot market prices 
and higher capacity revenues. The improved Electric Generation volumes in Fiscal 2013 reflect the full availability of our Hunlock Creek 
elecfricity generating station and greater production from tae Conemaugh electricity generating station in which we own a 5.97% interest. 

We believe that each of our business units has sufficient liquidity in the forms of revolving credit facilities, and with respect to Energy 
Services also an accounts receivable securitization facility, to fund business operations in Fiscal 2014 (see Financial Condition and Liquidity 
below). 

Looking ahead, our results in Fiscal 2014 will be influenced by a number of factors including heating-season temperatures, the level and 
volatility of commodity prices for natural gas, LPG, electricity and oil, and economic conditions in the U.S. and Europe. We have made 
substantial progress on growta initiatives that will fliel eamings growth in the fiitare. The integration efforts at AmeriGas Propane and UGI 
Intemational are complete and we recently expanded our presence in Poland with tae September 2013 acquisition of BP's LPG distribution 
business in tiiat country. Acquisition activity in Europe over the last several years makes us an atfractive supply partaer and creates new business 
opportunities. At Gas Utility, we expect to experience continued strong growth from conversions from oil as a result of sustained low nataral gas 
prices. We have also made excellent progress on Midsfream & Marketing's Marcellus Shale initiatives in Pennsylvania including tae Aubum II 
pipeline extension project, our storage compressor station project and our Fiscal 2013 acquisition of working interests in nataral gas wells. To 
the extent normal weather pattems have retamed, we hope to reap the benefits from tiiese growth initiatives in Fiscal 2014 and beyond. 

Non-GAAP Financial Measures - Adjusted Net Income Attributable to UGI and Adjusted Earnings Per Diluted Share 

UGI management uses "adjusted net income attributable to UGI" and "adjusted earnings per diluted share," both of which are non-
GAAP financial measures, when evaluating UGl's overall performance. Adjusted net income attributable to UGI is net income attributable to 
UGI excluding changes in the fair values of Midstream & Marketing's unsettled commodity derivative instmments as well as gains and losses 
on settled commodity derivative instraments not associated with current period fransactions. UGI accounts for taese commodity derivative 
instmments at fair value with changes in fair value included in eamings as a component of cost of sales or revenues on the Consolidated 
Statements of Income. Volatility in net income at UGI can occur as a resuh of changes in the fair values of unsettled commodity derivative 
instmments as well as timing differences between the settlement of commodity derivative instmments and tae income statement impact of the 
purchase or sale ofthe associated commodity. Non-GAAP fmancial measures are not in accordance with, or an altemative to, GAAP and should 
be considered in addition to, and not as a substitate for, the comparable GAAP measures. Management believes that these non-GAAP measures 
provide nieaningfiil information about UGl's performance because they eliminate the impact of changes in the fair values of Midsfream & 
Marketing's unsettled commodity derivative instruments as well as gains and losses on settled commodity derivative instmments not associated 
wita current period fransactions that are required, under GAAP, to be recorded in current period eammgs. 

The following table reconciles consolidated net income attributable to UGI Corporation, tae most directly comparable GAAP measure, 
to adjusted net income attributable to UGI, and reconciles diluted eamings per share, the most comparable GAAP measure, to adjusted diluted 
eamings per share, to reflect adjustments relating to changes in the fair values of Midsfream & Marketing's commodity derivative instruments 
and certain gains and losses on settled commodity derivative instruments: 
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2013 2012 

(01) 
(42) 

(10.1) 
12 

S 273 8 

2011 
(Millions of dollars, except per share) 

Adjusted net income attributable to UGI Corporation: 
K ^ ^ & i b i § a b l e i o \ u d F C o r p o r a t i o n 
Adjust: Net unrealized (gams) losses on Midsfream & Marketing's unsettled commodity derivative 
instmments 

^S^ f^SS i i ^®^^^®!*^" certain Midsfream & Marketing settled commodity denvatiye instruments 
Adjusted net income atfributable to UGI Corporation 

$ :^78n $ 210.2 $ 245.4 

(11.4) 

(m 
$ 2013 $ 228 0 

Adjusted diluted earnings per share: 
UGICorporation ekfningS'tjer share -^diluted ' $ ^ 2.41 
Adjust Net unrealized (gams) losses on Midsfream & Marketing's unsettled commodity derivative 
instruments 0.00 

^^^^^^(^P^J^s^es^icjncertSin Midsfreana & Marketing settled commodity derivative instiuments *'-. (0.04) 

Adjusted diluted earnings per share $ 2 37 

1.85 $ 2.17 

(0.09) 

0,01 
(0 10) 
(0 05) 

1 77 $ 2 02 

Results of Operations 

The following analyses compare the Company's results of operations for (1) Fiscal 2013 with Fiscal 2012 and (2) Fiscal 2012 with the 
year ended September 30,2011 ("Fiscal 2011 "). 

Fiscal 2013 Compared with Fiscal 2012 
Consolidated Results 

Net Income Attributable to UGI Corporation by Business Unit: 

(Dollars in millions) 

UGI International 

Midsfream & Marketing 

2013 

Amount 

$ 47.5 
82 7 
94.3 
52 5 

1.1 

$ 278 1 

%of 
Total 

^ . 17.1% 
29 7% 
33.9% 
18 9% 
0.4% 

100 0% 

$ 

$ 

2012 

Amount 

-̂  15.4 
65 2 
81.6 
37 7 

- 10.3 

210 2 

Variance - Favorable 
(Unfavorable) 

%of 
Total Amount 

:7.3%^$ . 32^r^ 
31 0% 17.5 
38.8% ^ 12.7 
17 9% 14 8 
5.0%- . ' (9.2) 

100 0% $ 67 9 

% Change 

208:4% 

26 8% 
15.6% 
39 3% 

N=M. -

32 3% Net income atfributable to UGI Corporation 

(a) Includes changes in the fair values of Midsfream & Marketing's unsettled commodity derivative instruments and gains and 
losses on settled commodity derivative instmments not associated with current period fransactions of $4.3 million and $8.9 million in Fiscal 
2013 and Fiscal 2012, respectively. 

N.M. — Variance is not meaningfiil. 

Highlights — Fiscal 2013 versus Fiscal 2012 

• Net income increased significantly in Fiscal 2013 due primarily to a retam to more normal winter weather pattems and coole 
spring temperatures. 
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Fiscal 2013 results include the full-year effects of AmeriGas Partaers' January 2012 acquisition of Herite^e Propane and tae 
benefits from the integrations of Heritage Propane and Shell's LPG distribution businesses in tae United Kingdom, Belgium, the 
Netherlands, Luxembourg, Denmark, Finland, Norway and Sweden acquired in October 2011 (the "Shell Transaction"). 

Fiscal 2013 results include Heritage Propane fransition expenses of $26.5 milHon (after-tax impact to UGI of $(4.4) million equal 
to $(0.04) per diluted share). Fiscal 2012 results include combined Heritage Propane and Shell pre-tax acquisition and fransition 
expenses totaling approximately $53 miUion (after-tax impact to UGI of $(13.3) million equal to $(0.12) per diluted share). 

Fiscal 2013 LPG unit margins at AmeriGas Propane and UGI Intemational were higher principally reflecting the benefit of lower 
average LPG commodity costs. 

Midsfream & Marketing's Energy Services business benefited from the the colder weather including higher income from winter 
peaking and capacity management activities. Additionally, Midsfream & Marketing's Elecfric Generation business results 
improved on higher generation volumes and higher average unit margins. 

Gas Utility continued to experience record numbers of customer conversions to natural gas from altemative fuels. 

AmeriGas Propane Fiscal 2012 results include a $2.2 million after-tax loss ($0.02 per diluted share) on extinguishments of debt. 

AmeriGas Propane 2013 2012 Increase 
(Dollars in millions) 
Revenues 
Total margin (a) 
Operatmg and administrative expenses 
Partnership EBITDA (b) 
Operating mcome 
Retail gallons sold (millions) 
Degree days - % (warmer) than normal (c) 

3,168.8 $ 2,921:5 ' $ ,_ . - 247.3 
1,511.6 $ 1,199.1 $' ' 312.5 

8.5% 
26.1% 

945.1 
596.5 
394.4 

1,245.2 

$ 
$ 
$ 

888.4 
322.1 
168.7 

1,017.5 

$ 
$ 
$ 

56.7 
274.4 
225.7 " 
227.7 

6.4% 
85.2% 

" 133.8%; 
22.4% 

(4.9)% (18:6)% 

(a) Total margin represents total revenues less total cost of sales. 

(b) Partaership EBITDA (eamings before interest expense, income taxes and depreciation and amortization) should not be considered as an 
altemative to net income (as an indicator of operating performance) and is not a measure of performance or financial condition under 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("GAAP"). Management uses Partnership EBITDA as the primary 
measure of segment profitability for the AmeriGas Propane segment (see Note 22 to Consolidated Financial Statements). Partaership 
EBITDA for Fiscal 2012 includes pre-tax losses of $13.3 million associated with extinguishments of debt. Partnership EBITDA and 
operating income for Fiscal 2013 and Fiscal 2012 also includes acquisition and transition expenses of $26.5 million and $46.2 miUion, 
respectively, associated wita Heritage Propane. 

(c) Deviation from average heating degree days for the 30-year period 1971-2000 based upon national weatiier statistics provided by the 
National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration ("NOAA") for 335 airports in the United States, excluding Alaska. 

Results for Fiscal 2013 reflect tae fiill-year operations of Heritage Propane acquired in January 2012. Based upon heating degree-day 
data, temperatares in tae Partnership's service territories during Fiscal 2013 averaged approximately 4.9% warmer taan normal but 16.2% colder 
taan in Fiscal 2012. Retail gaUons sold increased 227.7 mUlion gaUons (22.4%) principally reflecting the full-year impact of the Heritage 
Propane operations and the colder Fiscal 2013 weather. 

Retail propane revenues increased $241.6 miUion during Fiscal 2013 reflecting the higher retail volumes sold ($567.6 million) partially 
offset by a decline in average retail selling prices ($326.0 million) which was the result of lower propane product costs. Wholesale propane 
revenues declined $33.7 million principally reflecting lower average wholesale propane selling prices ($28.6 million) and lower wholesale 
volumes sold ($5.1 million). Average daily wholesale propane commodity prices during Fiscal 2013 at Mont Belvieu, Texas, one of the major 
supply points in tiie U.S., were approximately 19% lower than such prices during Fiscal 2012. Total revenues from fee income and other 
ancillary sales and services in Fiscal 2013 were $39.4 milUon higher tiian in Fiscal 2012 principally reflecting the full-year effects of Heritage 
Propane. Total propane cost of sales decreased $76.5 million principally reflecting the effects of the previously mentioned lower propane 
commodity prices on retail propane cost of sales ($376.3 million) and lower wholesale propane cost of sales ($36.8 million) substantially offset 
by the effects ofthe greater retail 
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Volumes sold ($336.6 million). Cost of sales associated with ancillary sales and services increased $11.3 miUion principally reflecting the full-
year effects of Heritage Propane. 

Total margin increased $312.5 miUion in Fiscal 2013 principally reflecting higher total propane margin ($284.4 million) and greater 
total margin from fee income and ancillary sales and services ($28.1 million). These increases principally reflect the incremental fiill-year effects 
of Heritage Propane, the colder Fiscal 2013 weather and, with respect to total propane margin, slightly higher average unit margins reflecting in 
large part the lower propane product costs. 

Partaership EBITDA in Fiscal 2013 increased $274.4 million principally reflecting the higher total margin ( $312.5 million ) and the 
absence ofthe $13.3 million loss on extinguishments of debt recorded in Fiscal 2012 partially offset by higher Partaership operating and 
adminisfrative expenses ($56.7 million) primarily atfributable to the fiill-year effects of Heritage Propane operations. Operating and 
adminisfrative expenses in Fiscal 2013 include $26.5 miUion of transition expenses associated with the integration of Heritage Propane while 
operating and adminisfrative expenses in Fiscal 2012 include Heritage Propane acquisition and transition-related expenses of $46.2 million. 
AmeriGas Propane operating income increased $225.7 million in Fiscal 2013 principally reflecting tiie higher total margin ( $312.5 mUlion ) 
partially offset by the previously mentioned greater operating and administrative expenses ($56.7 million) and increased depreciation and 
amortization expense ($37.8 million) reflecting in large part the fiiU-year effects of Heritage Propane. 

UGI International 2013 2012 Increase 

Revenues 

g9^1j | |^m-(a) t̂̂~_̂  ~~* i -
Operating and adminisfrative expenses 

imcomet s. •."•.^' 
Income before income taxes 

$ 
$ 
$ 

-$ 
$ 

2,179.2 
680.8 
454.4 
147.0 
116.2 

592.4, 
3.7% 
0.9% 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

1,946.1 
,"620.3 ' 
435.9 
l l h 9 
80.7 

576.5^. 
(7.1)% 

. - (6.4)% 

$ 
$ 
$ 

-$ ' 

$ 

233.1 
60.5 
18 5 
35.1 
35.5 

15.9 
— 
— 

12.0% 
9.8% 
4.2% 

31.4% 
44.0% 

2.8% 
— 
— 

iCBW|m«old?(miUionsJ'(b) . • -̂
Antargaz degree days - % colder (warmer) than normal (c) 

KMl^^fy^^ ' ?^^ ' ?o l4^# '^P^^ ' " ) ! ^ ^ normal (c) ~ 

(a) Total margin represents total revenues less total cost of sales. 

(b) Excludes retail gallons from operations in China. 

(c) Deviation from average heating degree days for the 30-year period 1981-2010 at locations in our Antargaz and Flaga service territories. 

Based upon heating degree day data, temperatures in our European LPG operations in Fiscal 2013 were colder taan normal and colder 
taan tae prior year. Although Fiscal 2013 wholesale commodity prices for propane and butane based upon index prices in northwest Europe 
averaged only slightly lower than in Fiscal 2012, such LPG prices generally declined during the Fiscal 2013 peak heating season while LPG 
prices generally increased during the Fiscal 2012 peak heating season. Retail LPG gallons sold in Fiscal 2013 were higher than Fiscal 2012 
principally reflecting the effects of significantly colder weather across all of our European operations partially offset by the effects of a decline in 
economic activity mainly on commercial and Indusfrial customers in certain ofour European markets. 

Our UGI Intemational base-currency results are translated into U.S. dollars based upon exchange rates experienced during each ofthe 
reporting periods. The functional currency of a significant portion ofour UGI Intemational results is the euro. During Fiscal 2013 and Fiscal 
2012, the average unweighted franslation rate was approximately $1.31 and $1.30 per euro, respectively. The difference in rates did not have a 
material impact on net income attributable to UGI. 

UGI Intemational revenues increased $233.1 miUion principally reflecting tiie effects on LPG revenues of greater low-margir 
wholesale sales, the increase in LPG retail volumes sold and to a lesser extent greater average retail prices. The increase in revenues also reflects 
higher revenues from nataral gas marketing activities in France. Cost of sales increased to $1,498.4 miUion in Fiscal 2013 from $1,325.8 miUion 
in Fiscal 2012 principally reflecting the effects ofthe greater wholesale and retail LPG volumes sold. The higher UGI Intemational cost of sales 
also reflects increased cost of sales associated with natural gas marketing activities in France. 
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Total UGI Intemational margin increased $60.5 million during Fiscal 2013 principally reflecting higher retail LPG unit margins and 
volumes at Antargaz and, to a much lesser extent, greater total LPG margin at AvantiGas and Flaga. 

UGI Intemational operating income and income before income taxes increased $35.1 million and $35.5 million , respectively, 
principally reflecting the higher total margin ( $60.5 million ) partially offset by modestly higher operating and adminisfrative expenses. 
Operating and administrative expenses in Fiscal 2013 principally reflect higher delivery, selling, and incentive compensation and benefits costs 
principally at Antargaz. Fiscal 2013 UGI Intemational operating and administrative costs include approximately $4.0 million of acquisition and 
fransitic)n costs associated with Flaga's September 2013 acquisition of BP's LPG disfribution business in Poland, while Fiscal 2012 UGI 
Intemational operating and administrative expenses include acquisition and transition costs of approximately $7.0 million associated with the 
LPG businesses acquired from SheU in October 2011. UGI Intemational net income in Fiscal 2013 as a percentage of UGI Intemational eamings 
before income taxes was lower than the prior year as tae Fiscal 2012 UGI International effective income tax rate reflects, in part, the effects of a 
greater proportion of UGI Intemational tax benefits relative to pre-tax income and tae realization of $4.7 million of previously unrecognized 
foreign tax credits. 

Gas Utility 2013 2012 Increase 

(Dollars, ia miUions) 
Revenues 
;Totelittargi&j(a);̂ Hj;;̂ :;. AA 'AA-A '"^" 'A %:-0^P.At;?:;> 
Operating and adminisfrative expenses 
Of^rAgh)£XimeAfi$^ 
Income before income taxes 
:S5^tein throughput |f̂ ^ i^i^K:^0f03(0)f';^ii:pi^ 

Core market 

:;:;,:Tot3l V ' /:'''^f^^^^'^'r:'','^^^'^^^'•^:S^^ 
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^ • $ ^ ^ ' • : 
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839.0 
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v-v:i96;f-^^ 

159.1 

70.6 
192.1 

(0.5)% 

$ 

;f-v 
$ 

^$71^ 
$ 

" 785.4 " $ 

%-^^'AEmm: 
156.0 $ 

mxmmwm. 
134.0 $ 

ummmm 
59.2 

177.6 
(16.3)%. 

53.6 6.8% 

:''i^m^Mmmmm>'̂  
20.2 12.9% 

rngsfAAfsmm 
25.1 18.7% 

11.4 19.3% 
14.5 8.2% 

— — 

(a) Total margin represents total revenues less total cost of sales. 

(b) Deviation from average heating degree days for the 15-year period 1995-2009 based upon weather statistics provided by the National 
Oceanic and Atmospheric Adminisfration ("NOAA") for airports located within Gas Utility's service territory. 

Temperatares in tae Gas Utility service territory in Fiscal 2013 based upon heating degree days were 0.5% warmer than normal but 
18.2% colder than Fiscal 2012. Total disfribution system throughput increased principally reflecting significantly higher throughput to core 
market customers and, to a lesser extent, greater net volumes associated wita lower margin firm and intermptible delivery service customers. Gas 
Utility system throughput to core-market customers was above last year principally reflecting the effects of the significantly colder weather and, 
to a much lesser extent, customer growth, principally conversions from oil prompted by sustained lower natural gas prices and high oil prices. 
Gas Utility's core market customers comprise firm- residential, commercial and industrial ("retail core-market") customers who purchase their 
gas from Gas Utility and, to a much lesser extent, residential and small commercial customers who purchase taeir gas from altemate suppliers. 

Gas Utility revenues increased $53.6 million during Fiscal 2013 principally reflecting higher revenues from core market customers 
($52.8 million) and higher large firm delivery service revenues ($9.2 million) partially offset by lower off-system sales revenues ($8.6 million). 
The increase in core market revenues principally reflects the eflects of higher retail core-market volumes on PGC revenues ($60.4 million) and 
greater core market delivery service revenues partially offset by the effects of lower average PGC rates on retail core-market revenues ($50.6 
million). Increases or decreases in retail core-market revenues and cost of sales principally result from changes in retail core-market volumes and 
tae level of gas costs collected through the PGC recovery mechanism. Under tae PGC recovery mechanism. Gas Utility records tae cost of gas 
associated with sales to retail core-market customers at amounts included in PGC rates. The difference between actaal gas costs and the amounts 
included in rates is deferred on tae balance sheet as a regulatory asset or liability and represents amounts to be collected from or refunded to 
customers in a fiitare period. As a resuh of tais PGC recovery mechanism, increases or decreases in the cost of gas associated with retail core-
market customers have no direct effect on retail core-market margin. Gas Utility's cost of gas was $407.2 milUon in Fiscal 2013 compared with 
$402.5 million in Fiscal 2012 principally reflecting the effects on cost of sales of tae greater retaU core-market volumes ($60.4 million) 
substantially offset by tae effects of lower average PGC rates ($50.6 million) and the lower off-system sales. 
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Gas Utility total margin increased $48.9 million in Fiscal 2013 principally reflecting higher core market margin ($38.1 miUion) and 
higher large firm delivery service total margin ($9.6 million). The higher core market margin reflects the effects of tae greater core market 
volumes. 

The increase in Gas Utility operating income during Fiscal 2013 principally refiects the increase in total margin ($48.9 million) partially 
offset by higher operating and adminisfrative expenses ($20.2 million) including, among other things, higher pension and benefits expenses 
($10.7 miUion), higher uncollectible accounts expenses ($2.8 million) on higher core market volumes, and greater injuries and damages and 
distribution system expenses ($4.5 million). The greater income before income taxes in Fiscal 2013 reflects the higher operating income ($22.4 
million) and slightly lower interest expense on lower long-term debt outstanding. 

Midstream & Marketing 2013 

(Dollars in millions) 
^.^yppues (a) •̂̂ •' ' . . 
Total margin (b) 
epteing.and admmistmtiye expenses 
Operating income 

2012 Increase 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ ' 

1,037.6 
164.0 
-57.0 
90 0 

-86.8 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

^ 853.9 
130.4 

' 53.9 
64.3 

,. 59.5 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

183.7 
33 6 
3.1 

25 7 
-27.3 

21.5% 
25 8% 
5.8% 

40.0% 
45.9% 

(a) Amounts are net of intercompany revenues between Midsfream & Marketing's Energy Services and Electric Generation segments. 
(b) Total margin represents, total revenues less total cost of sales. Amounts exclude pretax gains (losses) from changes in the fair values of 

Midsfream & Marketing's unsettled commodity derivative instruments and gains (losses) on settled commodity derivative instraments not 
associated with current period fransactions of $7.4 million and $15.1 million in Fiscal 2013 and Fiscal 2012, respectively. 

Midsfream & Marketing total revenues increased $183.7 miUion in Fisca! 2013 principally reflecting, among other taings, higher 
natural gas revenues ($145.1 miUion) from higher wholesale volumes sold and higher average selling prices for nataral gas, and higher Electric 
Generation total revenues ($30.7 million) principally the result of higher elecfricity volumes and prices. 

Midsfream & Marketing Fiscal 2013 total margin was $33.6 million higher than Fiscal 2012 reflecting higher Electric Generation total 
margin ($15.6 million), higher nataral gas marketing total margin ($14.2 million), and greater peaking and capacity management total margin 
($13.4 million) due to tae colder weather and greater nataral gas price volatility. These increases were partially offset by lower retail power total 
margin principally reflecting lower average unit margins. Total margin from nataral gas marketing activities in Fiscal 2013 principally reflects 
the benefits of higher average unit margins. Nataral gas marketing average unit margins in Fiscal 2013 benefited from higher-margin 
incremental sales resulting from the colder weataer while average unit margins in Fiscal 2012 were negatively impacted by significantly warmer 
taan normal weather. The greater total margin from Electric Generation principally reflects the impact of higher elecfricity production from our 
Hunlock Creek natural gas-fired electricity generating station and greater volumes sold from the Conemaugh generating station. In Fiscal 2012 
the Hunlock Creek generating station was running at less taan full capacity due to an accident at one unit and flood damage at another unit 
sustained late in Fiscal 2011. Unit margins from Electric Generation were higher in Fiscal 2013 reflecting higher electricity spot market prices, 
the effects of lower per unit fiiel costs at the Hunlock Creek generating station, and higher capacity revenues from the Himlock Creek and 
Conemaugh generating stations. 

Midsfream & Marketing operating income in Fiscal 2013 was $25.7 million higher taan Fiscal 2012 reflecting the previously mentioned 
increase in total margin ($33.6 million) partially offset by higher operating, adminisfrative and depreciation expenses. 

The higher operating and administrative expenses ($3.1 miUion) include greater Energy Services operating expenses ($2.6 million) due 
in large part to expenses associated with peaking LNG liquefaction and storage facilities and incremental expenses associated with our non-
operating working interest in nataral gas acreage in the Marcellus Shale region in northem Pennsylvania acquired in January 2013. The increase 
in depreciation expenses ($4.9 million) principally reflects greater depreciation associated witii the fiill-year operation of LNG facilities and the 
Hunlock Creek generating station. The increase in Midstream & Marketing income before income taxes reflects tiie greater operating income 
and lower interest expense on Energy Services' Credit Agreement and Receivables Facility borrowings. 
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Interest Expense. Our consolidated interest expense was $19.9 million higher in Fiscal 2013 primarily reflecting higher AmeriGas Propane 
interest expense ($25.0 miUion), principally fuU-year interest on debt issued to fund the cash portion of tae January 12, 2012, acquisition of 
Heritage Propane, partially offset by slightly lower UGI Utilities interest expense ($2.9 million) on slightly lower long-term debt outstanding and 
lower Midsfream & Marketing interest expense. 

Income Taxes. Income taxes as a percentage of pretax eamings was lower in Fiscal 2013 reflecting, in part, the effects of a higher percentage of 
income associated with nonconfroUing interests not subject to tax, principally AmenGas Partners, and the realization of previously unrecognized 
state deferred tax benefits while income taxes in Fiscal 2012 were reduced by $4.7 million as a result of the realization of previously 
unrecognized foreign tax credits. 

Fiscal 2012 Compared with Fiscal 2011 
Consolidated Results 

Net Income Attributable to UGI Corporation by Business Unit: 

2012 2011 
Variance - Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

(DoUars in millions) 
lAmeriGas Prc^ane . . . ,• 
UGI Intemational 
Gas Utility 
Midsfream & Marketing 
Cbrpprate & Other (a) 

Net income atfributable to UGI Corporation 

$ 

$ 

Amount 

15.4 
65.2 

-81 .6 
37.7 
10.3 

210.2 

%of 
Total 

7.3% 
31.0% 
38.8% 
17.9% 
5.0% 

100.0% 

$ 

$ 

Amount 
, . - 39.5 . , 

41.0 
99.3 
49.2 
16.4 

245.4 

%of 
Total 

- ....16.1% •$ 
16.7% 

^ 40.5%^ ' 
20.0% 

6.7% 
100.0% $ 

Amount 

- (24.1), ^ 
24.2 

•(17.7) -
(11.5) 

^ - (6.1)". 
(35.2) 

% Change 
; ^ (61.0)% 

59.0 % 
'•• (17,8)% 

(23.4)% 
N.M. 

(14.3)% 

(a) Includes changes in tae fair values of Midstream & Marketing's unsettled commodity derivative instruments and gains and losses on settled 
commodity derivative instraments not associated wita current period transactions of $8.9 million and $17.4 mUlion in Fiscal 2012 and Fiscal 
2011, respectively. 

N.M. — Variance is not meaningful. 

Highlights — Fiscal 2012 versus Fiscal 2011 

• Our U.S. and European business units were adversely affected by significantly warmer heating-season temperatares during Fiscal 
2012. The Fiscal 2012 heating season in tae U.S. came to an abmpt end in March 2012. 

• Fiscal 2012 consolidated results were impacted by the January 2012 acquisition of Heritage Propane at AmeriGas Propane and tae 
October 2011 Shell Transaction. Resuhs include combined pre-tax acquisition and fransition expenses totaling approximately $53 
miUion (after-tax impact of $(13.3) miUion equal to $(0.12) per diluted share). 

AmeriGas Propane Fiscal 2012 results include a $2.2 mUlion after-tax loss ($0.02 per diluted share) on extinguishments of debt 
while Fiscal 2011 results include a $10.3 mUlion after-tax loss ($0.09 per diluted share) on extinguishments of debt. 

• Midsfream & Marketing net income was lower in Fiscal 2012 reflecting tae effects of warmer weather on natural gas volumes sold 
and lower unit margins from our Electiic Generation business. Lower and less volatile nataral gas prices in Fiscal 2012 reduced 
capacity management income. 

Fiscal 2012 UGI Intemational net income benefited from a lower effective income tax rate. Fiscal 2011 Antargaz results include 
$9.4 million ($0.08 per diluted share) from the reversal of a nontaxable reserve associated wita a French competition authority 
matter. 
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AmeriGas Propane 

$ 
$ 
$^ 
$ 

$ 

2012 

-2,921.5 $ 
1,199.1 $ 

888.4 - $ 
322.1 $ 
168.7 $ 

1,017.5 
(18.6)%^ 

2011 

2,538.2 
932.8 
621.4 
295.6 

> 241.6 
874.2 

(1.0)% 

$ ' 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

Increase 
(Decrease) 

^ 383.3 
266.3 
267.0 

26.5 
(72.9) 
143.3 

— 

15.1 % 
28.5 % 
43.0 % 

9.0 % 
(30.2)% 
16.4 % 

— 

(Dollars in miUions) 

Total margin (a) 
iOpfei^ting"'ahd^a(£ninistratiye'expenses -̂ • ' 
Partnership EBITDA (b) 

Retail gallons sold (millions) 
j§g^^Ja^sHr%.Xwanner) than normal (c) , 

(a) Total margin represents total revenues less total cost of sales. 

(b) Partaership EBITDA (eamings before interest expense, income taxes and depreciation and amortization) should not be considered as an 
altemative to net income (as an indicator of operating performance) and is not a measure of performance or financial condition under 
GAAP. Management uses Partaership EBITDA as the primary measure of segment profitability for the AmeriGas Propane segment (see 
Note 22 to Consolidated Financial Statements). Partaership EBITDA for Fiscal 2012 and Fiscal 2011 includes pre-tax losses of $13.3 
million and $38.1 million, respectively, associated wita extinguishments of debt. Partaership EBITDA and operating income for Fiscal 2012 
also include acquisition and transition expenses of $46.2 million associated wita Heritage Propane. 

(c) Deviation fromaverage heating degree days for tiie 30-year period 1971-2000 based upon national weather statistics provided by NOAA for 
335 airports in the United States, excluding Alaska. 

Based upon heating degree-day data, temperatares in the Partaership's service territories during Fiscal 2012 averaged 18.6% warmer 
than normal and 18.3% warmer than Fiscal 2011. The winter heating season also came to an early end with temperatures in the month of March 
averaging 38%. warmer than normal. Notwithstanding tiie record warm weataer's impact on our legacy AmeriGas Propane volumes, retail 
propane gaUons sold were 143.3 million gallons greater taan in the prior year reflecting tae impact of Heritage Propane. 

Retail propane revenues increased $362.6 million during Fiscal 2012 primarily reflecting higher retail volumes sold. The higher retail 
volumes sold reflects incremental gallons sold associated wita Heritage Propane partially offset by the effects of weather-reduced volumes in 
AmeriGas Propane's legacy operations. Wholesale propane revenues decreased $45.0 million principally reflecting lower wholesale volumes 
sold ($28.8 million) and lower average wholesale propane selling prices ($16.2 million). Average daily wholesale propane commodity prices 
during Fiscal 2012 at Mont Belvieu, Texas, one of the major supply points in the U.S., were approximately 20% lower taan such prices during 
Fiscal 2011. Total revenues from fee income and other ancillary sales and services in Fiscal 2012 were $65.7 million higher than Fiscal 2011 
reflecting such revenues from Heritage Propane. Total cost of sales increased $117.0 miUion principally reflecting incremental cost of sales from 
Heritage Propane offset in part by bota tae previously mentioned lower retail and wholesale volumes sold by our legacy AmeriGas Propane 
operations and the lower average propane commodity prices. 

Total margin increased $266.3 million in Fiscal 2012 reflecting higher total propane margin ($218.6 million) and higher total margin 
from ancillary sales and services ($47.7 million). The increases principally refiect incremental margin from Heritage Propane partially offset by 
lower total propane margin from legacy AmeriGas Propane operations resulting from tae significantly warmer weataer. 

Partaership EBITDA (which includes tae losses on extinguishments of debt) in Fiscal 2012 increased $26.5 million principally 
reflecting the higher total margin ($266.3 million) and a $24.8 million lower loss from extinguishments of debt partially offset by higher 
operating and adminisfrative expenses ($267.0 million) primarily atfributable to Heritage Propane. Fiscal 2012 operating expenses include $46.2 
million of acquisition and fransition expenses associated with Heritage Propane. Operating income (which excludes tae losses on 
extinguishments of debt) decreased $72.9 million in Fiscal 2012 principally reflecting tae higher total margin ($266.3 million) more than offset 
by the increased operating expenses ($267.0 million) and greater depreciation and amortization expense ($73.6 million) principally associated 
wita Heritage Propane. 
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Increase 
UGI Internat ional 2012 
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(a) Total margin represents total revenues less total cost of sales. 

(b) Excludes retail gallons from operations in China. 

(c) Deviation from average heating degree days for tae 30-year period 1981-2010 at locations in our Antargaz and Flaga service territories. 

UGI Intemational operating results in Fiscal 2012 include the operating results from the Shell Transaction. Based upon heating degree 
day data, temperatares across Europe were significantly warmer taan normal and warmer than the prior year. Weataer at Antargaz was 
approximately 7 .1% warmer than normal in Fiscal 2012 compared to weather taat was approximately 4.7%) warmer than normal in Fiscal 2011. 
Temperatares in Flaga's central and eastem European operations were approximately 6.4% warmer than normal in Fiscal 2012 compared to 
temperatures taat were approximately 4.6%. warmer than normal in Fiscal 2011. During Fiscal 2012, tae average unweighted wholesale 
commodity price for propane in northwest Europe was approximately 4%. higher taan such prices in Fiscal 2011, while the average unweighted 
wholesale commodity price for butane was approximately 5% higher than Fiscal 2011. Retail LPG gallons sold were higher than the prior year 
reflecting incremental volumes of approximately 175 million gallons associated with the Shell Transaction partially offset by tae effects of 
warmer and erratic weather pattems on volumes sold in our legacy UGI Intemational operations. 

Our UGI Intemational base-currency results are franslated into U.S. dollars based upon exchange rates experienced during each of the 
reporting periods. The ftinctional currency of a significant portion of our UGI Intemational results is denominated in euros. During Fiscal 2012 
and Fiscal 2011, the average unweighted franslation rate was approximately $1.30 and $1.40 per euro, respectively. The difference in rates did 
not have a material impact on net income attributable to UGI. 

UGI International revenues increased $457.4 million, notwithstanding tae effects of the significantly warmer weather, principally 
reflecting the effects o f the Shell Transaction (approximately $569 miUion) partially offset by lower revenues from our legacy European LPG 
disfribution businesses due in large part to the effects ofthe weaker euro. Cost of sales increased to $1,325.8 mUlion in Fiscal 2012 from $970.8 
miUion in Fiscal 2011 principally reflecting incremental cost of sales from the Shell Transaction (approximately $443 million) offset by lower 
cost of sales from our legacy European LPG disfribution businesses due in large part to the effects of tae weaker euro. 

Total UGI Intemational margin increased $102.4 million principally reflecting incremental margin from the Shell Transaction 
(approximately $125.8 million) and higher unit margins at our Antargaz legacy operations partially offset by tae effects ofthe lower volumes at 
our legacy Antargaz and Flaga units resulting from the wanner weataer. 

UGI Intemational operating income in Fiscal 2012 was $25.8 miUion higher taan Fiscal 2011 principally reflecting the higher total 
margin ($102.4 million) resulting from the Shell Transaction offset by incremental expenses associated with these acquired businesses, including 
operating and administrative expenses, depreciation and acquisition integration costs. Fiscal 2012 operating and administrative expenses include 
approximately $7.0 million of Shell Transaction fransition expenses. Fiscal 2011 operating income includes $9.4 miUion of otaer income from 
the reversal at Antargaz of a nontaxable reserve associated wita the French competition authority matter at Antargaz. The $23.7 million increase 
in income before income taxes principally reflects the previously mentioned increase in operating income ($25.8 million) partially offset by a 
$2.7 million increase in interest expense, principally higher interest expense on Antargaz' long-term debt and higher Flaga debt outstanding. Net 
income from UGI Intemational operations in Fiscal 2012 benefited from a lower UGI Intemational effective income tax rate resulting from the 
impact of the tax efficient stracturing of certain of our intemational operations, the realization of $4.6 million of previously imrecognized foreign 
tax credits, and a higher proportion of pre-tax income in lower statatory tax-rate counfries as a result ofthe Shell Transaction. 
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Gas Utility 
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(a) Total margin represents total revenues less total cost of sales. 

(b) Deviation from average heating degree days for tae 15-year period 1995-2009 based upon weather statistics provided by NOAA for airports 
located within Gas Utility's service territory. 

Temperatares in the Gas Utility service territory in Fiscal 2012 based upon heating degree days were 16.3% warmer taan normal and 
approximately 18.7% warmer than the prior year. Total distribution system throughput was slightiy higher taan last year, notwithstanding the 
significantiy warmer weather, principally reflecting greater throughput to certain non-weataer-sensitive low-margin intermptible delivery service 
customers. Excluding total volumes to intermptible delivery service customers, Gas Utility system throughput declined 14.3 bcf in Fiscal 2012 
principally reflecting the effects of the significantly warmer weataer on taroughput to core market customers (11.2 bcf) and lower firm delivery 
service volumes. 

Gas Utility revenues decreased $241.0 million during Fiscal 2012 principally reflecting a decline in revenues from retail core-market 
customers ($169.4 million) and lower revenues from off-system sales ($68.1 million). The decrease in retail core-market revenues principally 
reflects the effects on gas cost recovery revenues ofthe lower retail core-market volumes ($91.9 million) and lower average PGC rates resulting 
from lower nataral gas prices ($43.2 miUion). Gas Utility's cost of gas was $402.5 million in Fiscal 2012 compared with $610.6 miUion in Fiscal 
2011 reflecting the previously mentioned lower retail core-market sales ($91.9 million), tae lower average PGC rates ($43.2 milUon) and the 
above-mentioned lower off-system sales. 

Gas Utility total margin decreased $32.9 million in Fiscal 2012. The decrease principally reflects lower core market total margin ($27.7 
million) and firm delivery service total margin ($4.8 million). Fiscal 2012 Gas Utility total margin includes a flill-year of incremental margir 
from the August 2011 base rate increase at CPG of approximately $9.0 million. 

The decreases in Gas Utility operating income and income before mcome taxes during Fiscal 2012 principally reflects the previous!} 
mentioned decrease in total margin ($32.9 miUion) partially offset by lower operating and adminisfrative expenses. 

Midstream & Marketing 

(DoUars in miUions) 

Total margm (b) 

tOtferatmg'and^admmistrative expenses 
Operating income 
llncdrtie'Jbefore-jncome tax^ 

(a) Amounts are net of intercompany revenues between Midsfream & Marketing's Energy Services and Elecfric Generation segments. 
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(b) Total margin represents total revenues less total cost of sales. Amounts exclude pretax gains (losses) from changes in tae fair values of 
Midstream & Marketing's unsettled commodity derivative instmments and gains (losses) on settled commodity derivative instmments not 
associated with current period transactions of $15.1 million and $29.8 mUlion in Fiscal 2012 and Fiscal 2011, respectively. 

Midsfream & Marketing Fiscal 2012 results were impacted by significantly warmer than normal heating-season temperatures and lower 
and less volatile natural gas prices. Midsfream & Marketing total revenues decreased $205.3 million in Fiscal 2012 principally reflecting lower 
total revenues from natural gas marketing activities ($211.6 million), the result of lower average nataral gas prices and lower volumes sold due 
to the warmer weather and, to a much lesser extent, lower Elecfric Generation revenues ($4.7 million) and capacity management revenues ($5.8 
million). These decreases were partially offset by greater retail power revenues ($8.9 million), reflecting higher sales, and higher storage services 
revenues ($7.5 mUlion). 

The $7.1 million decrease in Midsfream & Marketing's total margin principally reflects lower nataral gas marketing total margin ($17.4 
million), lower capacity management total margin ($5.8 million), principally tae result ofthe lower and less volatile natural gas prices, and lower 
Elecfric- Generation total margin ($0.8 million) partially offset by greater retail power natural gas storage and gas gathering total margin. The 
decrease in Elecfric Generation total margin principally reflects the effects of lower electricity prices due in large part to the effects on electricity 
prices of lower natiual gas prices. 

Midsfream & Marketing's operating income in Fiscal 2012 was S16.S mUUon lower than Fiscal 2011 reflecting the decrease in total 
margin ($7.1 million) and higher operating, adminisfrative and depreciation expenses associated with Electric Generation assets ($3.2 million), 
including incremental expenses associated with tae repowered Hunlock Creek generation station and higher ftiel and maintenance expenses 
associated wita the Conemaugh generation station, and greater energy marketing and storage services' operating and administrative expenses. 
The decline in income before iiicome taxes reflects tae lower operating income ($20.5 million) and greater interest expense principally on 
Energy Services' credit facility borrowings. 

Interest Expense. Our consolidated interest expense was $82.4 million higher in Fiscal 2012 reflecting higher AmeriGas Propane interest 
expense ($78.0 million) on debt issued to fund tiie acquisition of Heritage Propane; greater UGI Intemational interest expense ($2.7 million); and 
slightly higher Midstream & Marketing interest expense. 

Income Taxes. Our effective income tax rate in Fiscal 2012 was higher than in Fiscal 2011 principally reflecting a much smaller share of pre-tax 
income from AmeriGas Partaers which income is generally not subject to entity-level income taxes. Excluding the impact on the effective 
income tax rate of AmeriGas Partners' pre-tax income not subject to tax, the Fiscal 2012 effective tax rate was lower than in Fiscal 2011 
reflecting, in large part, tae effects ofthe previously mentioned lower UGI Intemational income tax rate. The Fiscal 2011 effective tax rate was 
reduced by, among otaer things, the effect ofthe reversal ofthe $9.4 miUion reserve associated wita tae French competition authority matter at 
Antargaz, which was not subject to tax, and the regulatory effects of greater state tax depreciation (as fiuther described below under "UGI 
Utilities Income Taxes"). 

Financial Condition and Liquidity 

We depend on both intemal and extemal sources of liquidity to provide funds for working capital and to fiind capital requirements. Our 
short-tertn cash requirements not met by cash from operations are generally satisfied wita borrowings under credit facilities and, in tae case of 
Midsfream & Marketing, also from a receivables purchase facility. Long-term cash requirements not met by cash from operations are generally 
met tarough issuance of long-term debt or equity securities. We believe taat each ofour business units has sufficient liquidity in the forms of 
cash and cash equivalents on hand; cash expected to be generated from operations; credit facility and receivables purchase facility borrowings; 
and tae ability to obtain long-term financing to meet anticipated confractaal and projected cash commitments. Issuances of debt and equity 
securities in the capital markets and additional credit facilities may not, however, be available to us on acceptable terms. 

Our cash and cash equivalents, excluding cash in commodity fiitures brokerage accounts tiiat is restricted from withdrawal, totaled $389.3 
miUion at September 30, 2013 , compared with $319.9 million at September 30, 2012 . Excluding cash and cash equivalents taat reside at UGl's 
operating subsidiaries, at September 30, 2013 and 2012 , UGI had $171.6 million and $107.9 million , respectively, of cash and cash equivalents. 
Such cash is available to pay dividends on UGI Common Stock and for investment purposes. 

The primary sources of UGl's cash and cash equivalents are the dividends and other cash payments made to UGI or its corporate 
subsidiaries by its principal business units. 

AmeriGas Propane's ability to pay dividends to UGI is dependent upon disfributions it receives from AmeriGas Partaers. At 
September 30, 2013 , our 27% effective ownership interest in tae Partnership consisted of approximately 23.8 million Common Units and an 
aggregate 2%) general partaer interest. Approximately 45 days after the end of each fiscal quarter, the Partaership 
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distiibutes all of its Available Cash (as defined in the Fourth Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of AmeriGas Partaers, as 
amended (the "Partnership Agreement")) relating to such fiscal quarter. AmeriGas Propane, as general partner of AmeriGas Partners, is entitled 
to receive incentive disfributions when AmeriGas Partners' quarterly disfribution exceeds $0,605 per limited partner unit (see Note 15 to 
Consolidated Financial Statements). 

During Fiscal 2013 , Fiscal 2012 and Fiscal 2011 , our principal business units paid cash dividends and made other cash payments to UGI 
and its subsidiaries as follows: 

Year Ended September 30, 2013 

(Millions of dollars) 
AmeriGas Propane ^' -
UGI Utihttes 
UGI-Intematiooal; .- . 
Midsfream & Marketing 

2012 2011 

$ 

$ 

96.2 
59 0 
22.3 

— 

177.5 

$ 

$. 

78.6 
70.6 
14.9 
55.0 

219.1 

$ 

$ 

56.8 
99.5 
32.9 
30.0 

219.2 

In Fisca! 2013 and Fiscal 2011, Midsfream & Marketing received capital contributions from UGI totaling $27.5 million and $45.7 miUion, 
respectively, to fiind major midsfream asset and elecfric generation capital projects including Marcellus Shale infrastractare projects. Dividends 
in Fiscal 2012.from Midsfream & Marketing were used to fund a portion ofthe October 2011 Shell Transaction. 

On April 30, 2013, UGl's Board of Directors approved an increase in the quarterly dividend rate on UGI Common Stock to $0.2825 per 
common share or $1.13 per common share on an annual basis. This dividend reflects a 4.6% increase from the previous quarterly dividend rate 
of $0.27. The new quarterly dividend rate was effective with the dividend payable on July 1,2013, to shareholders of record on June 14, 2013. 

On AprU 29, 2013, the General Partner's Board of Directors approved a quarterly distribution of $0.84 per Common Unit equal to an 
annual rate of $3.36 per Common Unit. This disfribution reflects an approximate 5%. increase from tae previous quarterly rate of $0.80 per 
Common Unit. The new quarterly rate was effective wita tae disfribution payable on May 17,2013, to unitaolders of record on May 10,2013. 

As a result of the issuance of 29,567,362 AmeriGas Partners Common Units to ETP in conjunction wita tae acquisition of Heritage 
Propane and related General Partaer Common Unit transactions (see Note 5 to Consolidated Financial Statements), and tae issuance of 
7,000,000 AmeriGas Partners Common Units pursuant to AmeriGas Partners' public offering (see Note 15 to Consolidated Financial 
Statements), during Fiscal 2012, the Company recorded a $196.3 million increase in UGI Corporation stockholders' equity (which amount is net 
of deferred income taxes) and an associated $321.4 million pre-tax decrease in nonconfroUing interests equity. 

Long-term Debt and Credit Facilities 

The Company's debt outstanding at September 30,2013 , totaled $3,837.3 milUon (including current matarities of long-term debt of $67.2 
million and bank loan borrowings of $227.9 million ) compared to debt outstanding at September 30, 2012 , of $3,679.4 million (including 
current maturities of long-term debt of $166.7 million and bank loan borrowings of $165.1 million ). Total debt outstanding at September 30, 
2013 , consists of (I) $2,417.0 million of Partnership debt; (2) $660.9 miUion (€488.6 million) of UGI International debt; (3) $659.5 miUion of 
UGI Utilities' debt; (4) $88.0 miUion of Midstream & Marketing debt; and (5) $11.9 million of other debt. For a detailed description of tae 
Company's debt, see below and Note 6 to Consolidated Financial Statements. 

AmeriGas Partners. AmeriGas Partners' total debt at September 30, 2013 , includes $2,250.8 million of AmeriGas Partners' Senior Notes, 
$49.3 miUion of other long-term debt and $116.9 million of AmeriGas OLP bank loan borrowings. 

In order to finance Uie cash portion ofthe acquisition of Heritage Propane, on January 12, 2012, AmeriGas Finance Corp. and AmeriGas 
Finance LLC (the "Issuers") issued $550 million principal amount of 6.75%. Notes due May 2020 (tae "6.75%o Notes") and $1,000 million 
principal amount of 7.00% Notes due May 2022 (tiie "7.00%o Notes"). The 6.75% Notes and tiie 7.00% Notes are fiilly and unconditionally 
guaranteed on a senior secured basis by AmeriGas Partners. The 6.75%. and 7.00% Notes and tae guarantees rank equal in right of payment with 
all of AmeriGas Partners' existing senior notes. In connection with the acquisition of Heritage Propane, AmeriGas Partaers, AmeriGas Finance 
Corp., AmeriGas Finance LLC and UGI entered into a Contingent 
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Residual Support Agreement ("CRSA") wita ETP pursuant to which ETP will provide contingent, residual support of $1.5 billion of debt 
("Supported Debt" as defined in the CRSA). 

UGI International. UGI International's total debt at September 30,2013 , includes $ 514.0 million (€380 million) outstanding under Antargaz' 
Senior Facilities term loan, $52 mUlion under Flaga's U.S. dollar-denominated term loan and a combined $81.8 million (€60.5 million) 
outstanding under Flaga's euro-denominated term loans. Total UGI Intemational debt outstanding at September 30, 2013 , also includes 
(1) combined borrowings of $ 6.5 mUlion ( €4.8 million ) outstanding under Flaga's working capital facilities and (2) $ 6.6 miUion ( €4.8 
miUion ) of other long-term debt. 

Antarsaz.- Antargaz has a variable-rate term loan agreement with a consortium of banks ("Senior Facilities Agreement"). The Senior Facilities 
Agreement consists of (1) a €380 million variable-rate term loan and (2) a €40 million credit facility. Scheduled matarities under the term loan 
are €38 miUion due May 2014, €34.2 million due May 2015, and €307.8 million due March 2016. Antargaz has entered into pay-fixed, receive-
variable interest rate swaps to fix the underlying euribor rate of interest on the term loan at an average rate of approximately 2.45% through 
September 2015 and, thereafter, at a rate of approximately 3.71%) tarough tae date of tae term loan's final matarity in March 2016. At 
September 30,2013 , the effective interest rate on Antargaz' term loan was 4.41% . 

Flasa • In order to finance the purchase of BP's LPG disfribution business in Poland in September 2013, Flaga entered into a $52 million U.S. 
dollar-denominated three-year loan that expires in September 2016. The $52 million loan bears interest at one- to twelve-month euribor rates (as 
chosen by Flaga from time to time) plus a margin. Flaga has effectively fixed the euribor component ofthe interest rate, and has effectively fixed 
the U.S. dollar value of tae interest and principal payments payable under the $52 million loan, by entering into a cross-currency swap 
arrangement wita a bank. At September 30,2013, tae effective interest rate on the $52 miUion loan was 1.82% . 

Flaga also has a €40 miUion ($ 54.1 miUion ) euro-based term loan of which €26.7 miUion matares in August 2016 and €13.3 million 
matures in September 2016, and a €19.1 million ($ 25.8 miUion ) euro-based variable rate term loan taat matares in October 2016. The 
€40 million term loan bears interest at one- to twelve-month euribor rates (as chosen by Flaga from time to time) plus a margin and the €19.1 
million term loan bears interest at taree-month euribor rates plus a margin. Flaga has effectively fixed the euribor components of tae interest 
rates on these term loans through the dates of their expiration by entering into interest rate swap agreements. At September 30, 2013 , tae 
effective interest rates on tae €40 miUion and €19.1 miUion term loans were 4.68% and 3.85% , respectively. 

At September 30, 2013, Flaga also had a euro-based variable-rate term loan which had outstanding principal balances of €1.4 ($1.9) 
wita a final matarity in June 2014. This term loan bears interest at three-monta euribor rates plus a margin. As of September 30, 2013, the 
effective interest rate on this term loan was 5.04%. 

UGI Utilities. UGI Utilities' total debt at September 30, 2013 , includes long-term debt comprising $ 275.0 miUion of Senior Notes, $ 192.0 
million of Medium-Term Notes, $175 million outstanding imder UGI Utilities Term Loan Credit Agreement and $17.5 miUion of bank loan 
borrowings. 

In September 2013, UGI Utilities entered into a 364-day term loan credit agreement ("UGI Utilities Term Loan Credit Agreement") with a 
bank comprising a $175 million unsecured term loan facility. The UGI Utilities Term Loan Credit Agreement bears interest at tae eurodollar rate 
for the interest period selected, plus a margin of 0.60%. The UGI Utilities Term Loan Credit Agreement terminates on September 22, 2014, but 
UGI Utilities may prepay tae loan in whole or in part, without penalty. UGI Utilities borrowed $175 million on September 30, 2013, under tae 
UGI Utilities Term Loan Credit Agreement which cash proceeds were used to repay UGI Utilities' $108 million 6.375% Senior Notes due 
September 30, 2013, and for other general corporate purposes. On October 30, 2013, UGI Utilhies entered into a Note Purchase Agreement 
which provides for tae private placement of $175 million aggregate principal amount of 4.98% Senior Notes due March 26, 2044. UGI Utilities 
expects to use $175 million of borrowings under the Note Purchase Agreement, anticipated to occur in March 2014, to repay amounts 
outstanding under the UGI Utilities Term Loan Credit Agreement. 

Credit Facilities 

Due to the seasonal nature ofthe Company's businesses, operating cash flows are generally sfrongest during the second and third fiscal 
quarters when customers pay for nataral gas, LPG, electricity and other energy products consumed during the peak heating season months. 
Conversely, operating cash flows are generally at their lowest levels during the first and fourta fiscal quarters when the Company's investment in 
working capital, principally inventories and accounts receivable, is generally greatest. AmeriGas Propane and UGI Utilities primarily use their 
credit facilities to satisfy their seasonal operating cash flow needs. Energy Services historically has used its Receivables Facility to satisfy its 
operating cash flow needs. Energy Services also has a $240 million credit facility which it can use for working capital and general corporate 
purposes. Flaga principally uses borrowings 
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under its credit agreements to satisfy its operating cash flow needs. During Fiscal 2013, Fiscal 2012 and Fiscal 2011, Antargaz generally fimded 
its operating cash flow needs witaout using its revolving credit facilities and AvantiGas has satisfied its operating cash flow needs from cash on 
hand. Borrowings under die credit facilities and under the Energy Services Receivables Facility are classified as bank loans on the Consolidated 
Balance Sheets. 

AmeriGas Partners. AmeriGas OLP has a $525 million unsecured credit agreement ("AmeriGas Credit Agreement") taat expires on 
October 15,2016. During Fiscal 2012, the AmeriGas Credit Agreement was amended to, among other things, increase the total amount available 
to $525 milUon from $325 mUlion previously, extend its expiration date to October 2016, and amend certain financial covenants as a result of 
tae acquisition of Heritage Propane. 

UGI International. Under its Senior Facilities Agreement, Antargaz has a €40 million credit facility that expires in March 2016. Flaga 
has two principal working capital facilities (the "Flaga Credit Agreements") comprising (1) a €46 million multi-currency working capital facility 
taat includes an uncommitted €6 million overdraft facility (tae "Flaga Multi-Currency Working Capital Facility") and (2) a euro-denominated 
working capital facility that provides for borrowings and issuances of guarantees totaling €12 million (the "Euro Facility"). Both tae Flaga 
Multi-Currency Working Capital Facility and the Euro Facility expire in September 2014. 

UGI Utilities. UGI Utilities has a revolving credit agreement (the "UGI Utilities Credit Agreement") with a group of banks providing for 
borrowings up to $300 million (including a $100 million sublimit for letters of credit) which expires in October 2015. 

Energy Services. At September 30, 2013, Energy Services had an unsecured credit agreement ("Energy Services Credit Agreement") 
with a group of lenders providing for bonowings of up to $240 miUion (including a $50 million sublimit for letters of credit) which expires in 
June 2016. The Energy Services Credit Agreement can be used for general corporate purposes of Energy Services and its subsidiaries and to 
fimd dividend payments provided that, after giving effect to such dividend payments. Energy Services maintains a specified ratio of 
Consolidated Total Indebtedness to EBITDA, each as defined in the Energy Services Credit Agreement. 

Information about the Company's principal credit agreements (excluding tae Energy Services Receivables Facility discussed below) as of 
September 30,2013 and 2012, is presented in the table below. There were no borrowings under Antargaz' credit facility during Fiscal 2013 and 
Fiscal 2012. 

(Millions of dollars or euros) 

As of September 30,2013 

Antargaz Credit Facility 

UGI Utilities Credit Agreement 

^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ " ^ e n t . 

As of September 30,2012 

MntenGacGreditAgreement« 

Antargaz Credit Facility 

UGI Utilities Credit Agreement 

g ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ i c e s ^ C?edit;A^^ent 

Total Capacity 

$525:0 
€40 0 

€58.0 
$300 0 

$240.0 

Total Capacity 

$525.0 
€40 0 

€58.0 

$300.0 
$170.0 

Borrowings 
Outstanding 

$116.9. 
€0 0 
€0.2 

$17.5 

$57.0 

Borrowings 
Outstanding 

$49.9 

€0.0 

^ €11.9 
$9.2 

$85.0 

Letters of Credit 
and Guarantees 

Outstanding 

- S53'.7 
€0 0 

^ €28.6 
$2 0 

$0.0 

Letters of Credit 
and Guarantees 

Outstanding 

$47.9 

€0.0 

€19.2 
$2.0 

$0.0 

Available 
Capacity 

S354;4 

€40 0 
^9 .2 

$280 5 

$183.0 

Available 
Capacity 

$427.2 
€40.0 

€26.9 

$288.8 

$85.0 

Weighted Average 
[nterest Rate - End 

of Year 

2.69% 
NA 

^ ' 4.21% 
1.18% 

2.19% 

Weighted Average 
[nterest Rate - End 

of Year 

2.72% 

N.A. 

2.31% 
1.21% 

3.25% 
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follows: 
The average daily and peak bank loan borrowings under tae Company's principal credit agreements during Fiscal 2013 and 2012 are as 

(MiUions of dollars or euros) 

AmeriGas Credit Agreement 

Flaga Credit Agreements 

UGI Utilities Credit Agreement 

Energy Services Credit Agreement 

Average 

2013 

$103.8 

€4.3 

$25.6 

$44.5 

Peak 

$200.5 

€11.9 

$79.0 

$85.0 

2012 

Average 

$95.3 

€13.2 

$16.2 

$81.2 

Peak 

$239.5i 

€14.3 

• - $70.63 

$85.0 

At September 30, 2013 , Energy Services had a $100 million receivables purchase facility ("Receivables Facility") with an issuer of 
receivables-backed commercial paper. In October 2013, Energy Services extended its Receivables Facility until October 31, 2014 and amended 
the Receivables Facility to better align its borrowing limits with Energy Services' seasonal borrowing needs. The Receivables Facility, as 
amended, provides Energy Services with tae ability to borrow up to $150 miUion of eligible receivables during the period November 1, 2013 to 
May 31, 2014, and up to $75 mUlion of ehgible receivables during tae period June 1, 2014 to October 31, 2014. Energy Services uses the 
Receivables Facility to fiand working capital, margin calls under commodity fiitares confracts, capital expenditares, dividends and for general 
corporate purposes. 

Under the Receivables Facility, Energy Services transfers, on an ongoing basis and without recourse, its frade accounts receivable to its 
wholly owned, special purpose subsidiary, Energy Services Funding Corporation ("ESFC"), which is consolidated for financial statement 
purposes. ESFC, in turn, has sold, and subject to certain conditions, may from time to time sell, an undivided interest in some or aU ofthe 
receivables to a commercial paper conduit of a major bank (through September 30, 2013) and, subsequent to September 30, 2013, to the bank 
itself ESFC was created and has been stmctured to isolate its assets from creditors of Energy Services and its affiliates, including UGL Trade 
receivables sold to the commercial paper conduit or the bank remain on the Company's balance sheet and the Company reflects a liability equal 
to the amount advanced by the commercial paper conduit or the bank. The Company records interest expense on amounts owed to the 
commercial paper conduit or tae bank. 

At September 30, 2013 , the outstanding balance of ESFC trade receivables was $55.0 million and there was $30.0 miUion taat was sold to 
tae commercial paper conduit and reflected as bank loans on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. At September 30, 2012 , the outstanding balance 
of ESFC trade receivables was $43.5 million of which no amount was sold to the commercial paper conduit. During Fiscal 2013 and Fiscal 
2012 , peak sales of receivables were $46.5 million and $51.5 mUlion , respectively, and average daily amounts sold were $10.4 miUion and 
$15.6 mUlion, respectively. 

Cash Flows 

Operating Activities. Year-to-year variations in cash flow from operations can be significantly affected by changes in operating working capital 
especially during periods of significant changes in energy commodity prices. 

Cash flow provided by operating activities was $801.5 million in Fiscal 2013 , $707.7 mUlion in Fiscal 2012 and $554.7 million in Fiscal 
2011 . Cash flow from operating activities before changes in operating working capital was $845.6 miUion in Fiscal 2013 , $629.0 million in 
Fiscal 2012 and $697.6 mUlion in Fiscal 2011 . The increase in cash flow from operating activities before changes in operating working capital 
in Fiscal 2013 compared to Fiscal 2012 largely reflects the effects ofthe higher operating results. Changes in operating working capital provided 
(used) operating cash flow of $(44.1) miUion in Fiscal 2013 , $78.7 miUion in Fiscal 2012 and $(142.9) miUion in Fiscal 2011 . The cash 
required to fund changes in operating workmg capital in Fiscal 2013 reflects, among other taings, g reater cash needed to fund operating 
working capital associated with the increased Fiscal 2013 sales while cash provided by changes in operating working capital in the prior-year 
period benefited from the timing of the acquisition of Heritage Propane on cash receipts from Heritage Propane customers. This greater use of 
cash in the current-year period was partially offset by, among other taings, tiie timing and amount of cash payments associated with accounts 
payable including the impact of lower LPG product costs. 

Investing Activities . Investing activity cash flow is principally affected by expenditures for property, plant and equipment; cash paid for 
acquisitions of businesses; changes in restricted cash balances and proceeds from sales of assets. Net cash flow used by investing activities was 
$553.3 mUlion in Fiscal 2013 , $1,904.5 miUion in Fiscal 2012 and $415.4 million in Fiscal 2011 . Cash paid for acquisitions in Fiscal 2013 
largely includes Flaga's acquisition of BP's LPG disfribution business in Poland; Midstream & Marketing's acquisition of a non-operating 
working interest in natural gas acreage in the Marcellus Shale region of Pennsylvania; and several Partaership acquisitions. Cash paid for 
acquisitions in Fiscal 2012 principally reflects the January 2012 acquisition of Heritage Propane and the October 2011 acquisition of certain of 
Shell's European LPG businesses. Cash expenditures for property, plant and equipment totaled $486.0 million in Fiscal 2013, $339.4 mUlion in 
Fiscal 2012 and $360.7 miUion in Fiscal 
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2011. Cash from changes in resfricted cash in fiitures brokerage accounts provided (used) cash of$ (5.3) miUion in Fiscal 2013, $ 14.2 million in 
Fiscal 2012 and $ 17.6 mUlion in Fiscal 2011. The amount of resfricted cash required in such accounts is generally tae result of changes in 
underiying commodity prices. 

Financing Activities. Cash fiow provided (used) by financing activities was $(186.1) mUlion in Fiscal 2013 , $1,278.5 million in Fiscal 2012 
and $(152.1) mUlion in Fiscal 2011 . Changes in cash flow from financing activities are primarily due to issuances and repayments of long-term 
debt; net bank loan borrowings; dividends and distributions on UGI Common Stock and AmeriGas Partaers Common Units; and issuances of 
UGI and AmeriGas Partners equity instmments. 

Disfributions on AmeriGas Partners' publicly held Common Units in Fiscal 2013 increased over the prior-year period reflecting the 
ftill-year impact of a greater number of Common Units outstanding subsequent to tae acquisition of Heritage Propane and higher quarterly per-
unit distribution rates. In order to finance tiie cash portion ofthe acquisition of Heritage Propane, on January 12,2012, AmeriGas Partners issued 
$550 million principal amount of 6.75%o Notes due 2020 and $1.0 billion principal amount of 7.00% Notes due 2022. During March 2012, 
AmeriGas Partaers sold 7 million Common Units in an underwritten public offering and used a portion ofthe net proceeds to repay $200 million 
of outstanding 6.50% Senior Notes due May 2021, to reduce bank loan borrowings and for general corporate purposes. 

Capital Expenditures 

In the following table, we present capital expenditares (which exclude acquisitions but include capital leases) by our business segments for 
Fiscal 2013 , Fiscal 2012 and Fiscal 2011 . We also provide amounts we expect to spend in Fiscal 2014 . We expect to flnance Fiscal 2014 
capital expenditares principally from cash generated by operations, borrowings under credit facilities and cash on hand. 

Year Ended September 30, 2014 2013 2012 2011 

(MiUions of dollars) (estimate) 
$ ' . -, 108.4 

88.9 
136.6 
108.9 

8:4 
$ 451.2 

$ ^ 

. ' 

> 

$ 

. 111.1 
70.8 

144.4 
156.4 

' - 7.5 
490.2 

'$ ' 

. 

$ 

103.1 
64.2 

109.0 
60.4 

6.5 
343.2 

$ 

V 

$ 

77.2 
65.4 
91.3 

112.8 
8.9 

355.6 Total 

Midsfream & Marketing's capital expenditares in Fiscal 2013, Fiscal 2012 and Fiscal 2011 principally reflect capital expenditares related 
to nataral gas storage, electric generation and Marcellus Shale projects. These Midsfream & Marketing capital expenditures were financed in 
large part by capital confributions from UGI and cash from operations. AmeriGas Propane Fiscal 2013 and Fiscal 2012 capital expenditures 
include $20.4 mUlion and $17.6 million, respectively, related to Heritage Propane integration activities. The increase in Gas Utility capital 
expenditures in Fiscal 2013 includes greater main replacement and system improvement capital expenditares. 

Contractual Cash Obligations and Commitments 

The Company has confractaal cash obligations that extend beyond Fiscal 2013. Such obligations include scheduled repayments of long-
term debt, interest on long-term fixed-rate debt, operating lease payments, unconditional purchase obligations for pipeline capacity, pipeline 
fransportation and nataral gas storage services and commitments to purchase nataral gas, LPG and elecfricity, capital expenditures and derivative 
financial instmments. The following table presents confractaal cash obligations wdth non-affiliates under agreements existing as of 
September 30,2013: 
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Payments Due by Period 

(Millions of dollars) 

lj>ng-t€am;det)t;(a)^ •i-;̂ J-K̂ iii.-̂ ŝ '>M'-.. i::̂ :̂-̂ ;̂ ;:-,' 
Interest on long-term-fixed rate debt (b) 
Operating leases;- : r ; ; V . . 

AmeriGas Propane supply confracts 
,tJGtte.tematiorial supply contracts 
Midsfream & Marketing supply contracts 
UfGlUtilities supply, storage and fransportation 
confracts 
Derivative fmancial instruments (c) 

Other purchase obligations (d) 

Total 

W-̂  

% 

Total 

r:;-rf^.7 
1,796.5 

. ,28L1 
296.2 
489.0 
367.0 

414.1 
24.4 
28.6 

7,302.6 

$ 

$ 

Fiscal 
2014 

68.0 
216.1 
66.7 

176.9 
198.1 
244.4 

151.6 
17.6 
28.6 

1,168.0 

$ 

$ 

Fiscal 
2015-
2016 

856.0 
432.8 
97.3 

119.3 
290.9 
121.4 

131.2 
6.7 
— 

2,055.6 

$ 

$ 

Fiscal 
2017-
2018 

98.0 
345.6 

. 58-.9 
— 

— 

1.2 

- - - 59.2" 
0.1 
— 

563.0 

Thereafter 

$ 2,583.7 
802.0 

58.2 
— 

— 
— 

' 72.1 
— 
— 

$ 3,516.0 

(a) Based upon stated matarity dates. UGI Utilities' $175 milUon Term Loan Credit Agreement borrowings anticipated to be refinanced on a 
long-term basis in March 2014 are presented in the table above under "Thereafter." 

(b) Based upon stated interest rates adjusted for the effects of interest rate swaps. 

(c) Represents the sum of amounts due from us if derivative financial instmment liabilities were settled at tae September 30, 2013, amounts 
reflected in the Consolidated Balance Sheet (but excluding amounts associated with interest rate swaps). 

(d) Includes material capital expenditare obligations. 

Other noncurrent liabilities included in our Consolidated Balance Sheet at September 30, 2013, principally comprise refundable tank and 
cylinder deposits (as fiirtaer described in Note 2 to Consolidated Financial Statements under the caption "Refundable Tank and Cylinder 
Deposits"); litigation, property and casualty liabilities and obligations under environmental remediation agreements (see Note 16 to Consolidated 
Financial Statements); pension and other posfretirement benefit liabilities recorded in accordance with accounting guidance relating to employee 
retirement plans (see Note 8 to Consolidated Financial Statements); and liabilities associated with executive compensation plans (see Note 14 to 
Consolidated Financial Statements). These liabilities are not included in tae table of Confractaal Cash Obligations and Commitments because 
they are estimates of futare payments and not contractaally fixed as to timing or amount. We believe we will be required to make contributions 
to UGI Utilities' pension plan (as fiirther described below under "U.S. Pension Plan") in Fiscal 2014 of approximately $18 million. 
Confributions to the U.S. Pension Plan in years beyond Fiscal 2014 will depend in large part on tae impact of futare retums and interest rates on 
pension plan assets. Certain of om operating lease arrangements, primarily vehicle leases wita remaining lease terms of one to ten years, have 
residual value guarantees. Ahhough such fair values at the end ofthe leases have historically exceeded tae guaranteed amount, at September 30, 
2013, the maximum potential amount of fiitare payments under lease guarantees assuming tae leased equipment was deemed worthless was 
approximately $14.0 miUion. 

Significant Acquisitions 

In September 2013, Flaga acquired the LPG disfribution business of BP in Poland for total cash consideration of approximately $36 miUion, 
subject to working capital adjustments. Also during Fiscal 2013, Energy Services acquired a non-operating working interest in nataral gas 
acreage in the Marcellus Shale region of Pennsylvania for approximately $23 million in cash and AmeriGas OLP acquired two domestic retail 
propane distribution businesses for approximately $20 million in cash. 

On January 12, 2012 (tae "Acquisition Date"), AmeriGas Partaers completed tae acquisition of Heritage Propane for total consideration of 
approximately $2.6 biUion comprising $1.5 billion in cash and 29,567,362 AmeriGas Partaers Common Units with a fair value of approximately 
$1.1 billion. The acquisition of Heritage Propane was consummated pursuant to the Confribution Agreement by and among AmeriGas Partners, 
ETP, Energy Transfer Partaers GP, L.P., the general partner of ETP, and Heritage ETC, L.P. ("Contribution Agreement"). The acquired business 
conducts its propane operations in 41 states. According to LP-Gas Magazine rankings published on Febmary 1, 2012, Heritage Propane was the 
third largest retail propane disfributor in the United States, delivering over 500 million gallons to more than one million retail propane customers 
in 2011. The acquisition of Heritage Propane is consistent wita our growth strategies, one of which is to grow our core business through 
acquisitions. The results of operations of Heritage Propane are included in the Consolidated Statements of Income since the Acquisition Date. 
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In October 2011, we acquired Shell's LPG disfribution businesses in the United Kingdom, Belgium, the Netherlands, Luxembourg, 
Denmark, Finland, Norway and Sweden for €133.6 million ( $179.0 miUion) in cash. 

For additional information on these acquisitions, see Note 5 to Consolidated Financial Statements. 

U.S. Pension Plan 

In the U.S., we currently sponsor one defined benefit pension plan for employees hired prior to January 1, 2009, of UGI, UGI Utilities, 
PNG, CPG and certain of UGl's other domestic wholly owned subsidiaries ("U.S. Pension Plan"). The fair value ofthe U.S. Pension Plan's 
assets totaled $398.2 mUlion and $351.5 miUion at September 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. At September 30, 2013 and 2012, tiie 
underfunded positions ofthe U.S. Pension Plan, defined as the excess of tae projected benefit obligation ("PBO") over the U.S. Pension Plan's 
assets, were $88.3 miUion and $192.1 milUon, respectively. 

We believe we are in compliance wita regulations goveming defmed benefit pension plans, including Employee Retirement Income 
Security Act of 1974 ("ERISA") mles and regulations. We anticipate tiiat we will be required to make confributions to tae U.S. Pension Plan 
during Fiscal 2014 of approximately $18 mUlion. Pre-tax pension cost associated with tae U.S. Pension Plan in Fiscal 2013 was $19.9 million. 
Pre-taxpensioncostassociated wita tae U.S. Pension Plan in Fiscal 2014 is expected to be approximately $11 miUion. 

GAAP guidance associated with pension and other postretirement plans generally requires recognition of an asset or liability in the 
statement of financial position refiecting the fimded statas of pension and otaer posfretirement benefit plans with current year changes 
recognized in shareholders' equity unless such amounts are subject to regulatory recovery. Through September 30, 2013, we have recorded 
cumulative after-tax charges to UGI Corporation's stockholders' equity of $17.1 mUlion and recorded regulatory assets totaling $94.5 million in 
order to reflect the funded statas of our pension and other postietirement benefit plans. For a more detailed discussion of the U.S. Pension Plan 
and our other posfretirement benefit plans, see Note 8 to Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Related Party Transactions 

During Fiscal 2013 , Fiscal 2012 and Fiscal 2011 , we did not enter into any related-party fransactions that had a material effect on our 
financial condition, results of operations or cash flows. 

Off-Balance-Sheet Arrangements 

UGI primarily enters into guarantee arrangements on behalf of its consolidated subsidiaries. These arrangements are not subject to the 
recognition and measurement guidance relating to guarantees under GAAP. 

We do not have any off-balance-sheet arrangements that are expected to have a material effect on our financial condition, change in 
financial condition, revenues or expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital resources. 

Utility Matters 

On Febmary 19,2013, the PUC entered a final order (tae "Final Order") settling all regulatory compliance issues pertaining to a nataral gas 
explosion on Febmary 9,2011, in Allentown, PA. The Final Order requires UGI Utilities to (i) pay a civil penalty in tae amount of $0.5 miUion; 
(ii) conduct a pilot new technology leak detection program in Allentovra; and (iii) accept new reporting requirements goveming its agreed upon 
14 -year cast iron and 30 -year bare steel pipeline replacement program and disfribution integrity management program. The Final Order makes 
no findings that UGI Utilities has violated any regulation or operating procedure. The Company does not believe taat tae cost of complying with 
the requirements of the Final Order will have a material impact on UGI Utilities' consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash 
flows. 

On August 11, 2011, the PUC approved a settlement agreement with CPG that resulted in an increase in annual base rate revenues of 
$8.0 million as well as $0.9 million in revenues per year to fund system improvements and operations necessary to maintain safe and reliable 
natural gas service and fimd new programs that would provide rebates and other incentives for customers to install new high-efficiency 
equipment (collectively, "Energy and Efficiency Conservation Program"). The increase became effective August 30, 2011. Dming Fiscal 2012, 
the PUC reversed its earlier decision related to the $0.9 million increase in revenues associated with the Energy and Efficiency Conservation 
Program and required CPG to refund revenue it had collected for that program. 

On Febmary 1,2012, CPG filed an application with the PUC for review and approval of tiie fransfer of an 11 -mile natural gas pipeline, 
related facilities and right of way located in Delmar Township, Pennsylvania ("TL-96 line") to Energy Services. The PUC approved the fransfer 
and, in April 2013, tae TL-96 line was dividended to UGI and subsequently contributed to Energy 
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Services. The net book value ofthe TL-96 line is approximately $2.6 miUion. 

On October 21, 2010, FERC approved and later affirmed CPG's application to abandon a storage service and approved the transfer of its 
Tioga, Meeker and Wharton natural gas storage facilities, along wita related assets, to UGI Storage Company, a subsidiary of Energy Services. 
The PUC approved the fransfer subject to, among other things, a reduction in base rates and CPG's agreement to charge PGC customers, for a 
period of three years, no more for storage services from the fransferred assets taan they would have paid before the fransfer, to the extent used. 
On April 1, 2011, the storage facilities were dividended to UGI and subsequently confributed to UGI Storage Company. The net book value of 
the storage facility assets was $ 10.9 million. Compliance wita the provisions of tae PUC Order approving the fransfer of the storage assets did 
not have a material impact on tae resuhs of operations of Gas Utility. Concurrent with tae April 1, 2011 fransfer, CPG entered into a one-year 
firm storage service agreement with UGI Storage Company. 

On December 1, 2010, PNG filed an application with the PUC for expedited review and approval of tae fransfer of a 9 mile natural gas 
pipeline, related facilities, and right of way located in Mehoopany, Pennsylvania (the "Aubum Line") to Energy Services. The PUC approved the 
fransfer and in September 2011 the Aubum Line was dividended to UGI and subsequently contributed to Energy Services. The net book value of 
the Auburn Line was $1.1 miUion. 

UGI Utilities Income Taxes 

In 2010, U.S. federal tax legislation was enacted that allowed taxpayers to fiilly deduct qualifying capital expenditures incurred after 
September 8, 2010, through the end of calendar 2011, when such property was placed in service before 2012. In accordance wita existing 
Pennsylvania tax statates, Permsylvania taxpayers are also permitted to fully deduct such qualifying capital expenditares for Pennsylvania state 
corporate net income tax purposes. Pennsylvania utility ratemaking practice permits tae flow through to ratepayers of state tax benefits from 
accelerated tax depreciation. UGI UtUities' Fiscal 2011 and, to a lesser extent. Fiscal 2012 state tax rates reflect the beneficial effects ofthis 
greater state tax depreciation. 

Manufactured Gas Plants 

UGI Utilities 

CPG is party to a Consent Order and Agreement ("CPG-COA") wita the Pennsylvania Departtnent of Environmental Protection ("DEP") 
requiring CPG to perform a specified level of activities associated with environmental investigation and remediation work at certain properties in 
Pennsylvania on which manufactared gas plant ("MGP") related facilities were operated ("CPG MGP Properties") and to plug a minimum 
number of non-producing natural gas wells per year. In addition, PNG is a party to a Multi-Site Remediation Consent Order and Agreement 
("PNG-COA") with the DEP. The PNG-COA requires PNG to perform annually a specified level of activities associated with environmental 
investigation and remediation work at certain properties on which MGP-related facilities were operated ("PNG MGP Properties"). Under these 
agreements, environmental expenditures relating to the CPG MGP Properties and the PNG MGP Properties are capped at $1.8 and $1.1 , 
respectively, in any calendar year. The CPG-COA is currently scheduled to terminate at tae end of 2013. The PNG-COA terminates in 2019 but 
may be terminated by either party effective at tae end of any two-year period beginning with tae original effective date in March 2004. At 
September 30, 2013 and 2012, our accmed liabilities for environmental investigation and remediation costs related to tiie CPG-COA and the 
PNG-COA totaled $14.0 million and $15.0 million , respectively. Because CPG and PNG are currently receiving regulatory recovery of 
estimated environmental investigation and remediation costs associated wita Pennsylvania sites, in accordance wita GAAP related to rate-
regulated entities we have recorded associated regulatory assets in equal amounts. 

From tae late 1800s through tae mid-1900s, UGI Utilities and its former subsidiaries owned and operated a number of MGPs prior to the 
general availability of natural gas. Some constitaents of coal tars and other residues of the manufactared gas process are today considered 
hazardous substances under the Superfund Law and may be present on tae sites of former MGPs. Between 1882 and 1953, UGI Utilities owned 
the stock of subsidiary gas companies in Pennsylvania and elsewhere and also operated tae businesses of some gas companies under agreement. 
Pursuant to the requirements of tiie Public Utility Holding Company Act of 1935, by the early 1950s UGI Utilities divested all of its utility 
operations other taan certain Peimsylvania operations, including those which now constitate UGI Gas and Electric Utility. 

UGI Utilities does not expect its costs for investigation and remediation of hazardous substances at Permsylvania MGP sites to be material 
to its results of operations because (l)UGI Gas is currently permitted to include in rates, through ftitare base rate proceedings, a five-year 
average of such pmdently incurred remediation costs and (2) CPG and PNG are currently receiving regulatory recovery of estimated 
environmental investigation and remediation costs associated wita Pennsylvania sites. At September 30, 2013, neither tiie undiscounted nor tae 
accmed liability for environmental investigation and cleanup costs for UGI Gas was material. 
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From time to time, UGI Utilities is notified of sites outside Pennsylvania on which private parties allege MGPs were formerly owned or 
operated by it or owned or operated by its former subsidiaries. Such parties generally investigate the extent of environmental contamination or 
perform environmental remediation. Management believes that under applicable law UGI Utilities should not be liable in those instances in 
which a former subsidiaty owned or operated an MGP. There could be, however, significant fiitare costs of an uncertain amount associated wita 
environmental damage caused by MGPs outside Pennsylvania that UGI Utilities directiy operated, or that were owned or operated by former 
subsidiaries of UGI Utilities if a court were to conclude that (1) the subsidiary's separate corporate form should be disregarded or (2) UGI 
UtUities should be considered to have been an operator because of its conduct with respect to its subsidiary's MGP. 

For additional information on an MGP site outside of Pennsylvania currently subject to a third-party claim, see Note 16 to Consolidated 
Financial Statements. 

AmeriGas Propane 

By letter dated March 6, 2008, tiie New York State Department of Environmental Conservation ("DEC") notified AmeriGas OLP that 
DEC had placed property ovraed by the Partaership in Saranac Lake, New York, on its Registry of Inactive Hazardous Waste Disposal Sites. A 
site characterization stady performed by DEC disclosed contamination related to former MGP operations on the site. DEC has classified the site 
as a significant tareat to public health or environment wita fiirther action required. The Partaership has researched the history of tae site and its 
ovraership interest in the site and reviewed the preliminary site characterization stady prepared by the DEC, the extent of contamination and tae 
possible existence of otaer potentially responsible parties. The Partaership communicated the results of its research to DEC in January 2009. 
There have been no recent developments in this matter. Because of the preliminary nature of available environmental information, the ultimate 
amount of expected clean up costs cannot be reasonably estimated. 

In connection with the acquisition of Heritage Propane on January 12, 2012, a predecessor of Titan Propane LLC ('Titan LLC"), a former 
subsidiary acquired in the acquisition of Heritage Propane, is purportedly the beneficial holder of title wita respect to two former MGPs 
discussed below. The Contribution Agreement provides for indemnification from ETP for certain expenses associated with remediation of these 
sites. By letter dated September 30, 2010, tae EPA notified Titan LLC taat it may be a potentially responsible party ("PRP") for cleanup costs 
associated with contamination at a former MGP in Claremont, New Hampshire. In June 2010, the Maryland Attomey General ("MAG") 
identified Titan LLC as a PRP in connection -with, contamination at a former MGP in Chestertown, Maryland and requested that Titan LLC 
participate in characterization and remediation activities. Titan LLC has supplied the EPA and MAG with corporate and bankmptcy information 
for its predecessors to support its claim taat it is not liable for any remediation costs at the sites. Because ofthe preliminary natare of available 
environmental information, the ultimate amount of expected clean up costs cannot be reasonably estimated. 

We cannot predict with certainty the final results of any of the MGP matters referenced above. However, it is reasonably possible that 
some of taem could be resolved unfavorably to us and result in losses in excess of recorded amounts. We are unable to estimate any possible 
losses in excess of recorded amounts. Altaough we currently believe, after consultation wita counsel, that damages or settlements, if any, 
recovered by the plaintiffs in such claims or actions will not have a material adverse effect on our financial position, damages or settlements 
could be material to our operating resuhs or cash flows in fiitare periods depending on the nature and timing of futare developments with respect 
to these matters and the amounts of future operating results and cash flows. 

Market Risk Disclosures 

Our primary market risk exposures are (1) commodity price risk; (2) interest rate risk; and (3) foreign currency exchange rate risk. 
Although we use derivative financial and commodity instruments to reduce market price risk associated wita forecasted fransactions, we do not 
use derivative financial and commodity instruments for speculative or frading purposes. 
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Commodity Price Risk 

The risk associated wita fluctaations in the prices the Partnership and our Intemational Propane operations pay for LPG is principally a 
result of market forces reflecting changes in supply and demand for propane and other energy commodities. Their profitability is sensitive to 
changes in LPG supply costs. Increases in supply costs are generally passed on to customers. The Partaership and Intemational Propane may not, 
however, always be able to pass through product cost increases fiilly or on a timely basis, particularly when product costs rise rapidly. In order to 
reduce tae volatility of LPG market price risk, the Partnership uses confracts for the forward purchase or sale of propane, propane fixed-price 
supply agreements and over-the-counter derivative commodity instmments including price swap and option confracts. Our UGI Intemational 
LPG operations also use over-the-counter price swap and option confracts to reduce commodity price volatility associated with a portion of their 
forecasted LPG purchases. Over-the-counter derivative commodity instruments used to hedge forecasted purchases of propane are generally 
settied at expiration ofthe contract. In addition, Antargaz hedges a portion of its futare U.S. dollar denominated LPG product purchases through 
the use of forward foreign exchange confracts as further described below. 

Gas Utility's tariffs contain clauses that permit recovery of all of the pmdently incurred costs of natural gas it sells to its customers, 
including the cost of fmancial instraments used to hedge purchased gas costs. The recovery clauses provide for periodic adjustments for the 
difference between the total amounts actaally collected from customers through PGC rates and tiie recoverable costs incurred. Because of this 
ratemaking mechanism, taere is limited commodity price risk associated witii our Gas Utility operations. Gas UtUity uses derivative financial 
instmments including natural gas fiitures and option confracts traded on the NYMEX to reduce volatility in the cost of gas it purchases for its 
retail core-market customers. The cost of taese derivative fmancial instmments, net of any associated gains or losses, is included in Gas Utility's 
PGC recovery mechanism. 

Electric Utility's DS tariffs contain clauses which permit recovery of all pmdently incurred power costs, including tae cost of financial 
instmments used to hedge electricity costs, through tae application of DS rates. Because ofthis ratemaking mechanism, there is limited power 
cost risk, including the cost of financial fransmission rights ("FTRs") and forward electricity purchase contracts, associated wdta our Elecfric 
Utility operations. 

In addition, Gas Utility and Electric Utility from time to time enter into exchange-fraded gasoline fiitares and swap confracts for a portion 
of gasoline volumes expected to be used in their operations. These gasoline futures and swap conttacts are recorded at fair value wita changes in 
fair value reflected in other income. 

In order to manage market price risk relating to substantially all of Midsfream & Marketing's flxed-price sales confracts for nataral gas and 
electricity, Midsfream & Marketing enters into NYMEX, IntercontinentalExchange and over-the-counter nataral gas and elecfricity fiitares and 
natural gas basis swap confracts or enters into fixed-price supply arrangements. Midsfream & Marketing also uses NYMEX and over-the-counter 
elecfricity fiitures conttacts to economically hedge a portion of its anticipated sales of electricity from its electricity generation facilities. 
Altaough Midsfream & Marketing's fixed-price supply arrangements mitigate most risks associated with its fixed-price sales contracts, should 
any of tae suppliers under these arrangements fail to perform, increases, if any, in the cost of replacement nataral gas or elecfricity would 
adversely impact Midsfream & Marketing's resuhs. In order to reduce tais risk of supplier nonperformance, Midsfream & Marketing has 
diversified its purchases across a number of suppliers. Midsfream & Marketing has entered into and may continue to enter into fixed-price 
propane sales agreements. In order to manage the market price risk relating to substantially all of its fixed-price propane sales agreements, 
Midsfream & Marketing enters into price swap and option contracts. 

Midsfream & Marketing purchases FTRs to economically hedge certain fransmission costs that may be associated with its fixed-price 
electricity sales contracts. Midstream & Marketing from time to time also enters into New York Independent System Operator ("NYISO") 
capacity swap confracts to economically hedge tae locational basis differences for customers it serves on tae NYISO electricity grid. 
Midsfream & Marketing also uses NYMEX fiitares contracts to economically hedge the gross margin associated with the purchase and 
anticipated later sale of natural gas or propane. Although Midsfream & Marketing's FTRs and NYISO capacity swap confracts, and NYMEX 
fiitares contracts associated wita the purchase and later anticipated sale of nataral gas and propane, are generally effective as economic hedges, 
taey do not currently qualify for hedge accounting freatment. 

UGID has entered into fixed-price sales agreements for a portion of the electricity expected to be generated by its elecfric generation 
assets. In the event that these generation assets would not be able to produce all of the elecfricity needed to supply electricity under these 
agreements, UGID would be required to purchase electricity on tae spot market or under contract with other elecfricity suppliers. Accordingly, 
increases in tae cost of replacement power could negatively impact UGID's results. 
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Interest Rate Risk 

We have botii fixed-rate and variable-rate debt. Changes in interest rates impact tae cash flows of variable-rate debt but generally do not 
impact tiieir fair value. Conversely, changes in interest rates impact tae fair value of fixed-rate debt but do not impact their cash flows. 

Our variable-rate debt includes bank loan borrowings and Antargaz' and Flaga's variable-rate term loans. These debt agreements have 
interest rates that are generally indexed to short-term market interest rates. Antargaz and Flaga have effectively fixed the underlying euribor 
interest rates on their euro-denominated term loans through their scheduled maturity dates through the use of interest rate swaps. In addition, 
Flaga's $52 million U.S. dollar-denominated loan has been swapped from fixed-rate U.S. dollars to fixed-rate euro currency at issuance through 
cross currency swaps, removing interest rate risk and foreign currency exchange risk associated with the underlying interest and principal 
payments. At September 30, 2013, combined borrowings outstanding under variable-rate debt agreements, excluding Antargaz' and Flaga's 
effectively fixed-rate term loans and Flaga's U.S. dollar-denominated loan, totaled $227.9 million. Based upon average borrowings outstanding 
under variable-rate borrowings (excluding Antargaz' and Flaga's effectively fixed-rate term loan debt and Flaga's U.S. dollar denominated 
loan), an increase in short-term interest rates of 100 basis points (1%) would have increased our Fiscal 2013 and Fiscal 2012 interest expense by 
approximately Si.8 million and $2.8 million, respectively. The remainder ofour debt outstanding is subject to fixed rates of interest. A 100 basis 
point increase in market interest rates would result in decreases in the fair value ofthis fixed-rate debt of $170.3 million and $160.1 million at 
September 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. A 100 basis point decrease in market interest rates would result in increases in the fair value ofthis 
fixed-rate debt of S102.2 million and $137.0 miUion at September 30,2013 and 2012, respectively. 

Long-term debt associated with our domestic businesses is typically issued at fixed rates of interest based upon market rates for debt 
having similar terms and credit ratings. As these long-term debt issues mature, we may refinance such debt with new debt having interest rates 
reflecting taen-current market conditions. In order to reduce interest rate risk associated wita near- to medium-term forecasted issuances of 
fixed-rate debt, from time to time we enter into interest rate protection agreements ("IRPAs"). There were no unsettled IRPAs at September 30, 
2013. 

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk 

Our primary currency exchange rate risk is associated with the U.S. dollar versus the euro. The U.S. dollar value of our foreign currency 
denominated assets and liabilities will fluctaate with changes in the associated foreign currency exchange rates. From time to time we use 
derivative instiniments to hedge portions of our net investments in foreign subsidiaries ("net investment hedges"). Gains or losses on net 
investinent hedges remain in accumulated other comprehensive income until such foreign operations are liquidated. At September 30, 2013, 
taere were no unsettled net investment hedges outstanding. Wita respect to our net investments in our Intemational Propane operations, a 10% 
decline in the value ofthe associated foreign currencies versus the U.S. dollar, excluding the effects of any net investment hedges, would reduce 
their aggregate net book value at September 30, 2013, by approximately $94 million, which amount would be reflected in other comprehensive 
income. 

In addition, in order to reduce volatility, Antargaz hedges a portion of its anticipated U.S. dollar-denominated LPG product purchases 
dming the months of October through March tarough the use of forward foreign exchange confracts. The amount of dollar-denominated 
purchases of LPG associated with such confracts generally represents approximately 15% - 30%) of estimated dollar-denominated purchases to 
occur dming the heating-season months of October to March. 

Derivative Financial Instrument Credit Risk 

We are exposed to risk of loss in the event of nonperformance by om derivative financial instrument counterparties. Our derivative 
financial instrument counterparties principally comprise large energy companies and major U.S. and intemational financial institutions. Wt 
maintain credit policies with regard to our counterparties that we believe reduce overall credit risk. These policies include evaluating anc 
monitoring our counterparties' financial condition, including their credit ratings, and entering into agreements wita counterparties that goven 
credit limits. 

Certain of our derivative instmment agreements call for the posting of collateral by the counterparty or by the Company in the forms o 
letters of credit, parental guarantees or cash. Additionally, our nataral gas and elecfricity exchange-fraded fiitares and option confracts generallj 
require cash deposits in margin accounts. Declines in nataral gas, LPG and elecfricity product costs can require our business units to pos 
collateral with counterparties or make margin deposits to brokerage accounts. At September 30, 2013 and 2012, resfricted cash in brokeragi 
accounts totaled $7.0 million and $ 3.0 million, respectively. 

The following table smnmarizes the fair values of unsettled market risk sensitive derivative instmments assets (liabilities) held a 
September 30,2013 and 2012. The table also includes the changes in fair values of derivative instmments that 
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would result if there were a 10%. adverse change in (l)the market prices of LPG, gasoline, nataral gas, elecfricity and elecfricity transmission 
congestion charges; (2) the taree-month and one-month Euribor rates; and (3) the value ofthe euro versus the U.S. dollar. Gas Utility's and 
Elecfric Utility's derivative instruments other than gasoline fiitares and swap contracts are excluded from the table below because any associated 
net gains or losses are refundable to or recoverable from customers in accordance with Gas Utility and Electric Utility ratemaking. 

Asset (Liability) 

Change in 
(Millions of dollars) Fair Value Fair Value 

September 30,2013: 
Commodity price risk $ 14.0 $ (48.3) 
Interest rate risk (31.0) - (0.8) 
Foreign currency exchange rate risk (7.5) (26.2) 

"S:^^r*ier::3i6^]M 
Commodity price risk (43.7) (35.9) 

• Inte( t̂rut̂ risk '̂V=;:;;'--;'::-Ov:̂ ^ 
Foreign currency exchange rate risk 1.8 (15.4) 

. . -. Because a significant portion ofour derivative instmments qualify as hedges under GAAP, we expect that changes m the fair value of 
derivative instruments used to manage commodity, currency or interest rate market risk would be substantially offset by gains or losses on the 
associated anticipated transactions. 

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates 

Accoimting policies and estimates discussed in this section are those that we consider to be tae most critical to an understanding of our 
financial statements because taey involve significant judgments and uncertainties. Changes in taese policies and estimates could have a material 
effect on the financial statements. The application of these accounting policies and estimates necessarily requires management's most subjective 
or complex judgments regarding estimates and projected outcomes of futare events which could have a material impact on the flnancial 
statements. Management has reviewed these critical accounting policies, and tae estimates and assumptions associated with them, with tae 
Company's Audit Committee. In addition, management has reviewed the following disclosures regarding the application of these critical 
accounting policies and estimates with the Audit Committee. Also, see Note 2 to Consolidated Financial Statements which discusses tae 
significant accoimting policies that we have selected from acceptable altematives. 

Litigation Accruals and Environmental Remediation Liabilities. We are involved in litigation regarding pending claims and legal actions that 
arise in the normal course of business. In addition, UGI Utilities and its former subsidiaries owned and operated a number of MGPs in 
Pennsylvania and elsewhere, and PNG and CPG owned and operated a number of MGP sites located in Pennsylvania, at which hazardous 
substances may be present. In accordance with GAAP, when a loss is considered probable and reasonably estimable, we record a liability in the 
amount ofour best estimate for the uhimate loss. When there is a range of possible loss with equal likelihood, liabilities recorded are based upon 
tae low end of such range. The likelihood of a loss with respect to a particular contingency is often difficult to predict and determining a 
reasonable estimate of tae loss or a range of possible loss may not be practicable based upon the information available and the potential effects 
of ftitare events and decisions by third parties taat will determine the ultimate resolution of tae contingency. Reasonable estimates involve 
management judgments based on a broad range of information and prior experience. These judgments are reviewed quarterly as more 
information is received and tae amounts reserved are updated as necessary. Such estimated reserves may differ materially from tae actaal 
liability and such reserves may change materially as more information becomes available and estimated reserves are adjusted. 

Accounting For Derivative Instruments At Fair Value. The Company enters into derivative instruments to hedge the risks associated with 
changes in commodity prices, interest rates and foreign currency rates. Accounting requirements for derivatives and related hedging activities are 
complex and may be subject to fiuther clarification by standard-setting bodies. These derivatives are recognized as assets and liabilities at fair 
value on tae Consolidated Balance Sheets. Changes in tae fair values of derivative instruments that qualify and are designated as cash flow 
hedges are recorded in AOCI or nonconfrolling interests, both of which are components of equity, to tae extent effective at offsetting changes in 
the hedged item, until eamings are affected by the hedged item. Changes in the fair values of derivative instmments taat we do not designate as, 
or that do not qualify for, hedges under GAAP, which currently comprise substantially all of Midsfream & Marketing's commodity derivative 
instmments, are recognized in eamings on tae Consolidated Statements of Income. The fair values of our derivative instmments are determined 
based upon actively-quoted market prices for identical assets and liabilities, indicative price quotations available through brokers, industry 
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price publications or recent market transactions and related market indicators. We maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize tae use 
of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. Gains and losses associated with derivatives utilized by UGI Utilities to manage the price risk 
inherent in its nataral gas purchasing and elecfricity activities are recoverable through PGC or Electric Utility default service mechanisms, 
subject to PUC approval. Accordingly, the offset to the change in fair value of taese derivatives is recorded as either a regulatory asset or 
liability on tae Consolidated Balance Sheets. At September 30,2013, our total net derivative liabilities totaled $31.2 million . 

Regulatory Assets and Liabilities. Gas Utility and Electric Utility are subject to regulation by the PUC. In accordance with accounting 
guidance associated wita rate-regulated entities, we record the effects of rate regulation in our financial statements as regulatory assets or 
regulatory liabilities. We continually assess whether tae regulatory assets are probable of futare recovery by evaluating the regulatory 
environment, recent rate orders and public statements issued by the PUC, and tae statas of any pending deregulation legislation. If future 
recovery of regulatory assets ceases to be probable, tiie elimination of those regulatory assets would adversely impact our resuhs of operations 
and cash flows. As of September 30, 2013 , our regulatory assets totaled $244.9 million . See Notes 2 and 9 to Consolidated Financial 
Statements. 

Depreciation and Amortization of Long-Lived Assets. We compute depreciation on utility property, plant and equipment on a sfraight-line 
basis over tae average remaining lives of its various classes of depreciable property and on our non-utility property, plant and equipment on a 
straight-line basis over estimated useful lives generally ranging from 2 to 40 years. We also use amortization metaods and determine asset values 
of intangible assets subject to amortization using reasonable assumptions and projections. Changes in the estimated useful lives of property, 
plant and equipment and changes in intangible asset amortization methods or values could have a material effect on our results of operations. As 
of September 30, 2013 , our net property, plant and equipment totaled $4,480.2 million and we recorded depreciation expense of $301.4 million 
during Fiscal 2013 . As of September 30, 2013 , our net intangible assets subject to amortization totaled $ 477.7 million and we recorded 
amortization expense on intangible assets subject to amortization of $52.8 million during Fiscal 2013 . 

Purchase Price Allocations. From time to time, the Company enters into material business combinations. In accordance wita accounting 
guidance associated with business combinations, the purchase price is allocated to tae various assets acquired and liabilities assumed at their 
estimated fair value. Fair values of assets acquired and liabilities assumed are based upon available information and we may involve an 
independent taird party to perform appraisals. Estimating fair values can be complex and subject to significant business judgment and most 
commonly impacts property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, including those with indefinite lives. Generally, we have, if necessary, 
up to one year from the acquisition date to finalize the purchase price allocation. 

Impairment of Goodwill. We do not amortize goodwill, but test it at least annually for impairment at the reporting unit level. A reporting unit is 
the operating segment, or a business one level below the operating segment (a component), if discrete financial information is prepared and 
regularly reviewed by segment management. Components are aggregated if they have similar economic characteristics. Certain of the 
Company's operating segments have goodwill resulting from purchase business combinations. In accordance wita GAAP, each ofour reporting 
units with goodwill is required to perform impairment tests annually or whenever events or circumstances indicate that tae value of goodwill 
may be impaired. For certain of our reporting units, we assess qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than not that the Mr 
value of such reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. For om other reporting units with goodwill, and for taose reporting units for which 
we are not able, based upon tae assessment of qualitative factors, to determine that it is more likely than not that the fair value of such reporting 
unit is not less than its carrying amount, we determine fair values generally using an income approach unless market values are available. For 
purposes of tae income approach, fair values are determined based upon the present value of estimated fiitare cash flows discounted at an 
appropriate risk-adjusted rate. Cash flow estimates used to establish fair values involve management judgments based on a broad range of 
information and historical resuhs. We use our intemal forecasts to estimate fiitare cash flows and include an estimate of long-term fiiture growta 
rates based upon our most recent reviews of the long-term outlook for each reporting unit. We are required to recognize an impairment charge 
under GAAP if the carrying amount of a reporting unit exceeds its fair value and the carrying amount ofthe reporting unit's goodwill exceeds 
the implied fair value of that goodwill. To the extent estimated cash flows are revised downward, the reporting unit may be required to write 
down aU or a portion of its goodwUl which would adversely impact our results of operations. As of September 30, 2013 , our goodwUl totaled 
$2,873.7 miUion. We did not record any impairments of goodwill in Fiscal 2013 , Fiscal 2012 or Fiscal 2011 . 

Pension Plan Assumptions. Pension plan assumptions are significant inputs to the actaarial models tiiat measure pension benefit obligations 
and pension expense. The cost of providing benefits under the U.S. Pension Plan is dependent on historical information such as employee age, 
length of service, level of compensation and the actaal rate of retum on plan assets. In addition, certain assumptions relating to tae futare are 
used to determine pension expense including the discount rate applied to benefit obligations, tae expected rate of retam on plan assets and the 
rate of compensation increase, among others. Assets of the U.S. Pension Plan are held in tmst and consist principally of equity and fixed income 
mutaal fiinds. Changes in plan assumptions as well as fluctaations 
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in actaal equity or fixed income market retams could have a material impact on future pension costs. We believe the two most critical 
assumptions are (1) the expected rate of retam on plan assets and (2) the discount rate. A decrease in tae expected rate of return on U.S. Pension 
Plan assets of 50 basis points to a rate of 7.25%. would result in an increase in pre-tax pension cost of approximately $1.9 mUlion in Fiscal 2014. 
A decrease in the discount rate of 50 basis points to a rate of 4.70% would result in an increase in pre-tax pension cost of approximately 
$3.1 million in Fiscal 2014. 

Income Taxes. We use tae asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under this method, income tax expense is recognized for 
tae amount of taxes payable or refimdable for the current year and for deferred tax liabilities and assets for tae fiiture tax consequences of events 
taat have been recognized in our financial statements or tax retams. Positions taken by an entity in its tax retams must satisfy a more-likely-than-
not recognition threshold assuming the positions will be examined by tax authorities with full knowledge of relevant information. We use 
assumptions, judgments and estimates to determine our current provision for income taxes. We also use assumptions, judgments and estimates to 
determine our deferred tax assets and liabilities and any valuation allowance to be recorded against a deferred tax asset. Our assumptions, 
judgments and estimates relative to the current provision for income tax give consideration to current tax laws, our interpretation of current tax 
laws and possible outcomes of current and futare audits conducted by foreign and domestic tax autaorities. Changes in tax law or our 
interpretation thereof and the resolution of current and futare tax audits could significantly impact the amounts provided for income taxes in our 
consolidated financial statements. Our assumptions, judgments and estimates relative to the amoimt of deferred income taxes take into account 
estimates of tae amount of fiitare taxable income. Actual taxable income or futare estimates of taxable income could render our current 
assumptions, judgments and estimates inaccurate. Changes in the assumptions, judgments and estimates mentioned above could cause our actual 
income tax obligations to differ significantly from our estimates. As of September 30, 2013 , our net deferred tax liabilities totaled $967.4 
miUion. 

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements 

See Note 4 to Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion ofthe effects of recently issued accounting guidance. 

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK 

"Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk" are contained in Item 7 - Management's Discussion and Analysis of 
Financial Condition and Resuhs of Operations under tae caption "Market Risk Disclosures" and are incorporated by reference. 
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA 

Management's Annual Report on Intemal Confrol Over Financial Reporting and the financial statements and financial statement schedules 
referred to in the Index contained on page F-2 ofthis Report are incorporated herein by reference. 

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE 

None. 

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES 
(a) The Company's management, with the participation of the Company's Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, evaluated 

the effectiveness of the Company's disclosme confrols and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended), as ofthe end ofthe period covered by this Report. Based on that evaluation, the Chief 
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that, because of the material weakness in intemal confrol over financial 
reporting identified in "Management's Annual Report on Intemal Control over Financial Reporting" (see Item 8 of this Report), the 
Company's disclosure confrols and procedures were not effective as of September 30,2013. 

Remediation Plans 

Management and the Board of Directors are committed to the remediation of tae material weakness related to the accounting for 
commodity derivative instruments described in Item 8 of tais Report. Subsequent to the end of the Company's fiscal year ended 
September 30, 2013 the Company has taken or will take the following actions designed to remediate the material weakness; 1) 
supplement the Company's existing technical expertise necessary to evaluate tae accounting for commodity derivatives, 2) enhance 
confrols over tae assessment of new commodity derivative agreements to ensure the appropriate accounting is identified at the inception 
of the agreement, and 3) enhance confrols over commodity derivative agreements to ensure that any ongoing compliance requirements 
are appropriately monitored. Management expects to remediate the material weakness during fiscal 2014. In addition, management has 
discontinued tiie use of hedge accounting for commodity derivative instmments at Midsfream and Marketing and will report mark-to-
market adjustments on unsettled derivatives. 

(b) For "Management's Annual Report on Intemal Confrol over Financial Reporting" see Item 8 of this Report (which information is 
incorporated herein by reference). 

(c) During the most recent fiscal quarter, no change in the Company's intemal confrol over financial reporting occurred that has materially 
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company's intemal confrol over financial reporting. 

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION 

None. 
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PART III: 

ITEMS 10 THROUGH 14. 

In accordance wita General Instmction G(3), and except as set forth below, the information required by Items 10, 11, 12, 13 and 14 is 
incorporated in this Report by reference to the following portions of UGl's Proxy Statement, which will be filed with the SEC by December 31, 
2013. 

Item 10. 

Information 

Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govemance 

Captions of Proxy Statement 
Incorporated by Reference 

Election of Directors - Nominees; Corporate Govemance; Board 
Independence; Board Committees; Communications wita tae 
Board; Securities Ownership of Management - Section 16(a) -
Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance; Report of tiie 
Audit Committee ofthe Board of Directors 

The Code of Ethics for the Chief Executive Officer and Senior 
Financial Officers of UGI Corporation is available witaout 
charge on tae Company's website, www.ugicorp.com, or by 
writing to Treasurer, UGI Corporation, P. 0. Box 858, Valley 
Forge, PA 19482. 

Item 11. Executive Compensation Compensation of Directors; Report of the Compensation and 
Management Development Committee of the Board of 
Directors; Compensation Discussion and Analysis; 
Compensation of Executive Officers; Compensation Committee 
Interlocks and Insider Participation 

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and 
Management and Related Stockholder Matters 

Securities Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners; Securities 
Ownership of Management 

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director 
Independence 

Election of 
Committees; 
Transactions 

Directors — Board Independence and Board 
Policy for Approval of Related Person 

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services Om Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 
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Equity Compensation Table 

The following table sets forth information as of tae end of Fiscal 2013 with respect to compensation plans under which our equity 
securities are authorized for issuance. 

Plan category 

Equity cbmpens,atiop 
"; J plans approĵ edTjy-"̂  
:- securitjrholde^ „ , 

Total 

Number of securities to be 

issued upon exercise of 
outstanding options, 
warrants and rights 

(a) 

^6,795,968.(1) .$ 

Weighted average 
exercise price of 

outstanding options, 
warrants and rights 

(b) 

28.92 

920,601 (3) $ 

Number of securities 
remaining available for future 

issuance under equity 
compensation plans 

(excluding securities reflected 
in column (a)) (c) 

13,637,192 (2) 

.0 
.^.'^••.:",.i:f:i 

7,716,569 28.92 (4) 

(1) Represents 6,795,968 stock options under the UGI Corporation 2004 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan Amended and Restated as of 
December 5,2006 and the UGI Corporation 2013 Omnibus Incentive Compensation Plan. 

(2) Represents 187,543 securities remaining for future issuance of stock options from the 2004 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan Amended 
and Restated as of December 5, 2006 and 13,449,649 of securities for issuance from the UGI Corporation 2013 Omnibus Incentive 
Compensation Plan. The UGI Corporation 2013 Omnibus Incentive Compensation Plan was approved by shareholders on January 24,2013. 

(3) Represents 920,601 phantom share units under the UGI Corporation 2004 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan Amended and Restated as of 
December 5,2006 and the UGI Corporation 2013 Omnibus Incentive Compensation Plan. 

(4) Weighted-average exercise price of outstanding options; excludes phantom share units. 

The information conceming the Company's executive officers required by Item 10 is set forth below. 

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS 

Name Age Position 

Iro^plWalsh^ ^'iT'. 
Kirk R. Oliver 
©WiSer'S.^-tliwal: 
Jerry E. Sheridan 
^^^p.'Beard ^/ ^ 
Monica M Gaudiosi 
SfyC.HkU 

.58 
55 
46 
48 
-48 
51 
60 

President and Chief Executive Officer 
ChiefFinancial Officer 
Vice President - Accounting and Financial Confrol and Chief RiskjOfficer 
President and Chief Executive Officer, AmenGas Propane, Inc 
President and Chief Executive Officer, UGI Utilities, Inc. 
Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary 
Vice President - New Busmess Development 

All officers are elected for a one-year term at tae organizational meetings ofthe respective Boards of Directors held each year. 

There are no family relationships between any ofthe officers or between any ofthe officers and any ofthe directors. 

56 



Table of Contents 

John L. Walsh 

Mr. Walsh is a Director and President (since 2005) and Chief Executive Officer (since 2013) of UGI Corporation. In addition, Mr. 
Walsh serves as Vice Chairman of AmeriGas Propane, Inc. (since 2005) and UGI Utilities, Inc. (since 2005). Previously, he also served as Chief 
Operating Officer ofUGI Corporation (2005 to 2013) and as President and Chief Executive Officer of UGI Utihties, Inc. (2009 to 2011). Mr. 
Walsh was the Chief Executive ofthe Industrial and Special Products Division ofthe BOC Group pic, an indusfrial gases company, a position he 
assumed in 2001. He was also an Executive Director of BOC (2001 to 2005). He joined BOC in 1986 as Vice President-Special Gases and held 
various senior management positions in BOC, including President of Process Gas Solutions, North America (2000 to 2001) and President of 
BOC Process Plants (1996 to 2000). Mr. Walsh also serves as a Director of UGI Utilities, Inc. and AmeriGas Propane, Inc. 

Kirk R. Oliver 

Mr. Oliver is ChiefFinancial Officer of UGI (since October 2012). From December 2011 until September 2012, Mr. Oliver served as 
Senior Managing Director & Chief Operating Officer of InfraREIT Capital Partaers, LLC, a partaership taat invests in infrastiuctare assets, 
primarily electric fransmission and gas pipeline assets. Prior to joining InfraREIT Capital, Mr. Oliver served as Senior Vice President and Chief 
Financial Officer of Allegheny Energy, Inc., an elecfric utility company, from 2008 to 2011, and as a Senior Executive at Hunt Power, LLC, a 
company taat develops and invests in electric and gas utility projects, from 2007 to 2008. Mr. Oliver served in various positions at TXU Corp. 
(now Energy Future Holdings Corp.), an elecfricity distribution, generation and fransmission company in Texas, from 1998 to 2006, including as 
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer from 2004 to 2006, Senior Vice President, Finance from 2000 to 2003 and Vice President, 
Treasurer and Assistant Secretary from 1998 to 1999. Prior to joining TXU Corp., Mr. Oliver spent eleven years as an investment banker in tae 
Global Power and Energy Group at Lehman Brothers and six years at Motorola Inc. 

Davinder S. Athwal 

Mr. Athwal is Vice President - Accounting and Financial Confrol and Chief Risk Officer (since January 2009). He previously served as 
the Global Mergers & Acquisitions ConfroUer of Nortel Networks, Inc., a global supplier of teleconununications equipment and solutions from 
2007 through 2008. Mr. Athwal served as Director, Global Revenue Govemance for Nortel Networks, Inc. from 2006 through 2007. Mr. Atawal 
previously served in both accounting and risk management roles for IBM Corporation, a globally integrated innovation and technology company 
(2003 to 2006). 

Jerry E. Sheridan 

Mr. Sheridan is President, Chief Executive Officer and a Director of AmeriGas Propane, Inc. (since March 2012). Previously, he served 
as Vice President - Operations and Chief Operating Officer (2011 to 2012) and as Vice President - Finance and ChiefFinancial Officer (2005 to 
2011) of AmeriGas Propane, Inc. Mr. Sheridan served as President and Chief Executive Officer (2003 to 2005) of Potters Industries, Inc., a 
global manufacturer of engineered glass materials and a wholly-owned subsidiary of PQ Corporation, a global producer of inorganic specialty 
chemicals. In addition, Mr. Sheridan served as Executive Vice President (2003 to 2005) and as Vice President and ChiefFinancial Officer (1999 
to 2003) of PQ Corporation, Mr. Sheridan also serves on the Management Board of CP Kelco, a privately held company that provides innovative 
products and solutions through the use of nature-based chemistry. 

Robert F. Beard 

Mr. Beard is President and Chief Executive Officer of UGI Utilities, Inc. (since September 2011). He previously served as Vice 
President - Marketing, Rates and Gas Supply (2010 to 2011) and Vice President - Southem Region (2008 to 2010) of UGI Utilities, Inc. From 
2006 until 2008, Mr. Beard served as Vice President - Operations and Engineering of PPL Gas Utilities Corporation and, from 2002 until 2006, 
he served as Director - Operations and Engineering of PPL Gas Utilities Corporation. 

Monica M. Gaudiosi 

Ms. Gaudiosi is Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary (since April 2012). She also serves as Vice President and Secretary of 
AmeriGas Propane, Inc. and UGI Utilities, Inc. (since April 2012). Prior to joining UGI, Ms. Gaudiosi served as Senior Vice President and 
General Counsel (2007 to 2012) and Senior Vice President and Associate General Counsel (2005 to 2007) of Southem Union Company. Prior to 
joining Soutaem Union Company in 2005, Ms. Gaudiosi held various positions with General Elecfric Capital Corporation (1997 to 2005). 
Before joining General Electric Capital Corporation, Ms. Gaudiosi was an associate at the law firms of Hunton & Williams (1994 to 1997) and 
Sutaeriand, AsbUl & Brennan (1988 to 1994). 
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Bradley C. Hall 

Mr. Hall is Vice President - New Business Development (since October 1994). He also serves as President of UGI Enterprises, Inc. 
(since 1994) and UGI Energy Services, LLC (formerly known as UGI Energy Services, Inc.) (since 1995). He joined tae Company in 1982 and 
held various positions in UGI Utilities, Inc., including Vice President - Marketing and Rates. 

PART IV: 

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES 
(a) Documents filed as part ofthis report: 

(1) Financial Statements: 

Included under Item 8 are the following financial statements and supplementary data: 

Management's Annual Report on Intemal Confrol over Financial Reporting 

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of September 30,2013 and 2012 

Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended September 30,2013 ,2012 and 2011 

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for tae years ended September 30,2013 ,2012 and 2011 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended September 30,2013 ,2012 and 2011 

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity for tiie years ended September 30,2013 , 2012 and 2011 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

(2) Financial Statement Schedules: 

I — Condensed Financial Information of Regisfrant (Parent Company) 

n — ValuationandQualifying Accounts for the years ended September 30, 2013 ,2012 and 2011 

We have omitted all other financial statement schedules because the required information is (1) not present; (2) not present in 
amounts sufficient to require submission ofthe schedule; or (3) included elsewhere in the financial statements or related notes. 

(3) List of Exhibits: 

The exhibits filed as part of this report are as follows (exhibits incorporated by reference are set forth wita the name of the 
regisfrant, tae type of report and regisfration number or last date of the period for which it was filed, and the exhibit number in 
such filing): 

Incorporation by Reference 

Exhibit No. Exhibit Registrant Filing Exhibit 

2.1 Contribution and Redemption 
Agreement, dated October 15, 
2011, by and among AmeriGas 
Partaers, L.P., Energy Transfer 
Partaers, L.P., Energy Transfer 
Partners GP, L.P. and Heritage 
ETC, L.P. 

AmeriGas 
Partners, L.P. 

Form 8-K (10/15/11) 2.1 
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Incorporation by Reference 

Exhibit No. Exhibit Registrant FiUng Exhibit 
2.2 

2.3 

,2.4 

2.5 

3.1 

3.2 

4.1 

4.2 

Amendment No. 1, dated as of 
December 1, 2011, to tiie 
Contribution and Redemption 
Agreement, dated as of October 
15, 2011, by and among Energy 
Transfer Partners, L.P., Energy 
Transfer Partaers GP, L.P., 
Heritage ETC, L.P. and AmeriGas 
Partners, L.P. 

Amendment No. 2, dated as of 
January 11,2012, to tae 
Contribution and Redemption 
Agreement, dated as of October 
15, 2012, by and among Energy 
Transfer Partaers, L.P., Energy 
Transfer Partaers GP, L.P., 
Heritage ETC, L.P. and AmeriGas 
Partners, L.P. 

Letter Agreement, dated as of 
January 11,2012, by and among 
Energy Transfer Partners, L.P., 
Energy Transfer Partners GP, L.P., 
Heritage ETC, L.P. and AmeriGas 
Partners, L.P. 

Amendment to Contribution and 
Redemption Agreement, dated as 
of October 15, 2011, by an among 
Energy Transfer Partners, L.P., 
Energy Transfer Partners GP, L.P., 
Heritage ETC, L.P. and AmeriGas 
Partaers, L.P., dated as of March 
20,2013. 

(Second) Amended and Restated 
Articies of Incorporation of tae 
Company as amended tarough 
June 6,2005. 
Amended and Restated Bylaws of 
UGI Corporation. 
Instmments defining the rights of 
security holders, including 
indentures. (The Company agrees 
to furnish to the Commission upon 
request a copy of any instmment 
defining tae rights of holders of 
long-term debt not required to be 
filed pursuant to Item 601(b)(4) of 
Regulation S-K), 

The description ofthe Company's 
Common Stock contained in the 
Company's registration statement 
filed under the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934, as 
amended. 

AmeriGas 
Partaers, L.P. 

Form 8-K 
(12/1/11) 

2.1 

AmeriGas 
Partners, L.P. 

Form 8-K 
(1/11/12) 

2.1 

AmeriGas 
Partners, L.P. 

AmeriGas 
Partaers, L.P. 

Form 8-K 
(1/11/12) 

Forai 10-Q (3/31/13) 

2.1 

2.1 

UGI 

UGI 

Form 10-Q (6/30/05) 

Form 8-K (7/30/13) 

3.1 

3.1 

UGI Form 8-B/A (4/17/96) 3.(4) 
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Incorporation by Reference 

Exhibit No. Exhibit Registrant Filing Exhibit 
4.3 

4.4 

4.5 

4.6 

4.7 

4.8 

4.9 

4.10 

UGl's (Second) Amended and 
Restated Articles of Incorporation 
and Bylaws referred to in 3.1 and 
3.2 above. 

Fourth Amended and Restated 
Agreement of Limited Partaership 
of AmeriGas Farmers, L.P. dated 
asofjuty27,2009. 
Amendment No. 1 to Fourth 
Amended and Restated Agreement 
of Limited Partnership of 
AmeriGas Partaers, L.P. dated as 
ofMarchl3,2012. 

Indentme, dated as of January 20, 
2011, by and among AmeriGas 
Partaers, L.P., AmeriGas Finance 
Corp. and U.S. Bank National 
Association, as tmstee. 

First Supplemental Indentare, 
dated as of January 20,2011, to 
Indentme dated as of January 20, 
2011, by and among AmeriGas 
Partners, L.P., AmeriGas Finance 
Corp. and U.S. Bank National 
Association, as tmstee. 

Second Supplemental Indenture, 
dated as of August 10,2011, to 
Indentare dated as of January 20, 
2011, by and among AmeriGas 
Partaers, L.P., AmeriGas Finance 
Corp. and U.S. Bank National 
Association, as tmstee. 

Indentare, dated as of August 1, 
1993, by and between UGI 
UtUities, Inc., as Issuer, and U.S. 
Bank National Association, as 
successor tmstee, incorporated by 
reference to the Regisfration 
Statement on Form S-3 filed on 
AprU 8,1994. 

Supplemental Indentare, dated as 
of September 15,2006, by and 
between UGI Utilities, Inc., as 
Issuer, and U.S. Bank National 
Association, successor tmstee to 
Wachovia Bank, National 
Association. 

AmeriGas 
Partners, L.P. 

AmeriGas 
Partners, L.P. 

AmeriGas 
Partaers, L.P. 

AmeriGas 
Partaers, L.P, 

AmeriGas 
Partners, L.P. 

Utilities 

Utilities 

Form 10-Q (6/30/09) 

Form 8-K 
(3/14/12) 

Form 10-Q (12/31/10) 

Form 8-K (1/19/11) 

3.1 

3.1 

4.1 

4.1 

Form 8-K (8/10/11) 4.1 

Regisfration Statement No. 33- 4(c) 
77514 
(4/8/94) 

Form 8-K (9/12/06) 4.2 
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Incorporation by Reference 

Exhibit No. Exhibit Registrant Filing Exhibit 

4.11 

4.12 

4.13 

4.14 

4.15 

4.16 

4.17 

4.18 

4.19 

4.20 

10.1*' 

*10.2' 

Indentare, dated as of January 12, 
2012, among AmeriGas Finance 
Corp., AmeriGas Finance LLC, 
AmeriGas Partaers, L.P., as 
guarantor, and U.S. Bank National 
Association, as tmstee. 

First Supplemental Indenture, 
dated as of January 12,2012, 
among AmeriGas Finance Corp., 
AmeriGas Finance LLC, 
AmeriGas Partners, L.P., as 
guarantor, and U.S. Bank National 
Association, as trustee. 

Form of Fixed Rate Medium-Term 
Note. 
Form of Fixed Rate Series B 
Medium-Term Note. 
Form of Floating Rate Series B 
Medium-Term Note. 
Officer's Certificate establishing 
Medium-Term Notes Series. 
Form of Officer's Certificate 
establishing Series B Medium-
Term Notes under the Indentare. 

Form of Officers' Certificate 
establishing Series C Medium-
Term Notes under the Indentare. 
Forms of Floating Rate and Fixed 
Rate Series C Medium-Term 
Notes. 
Form of Note Purchase Agreement 
dated October 30,2013 between 
the Company and the purchasers 
listed as signatories thereto. 
UGI Corporation 2004 Omnibus 
Equity Compensation Plan 
Amended and Restated as of 
December 5,2006. 

UGI Corporation 2004 Omnibus 
Equity Compensation Plan 
Amended and Restated as of 
December 5,2006 - Terms and 
Conditions as amended and 
restated effective November, 
2012. 

AmeriGas 
Partners, L.P. 

AmeriGas 
Partners, L.P. 

UGI 

Form 8-K 
(1/12/12) 

Form 8-K 
(1/12/12) 

Form 8-K (2/27/07) 

4.1 

4.2 

Utilities 

Utilities 

Utilities 

Utilities 

Utilities 

Utilities 

Utilities 

Utilities 

Form 8-K (8/26/94) 

Form 8-K (8/1/96) 

Form 8-K (8/1/96) 

Form 8-K (8/26/94) 

Form 8-K (8/1/96) 

Form 8-K (5/21/02) 

Form 8-K (5/21/02) 

Form 8-K (10/30/13) 

4(i) 

4(i) 

4(ii) 

4(iv) 

4(iv) 

4.2 

4.1 

4.1 

10.1 
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Incorporation by Reference 

Exhibit No. Exhibit Registrant Filing Exhibit 

10.3** 

10.4** 

10.5** 

10.6*'* 

10.7*'* 

10.8'' 

10.9** 

10.10** 

10.11** 

10.12** 

10.13** 

UGI Corporation 2013 Omnibus 
Incentive Compensation Plan. 
UGI Corporation Senior Executive 
Employee Severance Plan, as 
amended and restated as of 
November 16,2012. 

UGI Corporation Executive 
Employee Severance Plan, as 
amended and restated as of 
November 16, 2012. 
UGI Corporation Supplemental 
Executive Retirement Plan and 
Supplemental Savings Plan, as 
Amended and Restated effective 
January 1, 2009. 

Amendment 2009-1 to tiie UGI 
Corporation Supplemental 
Executive Retirement Plan and 
Supplemental Savings Plan as 
Amended and Restated effective 
January 1, 2009. 

UGI Corporation 2009 
Supplemental Executive 
Retirement Plan For New 
Employees. 
UGI Corporation Executive 
Annual Bonus Plan effective as of 
October 1,2006, as amended 
November 16,2012. 
AmeriGas Propane, Inc. 2010 
Long-Term Incentive Plan on 
Behalf of AmeriGas Partaers, L.P. 
effective July 30,2010. 

AmeriGas Propane, Inc. 2010 
Long-Term Incentive Plan on 
Behalf of AmeriGas Partaers, L.P. 
effective July 30, 2010 - Terms 
and Conditions. 

AmeriGas Propane, Inc. 2010 
Long-Term Incentive Plan on 
Behalf of AmeriGas Partners, L.P., 
Performance Unit Grant Letter for 
Employees dated January 1,2013. 

AmeriGas Propane, Inc. 2010 
Long-Term Incentive Plan on 
Behalf of AmeriGas Partners, L.P., 
Phantom Unit Grant Letter for 
Directors, dated January 8,2013. 

UGI 

UGI 

UGI 

UGI 

UGI 

UGI 

UGI 

AmeriGas 
Partners, L.P. 

AmeriGas 
Partners, L.P. 

AmeriGas 
Partaers, L.P. 

AmeriGas 
Partners, L.P. 

Regisfration Statement No. 333- 99.1 
186178(1/24/13) 

Form 10-Q (6/30/13) 10.1 

Form 10-Q (6/30/13) 

Form 10-K (9/30/09) 

Form 10-Q (12/31/09) 

Form 10-Q (12/31/09) 

Form 10-Q (3/31/13) 

Form 8-K (7/30/10) 

Form 10-K (9/30/10) 

Form 10-Q 
(3/31/13) 

Form 10-Q 
(3/31/13) 

10.2 

10.11 

10.1 

10.2 

10.14 

10.2 

10.10 

10.8 

10.7 
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10.14 ** 

** 10.15 

*10.16** 

*10.17** 

10.18^ 

10.19 ** 

10.20^ 

10.21 ** 

10.22 ** 

AmeriGas Propane, Inc. 2010 AmeriGas 
Long-Term Incentive Plan on Partners, L.P. 
Behalf of AmeriGas Partaers, L.P., 
Phantom Unit Grant Letter for 
Employees, dated December 3, 
2012. 
UGI Corporation 2004 Omnibus AmeriGas 
Equity Compensation Plan Partners, L.P. 
Nonqualified Stock Option Grant 
Letter for Mr. R. Paul Grady dated 
January 17,2012. 
UGI Corporation 2004 Omnibus 
Equity Compensation Plan 
Nonqualified Stock Option Grant 
Letter for Mr. Kirk R. Oliver dated 
October 1,2012. 

UGI Corporation 2004 Omnibus 
Equity Compensation Plan 
Performance Unit Grant Letter for 
Mr. Kirk R. Oliver dated October 
1,2012. 
Form of UGI Corporation 2004 UGI 
Omnibus Equity Compensation 
Plan Performance Unit Grant 
Letter for Ms. Monica M. 
Gaudiosi for tae 2010-12 
Performance Period, dated as of 
April 23, 2012. 
Form of UGI Corporation 2004 UGI 
Omnibus Equity Compensation 
Plan Performance Unit Grant 
Letter for Ms. Monica M. 
Gaudiosi for the 2011-13 
Performance Period, dated as of 
April 23, 2012. 
AmeriGas Propane, Inc. Non- AmeriGas 
Qualified Deferred Compensation Partners, L.P. 
Plan, as Amended and Restated 
effective January 1, 2012. 

AmeriGas Propane, Inc. Senior AmeriGas 
Executive Employee Severance Partners, L.P. 
Plan, as amended and restated as 
ofNovemberl5,2012. 

AmeriGas Propane, Inc. Executive AmeriGas 
Employee Severance Plan, as Partners, L.P. 
amended and restated as of 
November 15, 2012. 

Form 10-Q 
(12/31/12) 

Form 10-Q 
(3/31/12) 

10.1 

10.9 

Form 10-K 
(9/30/12) 

10.20 

Form 10-K 
(9/30/12) 

10.21 

Form 10-Q (3/31/12) 

Form 10-Q 
(6/30/13) 

Form 10-Q 
(6/30/13) 

10.5 

10.1 

10.2 
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10.23' 

10.24^ 

10.25** 

10.26-

10.27-

10.28-

10.29-

10.30** 

10.3L 

10.32-

AmeriGas Propane, Inc. 
Supplemental Executive 
Retirement Plan, as Amended and 
Restated effective January 1,2009. 
AmeriGas Propane, Inc. Executive 
Annual Bonus Plan, effective as of 
October 1,2006, as amended 
November 15,2012. 

UGI Utilities, Inc. Senior 
Executive Employee Severance 
Plan, as amended and restated as 
ofNovemberl6,2012. 

UGI Utilities, Inc. Executive 
Annual Bonus Plan, effective as of 
October 1,2006, as amended as of 
November 16,2012. 

UGI Corporation 2013 Omnibus 
Incentive Compensation Plan, 
Performance Unit Grant Letter for 
Employees, dated January 24, 
2013. 

UGI Corporation 2013 Omnibus 
Incentive Compensation Plan, 
Performance Unit Grant Letter for 
UGI Utilities Employees, dated 
January 24,2013. 

UGI Corporation 2004 Omnibus 
Equity Compensation Plan Stock 
Unit Grant Letter for Non 
Employee Directors, dated January 
8, 2013. 

UGI Coiporation 2004 Omnibus 
Equity Compensation Plan 
Nonqualified Stock Option Grant 
Letter for Non Employee 
Directors, dated January 8,2013. 

UGI Corporation 2004 Omnibus 
Equity Compensation Plan 
Nonqualified Stock Option Grant 
Letter for UGI Employees, dated 
January 1,2013. 

UGI Corporation 2004 Omnibus 
Equity Compensation Plan 
Nonqualified Stock Option Grant 
Letter for AmeriGas Employees, 
dated January 1,2013. 

AmeriGas 
Partners, L.P. 

AmeriGas 
Partners, L.P. 

Utilities 

Utilities 

UGI 

UtUities 

UGI 

UGI 

UGI 

UGI 

Form 10-Q (12/31/09) 

Form 10-Q (3/31/13) 

Form lO-Q (6/30/13) 

Form 10-Q (3/31/13) 

Form 10-Q (3/31/13) 

Form 10-Q (3/31/13) 

Form 10-Q 
(3/31/13) 

Form 10-Q (3/31/13) 

Form 10-Q 
(3/31/13) 

Form 10-Q 
(3/31/13) 

10.1 

10.9 

10.1 

10.2 

10.4 

10.3 

10.6 

10.7 

10.8 

10.9 
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10.33 ** 

* i n i A * * 40.34 

*10.35** 

10.36** 

*10.37** 

10.38** 

*10.39** 

10.40 ** 

10.41 ** 

10.42** 

10.43 

10.44 

UGI 

UGI Corporation 2004 Omnibus Utilities 
Equity Compensation Plan 
Nonqualified Stock Option Grant 
Letter for UGI Utilities 
Employees, dated January 1,2013. 

UGI Corporation 2013 Omnibus 
Incentive Compensation Plan 
Nonqualified Stock Option Grant 
Letter for Mr. John L. Walsh dated 
April 1,2013. 

UGI Corporation 2013 Omnibus 
Incentive Compensation Plan 
Performance Unit Grant Letter for 
Mr. John L. Walsh dated April 1, 
2013. 

UGI Corporation 2009 Deferral 
Plan As Amended and Restated 
Effective June 1,2010. 
Description of oral compensation 
arrangements for Messrs. Walsh, 
Hall, and Oliver and Ms. Gaudiosi. 
Description of oral compensation 
arrangement for Mr. Sheridan. 
Summary of Director 
Compensation as of October 1, 
2013. 

Form of Change in Confrol 
Agreement Amended and Restated 
as of May 12, 2008 for Mr. Walsh. 
Change in Control Agreement for 
Monica M. Gaudiosi dated as of 
AprU 23,2012. 
Change in Confrol Agreement for 
Kirk R. Oliver dated as of October 
1,2012. 
Trademark License Agreement 
dated April 19,1995 among UGI 
Corporation, AmeriGas, Inc., 
AmeriGas Propane, Inc., 
AmeriGas Partners, L.P. and 
AmeriGas Propane, L.P. 

Trademark License Agreement, AmeriGas 
dated April 19, 1995 among Partners, L.P. 
AmeriGas Propane, Inc., 
AmeriGas Farmers, L.P. and 
AmeriGas Propane, L.P. 

Form 10-Q 
(3/31/13) 

10.1 

Forni 10-Q (6/30/10) 10.1 

AmeriGas 
Partners, L.P. 

UGI 

UGI 

UGI 

UGI 

Form 10-K 
(9/30/13) 

Fortn 10-Q (6/30/08) 

Form 10-Q (6/30/12) 

Form 10-Q (12/31/12) 

Fonn 10-K (9/30/10) 

10.34 

10.3 

10.1 

10.1 

10.37 

Fonn 10-Q (12/31/10) 10.1 
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10.45 

10.46 

10.47 

10.48 

Credit Agreement dated as of 
June 21,2011, as amended 
through and including Amendment 
No. 4 thereto dated April 18,2012, 
by and among AmeriGas Propane, 
L.P., as Borrower, AmeriGas 
Propane, Inc., as a Guarantor, 
Wells Fargo Bank, National 
Association, as Adminisfrative 
Agent, Swingline Lender and 
Issuing Lender ("Agenf), Wells 
Fargo Securities, LLC, as Sole 
Lead Arranger and Sole Book 
Manager and the financial 
instimtions from time to time party 
thereto. 

Release of Liens and Termination 
of Security Documents dated as of 
November 6,2006 by and among 
AmeriGas Propane, Inc., Petrolane 
Incotporated, AmeriGas Propane, 
L.P., AmeriGas Propane Parts & 
Service, Inc. and Wachovia Bank, 
National Association, as Collateral 
Agent for the Secured Creditors, 
pursuant to the Intercreditor and 
Agency Agreement dated as of 
April 19,1995. 

Receivables Purchase Agreement, 
dated as of November 30,2001, as 
amended through and including 
Amendment No. 8 thereto dated 
AprU 22,2010 and Amendment 
No. 9 thereto dated August 26, 
2010, by and among UGI Energy 
Services, Inc., as servicer. Energy 
Services Funding Corporation, as 
seller. Market Sfreet Funding, 
LLC, as issuer, and PNC Bank, 
National Association, as 
administrator. 

Amendment No. 10, dated as of 
April 21, 2011 to Receivables 
Purchase Agreement, dated as of 
November 30, 2001 (as amended, 
supplemented or modified from 
time to time), by and among UGI 
Energy Services, Inc. as servicer, 
Energy Services Funding 
Corporation, as seller, Market 
Sfreet Funding LLC, as issuer, and 
PNC Bank, National Association, 
as administrator. 

AmeriGas Partners, L.P. Form 10-K (9/30/12) 10.39 

AmeriGas 
Partaers, L.P. 

Form 10-K (9/30/06) 10.3 

UGI Form 10-K 
(9/30/11) 

10.47 

UGI Form 8-K (4/21/11) 
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10.49 

10.50 

10.51 

10.52 

Amendment No. 11, dated as of 
April 19,2012, to Receivables 
Purchase Agreement, dated as of 
November 30,2001 (as amended, 
supplemented or modified from 
time to time), by and among UGI 
Energy Services, Inc., as servicer, 
Energy Services Funding 
Corporation, as seller, Market 
Sfreet Funding LLC, as issuer, and 
PNC Bank, National Association, 
as administrator. 

Amendment No. 12, dated as of 
April 18,2013, to Receivables 
Purchase Agreement, dated as of 
November 30,2001 (as amended, 
supplemented, or modified from 
time to time), by and among UGI 
Energy Services, Inc., as servicer, 
Energy Services Funding 
Corporation, as seller, Market 
Sfreet Funding LLC, as issuer, and 
PNC Bank, National Association, 
as adminisfrator. 

Credit Agreement, dated as of 
May 25,2011 among UGI 
Utilities, Inc., as borrower, and 
PNC Bank, National Association, 
as adminisfrative agent, Citizens 
Bank of Pennsylvania, as 
syndication agent, PNC Capital 
Markets LLC and RBS Citizens, 
N.A., as joint lead arrangers and 
joint bookrunners, and PNC Bank, 
National Association, Citizens 
Bank of Peimsylvania, Citibank, 
N.A., Credit Suisse AG, Cayman 
Islands Branch, JPMorgan Chase 
Bank, N.A., Wells Fargo Bank, 
National Association, The Bank of 
New York Mellon, and the other 
financial instimtions from time to 
time parties thereto. 

Purchase and Sale Agreement, 
dated as of November 30,2001, as 
amended through and including 
Amendment No. 3 thereto dated 
August 26, 2010, by and between 
UGI Energy Services, Inc. and 
Energy Services Funding 
Corporation. 

UGI Form 8-K 
(4/19/12) 

10.1 

UGI Form 8-K (4/18/13) 10.1 

Utilities Form 8-K (5/25/11) 10.1 

UGI Form 10-K (9/30/10) 10.47 
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10.53 

10.54 

10.55 

10.56 

Amended and Restated Credit 
Agreement, dated as of December 
18, 2012, among UGI Energy 
Services, Inc., as borrower, and 
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as 
adminisfrative agent, PNC Bank, 
National Association, as 
syndication agent, and Wells 
Fargo Bank, National Association, 
as documentation agent. 

Amendment No. 1, dated as of 
March 15, 2013, to Amended and 
Restated Credit Agreement, dated 
as of December 18,2012, among 
UGI Energy Services, Inc., as 
borrower, and JPMorgan Chase 
Bank, N.A., as administrative 
agent, PNC Bank, National 
Association, as syndication agent, 
and Wells Fargo Bank, National 
Association, as documentation 
agent. 

Senior Facilities Agreement dated 
March 16,2011 by and among 
AGZ Holding, as Parent and 
Borrower, Antargaz, as Borrower, 
BNP Paribas, Caisse Regionale de 
Credit Agricole Mutael de Paris et 
d'lle de France, Credit Lyonnais 
and Natixis, as Mandated Lead 
Arrangers and Bookrunners, 
Barclays Bank PLC, Banque 
Commerciale pour le Marche de 
I'Enfreprise and ING Belgium SA, 
Succmsale en France, as 
Mandated Lead Arrangers, 
Natixis, as Facility Agent and 
Security Agent, Banco Bilbao 
Vizcaya Argentaria, Credit du 
Nord, HSBC France, Credit Suisse 
Intemational, Bred Banque 
Populaire and Banque Palatine, as 
Arrangers and the Financial 
Instimtions named therein. 

Pledge of Financial Instmments 
Account relating to Financial 
Instruments held by AGZ Holding 
in Antargaz, dated March 16, 
2011, by and among AGZ 
Holding, as Pledgor, Natixis, as 
Security Agent and Bank Account 
Holder, and the Lenders, as 
Beneficiaries. 

UGI Form 8-K (12/18/12) 10.1 

UGI Form 10-Q (3/31/13) 10.1 

UGI Form 10-Q (3/31/11) 10.1 

UGI Form 10-Q (3/31/11) 10.2 
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10.57 

10.58 

10.59 

10.60 

10.61 

10.62 

10.63 

10.64 

10.65 

Pledge of Financial Instmments 
Account relating to Financial 
Instruments held by Antargaz in 
certain subsidiary companies, 
dated March 16, 2011, by and 
among Antargaz, as Pledgor, 
Natixis, as Security Agent and 
Bank Account Holder, and the 
Lenders, as Beneficiaries. 

Master Agreement for Assignment 
of Receivables dated March 16, 
2011 between AGZ Holding, as 
Assignor, Natixis, as Security 
Agent, and the Beneficiaries. 

Master Agreement for Assignment 
of Receivables dated March 16, 
2011 between Antargaz, as 
Assignor, Natixis, as Security 
Agent, and the Beneficiaries. 

First Demand Guarantee dated 
March 16, 2011 by UGI 
Corporation in favor of Natixis 
and the Lenders set forth in the 
Senior Facilities Agreement dated 
March 16, 2011. 

FSS Service Agreement No. 
79028 dated March 29, 2012 
between Columbia Gas 
Transmission, LLC and UGI 
UtUities, Inc. 

Firm Storage and Delivery Service 
Agreement (Rate GSS) dated 
July 1, 1996 between 
Transcontinental Gas Pipe Line 
Corporation and PG Energy. 
Service Agreement For Use Under 
Seller's GSS Rate Schedule dated 
July 9, 2012 between 
Transcontinental Gas Pipe Line 
Company, LLC and UGI Penn 
Nataral Gas, Inc. 

SST Service Agreement 
No. 79133 dated March 29, 2012 
between Columbia Gas 
Transmission, LLC and UGI 
Utilities, Inc. 

Letter Agreement, dated as of June 
10, 2013, amending SST Service 
Agreement No. 79133, dated 
March 29, 2012, between 
Columbia Gas Transmission, LLC 
and UGI Utilities, Inc. 

UGI Form 10-Q (3/31/11) 10.3 

UGI 

UGI 

UGI 

Form 10-Q (3/31/11) 

Form 10-Q (3/31/11) 

Form 10-Q (3/31/11) 

10.4 

10.5 

10.6 

UtUities 

Utilities 

UtUities 

Form 10-Q 
(3/31/12) 

Form 8-K 
(8/24/06) 

Form 10-Q (6/30/12) 

10.2 

10.8 

lO.I 

Utilities 

UtUities 

Form 10-Q 
(3/31/12) 

Form 10-Q (6/30/13) 

10.1 

10.3 
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10.66 

10.67 

10.68 

10.69 

10.70 

10.71 

FTS Service Agreement 
No. 46284 dated November 1, 
1993, as amended by that certain 
letter agreement dated May 5, 
2004, between Columbia 
Transmission Corporation and 
UGI Utilities, Inc. 

FTS Service Agreement No. 
46284, dated July 23,2013, 
between Columbia Gas 
Transmission, LLC and UGI 
Utilities, Inc. 

Contingent Residential Support 
Agreement dated as of January 12, 
2012, among Energy Transfer 
Partners, L.P., AmeriGas Finance 
LLC, AmeriGas Finance Corp., 
AmeriGas Farmers, L.P., and for 
certain limited purposes only, UGI 
Corporation. 

Amendment to Contingent 
Residual Support Agreement dated 
as of January 12, 2012, among 
Energy Transfer Partners, L.P., 
AmeriGas Finance LLC, 
AmeriGas Finance Corp., 
AmeriGas Partners, L.P., and for 
certain limited purposes only, UGI 
Corporation, dated as of March 20, 
2013. 

Unitholder Agreement, dated as of 
January 12,2012, by and among 
Heritage ETC, L.P., AmeriGas 
Partaers, L.P., and, for limited 
purposes. Energy Transfer 
Partaers, L,P., Energy Transfer 
Partaers GP, L.P., and Energy 
Transfer Equity, L.P. 

Term Loan Credit Agreement 
dated September 23,2013 by and 
between UGI Utilities, Inc. and 
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as 
adminisfrative agent. 

Utilities Form 10-Q 
(3/31/11) 

10.2 

Utilities 

AmeriGas 
Partners, L.P. 

Form 8-K (7/23/13) 

Form 8-K 
(1/11/12) 

10.1 

10.1 

AmeriGas 
Partners, L.P. 

Form 10-Q (3/31/13) 10.1 

AmeriGas 
Partaers, L.P. 

Form 8-K 
(1/11/12) 

10.2 

Utilities Form 8-K (9/23/13) 10.1 
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'10.72 

•10.73 

40.74 

14 

*21 
*23 

*31.1 

^31.2 

Amendment No. 13, dated as of 
October 1, 2013, to Receivables 
Purchase Agreement, dated as of 
November 30,2001 (as amended, 
supplemented, or modified from 
time to time), by and among UGI 
Energy Services, LLC, as servicer. 
Energy Services Funding 
Corporation, as seller. Market 
Sfreet Funding LLC, as issuer, and 
PNC Bank, National Association, 
as administrator. 

Amendment No. 4 dated as of 
October 1,2013 to Purchase and 
Sale Agreement dated as of 
November 30,2001 by and 
between UGI Energy Services, 
LLC and Energy Services Funding 
Corporation. 

Amendment No. 14, dated as of 
October 1,2013, to Receivables 
Purchase Agreement, dated as of 
November 30,2001 (as amended, 
supplemented, or modified from 
time to time), by and among UGI 
Energy Services, LLC, as servicer, 
Energy Services Funding 
Corporation, as seller. Market 
Sfreet Funding LLC, as issuer, and 
PNC Bank, National Association, 
as administrator. 

Code of Ethics for principal 
executive, financial and 
accounting officers. 
Subsidiaries ofthe Regisfrant. 
Consent of 
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. 
Certification by the Chief 
Executive Officer relating to the 
Regisfrant's Report on Form 10-K 
for tae fiscal year ended 
September 30, 2013 pursuant to 
Section 302 ofthe Sarbanes-Oxley 
Act of 2002. 

Certification by the Chief 
Financial Officer relating to the 
Regisfrant's Report on Form 10-K 
for the fiscal year ended 
September 30, 2013 pursuant to 
Section 302 ofthe Sarbanes-Oxley 
Act of 2002. 

UGI Form 10-K (9/30/03) 14 
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*101.INS 
*101.SCH 

*10I.CAL 

* 101.DEF 

*101.LAB 

* 101 .PRE 

Certification by the Chief 
Executive Officer and tae Chief 
Financial Officer relating to the 
Regisfrant's Report on Form 10-K 
for the fiscal year ended 
September 30,2013, pursuant to 
Section 906 ofthe Sarbanes-Oxley 
Act of 2002. 

XBRL.Instance 
XBRL Taxonomy Extension 
Schema 
XBRL Taxonomy Extension 
Calculation Linkbase 
XBRL Taxonomy Extension 
Definition Linkbase 
XBRL Taxonomy Extension 
Labels Linkbase 

XBRL Taxonomy Extension 
Presentation Linkbase 

Filed herewith. 
As required by Item 15(a)(3), this exhibit is identified as a compensatory plan or arrangement. 
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SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to tae requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of tae Secmities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused tais Report to 
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. 

Date: December 16,2013 

UGI CORPORATION 

By: /s/Kirk R. Oliver 

Kirk R. Oliver 
ChiefFinancial Officer 

Pursuant to the requirements ofthe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Report has been signed below on December 16, 2013 , by the 
following persons on behalf of the Regisfrant in the capacities indicated. 

Signature Title 

/s/John L.Walsh 

John L. Walsh 
Chief Executive Officer 
(Principal Executive Officer) and Director 

Isl Kirk R. Oliver 

Kirk R. Oliver ChiefFinancial Officer (Principal Financial Officer) 

Isl Davinder S. Athwal 

Davinder S. Athwal 

Vice President — Accounting and Financial Confrol, 
Chief Risk Officer (Principal Accounting Officer) 

Isl Lon R. Greenberg 

Lon R. Greenberg 

Isl Richard W. Gochnauer 

Richard W. Gochnauer 

Isl Frank S. Hermance 

Frank S. Hermance 

Isl Emest E. Jones 

Emest E. Jones 

Isl Aime Pol 

Arme Pol 

Isl M. Shawn Puccio 

M. Shawn Puccio 

/s/Marvin O. Schlanger 

Marvin O. Schlanger 

/s/Roger B. Vincent 

Chairman and Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Roger B. Vincent 
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UGI CORPORATION 
INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES 
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Management's Annual Report on Intemal Control over Financial Reporting F-3 

Financial Statements: 

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm F-5 

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of September 30. 2013 and 2012 F-6 

Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended September 30. 2013.2012 and 2011 F-7 

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the vears ended September 30. 2013. 2012 and 2011 F-8 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the vears ended September 30. 2013. 2012 and 2011 F-9 

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity for tae vears ended September 30, 2013. 2012 and 2011 F-10 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements F-11 

Financial Statement Schedules: 

For the years ended September 30,2013, 2012 and 2011: 

j _ — Condensed Financial Information of Registrant ("Parent Companv) S-1 

n — Valuation and Oualifying Accounts S-4 

We have omitted all other financial statement schedules because the required information is either (l)not present; (2) not present in amounts 
sufficient to require submission ofthe schedule; or (3) included elsewhere in the financial statements or related notes. 
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Report of Management 

Financial Statements 

The Company's consolidated financial statements and other financial information contained in this Annual Report are prepared by 
management, which is responsible for their faimess, integrity and objectivity. The consolidated financial statements and related information were 
prepared in accordance wita accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and include amounts that are based on 
management's best judgments and estimates. 

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors is composed of three members, none of whom is an employee of the Company. This 
Committee is responsible for (i) overseeing the financial reporting process and the adequacy of intemal confrol and (ii) monitoring the 
independence and performance ofthe Company's independent registered public accounting firm and intemal auditors. The Committee is also 
responsible for maintaining direct channels of communication among the Board of Directors, management, and bota the independent registered 
public accounting firm and the intemal auditors. 

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, om independent registered public accounting firm, is engaged to perform audits of our consolidated 
financial statements. These audits are performed in accordance with the standards of tae Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United 
States). Our independent registered public accounting firm was given imresfricted access to all financial records and related data, including 
minutes of all meetings of the Board of Directors and committees of the Board. The Company believes taat all representations made to tiie 
independent registered public accounting firm during their audits were valid and appropriate. 

Management's Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal confrol over financial reporting for tae Company, as such 
term is denned in Rule 13a-15(f) of tae Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. In order to evaluate the effectiveness of intemal confrol 
over financial reporting, as required by Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, management has conducted an assessment, including 
testing, ofthe Company's intemal control over financial reporting, using the criteria in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (1992), issued 
by the Conimittee of Sponsoring Organizations ofthe Treadway Commission ("COSO Framework"). 

Internal confrol over financial reporting refers to the process, designed under the supervision and with the participation of management, 
including our Chief Executive Officer and our ChiefFinancial Officer, and effected by the Company's Board of Directors, to provide reasonable, 
but not absolute, assurance regarding tae reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for extemal purposes in 
accordance wita accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("GAAP") and includes policies and procedures that, 
among other things, provide reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded and that fransactions are executed in accordance with 
management's authorization and are properly recorded to permit the preparation of reliable financial information. 

Because of its inherent limitations, intemal confrol over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of 
any evaluation of effectiveness to fiitare periods are subject to the risk taat confrols may become inadequate due to changing conditions, or tae 
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal confrol over financial reporting, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility taat a material misstatement ofthe Company's annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on 
a timely basis. 

We did not maintain effective confrols over our accounting for commodity derivative instruments. Specifically, confrols were not designed 
effectively to provide reasonable assmance that commodity derivative instruments were accounted for in accordance with GAAP. The material 
weakness resulted in errors in the recording of certain commodity derivative fransactions as cash flow hedges. As a result of the error, tae 
Company rtiisstated otaer comprehensive income, non-utility revenues and non-utility cost of sales, requiring the Company to restate its financial 
statements for the fiscal quarters ended March 31, 2013, June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011 and revise its financial statements for tae fiscal 
years ended September 30, 2012 and 2011 and the quarters ended June 30, 2013, December 31, 2012, and March 31, 2012. Additionally, this 
material weakness could result in misstatements of the aforementioned accounts and disclosures taat would result in a material misstatement of 
tiie consolidated financial statements tiiat would not be prevented or detected. 

Because of tais material weakness, management concluded that the Company did not maintain effective intemal confrol over financial 
reporting aS of September 30,2013 based on criteria in the COSO Framework. 
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The Company's independent registered public accounting firm, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, has issued its report on the effectiveness of 
the Company's intemal control over financial reporting as of September 30,2013 , which appears herein. 

Isl John L. Walsh 
Chief Executive Officer 

Isl Kirk R. Oliver 
ChiefFinancial Officer 

Isl Davinder S. Athwal 
Chief Accoimting Officer 
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of UGI Corporation: 

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of income, of comprehensive 
income, of changes in equity and of cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of UGI Corporation and its 
subsidiaries at September30, 2013 and 2012 , and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each ofthe three years in the period 
ended September 30, 2013 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. In addition, in our 
opinion, the financial statement schedules listed in tae index appearing under Item 15 (a)(2) present fairly, in all material respects, the 
information set forth therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated financial statements. Also in our opinion, tae Company did 
not maintain, in all material respects, effective intemal control over financial reporting as of September 30,2013 , based on criteria established in 
Internal Control - Integrated Framework (1992) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO 
1992) because a material weakness in intemal confrol over financial reporting related to commodity derivative accounting existed as of that date. 
A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal confrol over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. The 
material weakness referred to above is described in the accompanying Management's Annual Report on Intemal Control over Financial 
Reporting. We considered this material weakness in determining the namre, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the 
September 30, 2013 consolidated financial statements, and om opinion regarding the effectiveness ofthe Company's intemal confrol over 
financial reporting does not affect our opinion on those consolidated financial statements. The Company's management is responsible for these 
financial statements and financial statement schedules, for maintaining effective intemal confrol over financial reporting and for its assessment 
of the effectiveness of intemal confrol over financial reporting included in management's report referred to above. Our responsibility is to 
express opinions on these financial statements, on the fmancial statement schedules, and on the Company's intemal confrol over financial 
reporting based on om integrated audits. We conducted om audits in accordance with tae standards of the Public Company Accounting 
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective intemal control over financial reporting was maintained in all 
material respects. Our audits ofthe financial statements included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall 
financial statement presentation. Om audit of intemal control over fmancial reporting included obtaining an understanding of intemal confrol 
over fmancial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of 
intemal confrol based on the assessed risk. Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the 
circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions. 

A company's intemal confrol over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of 
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for extemal purposes in accordance wita generally accepted accounting principles. 
A company's intemal confrol over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records taat, in 
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect tae transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance 
that fransactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of flnancial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditares of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and 
directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or 
disposition ofthe company's assets taat could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Because of its inherent limitations, intemal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of 
any evaluation of effectiveness to fiitare periods are subject to the risk that confrols may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or 
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Isl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 
December 16,2013 
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Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) 

Total UGI Corporation stockholders' equity 

^ ^ ^ ^ ^ l ^ l g l e r e s t s ^ p r m c i p a l l Y in-AmeriGas Partaers 
Total equity 

^ ^ ^ ^ | o | a ^ | ^ i t i e s - ^ d equity ' $ 

8.4 
. .(32.3) 

2,492.5 
1;055.4 

3,547.9 

' 10,008.8 $ 

(55.2) 
(28.7) 

2,229.8 
- 1,085.6: 

3,315.4 

9,676.9-̂  

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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UGI CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLHDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME 

(Millions of dollars, except per share amounts) 

Year Ended September 30, 

2013 2012 2011 

/ - ' - ' y : ^ •• • : y ' \ ^ A A : y ' ' \ - ; " : ' y . ' ' • . - : : ' - A . ^ ' y ' • ' ' • / : . ' ' ^ ' ' • • ^ ^ A . " ' - / - ^ r '^- - " v ^ ' ' " ; / " ^ ^ ' - / ^ ^ ^ ^ ' ^ ^ v ' ^ - ; ' ^ ^ 

Revenues 
V"Utifities>/,•/.••'-:">• _•:'•-.;-'-'r^- 'r .•••\y: A'y 

Non-utility 

Costs and Expenses 
Cpk of sales (dxcludingHepreciationShown below):; 

Utilities 

: '-Ncm%tiIity"V-' ''''̂ •:Ay'̂ '̂''-̂ '̂ A'ŷ - MA--''A'-'^':'''A Z-:^ 

Operating and adminisfrative expenses 

'Lftilitytaxeis'0th6r;tiiari'iiicdme=t£ii^ '''V'^^''''',:'--^''''-' y '̂-̂ '-'''-
'Depreciation 

;-'ArhbrtizatK)nv-; •;̂ 'V }c^-'' \A.A:'• ':.>'-'̂ '':.'̂ ":-0^~i'-'-\̂ '';''̂ -\'7;'Vv-
Other income, net 

Operating income 
Lqss;fi'<mî equSty}investee :̂V;'y;ci-;;̂ ^ .,'-^4'-"; "-'"'..:•'• 
Loss on extinguishments of debt 
Interest expense 
Income before income taxes 

Income taxes 

Net income 
(Deduct net income) add net loss attributable to noncontroiling interests, principally 

in AmeriGas Partaers 

Net income atfributable to UGI Corporation 

Eamings per common share atfributable to UGI Corporation stockholders: 

Basic 

Diluted 

Average common shares outstanding (thousands): 

;.'-^-'"'B£ îC/;: /V;'- '•̂ '̂ ':;"7 '̂'"':/"•̂ •'•"';:>V:̂ '̂ '̂',̂ v '̂•'-̂ ^ '"->'•"> ::f':•••''A. 'A î:'--

Diluted 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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:̂ ''̂ ;V7 ]̂:9^ '̂">;̂ y,:r-

466.0 

^;^?:3i858;^'v''-'^v 
1,692.0 

lA-̂  %:^J^U,y'.;A:-
301.4 

^.':v.i:6fev;vvs-
(32.8) 

•^rr^^^i&M'rM-
831.1 

^-,:x^v(d.4j^-;,:;,:-'; 

— 
(240.3) 
590.4 

(162.8) 

427.6 

(149.5) 

278.1 $ 

2.44 $ 

2.41 $ 

^;c;'i^1^^&IU:4':; 

115,521 

-\r-- '88^5r\$^r 
5,638.8 

:';:?:̂ :6,521;3;.:'v^v' / 

459.1 

^•;--3,^O;P^-^H:' :^ ' 

1,591.1 

;^^••H-^a7fe^?5;sv 
263.2 

;:-V;:/^:'5L8;:^:fis 

(39.8) 

:::V;;5,982;7̂ ;i>k-A>̂ ^ 
538.6 

-:;:>vt^43r;v=;-
(13.3) 

(220.4) 

304.6 
(106.9) 

197.7 

- 12.5 
210.2 $ 

1.87 $ 

1.85 -$ 

''iAA^^'-^^A-M 
113,432 

yvrlyl35:5 
4,955.4 

•^v 6,090.9 

678.5 
.:;:;J''3jai04;2-; 

1,267.0 

A X ^ L ^ A M S ^ 

201.0 

\;v^;b,.A:26.7^•^• 

(45.5) 
i5:;;K5^g;5:; 

642.4 
'>;V-,^<Q^)^ 

(38.1) 
(138.0) 

465.4 
(145.4) 

320.0 

(74.6) 

245.4 

2.20 

2.17 

^•;;g:fi^l^74"; 

112,944 
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UGI CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSFVE INCOME 

(Millions of dollars) 

Year Ended September 30, 

- " ^ ' f t . 

Net income 
W4aiirs™s#);dn'de!jyative'instruments (net of tax of $(7.2), $29.3 and $5.0, 
fespecti^ely;^ i^ ^1 1 "̂̂ ' . 
Reclassifications of net losses (gams) on derivative instmments (net of tax of 
$(10.3), $(14 6) and $1 5, respectively) 

S^cy-fraosMt^on adjustments (net of tax of $(6.6), $2.8 and $4.5, 

Foreign currency gams and (losses) on long-term infra-company transactions (net of 
tax of $(0.8), $0.7 and $0 4, respectively) 
^^^^^8^ofitax?o5$(3?8),~$6ro.and $(0.1), re'spectively) 
Reclassifications of benefit plans actaarial losses and prior service costs to net 
income (net of tax of $(0 8), $(0 5) and $(0 4), respectively) 

Comprehensive income 

Comprehensive income atfributable to UGI Corporation 

ict^ianprehdisive mcome) add comprehensive loss attnbutable to 
^^^,^priippaliyin AmeriGas^Partaers 

$ 

"-

$ 

2013 

427.6 

14.4 

53 5 

28.8 

32 
5/3 

1.2 

106.4 

534.0 

: (192.3)-

341.7 

2012 

Revised (See 
-Note 3) 

$ 197 7 

(105.4) 

56.3 

(20.6) 

(17) 

0.7 

^ : (82.2) 
1155 

'̂  " ;38.6, 
$ 154.1 

$ 

— 

1 

2011 

Revised (See t ' 
Note 3) . " ' 

320 0 

~3.9 

(19.0) 

(14.0) 

(0 8) 

, dl/ 

06 

- (29.-2): 

290 8 

• . (69.ir 

221.7 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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UGI CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

(Millions of dollars) 

Year Ended September 30, 

2013 2012 2011 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATU^G ACTIVITIES 
Net income 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities: 

Depreciation and amortization 
Deferred income taxes, net 
Provision for uncollectible accounts 
Stock-based compensation expense 

ftv=.% ;frUnrealized gains on derivative instruments 
Loss on extinguishments of debt 

• rrOther, net 
Net change in: 

Accoxmts receivable and accrued utility revenues 
Inventories 
Utility deferred fuel costs, net of ch^ges in imsettied derivatives 
Accounts payable 
Otaer current assets , , ' . ,,- . 
Otaer current liabilities 

Net cash provided by operating activities 
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Expenditares for property, plant and equipment 
Acquisitions of businesses, net of cash acquired 
(Increase) decrease in restricted cash. 
Other, net 

Net cash used by investing activities 
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Dividends on UGI Common Stock 

Distributions on AmeriGas Partners publicly held Common Units 
Issuances of debt 
Repayments of debt 

Receivables Facility net borrowings (repayments) 
Increase (decrease) in bank loans 
Issuances of UGI Common Stock 
Issuances of AmeriGas Partners Common Units 
Otaer 

Net cash (used) provided by financing activities 

Cash and cash equivalents increase (decrease) 

Cash''andeasli,equivalCTitl; v'̂ '-;-;,̂ ;:̂ '-:̂ ;],̂  --yy --̂ Â A '-/:yy-^-t' 'A: 'A ^'\A'^-

End of year 

7" Beginning of year '':"'' "' A • \''-- •''''•••": 

Increase (decrease) 

S U P P L E M E N T A L C A S H H M ' l t e l ^ ^ ; ^ -

Cash paid for: 

Interest • '• ' 

Revised (See 
NoW3)' 

Revised (See 
Note-3)- ' 

427^6 ^$ 197-;7--"$ '320:0 

$ 

$ 

$ 

363.1 
48.7 
30.2 ' 
17.6 
(0.2) 

— 

' (41.4) 

(110.8)" ' ' ^ 
4.6 

- -9.3' ' ' 
38.7 

. 36.3 
(22.2) 

" '"801.5 '"'"-

(486.0) 
(78.9) 
(5.3) 
16.9 

(553.3) 

(125.8) 
(226.5) 
227.1 

(168.7) 
30.0 
32.3 
36.4 

— 

9.1 

(186.1) 

V;H--V;:^-X3^^^:>^;^ 

69.4 $ 

389.3 $ 
.'.V{r319.9;;;:j;y:. 

69.4 $ 

" 315;0 ' 
90.2 

" ^ '26.5 
14.5 

' (17.2) 
13.3 

(11.0) . : 

- -'•65:-5'- • 
89.2 

• .•^(8.2)- . . 
(78.7) 

' - :(12.5)--. ^ -
23.4 

•-^ ' '707:7'-- ' '^ 

(339.4) 
(1,580.5) 

14.2 
1.2 

(1,904.5) 

(119.1) 
(181.7) 

1,550.2 
(299.9) 
(14.3) 
41.7 
23.2 

276.6 
1.8 

1,278.5 

mtm)̂ r-::.̂ -
81.4 $ 

319.9 $ 
;-:v2585:^-^'V: 

81.4 $ 

'- • 227.7 
91.5 

• 2Q.0 

15.6 
(19,6) 
38.1 

L 4 . 3 

' - ' (66.0) 
(40.7) 
12.8 
19.2 

---...- (1.9) 
(66.3) 

'•-'^ "'554.7 

(360.7) 
(52.5) 
17.6 

(19.8) 

(415.4) 

(113.8) 
(93.7) 

1,480.6 
(1,383.6) 

2.2 
(74.6) 
27.3 

— 
3.5 

(152.1) 

:fA>0mA)̂  
(22.2) 

238.5 

; ;; m?: 
(22.2) 

243;6 V $ 168:8 $ 135.0 



Income taxes 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 

60.0 $ 33.3 $ 48,6 
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UGI CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

(Millions of dollars, except per share amounts) 

Year Ended September 30, 

2013 2012 2011 
4-'c '•̂ R ŝfed j(See v'̂ î'/ ̂ 3teVfeecl;(S&e-; 
^yA:''^.Mpte^^' '̂ ' r: >-,:\ • :̂ N6t̂ 3y:-:< i 

Common stock, without par value 

•'•;B^atice,,beigjiiiring'bfyear'/^''/:V'r^:'; 
Common Stock issued; 

,V-\ Einployed^^anddirectprplans ,-.v-/ '"'"':••-"; ^"-/K 
Dividend reinvestment plan 

Excess tax benefits reaUzedontequity-basedc^ 
Stock-based compensation expense 
Adjustments to reflect change m ownership of AmeriGas Partners, net of tax 

Balance, end of year 
Retained earnings 

Balance, beginning of year 
Net income attributable to UGI Corporation 
Cash dividends on Common Stock ($1,105, $1.06 and $1.02 per share, respectively) 

: Baiahce, end of year 

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) 
; Bal^ce^begiiining of year 

Net gains (losses) on derivative instruments, net of tax 
Reclassification of net losses (gains) on derivative instruments, net of tax 
Benefit plans, principally actaarial gains (losses), net of tax 
Reclassification of benefit plans actuarial losses and prior service costs, net of tax, to net 
income 
Adjustments to reflect change in ownership of AmeriGas Partners, net of tax 
Foreign currency gains (losses) on long-term intra-company fransactions, net of tax 
Foreign currency translation adjustments, net of tax 

Bailee, end of year 
Treasury stock 
;V:Bal^nce,'hegirmi!ig)Dji^^ 

Common Stock issued: 
/vuEmpktyee^-andi^^tbr^l^ 

Dividend reinvestment plan 
: Reacquired common Stock r empldyieel'£thd ̂  

Balance, end of year 

Total UGI Corp6rattonstQckhoIde«'^fequit^ ^ : - / ; : ; 
Noncontroiling interests 

.^Balance, begirming^pfye^\-''-''V>- •:„//'"•';' r'-'-,':-;*.V '̂<.>"'̂ - ''̂ '-' ^ ^̂̂  ••/, '•'••.'' 
Net income (loss) attributable to nonconfrolling interests, principally in AmeriGas 
Partners 
Net gains (losses) on deiriyativeinstmriiehts, 

Reclassification of net losses (gains) on derivative instmments 

:; Dividends and diStiibutioiiS^": ; / X v ' r \ 
AmeriGas Partners Common Unit public offering 
AmeriGas PairtaersQpnmionTJnits issued for H<̂ ^ 
Adjustments to reflect change in ownership of AmeriGas Partners 

^;"Gtaer-,' ^:-/~ 
Balance, end of year 

•v^sim-S: 

re'^29.7/X;:/ 
1.4 

9.9 

.937;^:?/$? 

/i3;6::'5;; 
2.2 

-XL8">-;:^' 

8.3 
194.4 

^906:1? 

A H ^ ^ 

2.2 
^.^3:8; 

10.6 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

s 

1,208.1 

1,156.0 
278.1 

(125.8) 

1,308.3 

(55.2) 
9.8 

15.3 
5.3 

1.2 
— 

3.2 
28.8 

8.4 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

1,157.7 

1,064.9 
210.2 

(119.1) 

1,156.0 

(1-0) 
(45.6) 
22.6 

(11.5) 

0.7 
1.9 

~ (1-7) 
(20.6) 

(55.2) 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

937.4 

933.3 

245.4 
(113.8) 

1,064.9 

22.8 
(8.7) 
(I.O) 
0.1 

0.6 
— 

, (0.8) 
(14.0) 

(i.O) 

^MMf^z 'W^:M ^8;2):; 

$ 

•«h4 

A^Ar'y453/Am'C 
0.8 

(39.6) 
(32.3) $ 

:::;:2^^2;5':-:''$;;: 

;.:^;^/.;;;6,4..-;-^'/ 
0.9 

(8.2) 

(28.7) $ 

;v:t2,229:84e;SV'-̂  

:A-i'vM^.' 
0.7 
— 

(27.8) 
;X;l^!(v5v 

:I;O85:$K;X^ :213.();;$^ : 237^4-

$ 

149.5 
.'ryyvAlfyAyA 

38.2 

: (m0-yy~ 
— 

— 

.. :4a-:...'/':'• 
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Note 1 — Nature of Operations 

UGI Corporation ("UGI") is a holding company taat, through subsidiaries and affiliates, disfributes, stores, fransports and markets energy 
products and related services. In the United States, we (1) are the general partner and own limited partaer interests in a retail propane marketing 
and disfribution business; (2) own and operate nataral gas and elecfric disfribution utilities; (3) own all or a portion of elecfricity generation 
facilities; (4) own and operate an energy marketing, midstream infi^stmcture, storage and energy services business; and (5) own and operate 
heating, ventilation, air conditioning and electrical confracting businesses. Intemationally, we market and disfribute propane and other liquefied 
pefroleum gases ("LPG") in Europe and China. We refer to UGI and its consolidated subsidiaries collectively as "the Company" or "we." 

We conduct a domestic propane marketing and disfribution business through AmeriGas Partaers, L.P. ("AmeriGas Partners"), a publicly 
fraded limited partaership, its principal operating subsidiary AmeriGas Propane, L.P. ("AmeriGas OLP") and, prior to its merger with AmeriGas 
OLP Oil July 1, 2013, AmeriGas OLP's principal operating subsidiary Heritage Operating, L.P. ("HOLP"). In addition, from January 12, 2012, 
through the date of its merger with and into AmeriGas OLP in August 2012, we also conducted business through AmeriGas OLP's operating 
subsidiary, Titan Propane LLC ("Titan LLC"). HOLP and Titan LLC (collectively, "Heritage Propane") were acquired on January 12, 2012, 
from Energy Transfer Partaers, L.P. ("ETP") (see Note 5 for additional information about the acquisition of Heritage Propane). AmeriGas OLP 
along witii HOLP and Titan LLC (prior to their mergers witii and into AmeriGas OLP) are referred to herein as the "Operating Partnership." 
AmeriGas Partaers and AmeriGas OLP are Delaware limited partaerships. UGl's wholly owned second-tier subsidiary AmeriGas Propane, Inc. 
(the "General Partaer") serves as the general partner of AmeriGas Partners and AmeriGas OLP. We refer to AmeriGas Partners and its 
subsidiaries togetaer as "the Partaership" and the General Partner and its subsidiaries, including the Partnership, as "AmeriGas Propane." At 
September 30,2013 , the General Partaer held a 1% general partaer interest and 25.3% limited partner interest in AmeriGas Partaers, and held an 
effective 27.1% ownership interest in AmeriGas OLP. Our limited partaership interest in AmeriGas Partaers comprises 23,756,882 AmeriGas 
Partaers Common Units ("Common Units"). The remaining 73.7% interest in AmeriGas Partners comprises 47,000,295 Common Units held by 
tiie public and 22,067,362 Common Units held by a subsidiary of ETP as a resuh ofthe acquisition of Heritage Propane. 

Our wholly owned subsidiary, UGI Enterprises, Inc. ("Enterprises"), through subsidiaries, conducts (1) an LPG disfribution business in 
France, Belgium, tae Netheriands and Luxembourg ("Antargaz"); (2) an LPG distribution business in cenfral, nortaem 
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and eastem Emope ("Flaga"); (3) an LPG distribution business in the United Kingdom ("AvantiGas"); and (4) an LPG disfribution business in 
the Nantong region of China. We refer to our foreign LPG operations collectively as "UGI Intemational." 

Enterprises, through UGI Energy Services, LLC (which was formerly known as UGI Energy Services, Inc. prior to its merger with and 
into UGI Energy Services, LLC effective October 1, 2013) and its subsidiaries conduct an energy marketing, midsfream infrastructure, storage, 
natural gas gathering, nataral gas production and energy services business primarily in the Mid-Atiantic region of Uie United States. In addition, 
UGI Energy Services, LLC's wholly owned subsidiary, UGI Development Company ("UGID"), owns all or a portion of electricity generation 
facilities principally located in Pennsylvania. These businesses are referred to herein collectively as "Midsfream & Marketing." UGI Energy 
Services, LLC subsequent to the merger and UGI Energy Services, Inc. prior to the merger are referred to herein as "Energy Services." 
Enterprises also conducts heating, ventilation, air-conditioning, refiigeration and electrical confracting businesses in tae Mid-Atlantic region 
through first-tier subsidiaries. 

Our nataral gas and electric distribution utility businesses are conducted through our wholly owned subsidiary, UGI Utilities, Inc. ("UGI 
Utilities"), and its subsidiaries UGI Penn Natural Gas, Inc. ("PNG") and UGI Cenfral Penn Gas, Inc. ("CPG"). UGI Utilities, PNG and CPG own 
and operate natural gas disfribution utilities in eastem, northeastem and cenfral Permsylvania and in a portion of one Maryland county. UGI 
Utilities also owns and operates an elecfric disfribution utUity in northeastem Peimsylvania ("Elecfric Utility"). UGI Utilities' natural gas 
disfribution utility is referred to as "UGI Gas." UGI Gas, PNG and CPG are collectively referred to as "Gas Utility." Gas Utility is subject to 
regulation by the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission ("PUC") and, with respect to a small service territory in one Maryland county, tiie 
Maryland Public Service Commission, and Elecfric Utility is subject to regulation by the PUC. Gas UtUity and Electric Utility are collectively 
referred to as "UtUities." 

Note 2 — Significant Accounting Policies 

Basis of Presentation 

Our consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America ("GAAP"). 

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses and costs. These estimates are based on management's knowledge of current events, 
historical experience and various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Accordingly, actaal results may 
be different from taese estimates and assumptions. 

Certain prior-year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current-year presentation. In addition, see Note 3 regarding the effects 
of revisions on previously issued financial statements. 

Principles of Consolidation 

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of UGI and its controlled subsidiary companies which, except for the 
Partaership, are majority owned. We report tae general public's and ETP's interests in the Partnership, and outside ownership interests in other 
consolidated but less than 100% -owned subsidiaries, as nonconfrolling interests. We eliminate all significant intercompany accounts and 
fransactions when we consolidate. Entities in which we do not have confrol but have significant influence over operating and financial policies 
are accounted for by the equity method. Undisfributed net eamings of our equity investees included in consolidated retained eamings were not 
material at September 30,2013 . Investments in business entities that are not publicly fraded and in which we hold less than 20% of voting rights 
are accounted for using the cost method. Such investments are recorded in other assets and totaled $82.0 and $80.0 at September 30, 2013 and 
2012 , respectively (including $16.4 and $20.0 , respectively, associated with om approximate 3.5% interest in a private equity partnership that 
invests in renewable energy companies). Undivided interests in nataral gas production assets and an elecfricity generation facility are 
consolidated on a proportionate basis. 

Effects of Regulation 

UGI Utilities accounts for the financial effects of regulation in accordance with the Financial Accounting Standards Board's ("FASB's") 
guidance in Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") 980 related to regulated entities whose rates are designed to recover the costs of 
providing service. In accordance wiUi this guidance, incurred costs and estimated fiitare expenditares that would otherwise be charged to 
expense are capitalized and recorded as regulatory assets when it is probable that the incurred costs or estimated futme expenditares will be 
recovered in rates in the futare. Similarly, we recognize regulatory liabilities when it is probable that regulators will require customer refund! 
tarough future rates or when revenue is collected from customers for 
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expenditares that have not yet been incurred. Generally, regulatory assets are amortized into expense and regulatory liabilities are amortized into 
income over the period authorized by tae regulator. 

For additional information regarding the effects of rate regulation on our utility operations, see Note 9 . 

Fair Value Measurements 

We apply fair value measmements on a recurring basis to certain assets and liabilities, principally our commodity, foreign currency and 
interest rate derivative instmments. Assets that are not measured at fair value on a recurring basis but are subject to fair value measurements 
under certain circumstances principally comprise om cost and equity method investments and long-lived assets that are written down to fair 
value when they are impaired. Fair value in GAAP is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to fransfer a liability (an 
exit price) in an orderly fransaction between market participants at the measurement date. Fair value is based upon assumptions that market 
participants would use when pricing an asset or liability, including assumptions about risk and risks inherent in valuation techniques and inputs 
to valuations. This includes not only the credit standing of counterparties and credit enhancements but also the impact of our own 
nonperformance risk on our liabilities. Fair value measmements require that we assume that the fransaction occurs in the principal market for tae 
asset or liability or, in tae absence of a principal market, the most advantageous market for tae asset or liability (the market for which the 
reporting entity would be able to maximize the amount received or minimize the amount paid). We evaluate tae need for credit adjustments to 
our derivative instrument fair values in accordance with the requirements noted above. Such adjustments were not material to tiie fair values of 
our derivative instmments. 

We use tae following fair value hierarchy, which prioritizes tae inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value into three broad 
levels; 

• Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities taat we have the ability to access at tae 
measurement date. Instruments categorized in Level 1 consist of our exchange-fraded commodity futares and option confracts and non 
exchange-traded commodity futures and non exchange-fraded electricity forward confracts whose underlying is identical to an exchange-
fraded confract. 

• Level 2 — Inputs other taan quoted prices included witain Level 1 that are either directly or indirectiy observable for tae asset or liability, 
including quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive 
markets, inputs other tiian quoted prices that are observable for tae asset or liability, and inputs taat are derived from observable market data 
by correlation or other means. Instmments categorized in Level 2 include non-exchange fraded derivatives such as over the counter 
commodity price swap and option confracts, interest rate swaps and interest rate protection agreements, foreign currency forward confracts, 
financial fransmission rights ("FTRs") and non exchange-fraded electricity forward and capacity swap confracts that do not qualify for Level 
1. 

Level 3 — Unobservable inputs for tae asset or liability including sitaations where there is little, if any, market activity for the asset or 
liability. We did not have any derivative financial instmments categorized as Level 3 at September 30,2013 or 2012 . 

The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets (Level 1) and tae lowest priority to unobservable data 
(Level 3). In some cases, the inputs to measure fair value might fall into different levels ofthe fair value hierarchy. The lowest level input that is 
significant to a fair value measmement in its entirety determines tiie applicable level in the fair value hierarchy. Assessing tae significance of a 
particular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires judgment, considering factors specific to the asset or liability. See Note 17 
for additional information on fair value measurements. 

Derivative Instruments 

We account for derivative instmments and hedging activities in accordance with guidance provided by the FASB which requires that all 
derivative instmments, whether designated in hedging relationships or not, be recognized as either assets or liabilities and measured at fair value 
unless the derivative instmments qualify for the normal purchase and sale exemption under GAAP. The accounting for changes in fair value 
depends upon the purpose ofthe derivative instmment and whether it is designated and qualifies for hedge accounting. 

A substantial portion of our derivative financial instmments other than commodity derivative instmments at Midsfream & Marketing are 
designated and qualify as cash flow hedges or net investment hedges. Substantially all of Midsfream & Marketing's commodity derivative 
instiuments are not designated as cash flow hedges. These derivative instiuments are recorded at fair value 
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wita changes in fair value reflected in income. In addition, unrealized gains and losses on certain derivative financial instruments used by Gas 
Utility and Electric Utility are included in regulatory assets or liabilities in accordance with FASB guidance regarding accounting for rate-
regulated entities. 

For cash flow hedges, changes in the fair value of tae derivative financial instruments are recorded in accumulated other comprehensive 
income ("AOCI") or noncontroiling interests, to the extent effective at offsetting changes in the hedged item, until eamings are affected by the 
hedged item. We discontinue cash flow hedge accounting if the occurrence of tae forecasted fransaction is determined to be no longer probable. 
Gains and losses on net investment hedges which relate to our foreign operations are included in AOCI until such foreign net investment is sold 
or liquidated. Changes in the fair values of Midsfream & Marketing's commodity derivative instruments, along wita those of certain ofour other 
businesses' derivative financial instmments, do not qualify for, or are not designated as, cash flow hedges. Changes in the fair values of these 
derivative instruments are generally reflected in cost of sales or revenues, as appropriate, on the Consolidated Statements of Income. Cash flows 
from derivative financial instmments, otiier tiian net investment hedges, are included in cash flows from operating activities. Cash flows from net 
investment hedges are included in cash flows from investing activities. 

For a more detailed description of the derivative instiuments we use, om accounting for derivatives, our objectives for using them and 
other information, see Note 18 . 

Foreign Currency Translation 

Balance sheets of intemational subsidiaries are translated into U.S. dollars using the exchange rate at the balance sheet date. Income 
statements and equity investee results are franslated into U.S. dollars using an average exchange rate for each reporting period. Where the local 
currency is the functional currency, franslation adjustments are recorded in other comprehensive income. 

Revenue Recognition 

Revenues from tae sale of LPG are recognized principally upon delivery. Midsfream & Marketing records revenues when energy products 
are delivered or services are provided to customers. Revenues from tae sale of appliances and equipment are recognized at the later of sale or 
installation. Revenues from repair or maintenance services are recognized upon completion of services. 

UGI Utilities' regulated revenues are recognized as nataral gas and electricity are delivered and include estimated amounts for disfribution 
service and commodities rendered but not billed at the end of each month. We reflect the impact of Gas Utility and Electric Utility rate increases 
or decreases at tiie time they become effective. 

We present revenue-related taxes collected from customers and remitted to taxing authorities, principally sales and use taxes, on a net 
basis. Elecfric Utility gross receipts taxes are included in total revenues in accordance with regulatory practice. 

LPG Delivery Expenses 

Expenses associated wita tae delivery of LPG to customers of the Partaership and our UGI Intemational operations (including vehicle 
expenses, expenses of delivery personnel, vehicle repair and maintenance and general liability expenses) are classified as operating and 
adminisfrative expenses on the Consolidated Statements of Income. Depreciation expense associated wita tae Partnership and UGI Intemational 
delivery vehicles is classified in depreciation on tae Consolidated Statements of Income. 

Income Taxes 

AmeriGas Partners and the Operating Partaerships are not directly subject to federal income taxes. Instead, their taxable income or loss is 
allocated to the individual partners. We record income taxes on (1) our share of the Partaership's current taxable income or loss and (2) the 
differences between the book and tax basis of our investment in the Partaership. The Operating Partnership has subsidiaries which operate in 
corporate form and are directly subject to federal and state income taxes. Legislation in certain states allows for taxation of partnership income 
and the accompanying financial statements reflect state income taxes resuhing from such legislation. 

Gas Utility and Elecfric Utility record deferred income taxes in the Consolidated Statements of Income resulting from the use of 
accelerated tax depreciation methods based upon amounts recognized for ratemaking purposes. They also record a deferred income tax liability 
for tax benefits, principally the result of accelerated tax depreciation for state income tax purposes, that are 
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flowed through to ratepayers when temporary differences originate and record a regulatory income tax asset for the probable increase in fiiture 
revenues that will result when the temporary differences reverse. 

We are amortizing deferred investment tax credits related to UGI Utilities' plant additions over the service lives of the related property. 
UGI Utilities reduces its deferred income tax liability for the futare tax benefits that will occur when investment tax credits, which are not 
taxable, are amortized. We also reduce the regulatory income tax asset for tae probable reduction in futare revenues taat will resuh when such 
deferred investment tax credits amortize. Investment tax credits associated with Midsfream & Marketing's qualifying solar energy property 
under tae Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008 are reflected in income taxes for assets placed in service after Fiscal 2011 and are 
amortized over the estimated useful life ofthe property for assets placed in service prior to Fiscal 2012. 

We record interest on tax deficiencies and income tax penalties in income taxes on the Consolidated Statements of Income. No amounts 
were recorded for interest in Fiscal 2013. For Fiscal 2012 and Fiscal 2011 , interest (income) expense of $(0.1) and $0.2 , respectively, was 
recognized in income taxes on the Consolidated Statements of Income. 

Earnings Per Common Share 

Basic earnings per share atfributable to UGI Corporation stockholders reflect the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding. 
Diluted eamings per share include the effects of dilutive stock options and common stock awards. In tae following table, we present shares used 
in computing basic and diluted edmings per share for Fiscal 2013 , Fiscal 2012 and Fiscal 2011 : 

(Thousands of shares) 2013 2012 2011 
^ ^ l ^ ^ ^ c ^ ^ ^ n shares outsfandmgfbtbasic^computation 

Incremental shares issuable for stock options and common stock awards (a) 

R l | | ^ S i n : s h a t e s . o u t s f e n d i n g fo^diluted computation 

113,923 
1,598 

112,581 
851 

111,674 
1,270 

115,521 113,432 112,944 

(a) For Fiscal 2013, Fiscal 2012 and Fiscal 2011, there were approximately 88 shares, 81 shares and 3,700 shares, respectively, associated with 
outstanding stock option awards that were not included in the computation of diluted eamings per share above because their effect was 
antidilutive. 

Comprehensive Income 

Comprehensive income comprises net income and other comprehensive income (loss). Other comprehensive income (loss) principally 
results from gains and losses on derivative instruments qualifying as cash flow hedges, actaarial gains and losses on posfretirement benefit plans 
and foreign ciurency franslation adjustments and foreign currency long-term infra-company fransactions. 

The components of AOCI at September 30, 2013 and 2012 follow: 

Postretirement 
Benefit Plans 

Derivative 
Instmments Net 

Losses 

i^^^SPl0,2013 
Balance, September 30,2012 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Foreign 
Currency 

Translation 
Adjustments Total 

(16.4) $ 
(22.9) $ (52.0) $ 19.7 $ (55.2) 

All highly liquid investments with matarities of three months or less when purchased are classified as cash equivalents. 

Restricted Cash 

Resfricted cash principally represents those cash balances in om commodity fiitares and option brokerage accounts which are restricted 
from withdrawal. 
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Inventories 

Our inventories are stated at tae lower of cost or market. We determine cost using an average cost method for natmal gas, propane and 
other LPG; specific identification for appliances; and the first-in, first-out ("FIFO") metaod for all other inventories. 

Property, Plant and Equipment and Related Depreciation 

We record property, plant and equipment at original cost. The amounts assigned to property, plant and equipment of acquired businesses 
are based upon estimated fair value at date of acquisition. 

We record depreciation expense on non-utility plant and equipment on a sfraight-line basis over estimated economic useful lives ranging 
from 15 to 40 years for buildings and improvements; 7 to 40 years for storage and customer tanks and cylinders; 25 to 35 years for elecfricity 
generation facilities; and 2 to 12 years for vehicles, equipment and office flunitare and fixtares. Costs to install Partaership and Antargaz-owned 
tanks, net of amounts billed to customers, are capitalized and amortized over the estimated period of benefit not exceeding ten years. 

We record depreciation expense for Utilities' plant and equipment on a sfraight-line basis over tae estimated average remaining lives ofthe 
various classes of its depreciable property. Depreciation expense as a percentage of the related average depreciable base for Gas Utility was 
2.3% in Fiscal 2013 , 2.2% in Fiscal 2012 and 2.3% in Fiscal 2011 . Depreciation expense as a percentage ofthe related average depreciable 
base for Electric Utility was 2.4% in Fiscal 2013 , 2.4% in Fiscal 2012 and 2.6% in Fiscal 2011 . When Utihties retires depreciable utility plant 
and equipment, we charge the original cost to accumulated depreciation for financial accounting purposes. 

We include in property, plant and equipment costs associated wita computer software we develop or obtain for use in our businesses. We 
amortize computer software costs on a sfraight-line basis over expected periods of benefit not exceeding fifteen years once tae installed software 
is ready for its intended use. 

No depreciation expense is included in cost of sales in tae Consolidated Statements of Income. 

Goodwill and Intangible Assets 

In accordance wita GAAP relating to intangible assets, we amortize intangible assets over their estimated usefiil lives unless we determine 
taeir lives to be indefinite. We review identifiable intangible assets subject to amortization for impairment whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate taat tae associated carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Determining whether an impairment loss occurred requires 
comparing the carrying amount to tae sum of undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. Intangible assets wita indefinite 
lives are not amortized but are tested annually for impairment and written down to fair value as required. 

We do not amortize goodwill, but test it at least annually for impairment at the reporting unit level. A reporting unit is an operating 
segment or one level below an operating segment (a component) if discrete financial information is prepared and regularly reviewed by segment 
management. Components are aggregated as a single reporting unit if they have similar economic characteristics. We are required to recognize 
an impairment charge under GAAP if tae carrying amount of a reporting unit exceeds its fair value and tae carrying amount of the reporting 
unit's goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of that goodwill. For certain of our reporting units with goodwill, we assess qualitative factors to 
determine whetaer it is more likely than not taat the fair value of such reporting unit is less taan its carrying amount. For our other reporting 
units with goodwill, and for taose reporting units for which we are not able, based upon the assessment of qualitative factors, to determine that it 
is not more likely than not taat the fair value of such reporting unit is less than its carrying amount, we determine fair values generally using an 
income approach unless market values are available. For purposes of tae income approach, fair values are determined based upon tae present 
value of estimated fiiture cash flows discounted at an appropriate risk-adjusted rate. 

No provisions for goodwill or other intangible asset impairments were recorded during Fiscal 2013 , Fiscal 2012 or Fiscal 2011 .No 
amortization expense is included in cost of sales in tae Consolidated Statements of Income (see Note 12 ). 

Impairment of Long-̂ Lived Assets and Cost Basis Investments 

We evaluate the impairment of long-lived assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that tae carrying amount of such 
assets may not be recoverable. We evaluate recoverability based upon undiscounted fiitare cash flows expected 
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tobegeneratedby such assets. No material provisions for impairments were recorded during Fiscal 2013 , Fiscal 2012 or Fiscal 2011 . 

We reduce tae carrying values of our cost basis investments when we determine taat a decline in fair value is other than temporary. During 
Fiscal 2013, we recorded a pre-tax loss of $6.3 associated with an other-than-temporary impairment of an investment in a private equity 
partnership. 

Deferred Debt Issuance Costs 

Included in other assets on our Consolidated Balance Sheets are net deferred debt issuance costs of $39.4 and $46.6 at September 30, 
2013 and 2012, respectively. We are amortizing taese costs over tae terms ofthe related debt. 

Refundable Tank and Cylinder Deposits 

Included in other noncurrent liabilities on our Consolidated Balance Sheets are customer paid deposits on Antargaz owned tanks and 
cylinders of $214.6 and $205.1 at September 30,2013 and 2012 , respectively. Deposits are refundable to customers when the tanks or cylinders 
are retumed in accordance with confract terms. 

Environmental Matters 

We are subject to environmental laws and regulations intended to mitigate or remove tae effect of past operations and improve or maintain 
the quality of tae environment. These laws and regulations require tae removal or remedy of the effect on tae environment of the disposal or 
release of certain specified hazardous substances at current or former operating sites. 

Environmental reserves are accmed when assessments indicate that it is probable that a liability has been incurred and an amoimt can 
reasonably be estimated. Amounts recorded as environmental liabilities on the balance sheets represent our best estimate of costs expected to be 
incurred or, if no best estimate can be made, tae minimum liability associated wita a range of expected environmental investigation and 
remediation costs. Om estimated liability for environmental contamination is reduced to reflect anticipated participation of other responsible 
parties but is not reduced for possible recovery from insurance carriers. In taose instances for which tae amount and timing of cash payments 
associated wita environmental investigation and cleanup are reliably determinable, we discount such liabilities to reflect the time value of 
money. We intend to pursue recovery of incurred costs through all appropriate means, including regulatory relief UGI Gas is permitted to 
amortize as removal costs site-speciflc environmental investigation and remediation costs, net of related taird-party payments, associated wita 
Pennsylvania sites. UGI GaS is currently permitted to include in rates, through futare base rate proceedings, a five -year average of such 
pmdently incurred remediation costs, and CPG and PNG are currently receiving regulatory recovery of estimated environmental investigation 
and remediation costs associated with Pennsylvania sites. For fiuther information, see Note 16 . 

Employee Retirement Plans 

We use a market-related value of plan assets and an expected long-term rate of retum to determine the expected retum on assets of om 
pension and other posfretirement plans. The market-related value of plan assets, otaer than equity investments, is based upon fair values. The 
market-related value of equity investments is calculated by rolling forward tae prior-year's market-related value with contributions, 
disbursements and the expected retum on plan assets. One taird ofthe difference between tae expected and tae actaal value is then added to or 
subtracted from the expected value to determine tae new market-related value (see Note 8). 

Equity-Based Compensation 

AU of our equity-based compensation, principally comprising UGI stock options, grants of UGI stock-based equity instruments and grants 
of AmeriGas Partners equity instruments (together with UGI stock-based equity instmments, "Units"), are measured at fair value on tiie grant 
date, date of modification or end of the period, as applicable. Compensation expense is recognized on a sfrai^t-line basis over the requisite 
service period. Depending upon the settlement terms of the awards, all or a portion of the fair value of equity-based awards may be presented as 
a liability or as equity in our Consolidated Balance Sheets. Equity-based compensation costs associated with tae portion of Unit awards 
classified as equity are measured based upon their estimated fair value on the date of grant or modification. Equity-based compensation costs 
associated wita tae portion of Unit awards classified as liabilities are measured based upon their estimated fair value at tae grant date and 
remeasured as ofthe end of e3ch period. 
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We have calculated a tax windfall pool using the shortcut method. We record deferred tax assets for awards that we expect will result in 
deductions on om income tax retums based on tiie amount of compensation cost recognized and the statatory tax rate in the jurisdiction in which 
we will receive a deduction. Differences between the deferred tax assets recognized for financial reporting purposes and the actaal tax benefit 
received on tae income tax retam are recorded in Common Stock (if tae tax benefit exceeds the deferred tax asset) or in tae Consolidated 
Statements of Income (if the deferred tax asset exceeds the tax benefit and no tax windfall pool exists from previous awards). 

For additional information on our equity-based compensation plans and related disclosures, see Note 14 . 

Note 3 — Revisions and Restatements of Consolidated Financial Statements 

During the preparation ofthe Fiscal 2013 consolidated financial statements, management concluded that it had incorrectly accounted for 
certain commodity derivative instruments as cash flow hedges. Management had incorrectly applied the hedge accounting criteria when 
designating certain commodity derivative instmments at its Midsfream & Marketing businesses as cash flow hedges. As a result, the 
accompanying financial statements as of and for the two years in the period ended September 30, 2012, have been revised to report changes in 
the fair values of unsettled commodity derivative instruments and gains and losses on settled commodity derivative instiuments for which the 
associated forecasted transactions have not yet occurred in cost of sales or revenues in tae Consolidated Statements of Income rather than in 
other comprehensive income. Management has discontinued the use of hedge accounting for substantially all of Midsfream & Marketing's 
commodity derivative instruments and has reported changes in the fair values of unsettled commodity derivative instruments, and gains and 
losses on settled commodity derivatives for which the associated forecasted fransaction has not yet occurred, in net income. 

Although the impact of the error was not material to the Company's historical annual consolidated financial statements, management 
decided to revise its consolidated financial statements and disclosures to correct this error in accounting for tae years ended September 30, 2012 
and 2011. Management did conclude that the error in accounting was material to hs consolidated financial statements for the fiscal quarters 
ended March 31, 2013, June 30, 2012, and December 31, 2011, and that it is necessary to restate the Company's financial statements for those 
periods while the Company's consolidated financial statements for other quarterly periods have been revised (see Note 21). 

The following table sets forth tae effects of the revision on affected line items within the Company's previously reported consolidated 
financial statements for fiscal years ended September 30,2012 and 2011. Also included in the adjustment columns in tae tables below are certain 
other immaterial corrections taat the Company made, including, but not limited to, adjustments to correct the Partaership's accounting for certain 
customer credits and to correct the classification of deferred income tax assets, as furtaer described below, as well as certain other minor 
adjustments related principally to the timing of certain expense and income accmals. 
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Consolidated Balance Sheet 

September 30, 2012 

Assets:?, - ^ ' _ ' 
Accounts receivable 

<Inventoriess:xv ^ .- ? 

Deferred income taxes 

Non-utility property, plant and equipment 
il^|piffiillatHlmeptg|iati6iiifd|amortim^ 

LiabUities and equity-

Employee compensation and benefits accmed 

Other current liabilities 
p^cieireuHEicomefiax^s •-, >• « 
Other noncurrent Uabihties 

$ 
$ 
$ 

^^^ 

$ 

w 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

^$ 
$ 
$^ 

$ 
-$ 

As Previously 
Reported 

632 6 $ 
356.9'-$ 

56.8 $ 

^iltlSiisi^t 
4,223.4 $ 

^iggimif-
411.3 $ 

91 1 $ 
72.7 •$ 

226 4 $ 

^ 935.0 •$ 
616 7 $ 

" 1.166-.L $ 
(62 0) $ 

> 1,085.7 $ 

Adjustment 

¥ 4 

• « 

-

(5.1) $ 
(2.8) $ 

(27.0) $ 

i^iffpftfe 
0.5 $ 

iiJSlSS^$^^ 

(1.4) $ 
(14)$ 

. (1.1)$ 
(0 8)$ 

'(29.3) $ ^ 
46 $ 

. (10.1) $ 
68 $ 

^ ^'(O.l)S 

As Revised 

627.5 
354.1 

29.8 
B;::\?^,M;^ >99;5:-; 

4,223.9 
0 A A - ^ ^ p ^ : ^ : 

409.9 
89.7 
716 

225 6 
905.7 
6213 

1,156.0 
(55.2) 

1,085 6 
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income 

^N^^EttolImwmtei:ests,»pritfcipaily in AmeriGas Partaers 

Dming the three months ended September 30,2013, we identified an error in tae classification of deferred income tax assets on the 
September 30,2012, Consolidated Balance Sheet in the amount of $27.0 . The adjustment to correct this error is included in the table above in 
deferred income taxes (assets) and deferred income taxes (liabilities). 
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Consolidated Statements of Income 

Fiscal years ended September 30, 

Non-utility revenues 
Non-utility cost of sales 
Operating and administrative expenses 
Depreciation 

Other income, net 
Operating income 
Interest expense 
Income before income taxes 
Income taxes 
Net income 
(Deduct net income) add net loss attributable to 
nonconfrollmg interests, principally in AmeriGas 
Partaers 
Net income atfributable to UGI Corporation 
Basic eamings per common share 

Diluted eamings per common share 

As 
Previously 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

2012 

Reported Adjustment As Revised 
5,636.7 $ 
3,652.1 $ 
1,591.7 $ 

264.2 $ 
(38.3) S 
521.3 $ 

- (221.5) $ 
286.2 $ 
(99.6) $ 
186.6 $ 

' 12.8 $ 
199.4 $ 
1.77 
1.76 

2.1 $ 
(12.1)$ 
(0.6) $ 
(1.0) $ 
(1.5) $ 
17.3 $ 
1.1 $ 

18.4 $ 
(7.3) S 
11.1 $ 

(0.3) $ 
10.8 $ 

$ 
$ 

5,638.8 
3,640.0 
1,591.1 

263.2 

(39.8) 
538.6 

(220.4) 
304.6 

(106.9) 
197.7 

12.5 
210.2 

1.87 
1.85 

As 
Previously 

$ 
S 
$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 

"$ 
$ 

2011 

Reported Adjustment As Revised 
4,955.8 $ 
3,332.4 $ 
1,266.4 $ 

201.2 $ 
. (46.5)$, 

616.0 $ 

(138.0) 
439.0 $ 

. (130.8) $ 
308.2 $ 

(75.3) $ 
232.9 $ 
.2.09 ^ 
2.06 

(0.4)'$' 
(28.2) $ 

0.6'$ 
(0.2) $ 

• 1.0- $ 
26.4 $ 

•̂  N/A , 
26.4 $ 

•(14.6).'$.-
11.8 $ 

. • - - •' , 
-. 

- .6.7 $ 
12.5 $ 

^ $ 
$ 

; 4,955.4 
3,304.2 
1,267,0 

201.0 

- (45.5) 
642.4 

^ N/A 
465.4 

- (145.4) 
320.0 

-
_ 

.(74.6) 
245.4 
2.20 
2.17 

ConsoUdated Statements of Comprehensive Income 

Fiscal years ended September 30, 

Net income 
Net (losses) gains on derivative instmments 
Reclassifications of net losses (gains) on 
'derivative instiuments 
Comprehensive income 
Comprehensive income attributable to UGI 
Corporation 

As 

2012 

Previously 
Reported Adjustment As Revised 

$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 

186.6 $ 
(127.1) $ 

. 87.9 S 
114.3 $ 

153.2 $ 

11.1 $ 
21.7 $ 

(31.6) $ 
1.2 $ 

0.9 $ 

197.7 
(105.4) 

56.3 
115.5 

154.1 

As 

2011 

Previously 
Reported Adjustment As Revised 

$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 

S 

308.2 $ 
(10.8) $ 

11.8 $ 
295.1 $ 

225.3 $ 

11.8 $ 
14.7 $ 

(30.8) $ 
(4.3) $ 

(3.6) $ 

320.0 
3.9 

(19.0) 
290.8 

221.7 
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

Fiscal years ended September 30, 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING • 
ACTIVITIES: 

'NetJncome^^'^''jn''V;. . :: 4''" . -
Depreciation and amortization 
Deferred income;t^s," net ~'"-- ^ " 
Net change in realized gains and losses deferred 
as cash fiow hedges 
iUnrealiz^ gains 'on derivative instruments 
Other, net 

2012 

As 
Previously 
Reported Adjustment As Revised 

$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 

186.6 $ 
316.0 $ 

82.9 $ 

(6.6) $ 
- $ 

(10.7) $ 

11.1 $ 
(1.0) $ 
7.3 $ 

6.6 $ 
] (17.2) $ 

(6.8) $ 

197.7 
315.0 
90.2 

(17.2) 
(17.5) 

2011 

As 
Previously 
Reported Adjustment As Revised 

$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 

308.2' $ 
227.9 $ 

82.7^ $ 

12.2 $ 
— $ 

(7.1) $ 

11.8 $ 
(0.2) $ 
8.8 $ 

(12 2) $ 
' (19.6) $ 

11.4 $ 

320.0 i 
227.7 
91.5^; 

(19.6| 
4.3 

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity 

rRetamedieamings --...iHedieam"""" 
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income 
KoncopttPlIin^terests: 

Fiscal years ended September 30, 

2012 

As 
Previously 
Reported Adjustment As Revised 

$ 1,166.1 $ (lO.l) $ " 1,156.0 
$ (62 0) $ 6 8 $ (55 2) 
S 1,085.7 $ , " (0.1) $ 1,085.6 

2011 

As 
Previously 
Reported Adjustment As Revised 

. $ n,085.8 '$ * (20.9) $ 1,064.9 
$ (17.7) $ 16 7 $ (10) 
$ ^ 213.4 $' (0.4) S 213.0 

During tae taree montas ended March 31, 2013, the Partnership determined that tae recording of propane revenues did not appropriately 
consider the effects of certain customer credits which were recorded in a subsequent period. Altaough the Company evaluated the impact of tae 
error on prior periods and determined the effect was not material to any prior period financial statement and corrected the error during the three 
montas ended March 31, 2013, the tables above include correction ofthe error in accounting for customer credits in the appropriate historical 
period. 
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The impacts of the corrections on the key financial metrics operating income, net income atfributable to UGI Corporation and diluted 
eamings per share for the years ended September 30,2013 and 2012 are as follows: 

Operating income: 
; Midsfreahi "j&Mjffk̂ tingjhed̂ iS ai;(̂ tS^^ : v '.-• 

Partaership customer credits 

Total 

Net income atfributable to UGI Corporation: 

,--iJMidsfreiamj&;̂ y^^ 
Partaership customer credits 

ibther- ; ^"^^:''A/^^'yyXff>''Ayl^'''^'^.<&AA • •'•":; 
Total 

Fiscal 2012 

•$*/#^;^e^i'7.a'r 
(1.8) 

1-yAy^y^m'S^A': 
$ 17.3 

'•̂ •î ¥Ay^4^MSy. 
(0.6)' 

::y\A':/ 'Ar^A. A 

% 10.8 

Fiscal 2011 

t^t^ymy^-^^ 
0.1 

wwimmm^ 
$ 26.4 

ym:;myywy 

rnmMMmk. 
"yy/'-y-yy-^^ 

$ 12.5 

Diluted eamings per common share attributable to UGI Corporation 
stockholders: 

Midsfream & Marketmg hedge accoimting 
Partaership customer credits 

O t h e r - • • - _" . • , 

Total 

Note 4 — Accounting Changes 

New Accounting Standards Not Yet Adopted 

0.09 $ 

0.09 

0.14 

(0,03) 

0.11 

Disclosures about Reclassifications Out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income . In Febmary 2013, tae FASB issued new accounting 
guidance regarding disclosures for items reclassified out of AOCI. The new disclosure guidance is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods 
witain those fiscal years, beginning after December 15, 2012. The new disclosures are to be applied prospectively, and early adoption is 
permitted. We will adopt tae new guidance in Fiscal 2014. As this guidance provides only disclosure requirements, the adoption ofthis standard 
will not impact our results of operations, cash flows or financial position. 

Disclosures about Offsetting Assets and Liabilities. In December 2011 (and amended in January 2013), the FASB issued new accounting 
guidance requiring entities to disclose both gross and net information about recognized derivative instruments taat are offset on the balance sheet 
or subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement, irrespective of whether they are offset on tae balance sheet. The 
new guidance is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013 (Fiscal 2014) and interim periods within those 
annual periods, and is required to be applied refrospectively. As this guidance provides only disclosure requirements, the adoption of this 
standard will not impact our results of operations, cash flows or fmancial position. 

Note 5 — Acquisitions 

On January 12, 2012 (the "Acquisition Date"), AmeriGas Partaers completed the acquisition of Heritage Propane from ETP for total 
consideration of $2,598.2 , comprising $1,465.6 in cash and 29,567,362 AmeriGas Partaers Common Units with a fair value of $1,132.6 (the 
"Heritage Acquisition"). The Acquisition Date cash consideration for the Heritage Acquisition was subject to purchase price adjustments based 
on working capital, cash and the amount of indebtedness of Heritage Propane ("Working Capital Adjustment") and certain excess cash proceeds 
resulting from ETP's sale of HOLP's former cylinder exchange business ("HPX"). In April 2012, AmeriGas Partners paid $25.5 of additional 
cash consideration as a result ofthe Working Capital Adjustment and in June 2012, AmeriGas Partaers received $18.9 in cash representing tae 
excess cash proceeds from the sale of HPX. The Heritage Acquisition was consummated pursuant to a Confribution and Redemption Agreement 
dated October 15, 2011, as amended (the "Confribution Agreement"), by and among AmeriGas Partaers, ETP, Energy Transfer Partners GP, 
L.P., the general partner of ETP ("ETP GP"), and Heritage ETC, L.P. (the "Confributor"). The acquired business conducted its propane 
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operations in 41 states through HOLP and Titan LLC. According to LP-Gas Magazine rankings published on Febmary 1, 2012, Heritage 
Propane was the third largest retail propane disfributor in the United States, delivering over 500 million gallons to more than one million retail 
propane customers in 2011. The Heritage Acquisition is consistent with our growta strategies, one of which is to grow the Partaership's core 
business through acquisitions. 

Pursuant to the Contribution Agreement, tae Contributor confributed to AmeriGas Partners a 99.999% limited partaer interest in HOLP; a 
100% membership interest in Heritage Operating GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company and a holder of a 0.001% general partner 
interest in HOLP; a 99.99% limited partaer interest in Titan Energy Partners, L.P., a Delaware limited partaership and the sole member of Titan 
LLC; and a 100% membership interest in Titan Energy GP, L.L.C, a Delaware limited liabUity company and holder of a 0.01% general partaer 
interest in Titan Energy Partaers, L.P. As a result of the Heritage Acquisition, tae General Partaer, in order to maintain its general partaer 
interests in AmeriGas Partaers and AmeriGas OLP, contributed 934,327 Common Units to tae Partaership having a fair value of $41.7 . These 
Common Units were subsequently cancelled. 

The cash portion of the Heritage Acquisition was financed by the issuance by AmeriGas Finance Corp. and AmeriGas Finance LLC, wholly 
owned finance subsidiaries of AmeriGas Partaers (the "Issuers"), of $550 principal amount of 6.75% Senior Notes due May 2020 (the " 6.75% 
Notes") and $1,000 principal amount of 7.00% Senior Notes due May 2022 (the " 7.00% Notes"). For fiirther information on the 6.75% Notes 
and the 7.00% Notes, see Note 6 . 

The Consolidated Balance Sheet at September 30, 2012, reflects the final allocation ofthe purchase price to the assets acquired and 
liabilities assumed for the Heritage Propane business combination. The pmchase price paid comprises AmeriGas Partaers Common Units issued 
having a fair value of $1,132.6 , and total cash consideration of $1,472.2 including cash acquired of $60.7 . The fair value of the AmeriGas 
Partaers Common Units issued to ETP was based on the closing price on tae Acquisition Date subject to a discount to reflect certain contractual 
fransfer restrictions for a period of approximately twelve montas. The purchase price allocation was as follows: 

'MssBt̂ facmiired: r~̂  
Current assets 

Customer relationships (estimated usefiil life of 15 years) 
afJ^M,,-, 

Goodwill (a) 
jmOther assets/'^^,?-

Total assets acquired 

irideinarlfs'and.%aden£unes (a) 

3014 
890.2 
4189 

91.1 
1,217 7 

9.9 
2,929.2 

Current liabilities (238.1) 

''"""""""'(2X4)^ 

^ ( M ^ 
Total 2,604.8 

(a) During Fiscal 2013, the Partnership made a correcting adjustment to trademarks and tradenames and goodwill which is not reflected in the table 
above. See Note 12. 

Goodwill associated with the Heritage Acquisition principally resuhs from synergies expected from combining tae operations and from 
assembled workforce. The tax effects of such goodwill will be realized over a fifteen -year period. We allocated tae purchase price of the 
acquisition to identifiable intangible assets based on estimated fair values. Tradenames and frademarks were valued using the relief from royalty 
metaod and customer relationships were valued using a discounted cash flow method. The relief from royalty method estimates our taeoretical 
royalty savings from ownership of tae tradenames and trademarks. Key assumptions used in this method include discount rates, royalty rates, 
growta rates and sales projections and are the assumptions most sensitive and susceptible to change as they require significant management 
judgment. The key assumptions used in the customer relationship discounted cash flow metiiod include discount rates, grovrth rates and cash 
flow projections and are the assumptions most sensitive and susceptible to change as taey require significant management judgment. We 
allocated tae purchase price of the acquisition to property, plant and equipment based on estimated fair values primarily using replacement cost 
and market value methods. 
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Transaction expenses associated with the Heritage Acquisition, which are included in operating and adminisfrative expenses in the 
Consolidated Statement of Income, totaled $5.3 for Fiscal 2012. The results of operations of Heritage Propane are included in the Consolidated 
Statements of Income since tae Acquisition Date. As a result of combining tae Heritage Propane operations with tae Partaership's legacy 
operations, it is impracticable to determine the impact ofthe Heritage Propane operations on the revenues and eamings ofthe Company. 

The following presents unaudited pro forma income statement and earnings per share data for Fiscal 2012 and 2011 as if the Heritage 
Acquisition had occurred on October 1,2010: 

Fiscal 2012 Fiscal 2011 
7,013.0 

208.4 ' 

1.85 

$ -
$ 

W4y 

7,'522.1 
236.0 

2.11 

Rieveiiii^ $ 
Net income atfributable to UGI Corporation $ 
Eamings;pic commbn^luH^^ 

Basic $ 
'^kA^^MiM^^yy^'^yW^^WW 

The unaudited pro forma resuhs of operations reflect Heritage Propane's historical operating results after giving effect to adjustments 
directly atfributable to the fransaction taat are expected to have a continuing effect. The unaudited pro forma consolidated results of operations 
are not necessarily indicative of the results that would have occurred had the Heritage Acquisition occurred on the date indicated nor are taey 
necessarily indicative of fiitare operating results. 

During Fiscal 2013, Flaga acquired BP's LPG distribution business in Poland for total cash consideration of approximately $36 which Flaga 
financed wita cash proceeds from the issuance of long-term debt (see Note 6 ) and its purchase price has been preliminarily allocated to the 
assets acquired and liabilities assumed; AmeriGas OLP acquired two domestic retail propane disfribution businesses for approximately $20 in 
cash; and Energy Services acquired a non-operating working interest in nataral gas acreage in the Marcellus Shale region of Pennsylvania for 
approximately $23 in cash. In October 2011, we acquired Shell's LPG distribution businesses in (1) Belgium, the Netaerlands and Luxembourg 
through Antargaz; (2) Denmark, Finland, Norway and Sweden tiu-ough Flaga; and (3) the United Kingdom through UGI Midlands Limited (a 
second-tier subsidiary of Enterprises), for a total of €133.6 ( $179.0 ) in cash (tae "SheU Transaction"). Also during Fiscal 2012, AmeriGas OLP 
acquired a number of smaller domestic retail propane distribution businesses for $13.5 in cash. During Fiscal 2011, AmeriGas OLP acquired a 
number of domestic retail propane distiibution businesses for $34.0 in cash, and Flaga acquired a propane distiibution business in Poland for 
total cash consideration of approximately $19.0 . 
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Note 6 —Debt 

Long-term debt comprises the following at September 30: 

^AmeriGas Propane:'- ' " ~ 
AmeriGas Partners Senior Notes* 

6 75%, due May 2020 
^{6.5q%tdiil%Iay5021>~\ / . ^ ' " 

6.25%, due August 2019 
HOLP •Senior-Secured'Notes ? 

2013 2012 

ieri(|as^cd|)^e^ J-^; -_ y 
UGI International: 
^ntergaztS^^i^^acil^gs^emiSoan; due'through March 2016 
Flaga term loan, due September 2016 

™'̂ *î Sî i,̂ î*H,̂ fl̂ JigIi|S|;ritetab^e^20L6î ^^ S B S p P m i l b m ^«-s"«-^K 
Flaga term loan, due October 2016 

-

$ 980.8 $ 
550.0 
270.0 
450.0 

32.0 
17.3 

2,300.1 

514.0 ^ 
52.0 

SMMgmM 
25.8 

î ŝgtw::̂ ^̂ '̂ ; 
6.6 

-654.4^ 
-

980.8 
550 0 
270.0 
450.0 

55.6 
216 

• 2,328.0 

488.7 
— 

SiK^%ii3 
24.6 

ffiSfSS 
5.6 

573.9 

175.0 

Senior Notes: 
^ ^ ^ ^ ^ g g g ^ 2 0 f 3 ; > 

5.75%, due September 2016 

Medium-Term Notes: 

5.16%, due May 2015 

\ ~ : U * r 

6.50%, due August 2033 

Total UGI Utilities 

Total long-term debt 

lEessCeiffienWaturities 

Total long-term debt due after one year 

. 

- • 

-. 

, . ,' 

^ 

-

^ 

$ 

— 
175.0 

' '100.0 

20.0 
- '22.0 "̂  ^ 

50.0 
20,.0 
20.0 
20.0 
20.0 
20.0 

642.0 

12.9 

3,609.4 

(67.2) 
3,542.2 $ 

' 108,0 
175.0 

ioq.o; 

' l ^ Q ' 

20.0 
• 22.0 --

50.0 
20.0 
20.0 
20.0' 
20.0 
20.0 

600.0 

12.4 

3,514.3 
(166.7) 

3,347.6 
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$ 

12.0 
— 

55.4 
0.6 

68.0 

$ 

$ 

9.3 
20.0 
47.9 

0.7 

11.9 

$ 

$ 

7.0 
247.0 
523.4 

0.7 

778.1 

$-

$ 

, - 5.0 
20.0 
26.7 

0.7 

. 52.4,, 

$ , 

-

$-

4.3 
40.0 

0.5 
0.8 

45.6 
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Scheduled principal repayments of long-term debt due in fiscal years 2014 to 2018 follow: 

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 

•̂ A^eriGas Propane 
UGI Utilities (a) 
UOpntemational 
Other 

(a) UGI Utilities $175 Term Loan Credit Agreement borrowings anticipated to be refinanced on a long-term basis in March 2014 pursuant to a 
Note Purchase Agreement as further described below are excluded from the table above. 

AmeriGas Propane 

In order to finance the cash portion ofthe Heritage Acquisition, on January 12, 2012, the Issuers issued $550 principal amount of 6.75% 
Notes due May 2020 and $1,000 principal amount of 7.00% Notes due May 2022. The 6.75% Notes and tae 7.00% Notes are fiilly and 
unconditionally guaranteed on a senior unsecured basis by AmeriGas Partaers. The Issuers have the right to redeem the 6.75% Notes, in whole 
or in part, at any time on or after May 20, 2016, and to redeem the 7.00% Notes, in whole or in part, at any time on or after May 20, 2017, 
subject to certain resfrictions. A premium applies to redemptions of tiie 6.75% Notes and 7.00% Notes through May 2018 and May 2020, 
respectively. On or prior to May 20, 2015, the Issuers may also redeem, at a premium and subject to certain resfrictions, up to 35% of each of the 
6.75% Notes and the 7.00% Notes with the proceeds of an AmeriGas Partaers registered public equity offering. The 6.75% Notes and the 7.00% 
Notes and the guarantees rank equal in right of payment wita all of AmeriGas Partners' existing Senior Notes. In connection with the Heritage 
Acquisition, AmeriGas Partners, AmeriGas Finance Corp., AmeriGas Finance LLC and UGI entered into a Contingent Residual Support 
Agreement ("CRSA") wita ETP pursuant to which ETP will provide contingent, residual support of $1,500 of debt ("Supported Debt" as defined 
in the CRSA). 

On March 28, 2012, AmeriGas Partners announced that holders of approximately $383.5 in aggregate principal amount of outstanding 
6.50% Senior Notes due May 2021 (the " 6.50% Notes"), representing approximately 82% ofthe total $470 principal amount outstanding, had 
validly tendered their notes in connection with the Partnership's March 14, 2012, offer to purchase for cash up to $200 of the 6.50% Notes. 
Tendered 6.50% Notes in the amount of $200 were redeemed on March 28, 2012, at an effective price of 105% using an approximate proration 
factor of 52.3% of total notes tendered. During June 2012, AmeriGas Partners repurchased approximately $19.2 aggregate principal amount of 
outstanding 7.00% Notes. The Partnership recorded a net loss of $13.3 on these extinguishments of debt which amount is reflected on the Fiscal 
2012 Consolidated Statement of Income under tae caption loss on extinguishments of debt. The net loss reduced net mcome atfributable to UGI 
Corporation by $2.2 during Fiscal 2012. 

In January 2011, AmenGas Partners issued $470 principal amount of 6.50% Notes due May 2021. The proceeds from tae issuance of the 
6.50% Notes were used in Febmary 2011 to repay AmeriGas Partners' $415 principal amount of its 7.25% Senior Notes due May 2015 pursuant 
to a tender offer and subsequent redemption. In addition, in Febmary 2011, AmeriGas Partners redeemed the outstanding $ 14.6 principal amount 
of its 8.875% Senior Notes due May 2011. The Partaership incurred a loss of $18.8 on tiiese extinguishments of debt which amount is reflected 
on tae Fiscal 2011 Consolidated Statement of Income under the caption loss on extinguishments of debt. This loss reduced net income 
attiibutable to UGI Corporation by $5.2 during Fiscal 2011. 

In August 2011, AmeriGas Partaers issued $450 principal amount of 6.25% Senior Notes due August 2019 (the " 6.25% Senior Notes"). 
The proceeds from the issuance ofthe 6.25% Senior Notes were used to repay $350 principal amount of AmeriGas Partaers 7.125% Senior 
Notes due May 2016 pursuant to a tender offer and subsequent redemption. The Partnership incurred a loss of $19.3 on this extinguishment of 
debt which amount is reflected on tae Fiscal 2011 Consolidated Statement of Income under the caption loss on extinguishments of debt. This 
loss reduced net income amibutable to UGI Corporation by $5.2 during Fiscal 2011. 

The 6.50% and 6.25% Senior Notes generally may be redeemed at our option (pursuant to a tender offer). A redemption premium applies 
tarough May 2019 (with respect to the 6.50% Notes) and through August 2017 (with respect to the 6.25% Notes). In addition, in the event that 
AmeriGas Partaers completes a registered public offering of Common Units, tae Partaership may, at its option, redeem up to 35% of the 
outstanding 6.50% Notes (tiirough May 20, 2014) or 35% ofthe outstanding 6.25% Notes (through August 20, 2014), each at a premium. 
AmeriGas Partners may, under certain circumstances involving excess sales proceeds 
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from tae disposition of assets not reinvested in the business or a change of confrol, be required to offer to prepay its 6.50% and 6.25% Senior 
Notes. 

The Partaership's total long-term debt at September 30, 2013, includes $ 32.0 of HOLP Senior Secured Notes (including unamortized 
premium of $3.7 ). At September 30, 2013, the face interest rates on tae HOLP Notes range from 7.89% to 8.87% with an effective interest rate 
of 6.75% . The HOLP Senior Secured Notes are collateralized by AmeriGas OLP's receivables, confracts, equipment, inventory, general 
intangibles and cash. 

AmeriGas OLP has an unsecured credit agreement (the "AmeriGas Credit Agreement") wita a group of banks providing for borrowings up 
to $525 (including a $125 sublimit for letters of credit) which expires in October 2016. The AmeriGas Credit Agreement permits AmeriGas OLP 
to borrow at prevailing interest rates, including the base rate, defined as the higher of the Federal Funds rate plus 0.50% or the agent bank's 
prime rate, or at a one-week, one-, two-, three-, or six-month Eurodollar Rate, as defined in the AmeriGas Credit Agreement, plus a margin. The 
margin on base rate borrowings (which ranges from 0.75% to 1.75% ), Eurodollar Rate borrowings (which ranges from 1.75% to 2.75% ), and 
tae AmeriGas Credit Agreement facility fee rate (which ranges from 0.30% to 0.50% ) are dependent upon AmeriGas Partaers' ratio of debt to 
earnings before interest expense, income taxes, depreciation and amortization ("EBITDA"), each as defined in the AmeriGas Credit Agreement. 

At September 30, 2013 and 2012 , there were $116.9 and $49.9 , respectively, of borrowings outstanding under the AmeriGas Credit 
Agreement, which amounts are refiected as bank loans on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The weighted-average interest rates on AmeriGas 
Credit Agreement boirowings at September 30, 2013 and 2012 , were 2.69% and 2.72% , respectively. At September 30, 2013 and 2012 , issued 
and outstanding letters of credit, which reduce available borrowings under the AmeriGas Credit Agreement, totaled $53.7 and $47.9 , 
respectively. 

Restrictive Covenants. The AmeriGas Partaers Senior Notes resfrict the ability of the Partaership and AmeriGas OLP to, among other things, 
incm additional indebtedness, make investments, incur liens, issue preferred interests, prepay subordinated indebtedness, and effect mergers, 
consolidations and sales of assets. Under tae AmeriGas Partners Senior Notes Indentares, AmeriGas Partaers is generally permitted to make cash 
disfributions equal to Available Cash, as defined, as of the end of the immediately preceding quarter, if certain conditions are met. At 
September 30, 2013 , taese resfrictions did not limit tae amount of Available Cash. See Note 15 for definition of Available Cash included in the 
Fourth Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partaership of AmeriGas Partners, L.P. ("Partaership Agreement"). 

The HOLP Senior Secured Notes contain restrictive covenants including the maintenance of financial covenants and limitations on the 
disposition of assets, changes in ownership, additional indebtedness, reshictive payments and the creation of liens. The financial covenants 
require AmeriGas OLP to maintain a ratio of Consolidated Funded Indebtedness to Consolidated EBITDA (as defined) below certain taresholds 
and to maintain a minimum ratio of Consolidated EBITDA to Consolidated Interest Expense (as defined). 

The AmeriGas Credit Agreement restricts tae incurrence of additional indebtedness and also resfrict certain liens, guarantees, investments, 
loans and advances, payments, mergers, consolidations, asset fransfers, transactions with affiliates, sales of assets, acquisitions and otaer 
fransactions. The AmeriGas Credit Agreement requires taat tae Partnership and AmeriGas OLP maintain ratios of total indebtedness to 
EBITDA, as defined, below certain taresholds. In addition, the Partnership must maintain a minimum ratio of EBITDA to interest expense, as 
defined, as calculated on a rolling four-quarter basis. Generally, as long as no default exists or would result, the Partaership and AmeriGas OLP 
are permitted to make cash disfributions not more frequently than quarterly in an amoimt not to exceed available cash, as defined, for the 
immediately preceding calendar quarter. 

UGI International 

In March 2011, Antargaz entered into a five -year Senior Facilities Agreement with a consortium of banks ("Senior Facilities Agreement") 
consisting of a €380 ( $514.0 ) variable-rate term loan and a €40 credit facility. The proceeds from the Senior Facilities Agreement term loan 
were used to repay Antargaz' taen-existing Senior Facilities Agreement term loan due March 2011. 

Scheduled matarities under the term loan are €38 ( $51.4 ) due May 2014, €34.2 ( $46.3 ) due May 2015, and €307.8 ( $416.3 ) due 
March 2016. Borrowings under tae Senior Facilities Agreement bear interest at one-, two-, three- or six-month euribor, plus a margin, as defined 
by the Senior Facilities Agreement. There were no amounts outstanding under the Senior Facilities Agreement at September 30, 2013 or 2012 . 
The margin on the term loan and credit facility borrowings (which ranges from 1.75% to 2.50% ) is dependent upon the ratio of Antargaz' total 
net debt to EBITDA, each as defined in the Senior Facilities Agreement. Antargaz has entered into pay-fixed, receive-variable interest rate swaps 
to fix the underlying euribor rate of interest on the term loan at an average rate of approximately 2.45% through September 2015 and, tiiereafter, 
at a rate of 3.71% through the date ofthe term loan's 
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final maturity in March 2016. At September 30, 2013 and 2012 , the effective interest rates on Antargaz' term loan were 4.41% and 4.66% , 
respectively. The Senior Facilities Agreement is collateralized by substantially all of Antargaz' shares in its subsidiaries and by substantially all 
of its accounts receivables. 

In order to finance the purchase of BP's LPG disfribution business in Poland in September 2013, Flaga entered into a $52 U.S. dollar-
denominated three-year term loan which matures in September 2016. The $52 loan bears interest at one- to twelve-monta euribor rates (as 
chosen by Flaga from time to time) plus a margin of 1.25% . Flaga has effectively fixed tae euribor component of the interest rate, and has 
effectively fixed the U.S. dollar value ofthe interest and principal payments payable under the $52 loan, by entering into a cross-currency swap 
arrangement with a bank. At September 30,2013, the effective interest rate on the $52 loan was 1.82% . 

In December 2011, Flaga entered into a €19.1 ( $25.8 ) euro-based variable-rate term loan agreement. Proceeds from the term loan were 
used, in large part, to fimd Flaga's October 2011 acquisition of Shell's LPG propane businesses in Finland, Norway, Sweden and Demnark. The 
term loan matures in October 2016 and bears interest at three-month euribor rates plus a margin. The margin on such borrowings ranges from 
1.175 % to 2.525 % and is based upon certain consolidated equity, retam on assets and debt to EBITDA ratios. Flaga has effectively fixed tae 
euribor component ofthe interest rate on tais term loan at 1.79 % by entering into an interest rate swap agreement. The effective interest rates on 
this term loan at September 30, 2013 and 2012, was 3.85% and 4.35% , respectively. 

In September 2011, Flaga entered into a €40 euro-based variable-rate term loan of which €26.7 ( $36.1 ) matares in August 2016 and €13.3 
( $18.0 ) matares in September 2016. A portion ofthe proceeds from tae loan were used to repay its €24.0 euro-based variable-rate term loan 
which matared during Fiscal 2011. The €40 euro-based term loan bears interest at one- to twelve-month euribor rates (as chosen by Flaga from 
time to time) plus a margin. The margin on such borrowings ranges from 0.23% to 2.55% and is based upon certain consolidated equity, retum 
on assets and debt to EBITDA ratios. Flaga has effectively fixed the euribor component of its interest rate on tais term loan tarough 
September 2016 at 2.68% by entering into interest rate swap agreements. The effective interest rates on Flaga's term loans at September 30, 
2013 and 2012 , were 4.68% and 5.18% , respectively. 

As of September 30,2013 and 2012 , Flaga also has a euro-based variable-rate term loan which had outstanding principal balances of €1.4 
( $1.9 ) and €2.8 ( $3.6 ), respectively. This term loan matiwes in June 2014 and bears interest at three-montii euribor rates plus a margin. The 
margin on such borrowings ranges from 2.625% to 3.50% and is based upon certain consolidated equity, retum on assets and debt to EBITDA 
ratios. Semi-annual principal payments of €0.7 are due on December 31 and June 30 each year throu^ June 2014. Flaga has effectively fixed tiie 
euribor component of tae interest rate on this term loan at 2.16% by entering into an interest rate swap agreement. As of September 30, 2013 and 
2012 , the effective interest rate on this term loan was 5.04% . 

At September 30, 2013 , Flaga has two principal working capital facilities (the "Flaga Credit Agreements") comprising (1) a €46 multi­
currency working capital facility which includes an uncommitted €6 overdraft facility (the "Multi-Currency Working Capital Facility") and (2) a 
euro-denominated working capital facility that provides for borrowings and issuances of guarantees totaling €12 (the "Emo Working Capital 
Facility"). Both tae Muhi-Currency Workmg Capital Facility and the Euro Working Capital Facility expire in September 2014. At 
September 30,2013 and 2012 , tiiere were €0.2 ($0.3 ) and €11.9 ($15.3 ) of borrowings outstanding under the Flaga Credit Agreements. These 
amounts are reflected as bank loans on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. 

Borrowings under the Flaga Credit Agreements generally bear interest at market rates (a daily euro-based rate or three-month euribor 
rates) plus a margin. The weighted-average interest rates on Flaga Credit Agreements borrowings at September 30, 2013 and 2012 , were 4.21% 
and 2.31% , respectively. Issued and outstanding letters of credit, which reduce available borrowings under the Flaga Credit Agreements, totaled 
€28.6 ( $38.7 ) and €19.2 ( $24.7 ) at September 30, 2013 and 2012 , respectively. 

Restrictive Covenants and Guarantees. The Senior Facilities Agreement resfricts the ability of Antargaz to, among other things, incur 
additional indebtedness, make investments, incur liens, and effect mergers, consolidations and sales of assets, and requires Antargaz to maintain 
a ratio of net debt to EBITDA on a French generally accepted accounting basis, as defined in the agreement, that shall not exceed 3.50 to 1.00. 
Under this agreement, Antargaz is generally permitted to make restricted payments, such as dividends if no event of default exists or would exist 
upon payment of such restricted payment. UGI has guaranteed up to €100 of payments under the Senior Facilities Agreement. 

The Flaga term loans, working capital facilities and interest rate and cross currency agreements are guaranteed by UGI. In addition, under 
certain conditions regarding changes in certain financial ratios of UGI, the lending banks may accelerate repayment ofthe debt. 
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UGI Utilities 

In September 2013, UGI UtUities entered into a 364 -day term loan credit agreement ("UGI Utilities Term Loan Credit Agreement") with a 
bank comprising a $175 unsecured term loan facility. The UGI Utilities Term Loan Credit Agreement bears interest at the eurodollar rate for the 
interest period selected, plus a margin of 0.60% . The UGI UtUities Term Loan Credit Agreement terminates on September 22, 2014, but UGI 
Utilities may prepay the loan in whole or in part, without penalty. UGI UtUities borrowed $175 on September 30, 2013, under tae UGI Utilities 
Term Loan Credit Agreement which cash proceeds were used to repay UGI Utilities' $108 million 6.375% Senior Notes due September 30, 
2013, and for other general corporate purposes. On October 30, 2013, UGI Utilities entered into a Note Purchase Agreement which provides for 
the private placement of $ 175 aggregate principal amount of 4.98% Senior Notes due March 26,2044. UGI Utilities expects to use net proceeds 
from the issuance of $175 face amount of 4.98% Senior Notes in March 2014 to repay taen-outstanding borrowings under tae UGI Utilities 
Term Loan Credit Agreement. Because the Company has the intent and ability to refinance tae UGI Utilities Term Loan Credit Agreement on a 
long-term basis, amounts outstanding under the UGI Utilities Term Loan Agreement are classified as long-term on the September 30, 2013 
Consolidated Balance Sheet. 

UGI Utilities has an unsecured credit agreement ("UGI Utilities Credit Agreement") with a group of banks providing for borrowings up to 
$300 (including a $100 sublimit for letters of credit) which expires in October 2015. Under tiie UGI Utilities 2011 Credit Agreement, UGI 
Utilities may borrow at various prevailing market interest rates, including LIBOR and the banks' prime rate, plus a margin. The margin on such 
borrowings ranges from 0.0% to 2.0% and is based upon the credit ratings of certain indebtedness of UGI Utilities. UGI Utilities had $17.5 and 
$9.2 of borrowings outstanding under the UGI Utilities Credit Agreement at September 30, 2013 and 2012 , respectively, which amounts are 
reflected in bank loans on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The weighted-average interest rates on UGI Utilities Credit Agreement borrowings 
at September 30, 2013 and 2012 were 1.18% and 1.21% , respectively. Issued and outstanding letters of credit, which reduce available 
borrowings under tiie UGI Utilities CredU Agreement, totaled $2.0 at September 30,2013 and 2012 . 

Restrictive Covenants. UGI Utilities Credit Agreement requires UGI Utilities not to exceed a ratio of Consolidated Debt to Consolidated Total 
Capital, as defined, of 0.65 to 1.00 . 

Energy Services 

Energy Services has an unsecured credit agreement ("Energy Services Credit Agreement") with a group of lenders providing for 
borrowings of up to $240 (including a $50 sublimit for letters of credit) which expires in June 2016. The Energy Services Credit Agreement can 
be used for general corporate purposes of Energy Services and its subsidiaries. In addition. Energy Services may not pay a dividend unless, after 
giving effect to such dividend payment, tae ratio of Consolidated Total Indebtedness to EBITDA, each as defined in the Energy Services Credit 
Agreement, does not exceed 2.25 to 1.00 . There were $57 and $85 of borrowings outstanding under tiie Energy Services Credit Agreement at 
September 30,2013 and 2012 , respectively. These amounts are refiected as bank loans on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. 

Borrowings under the Energy Services Credit Agreement bear interest at eitaer (i) a rate derived from LIBOR (the "LIBO Rate") plus 
2.5% for each Eurodollar Revolving Loan (as defined in the Energy Services Credit Agreement) or (ii) the Altemate Base Rate plus 1.5% . The 
Altemate Base Rate (as defined in the Energy Services Credit Agreement) is generally tae greater of (a) the Agent Bank's prime rate, (b) the 
federal funds rate plus 0.50% and (c) the one-month LIBO Rate plus 1.0% . The weighted-average interest rates on the Energy Services Credit 
Agreement borrowings at September 30, 2013 and 2012 , were 2.91% and 3.25% , respectively. The Energy Services Credit Agreement is 
guaranteed by certain subsidiaries of Energy Services. 

Restrictive Covenants. The Energy Services Credit Agreement resfricts the ability of Energy Services to dispose of assets, effect certain 
consolidations or mergers, incur indebtedness and guaranty obligations, create liens, make acquisitions or investments, make certain dividend or 
other disfributions and make any material changes to the natare of its businesses. In addition, the Energy Services Credit Agreement requires 
Energy Services to not exceed a ratio of Consolidated Total Indebtedness, as defined, to Consolidated EBITDA, as defined; a minimum ratio of 
Consolidated EBITDA to Consolidated Interest Expense, as defined; a maximum ratio of ConsoUdated Total Indebtedness to Consolidated Total 
Capitalization, as defined, at any time when Consolidated Total Indebtedness is greater than $250 ; and a minimum Consolidated Net Worth, as 
defined, of $200. 

Energy Services also has a receivables securitization facility (see Note 19). 
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Restricted Net Assets 

At September 30, 2013 , the amount of net assets of UGl's consolidated subsidiaries that was resfricted from transfer to UGI under debt 
agreements, subsidiary partaership agreements and regulatory requirements under foreign laws totaled approximately $ 1,500 . 

Note 7 — Income Taxes 

Income before income taxes comprises the following: 
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Federal income taxes for Fiscal 2013 and Fiscal 2012 are net of foreign tax credits of $34.9 and $5.2 , respectively. 

A reconciliation from the U.S. federal statatory tax rate to our effective tax rate is as follows: 
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The effects of foreign operations in the table above for Fiscal 2012 reflects the impact of tax efficient stmctaring of certain of our 
intemational operations and, as a result ofthe Fiscal 2012 Shell Transaction, also reflects a greater proportion of pretax income in counfries in 
which the statatory income tax rate is less tiian the U.S. statatory tax rate. The tax restmctaring of certain of our intemational operations also 
permitted us to reduce om foreign tax credit valuation allowance by $4.6 during Fiscal 2012 which is included as a valuation allowance 
adjustment in the table above. 

Eamings ofthe Company's foreign subsidiaries are generally subject to U.S. taxation upon repatriation to tae U.S. and the Company's tax 
provision reflects the related incremental U.S. tax except for certain foreign subsidiaries whose unremitted eamings are considered to be 
indefinitely reinvested. Because of the availability of U.S. foreign tax credits, it is likely no U.S. tax would be due if such eamings were 
repatriated. 

Pennsylvania utility ratemaking practice permits the flow through to ratepayers of state tax benefits resulting from accelerated tax 
depreciation. For Fiscal 2013, Fiscal 2012 and Fiscal 2011, the beneficial effects of state tax flow tarough of accelerated depreciation reduced 
income tax expense by $1.5 , $3.2 and $7.9 , respectively. The state tax flow through amounts in Fiscal 2012 and Fiscal 2011 reflect tae impact 
of 2010 U.S. Federal tax legislation that allowed taxpayers to fully deduct qualifying capital expenditmes incurred after September 8, 2010, 
through the end of calendar 2011, when such property was placed in service before 2012. This legislation was also permitted for Pennsylvania 
state corporate income tax purposes. 

Deferred tax liabilities (assets) comprise the following at September 30: 
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At September 30, 2013 , foreign net operating loss carryforwards principally relating to Flaga and certain operations of Antargaz totaled 
$47.7 and $5.3 , respectively, with no expiration dates. We have state net operating loss carryforwards primarily relating to certain subsidiaries 
which approximate $224.9 and expire through 2033 . We also have operating loss carryforwards of $15.7 for certain operations of AmeriGas 
Propane that expire through 2033 . At September 30, 2013 , deferred tax assets relating to operating loss carryforwards include $11.0 for Flaga, 
$1.8 for Antargaz, $0.9 for UGI Intemational Holdings BV, $6.1 for AmeriGas Propane and $17.6 for certain other subsidiaries. A valuation 
allowance of $13.5 has been provided for deferred tax assets related to state net operating loss carryforwards and other state deferred tax assets 
of certain subsidiaries because, on a state reportable basis, it is more likely than not that these assets will expire unused. Valuation allowances for 
net operating loss tax benefits decreased by $4.7 primarily due to changes in entities that will now allow carryforward use of previously incurred 
losses. A valuation allowance of $7.9 was also provided for deferred tax assets related to certain operations of Antargaz, Flaga and UGI 
Intemational Holdings B V. Operating activities and tax deductions related to the exercise of non-qualified stock options contributed to the state 
net operating losses disclosed above. We first recognize tae utilization of state net operating losses from operations 
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(which exclude the impact of tax deductions for exercises of non-qualified stock options) to reduce income tax expense. Then, to the extent state 
net operating loss carryforwards, if realized, relate to non-qualified stock option deductions, the resulting benefits will be credited to UGI 
Corporation stockholders' equity. The table of deferred tax assets and liabilities do not include $5.6 for Fiscal 2013 and $4.6 for Fiscal 2012 of 
deferred tax assets and associated valuation allowance for unrealized state tax benefits for equity compensation deductions. 

We have foreign tax credit carryforwards of approximately $81.8 expiring through 2023 resulting from the actaal and planned repafriation 
of Antargaz' accumulated eamings since acquisition which are includable in U.S. taxable income. Because we expect that these credits will 
expire imused, a valuation allowance has been provided for the entire foreign tax credit carryforward amount. The valuation allowance for all 
deferred tax assets increased by $20.6 in Fiscal 2013 due to an increase in unusable foreign tax credits of $26.3 partially offset by decreases in 
unusable state and federal operating loss tax benefits of $4.7 and $1.0 , respectively, as a result of changes in entity statas. 

We conduct business and file tax retams in the U.S., numerous states, local jurisdictions and in France and certain other European 
counfries. Our U.S. federal income tax retums are settled through the 2009 tax year, our French tax retams are settled through tae 2009 tax year. 
Our Austrian tax retums are settled through 2007 and our other Emopean tax retams are effectively settled for various years from 2005 to 2010. 
State and other income tax retums in the U.S. are generally subject to examination for a period of three to five years after the filing of the 
respective retams. 

As of September 30, 2013 , we have unrecognized income tax benefits totaling $3.6 including related accmed interest of $0.2 . If taese 
unrecognized tax benefits were subsequently recognized, $2.4 would be recorded as a benefit to income taxes on tae Consolidated Statement of 
Income and, therefore, would impact the reported effective tax rate. Generally, a net reduction in unrecognized tax benefits could occur because 
ofthe expiration ofthe statate of limitations in certain jurisdictions or as a resuU of settlements with tax authorities. Included in the balance at 
September 30, 2013 , are $1.1 of tax positions for which tae deductibihty is highly certain but for which taere is uncertainty about the timing of 
such deductibility. Because of the impact of deferred tax accounting, tae disallowance of the current deduction would not affect tae annual 
effective tax rate but would accelerate the payment of cash to the taxing authority to an earlier period. There is an expected change in 
unrecognized tax benefits and related interest in the next twelve months in tae amount of $0.7 . 

A reconciliation ofthe beginning and ending amounts of unrecognized tax benefits is as follows: 

Balance at September 30; 2010 ' ' '' " " '$ -̂  ~- "sA 
Additions for tax positions ofthe current year 0.4 
Additions for tax positions t^en in prior years ^ -• - • - ' 1.0 
Settlements with tax authorities (0.5) 

Balance at September^O, 2011 , , - " • - - ' ^ '6.3 
Additions for tax positions ofthe current year 0.5 
Additions for tax .positions taken in prior years . . . ^ . . - Qg 

Settlements with tax authorities (4.5) 

Balance at September 30,2012 . ~ 2.9 
Additions for tax positions of the current year 0.7 
Settlements with tax authorities ' - ' - • -(0.2) 

Balance at September 30,2013 $ 3.4 

Note 8 — Employee Retirement Plans 

Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans. In the U.S., we currently sponsor one defined benefit pension plan for employees 
hired prior to January 1, 2009, of UGI, UGI Utilities, PNG, CPG and certain of UGl's other domestic wholly owned subsidiaries ("U.S. Pension 
Plan"). 

We also provide posfretirement heahh care benefits to certain retirees and active employees and posfretirement life insurance benefits to 
nearly all domestic active and retired employees. In addition, Antargaz employees are covered by certain defined 
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benefit pension and posfretirement plans. Although the disclosures in tae tables below include amounts related to the Antargaz plans, such 
amounts are not material. 

The following table provides a reconciliation of the projected benefit obligations ("PBOs") of tiie U.S. Pension Plan and the Antargaz 
pension plans, tae accumulated benefit obligations ("ABOs") of our other postretirement benefit plans, plan assets, and the fimded statas of 
pension and otiier posfretirement plans as of September 30, 2013 and 2012 . ABO is the present value of benefits eamed to date with benefits 
based upon current compensation levels. PBO is ABO increased to reflect estimated future compensation. 
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Benefit obligations — beginning of year 
:\S:^icecQst,.;". / t - ' y ••yAAyyA''A<rAy 

Interest cost 

; >Actumal^^m)^pss;^7'.;/_^/; ,"",ZJC-̂ v/ / .':-< 
Plan amendments 

-'-Acquisitions //•: 
Foreign currency 

\^eti0ii'i^aid- A}^y''-<'-yk-:::Ay''-y:yA^ 

Benefit obligations — end of year 

'CKaitge;in.pian:assets:'n:^ •AX-'A'^-^'->.:^:••''•V-V 

Fair value of plan assets — beginning of year 
V-:Acm l̂gaintmj)Iffin<assetsv'v/̂ ^̂  :;'v;̂ -",;y-ic,̂ " 

Foreign currency 
\ Employer cpnfributi^ons'S:. :̂ ^ 
Acquisitions 

::Beriefife}paid A'A:.'A'\Â y tA-yA.O'̂ .-yk:y -

Fair value of plan assets — end of year 

Funded status ofthe plans — end of year 

$ 
< ; ; • « 

$ 

$' 

• - J ' - 1 ' 

$ 

$ 

Pension 
Benefits 

2013 
- • ' , • • . • f ' , ' . " , • ' • ' ' ' , ' - ' - v i - ' ',,'. 

573.4 $ 
:^t'M}:'mi:t^.y>^A 

23.8 
^;2;,;;: •v;(72.7)gA;. S 

1.0 
; • - " ' ' ' , — ; , - / : . . ; ' : 

1.5 

'k:'yr^<A(2imyy: 
516.5 $ 

369.9 $ 
yt-ry^42^2y::Ayy 

0.8 
y y ^ y ^ ^ ' A - f i y 

— 

-ym'^-^m^^ 
415.3 $ 

(101.2) $ 

2012 

462.9 S 

•?P:yAk^;mi^i^'^.i 
25.1 

..'£MMy:A..::y, 
0.1 

- y y ^ m - y y 
(0.7) 

iy-: :{i i2myyy 
573.4 $ 

-y '^y^yAy^-Ay:^ 
290.0 $ 

\' 'y'y'SlXyy'^'^ 
(0.5) 

• l y y i ^ i m - y - ' y 
17.3 

A y M m ^ ' r ^ y 
369.9 $ 

(203.5) $ 

Other Posfretirement 
Benefits 

2013 2012 

^t«4-llf^;€^!5K•.i^;^'!S*^; ;S.-^:.^&:' 
24.7 $ 20.5 

mmmP-^^^yyi^^^og; 
0.9 1.1 

Ayy^-:::m!calt^J-:My' 
(1.8) 1.0 

.^r::'--':--l-''^-:""'.,V''-''""V" '̂v ^-t^' 

0.2 (0.1) 
/•;•;: .:^.''|i.3)-$*£^'(:5fc3^^^^1l':4): 

19.7 $ 24.7 

11.2 $ 9.8 

;v:-;i;':4?t^-f'>y,;^^>^;dv7-' 
— — 

lAymyAyiyAAy 
— — 

'yym-f£mm/&yr-m>} 
11.7 $ 11.2 

(8.0) $ (13.5) 

Assets Oiabilities) recorded in the balance sheet: 
X iAssefe in^excess ̂ f l iabilitie^^^t^Med^^ 
-''-'y^^st^y'-XyyAyy^^ 
Unfunded liabilities — included in otaer current liabilities 
llhfurided liabilities ,#TJhciud^^^ 

(17.9) (15.8) 
At:$M 

(0.4) (0.6) 

Net amount recognized 

Amounts recorded in UGI Corporation stockholders' equity 
(pre-tax): 

Prior service credit 

-"^;Net'actaarial,loss(gain)^>''( '̂ ŷyA-̂ '-' ^̂ ŷ ~ ^ '"' .y^A-'.-i^-y 

Total 

$ 

$ 

$ 

(101.2) 

(0.1) 
>^r :̂/::i6;7:v-

16.6 

$ 

$ 

$ 

(203.5) 

(0.1) 
y y c M ^ \ . 

25.2 

$ 

$ 
'y 'r .--A-A' 

S 

(8.0) 

', , ; i . ' . ' , " , , • . V ^ 

(0.1) 

y M ^ A 
(0.5) 

$ 

• • - " • ' ' " ' ' • ' 

$ 
• ' ° : ' - ' ' ' : ^ ; / -

$ 

(13.5) 

•- .•• . . , , A • • % • 

(0.1) 

:̂ -v:;v'"tê  
0.3 

Amounts recorded ih regulatory assets and :lial>iliti^l(prer 
tax):""--; '^'^'•" V ' 'A : 

Prior service cost (credit) 

..Net-actuarialloss •" .'•'''•^.','"-' ^̂ '>'-'" 

Total 

2.2 
.91;3^ 

93.5 $ 

1.5 
J84.5; 
186.0 $ 

(4.3) 
3.6\ 

(0.7) $ 

(2.8) 
;:5;8^ 

3.0 

In Fiscal 2014 , we estimate that we will amortize approximately $7.8 of net actaarial losses, primarily associated with the U.S. Pension 
Plan, and $0.2 of prior service credits from UGI stockholders' equity and regulatory assets into retiree benefit cost. 

Actaarial assumptions for our domestic plans are described below. Assumptions for the Antargaz plans are based upon market conditions 
in France. The discount rate assumption was determined by selecting a hypothetical portfolio of high quality corporate bonds appropriate to 
provide for the projected benefit payments ofthe plans. The discount rate was then developed as 
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the single rate that equates the market value ofthe bonds purchased to the discounted value ofthe plans' benefit payments. The expected rate of 
retam on assets assumption is based on tae current and expected asset allocations as well as historical and expected retams on various categories 
of plan assets (as further described below). 

Wei^ted-average assfrmptions::. 
Discount rate - benefit obligations 
Discount rate^^ benefit epst . / 
Expected retum on plan assets 

• Rate of increase iii Salarylle '̂els ;; 

Pension Plan 

2013 

5.20% 
4.20%: 
7.75% 
3125%: 

2012 

4.20% 

;5^30^-
7.75% 

2011(a) 

5.30% 
;; ;v5:(K)%-: 

8.00% 

Other Postretirement Benefits 

2013 2012 

5.10%-5.40% 

4:lG%^A^(^y 
5.00% 

4.10%-4.30% 

AA ':AyO-'.-S^P%:-
' 5.20% 

2011 

3:25^: ;/3:25%^ 

5.30% 

•5.06%, 

5.50%-

(a) Effective December 31, 2010, we merged our then-existing two U.S. defined benefit pension plans ("U.S. Pension Plans Merger") to form 
the U.S. Pension Plan. The discount rates used during Fiscal 2011 to calculate pension expense were rates of 5.0% through December 31, 
2010 (the date of tiie U.S. Pension Plans Merger) and 5.5% for the remainder of Fiscal 2011. 

The ABOs for the U.S. Pension Plan were $451.3 and $496.4 as of September 30, 2013 and 2012 , respectively. 

Net periodic pension expense and other posfretirement benefit cost includes the following components: 

Service cost 
Interest cost 
Expected retum on assets 
Curtailment gain 
r̂n<M îzatiomc£̂ v̂̂ -ff̂ -̂  
Prior service cost (benefit) 

^ ,̂̂ Actaarial;losS/;̂ '̂;;';'̂ -''̂ :̂ ^ '̂yS-k̂ A^A :̂ 
Net benefit cost (income) 

Chahgciri;̂  associated r e^^^ 

Net benefit cost after change in regulatory liabilities 

Pension Benefits 
2013 2012 

$ 11.3 $ 9.3 $ 
23.8 25.1 

(27.8) (26.2) 
— — mmmmAimyy 
0.3 0.2 

-•-• .<-.<• <.•-'•.-'••-• ^ ^ • ^ ^ . . ^ • / . r ' ' . ^ - , . . - ' - J < S f n - . . - .-^r ,-. 

22.1 16.8 
— — 

$ 22.7 $ 16.8 $ 

2011 

8.8 
24.1 

(25.8) 
— 

-\l:̂ Xy;A% 

0.2 

'W;7Ss 
14.8 

— 

14.8 

Otaer Posfretirement Benefits 
2013 2012 2011 

$ 0.6 $ 6.4 $ -0.4 
0.9 1.1 1.1 

(0.5) (0.5) (0.5) 
- - (3.2) 

Ay-^yy^^y^Ay'y::'A.:yyk-^AAy'- ty.y^-'A'Xy 
(0.3) (0.3) (0.7) 

^̂ ?M:̂ dfe-iĵ M ŝ̂ M^ 
1.1 1.0 (2.5) 
3.3 3.2 _ 3.1 

$ 4.4 $ 4.2 $ 0.6 

U.S. Pension Plan's assets are held in tmst. It is our general policy to fimd amounts for U.S. Pension Plan benefits equal to at least the 
minimum required contribution set forta in applicable employee benefit laws. From time to time we may, at our discretion, contribute additional 
amounts. During Fiscal 2013 , Fiscal 2012 and Fiscal 2011 , we made cash confributions to the U.S. Pension Plan of $22.4 , $31.2 and $18.7 
respectively. We believe that in Fiscal 2014 we will be required to make confributions to the U.S. Pension Plan totaling approximately $18 . 

UGI Utilities has established a Voluntary Employees' Beneficiary Association ("VEBA") tmst to pay retiree healta care and life insurance 
benefits by depositing into the VEBA the annual amount of postretirement benefits costs determined under GAAP. The difference between such 
amounts and amounts included in UGI Gas' and Electric Utility's rates is deferred for ftitare recovery from, or refimd to, ratepayers. The 
required confributions to tae VEBA during Fiscal 2014 are not expected to be material. 
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Expected payments for pension benefits and for other posfretirement welfare benefits are as follows: 

Pension 
Benefits 

Fiscal 2019-2023 

24.4 

28.8 

164.3 

Other 
Posfretirement 

Benefits 

1.2 

VSfyAiMSMi 
Ll 

'̂  —•£^-

The assumed domestic health care cost trend rates for Fiscal 2013 are 7.0% during Fiscal 2013, decreasing to 5.0% in Fiscal 2017. The 
assumed domestic health care cost trend rates as of September 30, 2013, are 7.5% decreasing to 5.0% in Fiscal 2019. A one percentage point 
change in the assumed health care cost trend rate would not have a material impact on the Fiscal 2012 other postretirement benefit cost or 
September 30,2013 , otiier posfretirement benefit ABO. 

We also sponsor unfimded and non-qualified supplemental executive retirement plans ("Supplemental Defined Benefit Plans"). Al 
September 30,2013 and 2012 , the PBOs of these plans were $33.9 and $29.5 ,respectively. We recorded pre-tax costs for these plans of $3.0 in 
Fiscal 2013 , $3.0 in Fiscal 2012 and $3.0 in Fiscal 2011 . These costs are not included in tae tables above. Amounts recorded in UGl's 
stockholders' equity for these plans include pre-tax losses of $9.4 and $11.0 at September 30, 2013 and 2012 , respectively, principally 
representing unrecognized actaarial losses. We expect to amortize approximately $0.6 of such pre-tax actaarial losses into retiree benefit cost in 
Fiscal 2014 . During Fiscal 2013, the Company made payments with respect to the Supplemental Defined Benefit Plans totaling $21.6 , 
including $21.0 to fund self-directed grantor tmsts established by tiie Company for participants who chose to defer taeir Supplemental Defined 
Benefit Plan payment upon retirement. The total fair value of these tmst assets, which are included in other assets on tae Consolidated Balance 
Sheets, totaled $23.7 mUlion and $2.0 million at September 30,2013 and 2012, respectively. 

U.S. Pension Plan and VEBA Assets. The assets ofthe U.S. Pension Plan and the VEBA are held in tmst. The investment policies and assel 
allocation sfrategies for the assets in these trusts are determined by an investment committee comprising officers of UGI and UGI Utilities. Tht 
overall investment objective of the U.S. Pension Plan and the VEBA is to achieve the best long-term rates of retam within pmdent anc 
reasonable levels of risk. To achieve tae stated objective, investments are made principally in publicly-traded diversified equity and fixed income 
mutaal fimds and UGI Common Stock. 

The targets, target ranges and actaal allocations for the U.S. Pension Plan and VEBA trust assets at September 30 are as follows: 

U.S. Pension Plan 

l K i i l S i ^ ^ ^ f t i ® ^ # ' * i fii vHA-fŷ f- ••'•• 
Domestic 

|rnteinationsJ t- -, < 
Total 

lixe'd incomeifimds3& cash equivalents 

Total 

Actaal 

2013 

57.5% 

11.1% 
68.6% 
31.4% 

100.0% 

2012 

53.5% 
10.5% 

64.0% 
36.0% 

100.0% 

Target 
Asset 

Allocation 

52 5% 
12.5% 

65.0% 
35.0% 

100.0% 

Permitted 
Range 

40.0% - 65 0% 
7.5% -17.5% ' 

60 0% - 70 0% 

30.0% - 40.0% 

F-36 



Table of Contents 
UGI Corporation and Subsidiaries 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
(Millions of dollars and euros, except per share amounts and where indicated otherwise) 

VEBA 

Pomestic equity investments 
Fixed income funds & cash equivalents 

Total 

Actaal 

2013 

65.6% 
34.4% 

100.0% 

2012 

68.5% 
31.5% 

100.0% 

Target 
Asset 

Allocation 

^ 65.0%" 
35.0% 

100.0%-

Permitted 
Range 

60.0%: 76:0%' ' 
30.0% - 40.0% 

Domestic equity investments include investments in large-cap mutaal funds indexed to the S&P 500 and actively managed mid- and small-
cap mutaal fimds. Investments in intemational equity mutaal fimds seek to frack performance of companies primarily in developed markets. The 
fixed income investments comprise investments designed to match the performance and duration of the Barclays U.S. Aggregate Index, 
According to statate, the aggregate holdings of all qualifying employer securities may not exceed 10% ofthe fair value of tmst assets at the time 
of purchase. UGI Common Stock represented 8.2% and 7.5% of U.S. Pension Plan assets at September 30, 2013 and 2012 , respectively. 

GAAP establishes a hierarchy taat prioritizes fair value measurements based upon the inputs and valuation techniques used to measure fair 
value. This fair value hierarchy groups assets into three levels, as described in Note 2 . We maximize tae use of observable inputs and minimize 
the use of unobservable inputs when determining fair value. The fair values of U.S. Pension Plan and VEBA trust assets are derived from quoted 
market prices as substantially all of these instruments have active markets. Cash equivalents are valued at the fimd's unit net asset value as 
reported by the tmstee. 
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The fair values ofthe U.S. Pension Plan and VEBA tmst assets at September 30,2013 and 2012 , by asset class are as follows: 

mm^^S 
Domestic equity investments: 

^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ S J i & m u t a a l fimds . 
Small and midcap equity mutaal funds 

Total domestic equity investments 
ffii^^^^^^m^^^QiSit^'*mu6ial fiinds 
Fixed income investments: 

Cash equivalents 

^pr6tm|i^Mii^nSe''investinents 
Total 

S&P 500 Index equity mutaal funds 
^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ S u a U m d f 

UGI Corporation Common Stock 

^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ f i W K i s t m e n f s T J 
Intemational index equity mutaal funds 

Bond index mutaal funds 

Quoted Prices 
in Active 

Markets for 
Identical Assets 
and Liabilities 

(Level 1) 

$ 141.8 
54 5 
32,6 

228.9 
44.4, 

120.9-

120.9 

$ 394.2 

$ 

$ 

U.S. Pension Plan 

Significant 
Other 

Observable 
Inputs 

(Level 2) 

— 

40 

fO, 
40 

$ 

~ 

, 

$ 

Unobservable 
Inputs 

(Level 3) 

— $ 

— ' ~ 

__ 

— $ 

Total 

^ -I 

141.8 ' 
54.5 
32.6 

228.9 
44.4 , 

120.9 
4.0 

124.9 ' 
398 2 

118.9 
42.9 
26.4 

188.r 
36.9 

123.3 

123.3 _ 

348.4 $ 

3 . 1 , _ 

3A_ 

3.1 $-

118.9 
A2'^ 
26.4 

'188.2' 
36.9 

123.3 
" 3.1 
126.4 
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VEBA 
Quoted Prices 

in Active 
Markets for 

Identical Assets 
and Liabilities 

(Level 1) 

Significant 
Other 

Observable 
Inputs 

(Level 2) 

Unobservable 
Inputs 

(Level 3) Total 

Septei)iber30,2pl3: ^ f J C 
S&P 500 Index equity mutual fiind 
Bond index mutual fund 
Cash equivalents 

Total 

September 30,2012: 
fS^|5p^|fedex equity mutual fimd 
Bond index mutual fund 
^da^l^myalents 
Total 

':' •,",'..' 

$ 

$ 

$ . 

$ 

l̂ f̂ f:-̂ -'':%. 

1.1 
3.8 
— 

11.5 

7.7 
3.4 
—_ 

11.1 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

— $ 
— 
0.2 

0 . 2 _ $ ' . / , 

— _ $ • • 

0.1 
0.1 $ 

— 

— 

— 

V — . 

_ . 

— 

7.7 

3.8 

0.2 

11.7 

7.7 

3.4 

.6.1 
11.2 

The expected long-term rates of retum on U.S. Pension Plan and VEBA tmst assets have been developed using a best estimate of expected 
retums- volatilities and correlations for each asset class. The estimates are based on historical capital market performance data and futare 
expectations provided by independent consultants. Futme expectations are determined by using simulations that provide a wide range of 
scenarios of futare market performance. The market conditions in taese simulations consider the long-term relationships between equities and 
fixed income as well as current market conditions at the start ofthe simulation. The expected rate begins with a risk-free rate of retam wita other 
factors being added such as inflation, dmation, credit spreads and equity risk premiums. The rates of retum derived from this process are applied 
to our target asset allocation to develop a reasonable retum assumption. 

Deflned Contribution Plans. We sponsor 401(k) savings plans for eligible employees of UGI and certain of UGl's domestic subsidiaries. 
Generally, participants in taese plans may contribute a portion of taeir compensation on either a before-tax basis, or on both a before-tax and 
after-tax basis. These plans also provide for employer matching contributions at various rates. The cost of benefits under the savings plans 
totaled $14.0 in Fiscal 2013 , $13.7 in Fiscal 2012 and $10.4 in Fiscal 2011 . The Company also sponsors certain nonqualified supplemental 
defined contribution executive retirement plans. These plans generally provide supplemental benefits to certain executives that would otherwise 
be provided under retirement plans but are prohibited due to limhations imposed by tae Intemal Revenue Code. Costs associated wita these 
plans were not material in Fiscal 2013, Fiscal 2012 or Fiscal 2011. 
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Note 9 — Utility Regulatory Assets and Liabilities and Regulatory Matters 

The following regulatory assets and liabilities associated with Utilities are included in om accompanying balance sheets 

2013 

Income taxes recoverable $ 106.1 '. 

Environmental costs 17.1 

Removal costs, net 13.3 

Total regulatory assets $ 244.9 I 

at September 30: 

2012 

103.2 

16.8 

12.7 

338.4 

|Refemara^uabmttes:lp^^ 
Postretirement benefits 16.5 S 13.1 

MiUvaronmiKitil 
Deferred fiiel and power refimds 
^M^^^^P9^B&s|iilSt(Shli§'^eriij:epair§ ' ^ 
Other 

8.3 4.4 

^ ^ M ^ '{MMmMmSW!^Ml^lMmM&^ 

Income taxes recoverable . This regulatory asset is the result of recording deferred tax liabilities pertaining to temporary tax differences 
principally as a resuh of the pass through to ratepayers of accelerated tax depreciation for state income tax purposes, and the flow through of 
accelerated tax depreciation for federal income tax purposes for certain years prior to 1981. These deferred taxes have been reduced by deferred 
tax assets pertaining to utility deferred investment tax credits. Utilities has recorded regulatory income tax assets related to these deferred tax 
liabilities representing futare revenues recoverable tiirough the ratemaking process over the average remaining depreciable lives ofthe associatec 
property ranging from 1 to approximately 50 years. 

Underfunded pension and other postretirement plans . This regulatoty asset represents the portion of prior service cost and net actaarial losse; 
associated with pension and other posfretirement benefits which are probable of being recovered through futare rates based upon establishec 
regulatory practices. These regulatory assets are adjusted annually or more frequently under certain circumstances when the fimded statas of thi 
plans is recorded in accordance with GAAP. These costs are amortized over the average remaining futme service lives of plan participants. 

Environmental costs. Environmental costs represent amounts actaally spent by UGI Gas to clean up sites in Pennsylvania as well as the portio 
of estimated probable fiitare environmental remediation and investigation costs principally at manufactiired gas plant ("MGP") sites taat CP< 
and PNG expect to incur in conjunction with remediation consent orders and agreements with tae Pennsylvania Department of Environmentj 
Protection (see Note 16 ). UGI Gas is currently permitted to include in rates, through futare base rate proceedings, a five-year average c 
pmdently incurred remediation costs at Peimsylvania sites. PNG and CPG are currently recovering and expect to continue to recovt 
environmental remediation and mvestigation costs in base rate revenues. At September 30, 2013 , the period over which PNG and CPG expect 
recover these costs will depend upon futare remediation activity. 

Deferred fuel and power — costs and refunds. Gas UtUity's and Electric Utility's tariffs contain clauses which permit recovery of all pmdent 
incurred purchased gas and power costs tarough the application of pmchased gas cost ("PGC") rates in the case of Gas Utility and delivei 
service ("DS") tariffs in the case of Elecfric Utility. The clauses provide for periodic adjustments to PGC and DS rates for differences betwes 
the total amount of purchased gas and electric generation supply costs collected from customers and recoverable costs incurred. N 
undercoUected costs are classified as a regulatory asset and net overcoUections are classified as a regulatory liability. 

Gas Utility uses derivative financial instmments to reduce volatility in the cost of gas it pmchases for firm- residential, commercial ai 
industtial ("retail core-market") customers. Realized and unrealized gains or losses on nataral gas derivative 
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financial instruments are included in deferred fiiel costs or refunds. Net unrealized (losses) gains on such confracts at September 30, 2013 and 
2012 were $(1.7) and $5.3 , respectively. 

Elecfric Utility enters into forward electricity purchase confracts to meet a substantial portion of its elecfricity supply needs. Because these 
confracts currently do not qualify for the normal pmchases and normal sales exception under GAAP related to derivative financial instruments, 
these electricity supply contracts are recognized on the balance sheet at fair value with an associated adjustment to regulatory assets or liabilities 
in accordance wita GAAP related to rate-regulated entities. At September 30, 2013 and 2012 , the fair values of Electric Utility's elecfricity 
supply contracts were losses of $4.8 and $9.2 , respectively, which amounts are reflected in current derivative financial instmments and other 
noncurrent liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets with equal and offsetting amounts refiected in deferred fuel and power costs in the 
table above. 

In order to reduce volatility associated with a substantial portion of its elecfric fransmission congestion costs, Elecfric Utility obtains 
financial fransmission rights ("FTRs"). FTRs are derivative financial instmments that entitle the holder to receive compensation for electticity 
fransmission congestion charges when there is insufficient elecfricity fransmission capacity on the elecfric fransmission grid. Because Elecfric 
Utility is entitled to fiilly recover its DS costs, realized and unrealized gains or losses on FTRs are included in deferred fliel and power costs or 
deferred fuel and power refunds. At September 30,2013 and 2012, such gains or losses were not material. 

Removal costs, net. This regulatory asset represents costs incurred, net of salvage, associated with the retirement of depreciable utility plant. At 
September 30,2013 , UGI Utilities expects to recover these costs over periods of i to 5 years. 

Postretirement benefits, Gas Utility and Electtic Utility are recovering ongoing posfretirement benefit costs at amounts permitted by the PUC in 
prior base rate proceedings. With respect to UGI Gas and Elecfric UtiUty, the difference between the amounts recovered through rates and the 
actaal costs incurred in accordance with accounting for posfretirement benefits are being deferred for future refund to or recovery from 
ratepayers. Such amounts are reflected in regulatory liabilities in tae table above. In addition, this regulatory liability includes the portion of prior 
service credits and net actaarial gains associated with certain other posfretirement benefit plans. 

Environmental overcoUections. This regulatory liability represents the difference between amounts recovered in rates and actaal costs incurred 
(net of insurance proceeds) associated with tae terms of a consent order agreement between CPG and tae Peimsylvania Department of 
Environmental Protection to remediate certain gas plant sites. 

State income tax benefits — distribution system repairs. This regulatory liability represents Pennsylvania state income tax benefits, net of 
federal income tax expense, resulting from the deduction for income tax purposes of repair and maintenance costs associated with Gas Utility or 
Electric Utility assets which are capitalized for regulatory and GAAP reporting. The tax benefits associated wita these repair and maintenance 
deductions will be reflected as a reduction to income tax expense over the remaining tax lives ofthe related book assets. 

Other . Other regulatory assets comprise a number of items including, among others, deferred posfretirement costs, deferred asset retirement 
costs, deferred rate case expenses, customer choice implementation costs and deferred software development costs. At September 30, 2013 , UGI 
Utilities expects to recover these costs over periods of approximately 1 to 5 years . 

UGI Utilities' regulatory liabilities relating to posfretirement beneflts, environmental overcoUections and state tax benefits — distribution 
system repairs are included in other noncurrent liabilities on the ConsoUdated Balance Sheets. UGI Utilities does not recover a rate of retam on 
its regulatory assets. 

Other Regulatory Matters 

Allentown, Pennsylvania Natural Gas Incident. On February 19, 2013, tae PUC entered a final order (the "Final Order") settling all regulatoty 
compliance issues pertaining to a nataral gas explosion on Febmary 9, 2011, in Allentown, PA. The Final Order requires UGI Utilities to (i) pay 
a civil penalty in the amount of $0.5 ; (ii) conduct a pilot new technology leak detection program in Allentown; and (iii) accept new reporting 
requirements governing its agreed upon 14 -year cast iron and 30 -year bare steel pipeline replacement program and distribution integrity 
management program. The Final Order makes no findings that UGI Utilities has violated any regulation or operating procedure. The Company 
does not believe that the cost of complying with the requirements of the Final Order will have a material impact on UGI Utilities' consolidated 
financial position, results of operations or cash flows. 
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CPG Base Rate Filing. On August 11,2011, the PUC approved a settlement agreement with CPG that resulted in an increase in annual base rati 
revenues of $8.0 as well as $0.9 in revenues per year to fimd system improvements and operations necessary to maintain safe and reliable natura 
gas service and fimd new programs that would provide rebates and other incentives for customers to install new high-efficiency equipmeni 
(collectively, "Energy and Efficiency Conservation Program"). The increase became effective August 30, 2011. During Fiscal 2012, tiie PUC 
reveraed its earlier decision related to the $0.9 increase in revenues associated with the Energy and Efficiency Conservation Program am 
required CPG to refimd revenue it had collected for taat program. 

Transfers of Assets . On Febmary 1, 2012, CPG filed an application with the PUC for review and approval of the fransfer of an 11 -mile natara 
gas pipeline, related facilities and right of way located in Delmar Township, Pennsylvania ("TL-96 line") to Energy Services. The PUC 
approved the fransfer and, in April 2013, the TL-96 line was dividended to UGI and subsequentiy contributed to Energy Services. The net boot 
value ofthe TL-96 line is approximately $2.6 . 

On October 21,2010, the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission ("FERC") approved and later affirmed CPG's application to abandon i 
storage service and approved tae transfer of its Tioga, Meeker and Wharton nataral gas storage facilities, along with related assets, to UGI 
Storage Company, a subsidiary of Energy Services. The PUC approved the fransfer subject to, among other things, a reduction in base rates anc 
CPG's agreement to charge PGC customers, for a period of three years, no more for storage services from the fransferred assets than they woulc 
have paid before the fransfer, to the extent used. On April 1, 2011, the storage facilities were dividended to UGI and subsequently contributed tc 
UGI Storage Company. The net book value of tae storage facility assets was $10.9 . Compliance wita the provisions ofthe PUC Ordei 
approving the transfer of tae storage assets did not have a material impact on the results of operations of Gas Utility. Concurrent with the April 1, 
2011 transfer, CPG entered into a one -year firm storage service agreement with UGI Storage Company. 

On December 1, 2010, PNG filed an application wita the PUC for expedited review and approval ofthe fransfer of a 9 -mile natmal gas 
pipeline, related facilities, and right of way located in Mehoopany, Pennsylvania (the "Aubum Line") to Energy Services. The PUC approved the 
fransfer and in September 2011 the Aubum Line was dividended to UGI and subsequentiy confributed to Energy Services. The net book value oi 
the Aubum Line was $1.1. 

Note 10 — Inventories 

Inventories comprise tae following at September 30: 

^ S t y - X E ^ ^ d h a t i f a a g a s j 
Gas UtUity natmal gas 

^ ^ ^ l u p | U e # a n j i t i i % » -

Total inventories 

%^ ^ 

% 

2013 

^ 230,0 

78.9 

. *̂  -56.6 

365.5 

$ 

$ 

2012 

. 23^.9 

57.7 

.̂ -58̂ 5 

354.1 

At September 30, 2013 , UGI Utilities is a party to three principal storage confract administi^tive agreements ("SCAAs"), one of whic 
expired in October 2013 and two of which expire in October 2015. Pursuant to SCAAs, UGI Utilities has, among other things, released certa: 
storage and transportation confracts for the terms of the SCAAs. UGI Utilities also fransferred certain associated storage inventories upc 
commencement of the SCAAs, will receive a transfer of storage inventories at the end of the SCAAs, and makes payments associated wi 
refilling storage inventories during the terms of the SCAAs. The historical cost of natural gas storage inventories released under the SCAA 
which represents a portion of Gas Utility's total natural gas storage inventories, and any exchange receivable (representing amounts of natm 
gas inventories used by the other parties to the agreement but not yet replenished), are included in the caption "Gas Utility natural gas" in 
table above. 

As of September 30, 2013, UGI Utilities' principal SCAAs are with Energy Services. The carrying values of gas storage inventori 
released under the SCAAs to non-affUiates at September 30, 2013 and 2012, comprising 0.6 billion cubic feet ("bcf) and 3.8 bcf of nataral 
was $2.4 and $11.4 , respectively. Effective November 1, 2013, UGI Utilities entered into a new SCAA with Energy Services having a term 
one year and anotaer with a taird party having a term of three years. 
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Note 11 — Property., Plant and Equipment 

Property, plant and equipment comprise the following at September 30: 

Distribution 

<3)unsmissmp;;':;,;^:,;v^„;=^ ^̂ f-lî f̂ î ^̂ -'-feK' iW't>'{:;-w '̂-/;v;"î :%^̂ «v>V^̂ ^ ;;; 
General and other, including work in process 

T?dtalLJtilities-''--̂ '̂'v'-̂ '̂ '-'f̂ y'̂ ^̂ ^ 

2013 2012 

$ 2,162.6 $ 2,047.8 

::3siSfi:ll^4tS&#iS4M' 
178.6 162.5 

A ' ^ ^ 3 ^ ; | ^ ^ 8 # ^ ^ . p f : ^ 2 9 W : 

Non-utUity: 

:̂ iLan{lr>̂ v.-;;- ;• B t̂i:?:̂ ; tSft4V?%-a A t̂4MAA0.r^ 
Buildings and improvements 

Equipment, primarily cylinders and tanks 
J (El^tiic generation 

Other, including work in process 

totaVntm-utiUty 

Total property, plant and equipment 

Note 12 — Goodwill and Intangible Assets 

Goodwill and intangible assets comprise the following at September 30: 

308.1 282.0 

3484.4 3,043.4 
' ;264'.8" ' ' \" '^254.3 

403.2 222.7 

4,612.7 

7,040.5 $ 

4,223.9 

6,519.6 

2013 2012 
GoodwiU (not subject to amortization) 

Intangible assets: 

Customer relationships, noncompete agreements and other 

Trademarks and fradenames (not subject to amortization) 

Gross carrying amount 

Accumulated amortization 

Intangible assets, net 

$ 

$ 

$ 

2,873.7 $ 

-^ -.704:8 $ " • " 
130.2 

"•835.0" " % " 
(227.1) 
607.9 $ 

2,818.3 

. 69L9 
137.2 

"829.r 
(170.9) 
658.2 
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Changes in the carrying amount of goodwill are as follows: 

^^ance'September 30,̂ 2011 • 
Acquisitions 
^irchsKe^acd'qimting adjustments 
Foreign currency translation 
§^Uf|ptembW 30,̂ 2012':' -
Acquisitions 

poiTecfin&adiustmenf -
Foreign currency franslation 

AmeriGas 
Propane 

:$ 696:3 
1,223.1 

. „-(0.^2) 

^ 1,919.2 
12.5 

^ 9.3 
— 

Gas 
Utility 

S 182.1 
— 
— 

182.1 
— 
— 
— 

Energy Services 

S 2.8 
— 
— 

2.8 
— 
— 
— 

UGI Intemational 

Antargaz 

$ 591.8 
46 4 

(26 2) 

~ . 612.0 
— 
— 

31.7 

Flaga & 
Otiier 

$ 82.2 
13 7 

(0.7) 

95.2. 
— 
— 

1.9 

Corporate & 
Otiier 

$ 

• 

7.0 
— 
— 

7.0 
— 
— 
— 

Total 

$ 1,562.2 
1,283.2 

(0.2) 
(26.9) 

• 2.818.3 
12.5 
9.3 

33.6 

w«M&b^^3o;;2ot3e~ - s - i,94i.o- r 182.1, $ 2.8 $ 643.7 $ 97.1 7.0̂  $̂ 2,873.7 

The decrease in ttademarks and fradenames and tae correcting adjustment to goodwill during the year ended September 30, 2013 primarily 
reflects a correcting adjustinent associated with the Heritage Acquisition. We amortize customer relationships and noncompete agreement 
intangibles over their estimated periods of benefit which do not exceed 15 years. Amortization expense of intangible assets was $52.8 in Fiscal 
2013 , $44.5 in Fiscal 2012 and $20.4 in Fiscal 2011 . Estimated amortization expense of intangible assets during the next five fiscal years is as 
follows: Fiscal 2014 — $51.2 ; Fiscal 2015 — $48.4 ; Fiscal 2016 — $42.4 ; Fiscal 2017 — $35.9 ; Fiscal 2018 — $34.5 . There were no 
accumulated impairment losses at September 30,2013 . 

Note 13 — Series Preferred Stock 

UGI has 10,000,000 shares of UGI Series Preferred Stock authorized for issuance, including both series subject to and series not subject to 
mandatory redemption. We had no shares of UGI Series Preferred Stock outstanding at September 30,2013 or 2012 . 

UGI Utilities has 2,000,000 shares of UGI Utilities Series Preferred Stock autaorized for issuance, including bota series subject to and 
series not subject to mandatory redemption. At September 30, 2013 and 2012 , taere were no shares of UGI Utilities Series Preferred Stock 
outstanding. 
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Note 14 — Common Stock and Equity-Based Compensation 

UGI Common Stock share activity for Fiscal 2011 , Fiscal 2012 and Fiscal 2013 follows: 

Issued Treasury 

Balance, September 30,2010 
Issued: 

Employee and director plans 
Dividend reinvestment plan 

Balance, September 30,2011 
Issued: 

Employee and director plans 
Dividend reinvestment plan 

Shares reacquired - employee and director plans 
Balance, September 30,2012 
Issued: ' - - ' 

Employee and director plans 
Dividend reinvestment plan ' • 

Shares reacquired - employee and director plans 
Balance, September 30,2013 

Outstanding 

115,400,294 "• •(5,026;707)" ' .1,10,373,587 

106,800 =,1,263,065 - - - . 1,369,865 
~~ 92,570 92,570 

115,507,094= ,'(3,671,072): ,,: 111,836,022, 

117,500 

115,624,594 

824,925-, .^-•.•-- i942i425 
104,994 104,994 

(263,020)- : / . - ; __(263,020) 
(3,004,173) 112,620,421 

159,200 2,622,338 2,781,538 

' — ' \ ' - ' ' •"62;i69 ;• -;; ; 62,169 

— (1,035,270) (1,035.270) 

115,783,794 (1,354,936)- -. 114,428,858 

As a result of the January 2012 issuance of 29,567,362 AmeriGas Partaers Common Units to ETP in conjunction with the Heritage 
Acquisition and related General Partaer Common Unit fransactions (see Note 5 ), and the March 2012 issuance of 7,000,000 AmeriGas Partners 
Common Units pursuant to AmeriGas Partners' public offering (see Note 15 ), the Company recorded a $196.3 increase in UGI Corporation 
stockholders' equity (which amount is net of deferred income taxes) and an associated $321.4 pre-tax decrease in nonconfrolling interests equity. 

Equity-Based Compensation 

The Company grants equity-based awards to employees and non-employee directors comprising UGI stock options, grants of UGI stock-
based equity instmments and grants of AmeriGas Partners Common Unit-based equity instmments as further described below. We recognized 
total pre-tax equity-based compensation expense of $17.6 ( $11.4 after-tax), $14.5 ( $8.7 after-tax) and $15.6 ( $10.3 after-tax) in Fiscal 2013 , 
Fiscal 2012 and Fiscal 2011 , respectively. 

UGI Equity-Based Compensation Plans and Awards. On January 24, 2013, the Company's shareholders approved the UGI Corporation 2013 
Omnibus Incentive Compensation Plan (the "2013 OICP"). The 2013 OICP succeeds the UGI Corporation 2004 Omnibus Equity Compensation 
Plan Amended and Restated as of December 5, 2006 (the "2004 OECP") for awards granted on or after January 24, 2013. The 2004 OECP will 
continue in effect but all fiiture grants issued pursuant to it will be solely in tiie form of options to acquire Common Stock. Under the 2013 
OICP, we may grant options to acquire shares of UGI Common Stock, stock appreciation rights ("SARs"), UGI Units (comprising "Stock Units" 
and "UGI Performance Units"), other equity-based awards and cash to key employees and non-employee directors. The exercise price for 
options may not be less than tae fair market value on the grant date. Awards granted under the 2013 OICP may vest immediately or ratably over 
a period of years, and stock options can be exercised no later than ten years from the grant date. In addition, the 2013 OICP provides that awards 
of UGI Units may also provide for tae crediting of dividend equivalents to participants' accounts. Except in the event of retirement, death or 
disability, each grant, unless paid, will terminate when the participant ceases to be employed. There are certain change of confrol and retirement 
eligibility conditions taat, if met, generally result in accelerated vesting or elimination of further service requirements. 

Under the 2004 OECP, we could grant options to acquire shares of UGI Common Stock, UGI Units and other equity-based awards to key 
employees and non-employee directors through January 23, 2013 (except with respect to the granting of stock option awards as previously 
mentioned). Under the 2004 OECP, the exercise price for stock options could not be less than the fair market value on the grant date. Awards 
granted under the 2004 OECP could vest immediately or ratably over a period of years, and stock options could be exercised no later than ten 
years from the date of grant. In addition, the 2004 OECP provided that the awards of UGI Units could include tae crediting of dividend 
equivalents. 
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Under the 2013 OICP, awards representing up to 14,500,000 shares of UGI Common Stock may be granted. Dividend equivalents on UGI 
Unit awards to employees will be paid in cash. Dividend equivalents on non-employee director awards are accumulated in additional Stock 
Units. UGI Unit awards granted to employees and non-employee directors are settled in shares of Common Stock and cash. UGI Unit awards 
granted to Antargaz employees are settled in shares of Common Stock. Wita respect to UGI Performance Unit awards, the actaal number of 
shares (or their cash equivalent) uUimately issued, and the actual amount of dividend equivalents paid, is generally dependent upon tae 
achievement of market performance goals and service conditions. It is cunently our practice to issue freasury shares to satisfy substantially all 
option exercises and UGI Unit awards. We may choose to repurchase shares on tae market for such purposes during Fiscal 2014 . Beginning 
during Fiscal 2012, options granted under the 2004 OECP, and option awards granted under the 2013 OICP, may be net exercised whereby 
shares equal to the option price and grantee's minimum applicable payroll tax withholding are withheld from the number of shares payable ("net 
exercise"). We record shares withheld under option net exercises as shares reacquired. 

UGI Stock Option Awards . Stock option tt^nsactions under the 2013 OICP, tae 2004 OECP and predecessor plans during Fiscal 2011 , 
Fiscal 2012 and Fiscal 2013 follow: 

^hafesimidwpfipmfiSept^mber 30,2010 

Granted 
Cmoellid^ - ' ' 
Exercised 

Shares xmder options- September 30,2011 
Granted 
tmce^eh.y) i';"^\^ . ' ' 
Exercised 
^sihw;es^der^option Sj^^j^tei^^ 30;2012 

Granted 
C&icefiS 
Exercised 

Shares 

7,557,045-

1,443,558 
(235,437) 

(1,091,987) 

7,673,179 

1,508,050 
(321,600) 
(801,857) 

8,057,772 

1,516,900 
' (89,836) 
(2,688,868) 

6,795.,968 
4,879,784 

5,317,698 
3,914,061 

2381,907 

"$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 
S 
$ 

$^ 

Weighted 
Average 

Option Price 

23.81 

3155 
27.79 
20 95 

25 55 

29.26 
27.74 
20.93 

26.62 

33 57 
30.51 
24 58 

, 28.92 

24 15 
25.32 
26 93 

. 31.63 

S 

$ 

$ 

$ 

.$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

^ . 

Total 
Inttinsic 
Value 

36.2 

114 

15.1 

72 

41.4 

'̂  

35.4 

.̂  69.6 

-. 
47 8 

. -" ^̂' 2 r . 8 . 

Weighted 
Average 

Contract Term 
(Yeara) 

6.5 

6a 

• 

6.1, 

^ 

, /6.8 

1-V 

56 

8.5' 

Sha:es'tra,der„ogtion'^^ept^mbei:30,2013 ^ 
Options exercisable — September 30,2011 
IggtidnsJlt^^ajilVj^Septen^^ 
Options exercisable — September 30,2013 

.(jptipns%fo|iexerWa%le^ 

Cash received from stock option exercises and associated tax benefits were $30.8 and $12.1 , $9.4 and $2.3 , and $22.9 and $3.8 in Fiscal 
2013 , Fiscal 2012 and Fiscal 2011 , respectively. Asof September 30,2013 , there was $5.4 ofunrecognizedcompensationcost associated with 
unvested stock options that is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.9 years. 

The foUowing table presents additional information relating to stock options outstanding and exercisable at September 30,2013 : 
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Range of exercise prices 

Under 
$25.00 

$25.01 -
$30.00 

$30.01 -
$35.00 

Over 
$35.00 

•Cations : ^ t t | ^ i d i h @ t f ^ ) ^ ^ i[\-{ ;̂xy'.̂  
Number of options 

< :iW ĝ;ighted aver^geireinainmg-cpnft^ 
Weighted average exercise price 

C)ptiBhs;fecertisable^S^p^^ 
Number of options 

: j^ei^ed.^rage,exierc^s^m!^^ {̂:AAd'H'f0/-'&A 

1,778,435 2,265,255 2,559,678 192,600 

23.92 $ 28.34 $ 32.12 $ 39.45 

1,718,735 1,358,454 836,872 — 

UGI Stock Option Fair Value Information. The per share weighted-average fair value of stock options granted under om option plans was 
$4.93 in Fiscal 2013 , $4.31 in Fiscal 2012 and $5.40 in Fiscal 2011 . These amounts were determined using a Black-Scholes option pricing 
model which values options based on the stock price at the grant date, tae expected life of the option, the estimated volatility of the stock, 
expected dividend payments and tae risk-free interest rate over the expected life ofthe option. The expected life of option awards represents the 
period of time during which option grants are expected to be outstanding and is derived from historical exercise pattems. Expected volatility is 
based on historical volatUity of tae price of UGl's Common Stock. Expected dividend yield is based on historical UGI dividend rates. The risk 
free interest rate is based on U.S. Treasury bonds wita terms comparable to the options in effect on the date of grant. 

The assumptions we used for valuing option grants during Fiscal 2013, Fiscal 2012 and Fiscal 2011 are as follows: 

2013 2012 2011 

•Expected life of option 
Weighted average volatility 
:Vî ei§iited average dividend yield 
Expected volatility 
?E^e||ed dividend yield 
Risk free rate 

5.75 years 
24.9% 
3.6% 

24.4% - 24.9% 
3.2% - 3.7% . 
0.8%-1.7% 

, 5.75 years 
24.7% 
3;5% 

24.7% 
3.3%-3.-7% 

0.8%-1.1% 

_ 5.75 yeaxs . • 
24.3% 

- ' / 3.4% ^ ' 
23.8%-24.3% 

- 3.-1%-3.4% 
1.2%-2.4% 

UGI Unit Awards . UGI Stock Unit and UGI Performance Unit awards entitie tae grantee to shares of UGI Common Stock or cash once the 
service condition is met and, with respect to UGI Performance Unit awards, subject to market performance conditions. UGI Performance Unit 
grant recipients are awarded a target number of Performance Units. The number of UGI Performance Units ultimately paid at tae end of the 
performance period (generally three years) may be higher or lower than the target amount, or even zero, based on UGl's Total Shareholder 
Rettun ("TSR") percentile rank relative to (i) companies in tae Standard & Poor's Utilities Index for grants prior to January 1, 2011 and (ii) tae 
RnsseU Midcap Utility Index, excluding telecommunication companies, for grants on or after January 1, 2011 (each a respective "UGI 
comparator group"). For grants issued on or after January 1, 2013, grantees may receive 0% to 200% ofthe target award granted. For such 
grants, if UGl's TSR ranks below tae 25th percentile compared to the UGI comparator group, the employee will not be paid. At the 40th 
percentile, the employee will be paid an award equal to 70% of tiie target award; at the 50th percentile, 100%; and at the 90th percentile, 200% . 
For grants issued prior to January I, 2013, grantees may receive 0% to 200% ofthe target award granted. For such grants, if UGl's TSR ranks 
below the 40ta percentile compared to the UGI comparator group, the employee will not be paid. At the 40th percentile, the employee will be 
paid an award equal to 50% ofthe target award; at the 50th percentile, 100%; and at the lOOtii percentile, 200% - The actaal amount ofthe award 
is interpolated between tiiese percentile rankings. Dividend equivalents are paid in cash only on UGI Performance Units that eventaally vest. 

The fair value of UGI Stock Units on the grant date is equal to the market price of UGI Stock on the grant date. Under GAAP, UGI 
Performance Units are equity awards with a market-based condition which, if settled in shares, results in the recognition of compensation cost 
over the requisite employee service period regardless of whether the market-based condition is satisfied. The fair values of UGI Performance 
Units are estimated using a Monte Carlo valuation model. The fair value associated with the target award is accounted for as equity and the fair 
value ofthe award over the target, as well as all dividend equivalents, is 
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accounted for as a liability. The expected term of the UGI Performance Unit awards is three years based on the performance period. Expecte 
volatility is based on the historical volatility of UGI Common Stock over a three-year period. The risk-free interest rate is based on tae yields o: 
U.S. Treasury bonds at the time of grant. Volatility for all companies in the UGI comparator group is based on historical volatility. 

The following table summarizes the weighted average assumptions used to determine the fair value of UGI Performance Unit awards an' 
related compensation costs: 

Grants Awarded in Fiscal 

Risk fi-ee rate-'•"; -''' 
Expected life 
'Expected Volatility -; 
Dividend yield 

2013 

0.4% 
3 years 

21.̂ 1% 
3.3% 

2012 

0.4% 
3 years 

22.2% 
3.5% 

2011 

1.0»/ 
3 years 

27,6"/ 
3.1V 

The weighted-average grant date fair value ofMGl Performance Unit awards was estimated to be $37.97 for Units granted in Fiscal 2013 
$27.25 for Units granted in Fiscal 2012 and $35.19 for Units granted in Fiscal 2011 . 

The following table summarizes UGI Unit award activity for Fiscal 2013 : 

|^^gB|r.2Q.-2gi2^^^ ^r/v V -~ _' 
UGI Performance Units. 

Forfeited 

Unit awards paid 
^^^^5|^^'*ftj!eria<!iot_metp .̂ ~-' ;-
UGI StockUnits. 

Unit awards paid 

Total 

Number of 
UGI 
Units 

885,338 

-̂  220,575 
(9,319) 

(103,759) 
(70,079) 

~34,025 
(36,180) 

920,601 

$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 

Weighted 
Average 

Grant Date 
Fair Value 
(per Unit) 

24.09 

37.97" 
33 78 

22 22 
22.22 

33.05 
36 37 
27.52 

Vestec 

Number of 
UGI 
Units 

. 580,122 

^26,818 

417,703 
(103,759) 

^ (70,079)= 

34,025 
(36,180) 
548,650 

$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 

1. 
$ 

I 
Weighted 
Average 

Grant Date 
Fair Value 
(per Unit) 

21.72 ; 

- 38.13 

- 26.69^ 
22 22 
22.22 ~ "-

33.0^ 
36 37 
23.18. 

Non-Vested 

Number of 
UGI 
Units 

305,216 

~ 193.757 
(9,319) 

. ^ <117,703) 

— 

-̂ , 371,951 

Weighted 
Average 

Grant Date 
Fair Value 
(per Unit) 

$ 28.59 

$ 37.94 
$ 33 78 
$' 26.65 

$ ^ "" -

$ 

$ ^ -
$ 

$ 33.9 

(a) Generally, shares granted under UGI Stock Unit awards are paid approximately 70% m shares . UGI Stock Unit awards granted in FisJ 
2012 and Fiscal 2011 were 42,445 and 61,945, respectively. 

During Fiscal 2013 , Fiscal 2012 and Fiscal 2011 , the Company paid UGI Performance Unit and UGI Stock Unit awards in shares 
cash as follows: 
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2013 2012 2011 
^CH!Pe*fOT^^'HJ^^it a ^ ^ ^ , 

Number of original awards granted 
;i '̂Fiscal^ear:'gi^nte^$;>s#|{^J^f^^ : 

Payment of awards; 
V ShiffesofUGlCommomSiocki^^tibii 

Cash paid 

218,683 210,750 197,917 

^0,O8)Xv>. 
1.6 $ 

142;494 
7.5 

iU^I?StpcMUnitiavs^a^^ :̂  
Number of original awards granted 

Shares of UGI Common Stock issued 

. "•', Cash paid! > ''.y:'' '''Vv'̂ '̂ '):̂ '̂' ̂ •',̂ 'K "̂̂ '̂ s':'''> \̂ ^ 

36,179 32,898 22,400 

23,516' 

:WO^AAA$i 

21,757 17,545 

During Fiscal 2013 , Fiscal 2012 and Fiscal 2011 , we granted UGI Unit awards representing 254,600 , 239,845 and 285,470 shares, 
respectively, having weighted-average grant date fair values per Unit of $37.31 , $27.68 and $34.78, respectively. 

As of September 30,2013 , there was a totalof approximately $8.3 of unrecognized compensation cost associated with 920,601 UGI Unit 
awards outstanding that is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 2.0 years. The total fair values of UGI Units taat vested 
during Fiscal 2013 , Fiscal 2012 and Fiscal 2011 were $6.0, $3.6 and $6.8 , respectively. As of September 30, 2013 and 2012, total liabilities of 
$8.0 and $5.0 , respectively, associated with UGI Unit awards are reflected in employee compensation and benefits accmed and other noncurrent 
liabilities in tae Consolidated Balance Sheets. 

At September 30, 2013 , 13,449,649 shares of Common Stock were available for future grants under tiie 2013 OICP, and up to 187,543 
shares of Common Stock were available for futare grants of stock options under the 2004 OECP. 

AmeriGas Partners Equity-Based Compensation Plans and Awards. Under the AmeriGas Propane, Inc. 2010 Long-Term Incentive Plan on 
Behalf of AmeriGas Partaers, L.P. ("2010 Propane Plan"), the General Partaer may award to employees and non-employee directors grants of 
AmeriGas Partners Units (comprising "AmeriGas Stock Units" and "AmeriGas Performance Units"), options, unit appreciation rights and other 
Common Unit-based awards. The 2010 Propane Plan succeeded the AmeriGas Propane, Inc. 2000 Long-Term Incentive Plan ("2000 Propane 
Plan") which expired on December 31, 2009, and replaced the AmeriGas Propane, Inc. Discretionary Long-Term Incentive Plan for Non-
Executive Key Employees ("Nonexecutive Propane Plan"). The total aggregate number of Common Units that may be issued under the 2010 
Propane Plan is 2,800,000 . The exercise price for options may not be less than the fair market value on tae date of grant. Awards granted under 
the 2010 Propane Plan may vest immediately or ratably over a period of years, and options can be exercised no later than ten years from the 
grant date . In addition, the 2010 Propane Plan provides that Common Unit-based awards may also provide for the crediting of Common Unit 
disfribution equivalents to participants' accounts. 

Recipients of AmeriGas Performance Unit awards are awarded a target number of AmeriGas Performance Units. The number of 
AmeriGas Performance Units ultimately paid at tae end ofthe performance period (generally three years) may be higher or lower than tae target 
lumber based upon AmeriGas Farmers' Total Unitholder Retam ("TUR") percentile rank relative to entities in a peer group. Percentile rankings 
md payout percentages are generally the same as those used for the UGI Performance Unit awards. Any Common Unit disfribution equivalents 
;amed are paid in cash. Generally, except in the event of retirement, death or disability, each grant, unless paid, will terminate when the 
Jarticipant ceases to be employed by the General Partner. There are certain change of confrol and retirement eligibility conditions that, if met, 
generally result in accelerated vesting or elimination of further service requirements. 

As a result of the Heritage Acquisition, certain Heritage Propane employees were awarded AmeriGas Performance Units, AmeriGas Stock 
Jnits (in the form of phantom units), or a combination of AmeriGas Performance Units and AmeriGas Stock Units. The terms of the 
erformance Unit awards granted to Heritage Propane employees are generally the same as those described above. The AmeriGas Stock Units 
wards granted to Heritage employees vest in tranches with certain awards beginning to vest in January 2013 through January 2016. Certain of 
le AmeriGas Stock Unit awards provide for accelerated vesting under certain conditions. Under certain conditions all or a portion of these 
yards could be forfeited. The AmeriGas Stock Unit awards granted to Heritage Propane employees provide for the crediting of disfribution 
juivalents to participants' accounts. 
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Under GAAP, AmeriGas Performance Units are equity awards with a market-based condition which, if settled in Common Units, results in 
tae recognition of compensation cost over tae requisite employee service period regardless of whether the market-based condition is satisfied. 
The fair values of AmeriGas Performance Units are estimated using a Monte Carlo valuation model. The fair value associated with tae target 
award and the award above the target, if any, which will be paid in Common Units, is accounted for as equity and tae fair value of all Common 
Unit disfribution equivalents, which will be paid in cash, is accounted for as a liability. The expected term of the AmeriGas Performance Unit 
awards is three years based on tae performance period. Expected volatility is based on the historical volatility of Common Units over a three-
year period. The risk-free interest rate is based on tae rates on U.S. Treasury bonds at tae time of grant. Volatility for all limited partaerships in 
the peer group is based on historical volatUity. 

The following table summarizes the weighted-average assumptions used to determine the fair value of AmeriGas Performance Unit awards 
and related compensation costs: 

Grants Awarded in Fiscal 

Expected life 
©XpKjteiMJattlity^^ 
Dividend yield 

2013 

i -0.4% -
3 years 

' " '- ~ • 20.7% 
8.2% 

2012 

0.4% ' 
3 years 

23.0% 
6.4% 

2011 

1.0% 
3 years 

34^6% 
5.8% 

The General Partner granted awards under the 2010 Propane Plan representing 65,136 , 248,818 and 49,287 Common Units in Fiscal 
2013 , Fiscal 2012 and Fiscal 2011 , respectively, having weighted-average grant date fair values per Common Unit subject to award of $42.58 , 
$43.22 and $53.19 , respectively. At September 30, 2013 , 2,484,839 Common Units were available for future award grants under the 2010 
Propane Plan. 

The following table summarizes AmeriGas Common Unit-based award activity for Fiscal 2013 : 

Total Vested Non-Vested 

AmeriGas Performance Units. 

Granted 
'•^^orfeited-. 

Vested 

Performance critena not met 

'r.^' >^Amei:iGas Stock tjnits: 

Number of 
AmeriGas 
Partaers 
Common 

Units 
Subject 

to Award 

Weighted 
Average 

Grant Date 
Fair Value 
(per Unit) 

263,967 $' 

44,800 $ 
(14,869) $ 

— $ 

(43,350) $ 

20,336 $ 
(11,333) 4 

September 30,2013 

Awards paid (35,384) $_ 

224,167 $ 

44.70 

42.36 
47 04 

42.10 

43 06 
48.79 

47.04 

Number of 
AmeriGas 
Partners 
Common 

Units 
Subject 

to Award 

Weighted 
Average 

Grant Date 
Fair Value 
(per Unit) 

- 65,651 $ 

1,332 $ 
— $ 

20,115 $ 
(43,350) $ 

8,442 $ 
_ $ 

30,909 $ 
(35,384) $ 

;45.42~̂  

41.64 

43.68 
42.10 

39.07 

48.92 
47.04 

Number of 
AmeriGas 
Partaers 
Common 

Units 
Subject 

to Award 

Weighted 
Average 

Grant Date 
Fair Value 
(per Unit) 

"19„8;316- $ 

43,468 $ 
(14,869) $ 
(20,115) $ 

11,894 
(11,333) 
(30,909) 

44.47 

42.38 
47.04 
43.68 

45.90 
48.79 
48 92 

47.} 47,715 $ 47.92 176,452 $ 47.87 

During Fiscal 2013 , Fiscal 2012 and Fiscal 2011 , the Partaership paid AmeriGas Common Unit-based awards in Common Units and cash 
as follows: 
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2013(a) 2012(a) 2011 

"Smnbfer^ff'cSiinM 
Fiscal year granted 2010 2009 2008 
Payment of awards: 

AmeriGas Partners Common Units issued 3,850 3,500 35,787 
Cash paid $ 0.1 $ - 0.1 S " - . 1.2 

(a) In addition, during Fiscal 2013 and 2012, 19,342 AmeriGas Stock Units and $0.5 incash, and 40,516 AmeriGas Stock Units and $0.9 in cash, respectively, 
were paid to former Heritage Propane employees associated with awards granted in Fiscal 2012. 

As of September 30, 2013 , there was a total of approximately $3.0 ofimrecognized compensation cost associated wita 224,168 Common 
Units subject to award that is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.8 years. The total fair value of Common Unit-
based awards that vested during Fiscal 2013 , Fiscal 2012 and Fiscal 2011 was $2.8 , $5.1 and $2.0 , respectively. As of September 30, 2013 and 
2012 , total Uabilities of $1.1 and $1.1 associated wita Common Unit-based awards are reflected in employee compensation and benefits accmed 
and other noncurrent liabilities in tae Consolidated Balance Sheets. 

Note 15 — Partnership Distributions and Common Unit Offerings 

The Partaership makes distributions to its partaers approximately 45 days after tae end of each fiscal quarter in a total amount equal to its 
Available Cash (as defined in the Partaership Agreement) for such quarter. Available Cash generally means: 

1. all cash on hand at tae end of such quarter, 

2. plus all additional cash on hand as of the date of determination resulting from borrowings after the end of such quarter, 

3. less the amount of cash reserves established by the General Partaer in its reasonable discretion. 

The General Partaer may establish reserves for the proper conduct ofthe Partaership's business and for distributions dming the next four 
quarters. 

Distributions of Available Cash are made 98% to limited partaers and 2% to the General Partaer (representing a 1% General Partaer 
interest in AmeriGas Partners and 1.01% interest in AmeriGas OLP) until Available Cash exceeds the Minimum Quarterly Disfribution of $0.55 
and the First Target Disfribution of $0,055 per Common Unit (or a total of $0,605 per Common Unit). When Available Cash exceeds $0,605 per 
Common Unit in any quarter, the General Partaer will receive a greater percentage of the total Partaership distribution (the "incentive 
distiibution") but only with respect to the amount by which the distribution per Common Unit to limited partners exceeds $0,605 . 

During Fiscal 2013 , Fiscal 2012 and Fiscal 2011 , tiie Partaership made quarterly distributions to Common Unitholders in excess of 
$0,605 per limited partner unit. As a resuh, the General Partaer has received a greater percentage of the total Partaership disfribution than its 
aggregate 2% general partner interest in AmeriGas OLP and AmeriGas Partaers. The total amount of disfributions received by tae General 
Partner with respect to its aggregate 2% general partaer ownership interests totaled $27.4 in Fiscal 2013 , $19.7 in Fiscal 2012 and $9.0 in Fiscal 
2011 . Included in these amounts are incentive distributions received by the General Partaer during Fiscal 2013 , Fiscal 2012 and Fiscal 2011 of 
$19.3 , $13.0 and $5.0 , respectively. 

In March 2012, AmeriGas Partaers sold 7,000,000 Common Units in an underwritten public offering at a public offering price of $41.25 
per unit. The net proceeds ofthe public offering totaling $276.6 and the associated capital contributions from the General Partner totaling $2.8 
were used to redeem $200 of 6.50% Senior Notes pursuant to a tender offer (see Note 6 ), to reduce bank loan borrowings and for general 
partnership purposes. 

Note 16 — Commitments and Contingencies 

Commitments 

We lease various buildings and other facilities and vehicles, computer and office equipment under operating leases. Certain of our leases 
contain renewal and purchase options and also contain step-rent provisions. Our aggregate rental expense for such leases was $82.5 in Fiscal 
2013 , $77.9 in Fiscal 2012 and $69.8 in Fiscal 2011 . 
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$ 

$ 

2014 
• ^51.0 

55 
8.2 
20 

. - 66.7 

$̂  

$ 

2015 
41.4 
47 
5.8 
1 6 

53.5 

$ 

$ ' 

2016 

33.7 
4.2 
4.5 
14 

^ 43.8 

$ ^ 

$ 

2017 

26.6-
27 
3.3 
06 

- '33.2 

$ 

$ 

2018 

21.7 
20 
1,8 
0.2 

25.7 

$ 

$_ 

After 2018 

55.8 
13 
1.0 
0.1 

58.2 

Minimum fiitare payments under operating leases with non-affiliates that have initial or remaining noncancelable terms in excess of one 
year are as follows: 

UGI Utilities 
jUGI^^terna^'paU ^ -̂ "̂ ' Z' 
Other 

Total f̂  sy ^""•^•^1% , • ? ' , ' 

Our businesses enter into confracts of varying lengths and terms to meet taeir supply, pipeline fransportation, storage, capacity and energy 
needs. Gas Utility has gas supply agreements with producers and marketers with terms not exceeding one year. Gas Utility also has agreements 
for firm pipeline fransportation and nataral gas storage services, which Gas Utility may terminate at various dates through Fiscal 2025. Gas 
Utility's costs associated with fransportation and storage capacity agreements are included in its annual PGC filings with the PUC and are 
recoverable through PGC rates. In addition. Gas Utility has short-term gas supply agreements which permit it to pmchase certain of its gas 
supply needs on a firm or intermptible basis at spot-market prices. Electric Utility purchases its elecfricity needs under confracts with various 
suppliers and on the spot market. Confracts with producers for energy needs expire at various dates through Fiscal 2014. Midsfream & 
Marketing enters into fixed-price confracts wita suppliers to purchase nataral gas and electricity to meet its sales commitments. Generally, these 
confracts have terms of less than two years. The Partnership enters into fixed-price and variable-price contracts to purchase a portion of its 
supply requirements. These confracts currently have terms that do not exceed three years. UGI Intemational enters into fixed-price and variable-
priced contracts to pmchase a portion of its supply requirements that currently do not exceed three years. 

The following table presents confractaal obligations with non-affiliates under Gas Utility, Electric Utility, Midsfream & Marketing, 
AmeriGas Propane and UGI Intemational supply, storage and service confracts existing at September 30, 2013 : 

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 After 2018 

mm 
j ^ ^ K r v - ' ' ' '$ : ^151.6 $ 80.3 $ 50.9" $ 

Midsfream & Marketing supply 
confracts 244.4 109 1 12 3 

^ ^ ^ S S ^ ^ S ^ c " ^ "--:•- -'^:i76.9.^ ^ 97.1 . 22.2̂  
UGI Intemational supply confracts 198.1 189.9 101.0 

3b2 J ' 

12 

28,0 S 72.1 

The Partnership and UGI Intemational also enter into other contracts to purchase LPG to meet supply requirements. Generally, these 
confracts are one - to three -year agreements subject to annual price and quantity adjustments. 

Contingencies 

Environmental Matters 

UGI Utilities 

CPG is party to a Consent Order and Agreement ("CPG-COA") with the Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Protection ("DEP") 
requiring CPG to perform a specified level of activities associated with environmental investigation and remediation work at certain properties in 
Pennsylvania on which manufactared gas plant ("MGP") related facilities were operated ("CPG MGP Properties") and to plug a minimum 
number of non-producing natural gas wells per year. In addition, PNG is a party to a MuUi-Site Remediation Consent Order and Agreement 
("PNG-COA") with tae DEP. The PNG-COA requires PNG to perform annually a specified level of activities associated wita environmental 
investigation and remediation work at certain properties on which MGP-related facilities were operated ("PNG MGP Properties"). Under these 
agreements, environmental expenditares relating to the CPG MGP Properties and the PNG MGP Properties are capped at $1.8 and $1.1 , 
respectively, in any calendar year. The CPG-COA is currently scheduled to terminate at tae end of 2013. The PNG-COA terminates in 2019 but 
may be terminated 

F-52 



Table of Contents 
UGI Corporation and Subsidiaries 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
(Millions of dollars and euros, except per share amounts and where indicated otherwise) 

by either party effective at tae end of any two-year period begiiming with the original effective date in March 2004. At September 30, 2013 and 
2012 , cm accmed liabilities for environmental investigation and remediation costs related to the CPG-COA and the PNG-COA totaled $14.0 
and $15.0 , respectively. Because CPG and PNG are currently receiving regulatory recovery of estimated environmental investigation and 
remediation costs associated with Pennsylvania sites, in accordance with GAAP related to rate-regulated entities we have recorded associated 
regulatory assets in equal amounts. 

From the late 1800s through the mid-1900s, UGI Utilities and its former subsidiaries owned and operated a number of MGPs prior to the 
general availability of natural gas. Some constitaents of coal tars and other residues of the manufactared gas process are today considered 
hazardous substances under the Superfiind Law and may be present on the sites of former MGPs. Between 1882 and 1953, UGI Utilities owned 
the stock of subsidiary gas companies in Pennsylvania and elsewhere and also operated the businesses of some gas companies under agreement. 
Pursuant to the requirements of tae Public Utility Holding Company Act of 1935, by the early 1950s UGI Utilities divested all of its utility 
operations other than certain Pennsylvania operations, including those which now constitate UGI Gas and Electric UtUity. 

UGI Utilities does not expect its costs for investigation and remediation of hazardous substances at Pennsylvania MGP sites to be material 
to its results of operations because (l)UGI Gas is currently permitted to include in rates, through future base rate proceedings, a five -year 
average of such pmdently incurred remediation costs and (2) CPG and PNG are currently receiving regulatory recovery of estimated 
environmental investigation and remediation costs associated witii Pennsylvania sites. At September 30, 2013 , neither the undiscounted nor the 
accmed liabUity for environmental investigation and cleanup costs for UGI Gas was material. 

Ff om time to time, UGI Utilities is notified of sites outside Permsylvania on which private parties allege MGPs were formerly owned or 
operated by it or owned or operated by its former subsidiaries. Such parties generally investigate the extent of environmental contamination or 
perform environmental remediation. Management believes taat under applicable law UGI Utilities should not be liable in those instances in 
which a former subsidiary owned or operated an MGP. There could be, however, significant fiitare costs of an uncertain amount associated wita 
environmental damage caused by MGPs outside Pennsylvania that UGI Utilities directly operated, or that were owned or operated by former 
subsidiaries of UGI Utilities if a court were to conclude that (1) the subsidiary's separate corporate form should be disregarded or (2) UGI 
Utilities should be considered to have been an operator because of its conduct wita respect to its subsidiary's MGP. 

Omaha, Nebraska . By letter dated October 20, 2011, the City of Omaha and tiie MetiX)politan Utilities Distiict ("MUD") notified UGI Utilities 
taat they had been requested by the United States Environmental Protection Agency ("EPA") to remediate a former manufactared gas plant site 
located in Omaha, Nebraska. According to a report prepared on behalf of the EPA identifying potentially responsible parties, a former subsidiary 
of a UGl Utilities predecessor is identified as an owner and operator of the site. The City of Omaha and MUD have requested that UGI Utilities 
participate in tae cost of remediation for tais site. Because of the preliminary natare of available environmental information, tae ultimate amount 
or range of possible clean up costs cannot be reasonably estimated. In addition, UGI Utilities believes that it has sfrong defenses to any claims 
that may arise relating to the remediation of tais site. By letter dated November 10, 2011, the EPA notified UGI Utilities of its investigation of 
the site in Omaha, Nebraska, and issued an information request to UGI Utilities. UGI Utilities responded to tae EPA's information request on 
Januaty 17,2012. There have been no recent developments in this matter. 

AmeriGas Propane 

AmeriGas OLP Saranac Lake. By letter dated March 6, 2008, the New York State Department of Environmental Conservation ("DEC") notified 
AmeriGas OLP that DEC had placed property owned by the Partaership in Saranac Lake, New York, on its Registry of Inactive Hazardous 
Waste Disposal Sites. A site characterization stady performed by DEC disclosed contamination related to former MGP operations on the site. 
DEC has classified tae site as a significant tareat to public healta or environment with further action required. The Partnership has researched tae 
history of tae site and its ownership interest in the site. The Partaership has reviewed the preliminary site characterization stady prepared by the 
DEC, the extent of contamination and tiie possible existence of other potentially responsible parties. The Partaership communicated tae results of 
its research to DEC in January 2009. There have been no recent developments in this matter. Because of tiie preliminary natare of available 
environmental information, the uhimate amount or range of possible clean up costs cannot be reasonably estimated. 

Claremont, New Hampshire and Chestertown, Maryland. In connection with the Heritage Acquisition on January 12, 2012, a predecessor of 
Titan Propane LLC ('Titan LLC"), a former subsidiary acquired in tae Heritage Acquisition, is purportedly the beneficial holder of title with 
respect to two former MGPs discussed below. The Confribution Agreement provides for indemnification from ETP for certain expenses 
associated with remediation of these sites. By letter dated September 30, 2010, the EPA notified Titan LLC that it may be a potentially 
responsible party ("PRP") for clean up costs associated with contamination 
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at a former MGP in Claremont, New Hampshire. In June 2010, tae Maryland Attomey General ("MAG") identified Titan LLC as a PRP in 
coimection with contamination at a former MGP in Chestertown, Maryland and requested tiiat Titan LLC participate in characterization and 
remediation activities. Titan LLC has supplied the EPA and MAG with corporate and bankmptcy information for its predecessors to support its 
claim that it is not liable for any remediation costs at the sites. Because of the preliminary natare of available environmental information, tae 
ultimate amount or range of possible clean up costs cannot be reasonably estimated. 

Other Matters 

AmeriGas Cylinder Investigation. On or about October 21, 2009, the General Partaer received a notice that tae Officesof the Disttict Attorneys 
of Santa Clara, Sonoma, Ventara, San Joaquin and Fresno Counties and the City Attomey of San Diego (the "Disfrict Attomeys") had 
commenced an investigation into AmeriGas OLP's cylinder labeling and filling practices in Califomia as a result ofthe Partaership's decision in 
2008 to reduce the volume of propane from 17 pounds to 15 pounds in the cylinders it provides to retailers who then sell them to consumers. At 
taat time, the District Attomeys issued an administi^tive subpoena seeking documents and information relating to those practices. We have 
responded to the adminisfrative subpoena. On or about July 20, 2011, the General Partner received a second subpoena from tae District 
Attomeys. The subpoena sought additional information and documents regarding AmeriGas OLP's cylinder exchange program. We responded 
to that subpoena. In connection with tais matter, the District Attomeys have alleged potential violations of California's antifii4st and unfair 
competition laws, Califomia's slack-fill law, and Califomia's principal false advertising statate. On November 20, 2013, the District Attomeys 
filed a complaint against the General Partner and AmeriGas OLP and simultaneously filed a proposed stipulated final consent judgment (tae 
"Judgment") which was approved by the court on December 2, 2013 and resolved all claims against those defendants that were known to the 
District Attomeys at that time. The Judgment requires the General Partner to pay a civil penalty and to certain injunctive relief including tae 
posting of a consumer notice on all cylinder cages in Califomia. That notice informs consumers, among other things, of tae reduction of propane 
in weight from 17 pounds to 15 pounds. The Judgment will not have a material effect on our consolidated financial position, results of 
operations or cash flows. 

Federal Trade Commission Investigation of Propane Grill Cylinder Filling Practices. On or about November 4, 2011, tae General Partner 
received notice that the Federal Trade Commission ("FTC") is conducting an antitmst and consumer protection investigation into certain 
practices of the Partnership that relate to the filling of portable propane cylinders. On Febmary 2, 2012, the Partaership received a Civil 
Investigative Demand from the FTC that requested documents and information conceming, among other things, (i) the Partaership's decision, in 
2008, to reduce the volume of propane in cylinders it sells to consumers from 17 pounds to 15 pounds and (ii) cross-filling, related service 
arrangements and communications regarding the foregoing with competitors. The Partaership responded to that subpoena and has continued to 
cooperate with the FTC's requests for information. The Partaership believes it has good defenses to any claims that may resuh from tais 
investigation. We are not able to assess the financial impact this investigation or any related claims may have on tae Partaership. 

Purported Class Action Lawsuit. In 2005, Samuel and Brenda Swiger (the "Swigers") filed what purports to be a class action lawsuit in tae 
Circuit Court of Harrison County, West Virginia, against UGI, an insurance subsidiary of UGI, certain officers of UGI and the General Partaer, 
and their insurance carriers and insurance adjusters. In this lawsuit, the Swigers are seeking compensatory and punitive damages on behalf of the 
putative class for alleged violations of the West Virginia Insurance Unfair Trade Practice Act, negligence, intentional misconduct, and civil 
conspiracy. The Court has not certified the class. We believe we have good defenses to the claims in this action. 

Antargaz Competition Authority Matter. On July 21, 2009, Antargaz received a Statement of Objections ("Statement") from France's Autorite de 
la concurrence ("Competition Authority") with respect to the investigation of Antargaz by the General Division of Competition, Consumption 
and Fraud Punishment. The Statement alleged that Antargaz engaged in certain anti-competitive practices in violation of French competition 
laws related to the cylinder market during the period from 1999 through 2004. On December 17, 2010, tae Competition Autaority issued its 
decision dismissing all objections against Antargaz. The appeal period expired without an appeal being filed. As a result ofthe decision, during 
tae three-month period ended December 31, 2010, the Company reversed its previously recorded nontaxable accmal for this matter which 
increased Fiscal 2011 net income by $9.4 . 

We cannot predict the final resuhs of any of tae environmental or other pending claims or legal actions described above. However, it is 
reasonably possible that some of them could be resolved unfavorably to us and result in losses in excess of recorded amounts. We are unable to 
estimate any possible losses in excess of recorded amounts. Although we currently believe, after consultation with counsel, that damages or 
settlements in amounts in excess of recorded amounts, if any, recovered by the plaintiffs in such claims or actions will not have a material 
adverse effect on our financial position, damages or settlements could be material to our operating resuhs or cash flows in future periods 
depending on the natare and timing of future developments with respect to taese matters and the amounts of futare operating results and cash 
flows. In addition to the matters described above, there are other 
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pending claims and legal actions arising in tae normal course of om businesses. We believe, after consuhation with counsel, the final outcome of 
such other matters will not have a material effect on our consolidated financial position, resuhs of operations or cash flows. 

Note 17 — Fair Value Measurements 

Derivative Financial Instmments 

The following table presents om financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis for each ofthe 
fair value hierarchy levels, including both current and noncurrent portions, as of September 30, 2013 and 2012 : 

Asset (LiabiUty) 

;Si^i^rtib^rj30^Q|3i:-;^^^ 
Assets: 
f Afpeirivatt^effiiiahsi^i^^ 

Commodity confracts 
• • V Foreigrt ciirrent^xbhtracte^ 
LiabUities: 
.,-.* peri^ati ye^anci^jinstram 

Commodity confracts 
. /^;IFC)i^igiii%i^fi(?^1;6£^^ ^ 

Interest rate confracts 

Quoted Prices 
in Active 

Markets for 
Identical Assets 
and Liabilities 

(Level 1) 

Significant 
Other 

Observable 
Inputs 

(Level 2) 

Unobservable 
Inputs 

(Level 3) Total 

2.1 $ 

(9.7) $ 

212 
: o:si: 

(6.3) S 

$ — $ (31.0) $ — $ 

23.3 

(16.0) 

'00«SfiC mAAAf̂  

(31.0) 

September 30,2012: 
Assets: 

Derivative financial instraments: 
Commodity confracts 
Foreign currency confracts 

Liabilities: 
Derivative financial insttiiments: 

- Commodity contracts ' 
Interest rate confracts 

8.6 $ 

(7.8) $ 

4.5 
1.8 

(53.2) 
(71.9) 

— $ 13.1 
1.8 

(61.0) 
(71.9) 

The fair values of our Level 1 exchange-traded commodity futures and option contracts and non exchange-traded commodity fumres and 
forward confracts are based upon actively-quoted market prices for identical assets and liabilities. The remainder of our derivative financial 
instmments are designated as Level 2. The fair values of certain non-exchange fraded commodity derivatives designated as Level 2 are based 
upon indicative price quotations available through brokers, industry price publications or recent market transactions and related market 
indicators. For commodity option connects designated as Level 2 which are not fraded on an exchange, we use a Black Scholes option pricing 
model that considers time value and volatility of the underlying commodity. The fair values of om Level 2 interest rate confracts and foreign 
currency confracts are based upon third-party quotes or indicative values based on recent market transactions. There were no transfers between 
Level 1 and Level 2 during the periods presented. 

Other Financial Instruments 
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The carrying amounts of other financial insttmnents included in current assets and current liabilities (except for current matarities of long-
term debt) approximate their fair values because of their short-term nature. At September 30,2013 , the carrying amount and estimated fair value 
ofour long-term debt (including current matmities) were $3,609.4 and $3,761.8 , respectively. At September 30, 2012 , tae carrying amount and 
estimated fair value ofour long-term debt (including current maturities) were $3,514.3 and $3,787.6, respectively. We estimate the fair value of 
long-term debt by using current market rates and by discounting fiitare cash flows using rates available for similar type debt (Level 2). 

Financial instmments other than derivative financial instruments, such as our short-term investments and frade accounts receivable, could 
expose us to concenfrations of credit risk. We limit our credit risk from short-term investments by investing only in investment-grade 
commercial paper, money market mutaal fimds, securities guaranteed by the U.S. Govemment or its agencies and FDIC insured bank deposits. 
The credit risk from trade accounts receivable is limited because we have a large customer base which extends across many different U.S. 
markets and several foreign counfries. For information regarding concentrations of credit risk associated with our derivative financial 
instmments, see Note 18 . Our investment in a private equity partaership is measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis. Generally this 
measurement uses Level 3 fair value inputs because the investment does not have a readily available market value. 

Note 18 — Disclosures About Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities 

We are exposed to certain market risks related to our ongoing business operations. Management uses derivative financial and commodity 
instmments, among other things, to manage these risks. The primary risks managed by derivative insttaiments are (1) commodity price risk, 
(2) interest rate risk and (3) foreign currency exchange rate risk. Although we use derivative financial and commodity instmments to reduce 
market risk associated with forecasted transactions, we do not use derivative financial and commodity instruments for speculative or frading 
purposes. The use of derivative instmments is confroUed by om risk management and credit policies which govem, among other things, the 
derivative instruments we can use, counterparty credit limits and confract authorization limits. A substantial portion ofour derivative financial 
insttiiments, otaer taan commodity derivative instmments at Midstream & Marketing, are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges or net 
investment hedges. Substantially all of Midsfream & Marketing's commodity derivative instmments are not accoimted for as hedges under 
GAAP. Because a substantial portion of our derivative instruments qualify for and are designated as hedges under GAAP or are subject to 
regulatory rate recovery mechanisms, we expect that changes in tae fair value of derivative instmments used to manage commodity, interest rate 
or currency exchange rate risk would be substantially offset by gains or losses on tiie associated anticipated transactions. 

Commodity Price Risk 

In order to manage market price risk associated with the Partaership's fixed-price programs which permit customers to lock in the prices 
they pay for propane principally during the months of October through March, tae Partnership uses over-the-counter derivative commodity 
instmments, principally price swap confracts. In addition, the Partnership, certain other domestic business units and our UGI Intemational 
operations also use over-the-counter price swap and option contracts to reduce commodity price volatility associated with a portion of taeir 
forecasted LPG purchases. In addition, the Partnership from time to time enters into price swap and put option agreements to reduce the effects 
of short-term commodity price volatility which agreements are generally not designated as hedges for accounting purposes. 

Gas Utility's tariffs contain clauses that permit recovery of all of the pmdently incurred costs of nataral gas it sells to retail core-market 
customers, including the cost of financial instmments used to hedge purchased gas costs. As permitted and agreed to by the PUC pursuant to Gas 
Utility's aimual PGC filings. Gas Utility currently uses New York Mercantile Exchange ("NYMEX") namral gas fiitares and option confracts to 
reduce commodity price volatility associated with a portion of the nataral gas it purchases for its retail core-market customers. At September 30, 
2013 and 2012 , the volumes of nataral gas associated with Gas Utility's unsettled NYMEX natural gas futares and option confracts totaled 15.0 
million dekatherms and 19,2 million dekatherms, respectively. At September 30,2013 , the maximum period over which Gas UtUity is hedging 

natmal gas market price risk is 12 months. Gains and losses on nataral gas fiittires confracts and any gains on natural gas option confracts are 
recorded in regulatory assets or liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets in accordance wita GAAP related to rate-regulated entities and 
reflected in cost of sales through the PGC mechanism (see Note 9). 

Elecfric Utility's DS tariffs permit the recovery of aU pmdently incurred costs of elecfricity it sells to DS customers, including the cost of 
financial instruments used to hedge elecfricity costs. Electric Utility enters into forward electricity purchase confracts to meet a substantial 
portion of its electricity supply needs. Because these contracts currently do not qualify for the normal pmchases and normal sales exception 
under GAAP, the fair values of these confracts are required to be recognized on the balance sheet. At September 30, 2013 and 2012 , the fair 
values of Electric Utility's forward purchase power agreements comprising losses of $4.8 
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and $9.2 , respectively, are reflected in current derivative financial instrument liabilities and other noncurrent liabilities in the accompanying 
Consolidated Balance Sheets. In accordance with GAAP related to rate-regulated entities, Electtic Utility has recorded equal and offsetting 
amounts in regulatory assets. At September 30, 2013 and 2012 , the volumes of Elecfric Utility's forward electricity purchase confracts were 
245,8 million kilowatt hours and 570.4 million kilowatt hours, respectively. At September 30, 2013 , the maximum period over which taese 
confracts extend is 8 montas. 

In order to reduce volatility associated with a substantial portion of its electticity transmission congestion costs, Electric Utility obtains 
FTRs through an annual allocation process and by purchases of FTRs at monthly auctions. Midstream & Marketing purchases FTRs to 
economically hedge electricity transmission congestion costs associated wita its fixed-price electricity sales confracts. FTRs are derivative 
fmancial instmments that entitle the holder to receive compensation for electricity fransmission congestion charges that result when there is 
insufficient electricity fransmission capacity on the electric fransmission grid. Because Electric Utility is entitled to fiilly recover its DS costs, 
gains and losses on Electric Utility FTRs are recorded in regulatory assets or liabilities in accordance with GAAP related to rate-regulated 
entities and reflected in cost of sales through the DS recovery mechanism (see Note 9 ). Midsfream & Marketing from time to time also enters 
into New York Independent System Operator ("NYISO") capacity swap contracts to economically hedge the locational basis differences for 
customers it serves on the NYISO electticity grid. At September 30, 2013 and 2012 , the volumes associated with Elecfric Utihty FTRs totaled 
189.3 miUion kilowatt hours and 189.7 miUion kilowatt hours, respectively. Midsfream & Marketing's FTRs and capacity swap contracts are 
recorded at fair value with changes in fair value reflected in cost of sales. At September 30, 2013 and 2012 , tae volumes associated wita 
•Midsfream & Marketing's FTRs and NYISO capacity swap confracts totaled 1,401.9 million kilowatt hours and 988.8 million kilowatt hours, 
respectively. 

In order to manage market price risk relating to fixed-price sales confracts for nataral gas and elecfricity, Midsfream & Marketing enters 
into NYMEX and over-the-counter nataral gas fiitures contracts, IntercontinentalExchange ("ICE") natural gas basis swap confracts, and 
elecfricity ftittues confracts. Midsfream & Marketing also uses NYMEX and over tae counter elecfricity futures confracts to hedge the price of a 
portion of its anticipated fiitme sales of elecfricity from its electric generation facilities. In addition. Midstream & Marketing uses NYMEX 
futares confracts to economically hedge tae gross margin associated with the purchase and anticipated later sale of nataral gas or propane. 
Substantially all of Midsfream & Maiketing's derivative fmancial instmments described above are not accounted for as hedges under GAAP. 
These derivative instmments are recorded at fair value wita changes in fair value reflected in income. As a result, volatility in Midsfream and 
Marketing's results can occur due to changes in tae fair value of unsettled derivative instruments. Volatility can also occm as a result of timing 
differences between the settlement of financial derivatives and the sale or purchase of the corresponding physical commodity that was 
economically hedged. 

At September 30, 2013 and September 30, 2012, total volumes associated with Midsfream & Marketing's natural gas fiitares contracts 
associated with forecasted pmchases of nataral gas totaled 24.3 million dekatherms and 23,6 million dekatherms, respectively. At September 30, 
2013 and 2012, total volumes associated with Midsfream & Marketing's elecfricity call confracts and electricity put confracts totaled 754.4 
million kilowatt hours and 393.0 miUion kilowatt hours, and 1,415.7 million kilowatt horns and 135.3 million kilowatt hours, respectively. At 
September 30, 2013 , tae vohmies associated with Midsfream & Marketing's nattual gas and propane storage NYMEX confracts totaled 2.9 
million dekataerms and 2.8 million gallons, respectively. At September 30, 2012 , the volumes associated wita Midsfream & Marketing's 

natural gas and propane storage NYMEX confracts totaled 4.3 million dekataerms and 3.1 mUlion gallons, respectively. 

In order to reduce operating expense volatility, UGI Utilities from time to time enters into NYMEX gasoline futares and swap confracts for 
a portion of gasoline volumes expected to be used in the operation of its vehicles and equipment. Associated volumes, fair values and effects on 
net income were not material for all periods presented. 

At September 30, 2013 and 2012 , we had the following outstanding derivative commodity insfiimients volumes that qualify for hedge 
accounting treatment: 

Volumes 

Commodity 2013 2012 

li5j;(tniiii6ris1ctf^Mlori0^ 
Electiicity calls (millions of kilowatt horns) 594.8 1,151.7 

At September 30, 2013 , the maximum period over which we are hedging our exposure to the variability in cash flows associated with 
LPG commodity price risk is 24 months with a weighted average of 6 months and the maximum period over which 
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we are hedging our exposure to the variability in cash flows associated with electticity price risk (excluding Electtic Utility) is 24 months for 
elecfricity forward purchase confracts, with a weighted average of 8 months. 

We account for commodity price risk confracts (otaer taan Midsfream & Marketing's contracts taat are not designated as accounting hedges 
and Gas Utility and Electric Utility contracts taat are subject to regulatory freatment) as cash flow hedges. Changes in the fair values of confracts 
qualifying for cash flow hedge accounting are recorded in AOCI and, with respect to the Partaership, nonconfroUing interests, to the extent 
effective in offsetting changes in the underlying commodity price risk. When earnings are affected by the hedged commodity, gains or losses are 
recorded in cost of sales in the Consolidated Statements of Income. At September 30,2013 , the amount of net losses associated wita commodity 
price risk hedges expected to be reclassified into eamings during the next twelve montas based upon current fair values is $13.6 . 

Interest Rate Risk 

Antargaz' and Flaga's long-term debt agreements have interest rates taat are generally indexed to short-term market interest rates. Antargaz 
has entered into pay-fixed, receive-variable interest rate swap agreements to hedge tae underlying euribor rate of interest on its variable-rate term 
loan, and Flaga has entered into pay-fixed, receive-variable interest rate swap agreements to hedge the underlying euribor rate of interest on its 
term loans, in each case through die respective scheduled matarity dates. As of September 30, 2013 and 2012 , the total notional amounts of 
variable-rate debt subject to interest rate swap agreements (excluding Flaga's cross-currency swap as described below) were €440.5 and €441.9 , 
respectively. 

Om domestic businesses' long-term debt is typically issued at fixed rates of interest. As these long-term debt issues matare, we typically 
refinance such debt with new debt having interest rates refiecting then-current market conditions. In order to reduce market rate risk on the 
underlying benchmark rate of interest associated with near- to medium-term forecasted issuances of fixed-rate debt, from time to time we enter 
into interest rate protection agreements ("IRPAs"). At September 30, 2013 , we had no unsettled IRPAs. At September 30, 2012 , the total 
notional amount of unsettled IRPAs was $173.0 . 

Dming Fiscal 2012, UGI Utilities reclassified pre-tax losses of $0.7 from AOCI into income as a result of tae discontinuance of cash fiow 
hedge accounting for a portion of expected interest payments associated with the issuance of long-term debt originally anticipated to occur in 
September 2012. Such losses are included in otaer income, net, in the 2012 Consolidated Statement of Income. 

We account for interest rate swaps and IRPAs as cash flow hedges. Changes in the fair values of interest rate swaps and IRPAs are recorded 
in AOCI and, wifli respect to tiie Partnership, nonconfrolling interests, to the extent effective in offsetting changes in the underlying interest rate 
risk, until eamings are affected by the hedged interest expense. At such time, gains and losses are recorded in interest expense. At September 30, 
2013 , the amount of net losses associated with interest rate hedges (excluding pay-fixed, receive-variable interest rate swaps) expected to be 
reclassified into eamings during the next twelve months is $2.7 . 

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk 

In order to reduce volatility, Antargaz hedges a portion of its anticipated U.S. dollar-denominated LPG product purchases through the use 
of forward foreign currency exchange contracts. The amount of dollar-denominated purchases of LPG associated with such confracts generally 
represents approximately 15% to 30% of estimated dollar-denominated purchases of LPG to occur during the heating-season months of October 
tiu-ough March. At September 30, 2013 and 2012 , we were hedging a total of $200.2 and $174.5 of U.S. dollar-denominated LPG pmchases, 
respectively. At September 30, 2013 , the maximum period over which we are hedging om exposme to tiie variability in cash flows associated 
with dollar-denominated pmchases of LPG is 30 months with a weighted average of 11 montas. From time to time we also enter into forward 
foreign cunency exchange confracts to reduce the volatility ofthe U.S. dollar value on a portion of our Intemational Propane euro-denominated 
net investments. At September 30,2013 and 2012, we had no euro-dominated net investment hedges. 

We account for foreign currency exchange confracts associated with anticipated purchases of U.S. dollar-denominated LPG as cash flow 
hedges. Changes in the fair values of these foreign currency exchange contracts are recorded in AOCI, to the extent effective in offsetting 
changes in the underlying currency exchange rate risk, until eamings are affected by the hedged LPG pmchase, at which time gains and losses 
are recorded in cost of sales. At September 30, 2013 , the amount of net losses associated with currency rate risk (other taan net investment 
hedges) expected to be reclassified into eamings during the next twelve months based upon current fair values is $2.5 . Gains and losses on net 
investment hedges are included in AOCI until such foreign operations are liquidated. 
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From time to time, the Company may enter into foreign currency exchange transactions to economically hedge the local-currency purchase 
price of anticipated foreign business acquisitions. These transactions do not qualify for hedge accounting freatment and any changes in fair value 
are recorded in other income, net. 

Cross-Currency Swaps 

During Fiscal 2013, Flaga entered into a cross-currency swap to hedge its exposure to the variability in expected future cash flows 
associatd with foreign currency and interest rate risk resulting from the issuance of $52.0 million of U.S. dollar denominated variable-rate debt. 
The cross-currency hedge includes initial and final exchanges of principal from a fixed euro denomination to a fixed U.S. denominated amount, 
to be exchanged at a specified rate, which was determined by tae market spot rate on the date of issuance. The cross-currency swap also includes 
an interest rate swap of a fixed foreign-denominated interest rate to a fixed U.S. denominated interest rate. We have designated tais cross-
currency swap as a cash flow hedge. Changes in the fair value of om cross-currency swap is recorded in AOCI to the extent effective in 
offsetting changes in the underiying foreign currency exchange and interest rate risk. At September 30, 2013 , the amount of net losses 
associated with this cross-currency swap expected to be reclassified into eamings over the next twelve months is not material. 

Derivative Financial Instrument Credit Risk 

We are exposed to risk of loss in tae event of nonperformance by our derivative financial instrument counterparties. Our derivative 
financial instrument counterparties principally comprise large energy companies and major U.S. and intemational financial instimtions. We 
maintain credit policies with regard to our counterparties taat we believe reduce overall credit risk. These policies include evaluating and 
monitoring our counterparties' financial condition, including their credit ratings, and entering into agreements with counterparties that govem 
credit limits or entering into netting agreements that allow for offsetting counterparty receivable and payable balances for certain financial 
fransactions, as deemed appropriate. Certain of these agreements call for the posting of collateral by the counterparty or by the Company in tae 
form of letters of credh, parental guarantees or cash. Additionally, our nataral gas and elecfricity exchange-fraded fiitares contracts generally 
require cash deposits in margin accounts. At September 30, 2013 and 2012 , resfricted cash in brokerage accounts totaled $7.0 and $3.0 , 
respectively. Although we have concentrations of credit risk associated with derivative financial insttnments, the maximum amount of loss, 
based upon tae gross fair values of the derivative financial instmments, we would incm if these counterparties failed to perform according to tae 
terms of taeir contracts was not material at September 30, 2013 . Certain of tae Partaership's derivative confracts have credit-risk-related 
contingent featares taat may require the posting of additional collateral in the event of a downgrade of the Partaership's debt rating. At 
September 30, 2013 , if the credit-risk-related contingent features were triggered, the amount of collateral required to be posted would not be 
material. 
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The following table provides information regarding the balance sheet location and fair value of derivative assets and liabilities existing as 
ofSeptember30,2013 and 2012: 

Derivative Assets Derivative Liabilities 

Fair Value 

September 30, 

Fair Value 

September 30, 

Balance Sheet 
Location 2013 2012 

Balance Sheet 
Location 2013 2012 

Commodity contracts 

Cross-currency contracts 

', ̂ Mterest rate>cdhtr^cts" - - . . • ' 

Total Derivatives Designated as 
Hedging Instruments 

l^^flt^ves^ccouiiten for. Under ' . 
®^980:S^-i''^'^\t.s ^^V- ' " 

Commodity contracts 

>jen âtwes1No^^DJ»ig^^ as 
np[n$tniments:j 

Commodity contracts 

1U-
^^i^w^y*^--' ""JC'. 

Derivative financial 
instmments 

and Other assets 

Derivative financial 
instruments -̂  

and Other assets 

Derivative financial 
instruments 

Denvative financial 
instmments 

and Other assets 

161 $ 

0.9 

3.3 

A-̂  

$ 17,0 $ 5.1 

— $ 53 

72 $ 45 

Derivative financial 
instruments 

and Other noncurrent Habilities 

Derivative financial 
insttuments 

aiid Other noncurrent liabilities 

Denvative financial 
instruments 

and Other noncurrent liabilities 

Denvative financial 
'* instruments 

and Other'noncurrentliabilities 

Derivative financial 
instruments 

and Other noncurrent liabilities 

$ 

$ 

(2 6) 

(7.2) 

(12) 

(31.0) 

(42.0) 

i 

$ 

(43.6)_ 

^ — ' 

— 

(71.9) 

(115.5) 

Denvative financial 
instruments 

$ (6 7) $ 

$ (6.7) $ 

(9 4) 

(8.0) 

$ 24.2^ $ 14.9 $ (55i4M$^i(liii& 
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The following tables provide information on the effects of derivative instruments in the Consolidated Statement of Income and changes in 
AOCI and nonconfrolling interest for Fiscal 2013 and 2012 : 

Cash Flow Hedges: 
Commodity confracts 
Foreign cmrency contracts 
Cross-currency confracts 

Interest rate confracts 

Total 

Net Investment Hedges: 

Foreign currency confracts 

AAyA'-

$ 

$ 

$ 

Gain or (Loss) 
Recognized in 

AOCI and 
Nonconfrolling Interests 

2013 2012 
ef fyy: ;./' ^-'\ A. .' 

8.3 $ (98.0) $ 
(8.3) (0,5) 
(1.2) -

22.9 -" (36.8) 

21.7 $ (135.3) $ 
' 

— $ 0.6 $ 

2011 

27.3 
6.9 
— 

(35,8) 

(1.6) 

0.2 

Gain or (Loss) 
Reclassified from 

AOCI and Nonconfrolling 
Interests into Income 

2013 2012 2011 

^ ' ' - V :-':A^yA^-yf^yAA^A'y"rtyA^ 

$ (49.5) $ (61.4) $ 35.3 
(0.1) 2.1 (0.8) 

— — — 

(14.2) (11.5) . (14.1) 

$ (63.8) $ (70.8) $ 20.4 

Location of Gain or (Loss) 
Reclassified from 

AOCI and Nonconfrolling 
Interests into Income 

Cost of sales 
Cost of sales . 

Interest expense /other 
income 

Derivatives Not Designated as Hedging 
Instruments: 

Commodity confracts 

Conmiodity contracts 
Foreign currency confracts 

Total 

Gain or (Loss) 
Recognized in Income 

2013 

(0.4) 

2012 

0.2 
0.5 

2011 

Location of 
Gain or (Loss) 

Recognized in Income 

9.3 $ 0.1 $ 29.7 

0.3 
(6.1) 

Cost of sales 
Operating expenses / other 

income 
Other income 

8.9 $ - 0.8 • $ 23.9 

The amounts of derivative gains or losses representing ineffectiveness, and the amounts of gains or losses recognized in income as a result 
of excluding derivatives from ineffectiveness testing, were not material for Fiscal 2013 , Fiscal 2012 and Fiscal 2011 . 

As a result ofthe Partaership's refinancing of its 7.125% Senior Notes (see Note 6 ), during tae three montas ended September 30, 2011, 
the Partnership discontinued cash flow hedge accounting for settled but unamortized IRPA losses associated with AmeriGas Partners Senior 
Notes and recorded a loss of $2.6 which amount is included in loss on extinguishments of debt on the Fiscal 2011 Consolidated Statement of 
Income. 

We are also a party to a number of other confracts that have elements of a derivative instrument. These confracts include, among others, 
binding purchase orders, confracts which provide for tae purchase and delivery, or sale, of natural gas, LPG and elecfricity, and service confracts 
that require the counterparty to provide commodity storage, fransportation or capacity service to meet om normal sales commitments. Although 
many of these contracts have the requisite elements of a derivative instmment, these confracts qualify for normal purchases and normal sales 
exception accounting under GAAP because they provide for the delivery of products or services in quantities taat are expected to be used in the 
normal course of operating our business and the price in the confract is based on an underlying that is directly associated with the price of tae 
product or service being purchased or sold. 

Note 19 — Ener^ Services Accounts Receivable Securitization Facility 

At September 30, 2013, Energy Services had a $100 miUion receivables purchase facility ("Receivables Facility") with an issuer of 
receivables-backed commercial paper. Prior to its scheduled expiration on November 1,2013, Energy Services extended its Receivables Facility 
until October 31,2014, and amended tiie Receivables Facility to better ahgn its borrowing limits wita 
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Energy Services' seasonal borrowing needs. The Receivables Facility, as amended, provides Energy Services with the ability to borrow up to 
$150 mUlion of ehgible receivables during the period November 1, 2013 to May 31, 2014, and up to $75 million of eligible receivables during 
the period June 1,2014 to October 31,2014. 

Under the Receivables Facility, Energy Services fransfers, on an ongoing basis and without recourse, its trade accounts receivable to its 
wholly owned, special purpose subsidiary. Energy Services Funding Corporation ("ESFC"), which is consolidated for financial statement 
purposes. ESFC, in turn, has sold, and subject to certain conditions, may from time to time sell, an undivided interest in some or all of tae 
receivables to a commercial paper conduit of a major bank (through September 30, 2013) and, subsequent to September 30, 2013, to the bank 
itself. ESFC was created and has been stmctured to isolate its assets from creditors of Energy Services and its affiliates, including UGI. Trade 
receivables sold to the commercial paper conduit or the bank remain on the Company's balance sheet and the Company reflects a liability equal 
to tae amount advanced by the commercial paper conduit or the bank. The Company records interest expense on amounts owed to tae 
commercial paper conduit or the bank. Energy Services continues to service, administer and collect frade receivables on behalf of the 
commercial paper issuer and ESFC. 

Dming Fiscal 2013 , Fiscal 2012 and Fiscal 2011 , Energy Services transferred tt^de receivables totaling $975.3 , $836.0 and $1,134.9 , 
respectively, to ESFC. During Fiscal 2013 , Fiscal 2012 and Fiscal 2011 , ESFC sold an aggregate $291.0 , $286.0 and $88.0 , respectively, of 
undivided interests in its frade receivables to tae commercial paper conduit. At September 30, 2013 , the outstanding balance of ESFC trade 
receivables was $55.0 of which $30.0 was sold to the commercial paper conduit and reflected on the Consolidated Balance Sheet as bank loans. 
At September 30, 2012 , tae outstanding balance of ESFC frade receivables was $43.5 of which no amount was sold to tae commercial paper 
conduit. Losses on sales of receivables to the commercial paper conduit during Fiscal 2013 , Fiscal 2012 and Fiscal 2011 , which amounts are 
included in interest expense on the Consolidated Statements of Income, totaled $0.7 , $1.0 and $1.2, respectively. 

Note 20 — Other Income. Net 

Other income, net, comprises tae following: 

2013 2012 2011 
pnterespittipmte^@elatea mcome 
Antargaz Competition Autaority matter 

Foreign currency hedge (loss) gam 

Loss on private equity partaership investment 

Total otaer income, net 

$ 

-

-

~ 

$ 

^ 2.2 

2.8 
(0.4) 
21.4 
(6 3) 

^T3,l 

32.8 

$ 

^ 

, 

$ 

2,4 $ 

,- "2.7 ^̂  ^ 
05 

. ^ - *18".8. 
— 

' • , ' ' 15.4~ ; . ' 

39.8 $ 

2.3 
94 

"^ ' 6.4" 
(6 1) 

^ -15.1 
— 

^ -18.4 

45.5 
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Note 21 — Ouarterlv Data funaudited^ 

The following unaudited quarterly data includes adjustments (consisting only of normal recurring adjustments with the exception of those 
indicated below) which we consider necessary for a fair presentation unless otherwise indicated and reflects the revisions or restatements to 
correct the errors described in Note 3. Ourquarterly results fluctaate because ofthe seasonal natare ofour businesses. 

Revenwes 

Costs and expenses 

Cost of Sales (excluding depreciation 
shown below) 

Operating and administrative expenses 

Vt^lit^ttixes other than income taxes • 

Depreciation 

^Aiftbriizktion ' ' ' 

Other income, net 

Operating income (loss) 

Income (loss) from equity investees 

Interest expense 

Income (loss) before income taxes 

Income tax (expense) benefit 

Nrt:mc^iy^) yr-y- '•' '̂ ŷ WS&Ar" 
(Deduct net income) add net loss 
attributable to noncontroiling interests, 
principally in AmenGas Partners 

s^^i^cfme Ooss) attributable to TJGI 
Corporation 

December 31, 2012 

As 
As Revised 

Previously (See Note 
Reported Adjustments 3) 

$ 2,023.2 $ 

1,218.8 

426.9 

• - 4.3 

71.8 

15.3 

(10 0) 

1,727.1 

296.1 

— 

(60 3) 

• 235.8 

(65.1) 

<-^Ai0m'y^ 

(68 1) 

$ 102.6 $ 

(4.5) $2,018.7 

(3.3) 1,215.5 

— 426.9 

, „ - 4,3 

0.7 72 5 

— 15.3 

- (10.0) 

(2.6) 1,724.5 

(19) 294.2 

— — 
(1.2) (61.5) 

(3.1) 232.7 

0.2 (64.9) 

W§:^)f,^ WhA 

2 8 (65.3) 

~ (0.1) $ ' 102.5 

Earnings (loss) per common share attnbutable to UGI Corporation 
stockholders: 

-BasicV'V"'-"- -^i^y A'^r'yA^-'^^^'^^yi' 

Diluted 
MjJA^IiA. 

$ 0.90 

.AvVage,Jcoinmon: sKa:es*offfctahding'(|th'6usJuidŝ ^̂ ^ 

Basic 

tUluted^ -'̂ ' A<-'J>- >!C' '''-''^.-y'' 

113,136 

y - ; i i 4 ^ r - \ 

WJjvl ; : ' !§9P? 
$ 0.90 

'^^iti-Sii Zyy 
113,136 

'•y':^.y''-yA^}4A9Ql-., 

March 31,2013 

As 
Previously 
Reported Adjustments 

S 2,537.1 $ 

1,500.6 

465.8 

4.7 

71.7 

' 15.6 

(7 5) 

2,050.9 

486.2 

O.I 

(60.1) 

426.2 

(100.0) 

i!̂  ' f^^-yAA 

(154.3) 

$ ' 171.9 $ 

lS;yA^\0^A 
$ 1.49 

-Myf5''-'-\'. 
113,709 

:"^ti5,199 

F-63 

5.6 

(13.9) 

(4.3) 

~ 

2.3 

• — 

— 

(15.9) 

21.5 

— 

— 

21.5 

(6.0) 

^:,':iS 

(6.7) 

8.8 

>-.i'^;!( 

As 
Restated 
(See Note 

3) 

$ 2,542.7 

1,486.7 

461.5 

4.7 

74 0 

15.6 

(7.5) 

2,035.0 

507 7 

0.1 

(60.1) 

447.7 

(106.0) 

"^•HSIV?:-

(1610) 

$ 180.7 

^^'^}MSA 
$ 1.57 

113,709 

115,199 

June 30,2013 

As 
As Revised 

Previously (See Note 
Reported Adjustments 3) 

$ 1,372.3 $• 2.0 $ 1,374.3 

827.9 ' 8.9 836.8 

404.7 2.8 407.5 

3.7 - — . 3:7 -

76.5 (0.1) 76.4 

15.4 — 15.4 

(9.0) 2 0 (7.0) 

1,319-2 13.6 1,332,8 

53.1 (11.6) 41.5 

— — - - • • — ' 

(59.2) — (59.2) 

(6.1) (11.6) (17.7) 

(9.0) 3.9 (5.1) 

6!v?:(î i)''̂  W^^y- ' '<̂ WSy-" 

29 8 2 1 31.9 

'$ '14:7 $ ' X5.6) $ 9 . r 

; , § l^«^^ l f^^^^#J | ; :OlOS*; 

$ 0.13 S 0.08 

lA ":}0p:: c^yyyyi-:-:M:M: 
114,240 114,240 

116,196 116,196:;: 

September 
30,2013 (a) 

$ 1,259.0 

785.4 

396.1 

• -4.2 -

78.5 

' 15.4-

(8.3) 

. , 1,271.3 

(12.3) 

J \ - . (0.5), 

(59.5) 

(72.3) 

13.2 

iyKA'MVh 

449 

$ (14.2)' 

"̂ ftSfM^ 
S (0.12) 

mySyA&M 
114,598 

'•y/ : ^ iMM:: 
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December 31,2011 (b) 

As 
Previously 
Reported 

ij^venues ' Ci»^jCs^^f,688.8-

Costs and expenses. 

Cost of sales'"^ fi ' ^ _̂  "̂ 
(excluding'," s'^^'^J^- " ' " 
depreciation showiT.' , , , 

below) ', ^rr^~ ^-' j.ior.s 
Operating and 
administrative 
expenses 342 4 

As 
Restated 
(See Note 

Adjustments 3) 

$•;;<- (2.0) $ 1,686.8 

20.5 1,122.3 

0 3 342 7 

March 31,2012(c) 

As 
As Revised 

Previously (See Note 
Reported Adjustments 3) 

$ 2,427 5 $ • 0.3 $ 2,427.8 

1,526.6 (2.3) 1,524.3 

443 3 0 5 443 8 

June 30,2012 

As 
As Restated 

Previously (See Note 
Reported Adjustments 3) 

$ a,277.^- $ 3.5 $ 1,280.7 

~ 810.2 (17.5) 792.7 

405 8 (13) 404 5 

September 30,2012 

As 
As Revised 

Previously (See Note 
Reported Adjustments 3) 

$ 1,125 7 $ 0.3 $1,126,0 

— 

672 6 (12.8) 659,8 

400 2 (0 1) 400 1 

§rtihwMxesomer~>v^ .j^.v^ - - ,. 

Depreciation 52 8 

Other income, net (8 1) 

Operating mcome 
(loss) 
[^^fiom^equity • 

01 

4.1 

52 9 

75 

(8 1) 

4.9 

68 7 

141 

(10 9) 

: ^ ' \ 1,500:5 20.9. ,1,521.4 2,046 7 

» W » W ^ % M o l 7 7 - -
Average common shares outstandmg 
(thousands) 

(0 2) 

(19) 

- 4.9 

68 5 

14,1 

(12 8) 

3.9 

69 5 

15.1 

(8 1) 

(0 1) 

39 

69 4 

15.1 

(81) 

4.4 

73 2 

15.1 

(112) 

(3.9) 2,042.8 1,296.4 (18.9) 1,277.5 1,154.3. 

(19 2) 

— - ~^(0.1) 

— (13 4) 01 

2.8 - ' - " (62~S) .,'-(61.3), 

22 4 3 2 

- (0.1) 

, 0 4 

01 

(60.9) 

(28 6) 

(0,1) 

(58 9) 

7 0 3091 (80 5) 22 8 (57 7) 

(21)^ (77,2) «^4.0\- (8.1)- ~(4 . l ) : 

(87 6) 

-13:6 

(76 5) 

70.2s 

14 7 (618) 

(3.1) 67J 

(74 0) 

59,3 

(63) $ 116 $ 5.3 $ (147) 

112,240 112,510: 

(0 06) 

(0.06) 

;:aa2,5ipj;v:^;ifi2;726:; 

Diluted 113,152 113,152 113,239 113,239 112,726 

0.05 $ (0 13) 

0.05 $ (0.13) 

'4l2y72^|/^^lil2;S^8!:r 

113,504 112,868 

(0 8) 

04 

4.4 

72 4 

15.1 

(10 8) 

(13.3) 1,141.0 

13 6 (15 0) 

(0.1) 

(2.1) (610) 

115 ,(76 1) 

56 (68 4) 

2,8 ' - o 62.1 

84 $ (6 3) 

$ (0 06) 

$ (0.06) 

112,868 
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The impacts of the corrections on the key fmancial metrics operating income (loss), net income (loss) attributable to UGI Corporation 
and diluted eamings (loss) per share for each ofthe relevant quarters in the two years ended September 30, 2013 is are follows: 

;!C)perating income (loss): 
Midstream & Marketing hedge 
accounting 

, Partnership customer credits 

Other (1) 

) f ( y ^ M y $ f ^ ^ 

December 31, 
2012 

$ 0.7 $ 

(2.8) 

0.2 

'SMM^&SMM 

Fiscal 2013 

March 31, 
2013 

12.5 

7.0 

2.0 

î if^zils 

June 30,2013 

$ (6.9) 

iM& 

— 

(4.7) 

.11 . . . 

December 31, 
2011 

5̂ 1 

(19.3) 

(3.2) 

(0.4) 

ifijî MM 

Fiscal 2012 

March 31, 
2012 June 30,2012 

2.2 18.5 

(0.4) 3.2 

2.4 0.7 

W ? 9 9 S K i M ^ 

September 
30,2012 

15.5 

(1.4) 

(0.5) 

SflSiW 

;Gprpdr^ibni;;. --A; 'yyt i .-•,'̂ 'AAy >'A' - -'̂ V:--̂  
Midstream & Marketing hedge 
accounting 

Ir,Partnership customer credits 

Other (1) 

f̂ tal 

Diluted eamings (loss) per share 
%ffiibutable to UGI Corporation 
stockholders: 

Midstream & Marketing hedge 
accounting 

'̂ ^ ÎfiirtheisKipBulto credits 

Other (1) 

Total 

$ 

$ ' • 

$ 

$ 

0.4 $ 

(0.4) 

(0.1) 

(0.1) $ 

-.' 

— $ 

— 

— 

. — $ - • ' • 

7.3 $ 

• 1.1 

0.4 

• 8.8 $ 

0.06 $ 

- ' 0.01 

0.01 

' 0.08.$ 

(4.1) 

— 

(1.5) 

(5.6) 

(0.04) 

— 

(0.01) 

(0.05) 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ ' 

(11.3) $ 

(0.8) 

— 

(12.1) $ 

' 

(0.10) $ 

(0.01) 

— 
'(o:ii)$.. 

1.3 $ 

(0.1) 

1.7 

2.9 $- -

0.01 $ 

— ' -

0.02 

0.03 ,$ 

10.8 $ 

0.5 

0.3 

11.6 $ 

0.10 $ 

— 

— 

o.io $- -

9.1 

(0.2): 

(0.5) 

~ 8.4 

0.08 

— 

(0.01) 

- • 0.07^ 

(1) Other adjustments principally relate to the timing of certain expense and income accruals. Other diluted earnings (loss) per share attributable 
to UGI Corporation stockholders also mcludes the impact of rounding. 

The adjustments reflected in the tables above did not affect cash flows from operating activities, investing activities or financing 
activities for any of the quarterly periods. In addition, the adjustments above relating to the Midstream & Marketing hedge accounting did not 
affect total stockholders' equity as these adjustments resuhed in changes to accumulated other comprehensive income and retained eamings in 
equal and offsetting amounts. In addition, the adjustments related to Midsh-eam & Marketing hedge accounting had no effect on consolidated 
assets and liabilities. The Partnership customer credits and other adjustments did not have a material effect on the consolidated balance sheets for 
all periods presented. 
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(a) Includes impairment loss on private equity partnership investment which increased operating loss by $6.3 and net loss athibutable to UGI 
Corporation by $3.7 or $0.03 per share (see Note 2). 

(b) Includes adjustment to foreign tax credit valuation allowance which increased net income by $5.5 or $0.05 per diluted share (see Note 7). 

(c) Includes loss on extinguishment of Partnership long-term debt which decreased net income attributable to UGI Corporation by $2.2 or $0.02 
per diluted share (see Note 6). 
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Note 22 — Segment Information 

Our operations comprise six reportable segments generally based upon products sold, geographic location and regulatory environment. Our 
reportable segments comprise: (1) AmeriGas Propane; (2) an intemational LPG segment comprising Antargaz; (3) an intemational LPG segment 
principally comprising Flaga and AvantiGas; (4) Gas Utility; (5) Energy Services; and (6) Electric Generation. We refer to both intemational 
segments together as "UGI Intemational" and Energy Services and Electric Generation together as "Midstream & Marketing." 

AmeriGas Propane derives its revenues principally from the sale of propane and related equipment and supplies to retail customers in all 
50 states. Antargaz' revenues are derived principally from the distribution of LPG to retail customers in France and, to a much lesser extent, 
Belgium, the Netherlands and Luxembourg. Flaga & Other revenues are derived principally from the distribution of LPG to customers in 
northem, central and eastem Europe and the United Kingdom. Gas Utility's revenues are derived principally from the sale and distribution of 
natural gas to customers in eastem, northeastem and central Pennsylvania. Energy Services revenues are derived from the sale of natural gas and, 
to a lesser extent, LPG, electricity and fiiel oil as well as storage and other energy services to customers located primarily in the Mid-Atlantic 
region of the United States. Electric Generation revenues are derived principally from the sale of electricity through PJM, a regional electricity 
fransmission organization in the eastem U.S. 

The accounting policies of our reportable segments are the same as those described in Note 2 . We evaluate AmeriGas Propane's 
performance principally based upon the Partnership's eamings before interest expense, income taxes, depreciation and amortization 
("Partnership EBITDA"). Ahhough we use Partnership EBITDA to evaluate AmeriGas Propane's profitability, it should not be considered as an 
altemative to net income (as an indicator of operating performance) or as an altemative to cash flow (as a measure of liquidity or ability to 
service debt obligations) and is not a measure of performance or financial condition under GAAP. Our definition of Partnership EBITDA may be 
different from that used by other companies. We evaluate the performance ofour other reportable segments principally based upon their income 
before income taxes. 

No single customer represents more than ten percent ofour consolidated revenues. In addition, all of oiu- reportable segments' revenues, 
other than those of UGI Intemational, are derived from sources within the United States, and all of our reportable segments' long-lived assets, 
other than those of UGI Intemational, are located in the United States. 

2013 

Revenues 

Cost of sales 

Operating income 

Loss from equity investees 

Interest expense 

Income before income taxes 

Total 

$ 7,194.7 

$ 4,324.4 

$ 831.1 

$ (0.4) 

$ (240.3) 

$ 590.4 

Net income attributable to UGI S 278.1 

Depreciation and amortization 

,. Nonoa'ntroIling.intCTeste' rlet^. 
income (loss) 

Partnership EBITDA (a) 

• Total assets^' -..",' 

Bank loans 

Capital expenditur<» ^ 

Investments in equity 
investees 

: Goodwill 

S 363.1 

•'$ •:' m s K 

$10,008;8r 

$ 227.9 

\S' '40.V-

S 0.3 

"$ , 2,873:7-

Elim­
inations 

$ 
$ 
S 

$ 
$ 
$ 

yr-

: ^ ' 
$ 

V̂ i 
s 

: • $ ' 

(223.8) (c) 

(217.5) (c) 

(1.1) 

— 
™ 

(1.1) 

(0.6) 

— 

>10b:l)- -; 

— 

' v'd-l^^r'VX 

AmeriGas 
Propane 

' $ 3,168.8 

$ 1,657.2 

$ 394.4 

— 
(166.6) 

S 227.8 

- $ 47.5 

$ 205.9 

'• '^iy-^^M.^^' 

$ 596.5 

$ 116.9 

•̂••5̂ ^ ^ i l i A r 

S — 

'$":"l,941.0',' 

Gas Utility 

$ 839.0 

S 407.2 

$ 196.5 

— 
(37.4) 

$ 159.1 

$ 94.3 

$ 51.7 

: iS^}' '{ '^-^: 

':-$^2,069^0:;; 

S 17.5 

A$AAi4i:jA 

S — 

$':='1.82:1,^ 
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Midstream & Marketing 

Energy Electric 
Services Generation 

$ 969.4 

S 836.9 

S 82.5 

— 
(3.2) 

$ 79.3 

S 46.3 

$ 7.6 

[.'S'-Ay'-Ar^:-: 

-'$'''-'-:5Cri;2"-
$ 87.0 

^'$ V--'"133;8'' 

$ — 

'̂  $^^|:/"Z8''^ 

$ 71.4 

S 39.9 

$ 7.5 

— 
— 

$ 7.5 

$ 6.2 

$ 10.0 

;:$-̂ :V\:- , j ^ - ; 

'^l:-'-'^6?:7-: 

$ — 

-; S-r~: 22:6-; 

S — 

;$: ' - ' - \ :^__ ^ 

UGI Intemational 

Antargaz 

$ 
$ 
S 

$ 
$ 
$ 

3;' 
• • , ? " ' 

$ 

y ^ r 

S 

;"^S; 

1,322.6 -

845.0 

111.4 

(0.4) 

(25.3) 

85,7 

57.2 

57.6 

,̂$:1fip^ 

•:::̂ 1^784.4r 

— 
^>y5i:4r 

"'̂  643;7V 

S 

$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 

s 
H$;? 

• " , $ -

$ 
s $ ; : 

$ 
• : r ' 

Flaga & 
Other 

856.6 

653 4 

35.6 

— 
(5.1) 

30.5 

25.5 

24.1 

A : ' . ' > M '•-

:-;'^:667.1;:, 

6.5 

f'''*l74-

0.3 

:• ; 97.1 '' 

Corporate & 
Other (b) 

$ 190.7 

$ 102.3 

$ 4.3 

— 

.(2-7) 

$ 1.6 

$ 1.7 

$ 6.2 

>;^>'yv/V 

7^$'r'^;';;,,?388;4;; 

$ — 

''•$-':';':;"/^7.5 , 

s — 
' $ ; ; ' ' • ; • " ^ . o ^ 
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Midstream & Marketing UGI Intemational 

Total 
Elim­

inations 
AmeriGas 
Propane Gas Utility 

Energy 
Services 

Electric 
Generation Antargaz 

Flaga & 
Other 

Corporate & 
Other (b) 

Revenues 

- Cost of sales*' 

Operatmg income (loss) 

t Loss fronj^ui^f investees -̂  
Loss on extinguishments of 
debt 

JhteresXexpense „ \ ' 
Income (loss) before income 
taxes 

g^Net Jiicom^(loss) attnl^table -̂  

Depreciation and amortization 

wTSo^controlImg'iafcrests' nek.;' 
^~.(loss) încome.,"J '^ ^«." - , 

Partnership EBITDA (a) 

Bank loans 

Investments in equity 
investees 

6,5213 $ (178 8) (c) 

$^4j0991 $ (1740) (c) 

S 538 6 $ — 

S"^ (0.3) — 

$ (13 3) — 

JI -(2204) - — 

$ 304 6 $ — 

? - ^ 210.2 -$~ — ' 

$ 315 0 $ — 

*$- (12.5)^ $ 

$:^9,676,9 

$ 165 1 

:$ "- 343^2 

S 03 

-$ fl8i8".3 

% (104.1) 

2,921 5 

1,722 4 

168 7 

— 

(13 3) 

(141 5) 

13 9 

' 1 5 4 

1681 

^(12 7) 

322 1 

4,533.8 

49 9 

103.1 

$ 
$ 
$ 

S 

$ 
$ 

$' 

s 
$ 
$ 

785 4 

402 5 

174 1 

— 

— 

(40.1) 

134 0 

81.6 

49 0 

• ^ — 

2,045 5 

92 

109.0 

$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 

S 

$ 

$^ 

$ 
$ 
$ 

8164 

701.9 

70 8 

— 

— 
(4.8) 

66 0 

" 38.7 

37 

_ 

368 5 

85 0 

^ 36.0 

$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 

S 

% 
'$ 

43 9 

28 0 

(6 5) 

— 

— 

— 

(6 5) 

~ (1.0) 

90 

„ • 

2582 

— 
24.4 

$ 
$ 
$ 

•• 

$ 

$-
$ 

$ 

s 
$ 
$ 

1,1214 

685 5 

88 3 

(0.3) 

— 

(26 3) 

617 

51.4 

57 1 

02 

1,686 5 

— 
47.3 

$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 

S 

$ 

$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 

824 7 

640 3 

23 6 

— 

— 
(4.6) 

190 

13,8 

22 1 

_ 

53L8 

210 

16.9 

S 

$ 
$ 

S 

s" 
% 

$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 

186 8 

925 

19 6 

— 

— 
(31) 

16 5 

10.3 

60 

_ 

356 7 

— 
6.5-

$ 1,919.2 $ 182.1 ' $ 28 $ $• 612.0 S 

03 

95.2 70 

Revenues S 6,090 9 $ (233 

^-i.^^982.7-^ S '(228 

$ 642 4 $ 

sKm'e2it?^invistees^^ '^^hf- (0.9) 
Loss on extinguishments of 

Operating mcome (loss) 

0) (c) 

6) (c) 

debt (38 1) 

, - ^"$^ (138 0) 

S 465 4 $ — 
Income (loss) before income 
taxes 

^ ^ M i n e ^ ^ b u t a l M UGI $ > -245 4 ^ $ 

Depreciation and amortization S 227 7 $ 

^ncontis>liing interests* net. =-̂  
iincomev'"^- " •^, ' ^ >$ " , 74.6 $ 

Partnership EBITDA (a) 

2,538 2 $ 1,026 4 

1,605.4 $ 610.6 

2416 S 199 6 

W)̂ -
Bank loans $ 138.7 $ — 

Investments in equity 
investees $ 0 3 

^>Goodwill . ; - - ' • • . $ 1,562.2 

(38 1) 

(63.5) 

140 0 

39.5 

94 5 

74 3 

295.6 

098.0?:; 

95.5 

477.x: 

— 

696.3 

— 
(404] 

S 159 2 

$ 99.3 

$ 48.4 

$ — 

'-,$"'•̂ 2,028:7 

$ — 

;:Sf?:;9i:3 

$ — 

$ 182.1 
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1,023 8 

904.5 

819 

$ 
$, 
$ 

48 6 

30.4 

(11) 

$ 
$ 
S 

1,050 6 

649.8 

89 2 

(09) 

$ 
$ 
$ 

438 1 $ 

321.0 % " 

(3 1) $ 

198 2 

^89.& 

34 3 

(2 0) 

79 9 

47.1 

24 

^33^2i^/ 

24.3 

••63:0^:: 

(07) 

(18) 

0.9 

56 

t̂iAiAA2JKLŜ A>'̂ :. 

V'^9:7->s>$: 

(25 5) (27) 

62 8 

442 

52 1 

$ 
$ 
$ 

(5 8) 

" (3.2) 

185 

03 $ — 

— $ 

28 S $ 5918 $ 

"428.Si: 

18.9 

03 

82.2 

- <3-2). 

31 1 

17.6~J 

62 

•Aî m 

• 8 ^ : 

7.0 
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(a) The following table provides a reconciliation of Partnership EBITDA to AmeriGas Propane operating income: 

Year ended September 30, 2013 2012 2011 

,$:':'' 

-yA^ 

$̂̂ -? 

C'<^m^-''^^Z/-
(205.9) 

' - ' : , , - ;H^:^f; ' : l \ 'T 

3.8 

• :̂':;'\394.4V/$;;/:t 

'̂̂ );32:̂ ':"'̂ '̂ $::;;̂ > 

(168.1) 

•AAiAii^iA.": > ' 
1.4 

.;;M|68,7i;-:$'x;; 

^ :;295;6-̂  
(94.5) 

^v'"pS;I-' 
2.4 

U^yMii^ 

ParfeerehqjEBITDA:,,:.::,H'/-;\V^ ,̂ :::''-''',''-̂ ': IS'"'VV;;"^':-;; •'>;'.,';^:y:. 
Depreciation and amortization 

•Loss.'on'eHidiigiushirientS:6B4^ ' î yA r''^'y^ \'.'f;;/,''-v.?:v 'y /? ; -'"S^ 
Noncontroiling interests (i) 

Op«atiiig^incbn^,:>\y;X:^-^^^:;;\-"'^ 'fAAJ''''̂ '-:V '̂X ' :v:'->'S'-'-

(i) Principally represents the General Partner's 1.01% interest in AmeriGas OLP. 

(b) Corporate & Other results principally comprise (1) Electric Utility, (2) Enterprises' heating, ventilation, ah-conditioning, refrigeration and 
electrical contracting businesses ("HVAC"), (3) changes in the fair values of Midstream & Marketing's unsettled commodity derivative 
instruments and gains and losses on settled commodity derivative instruments not associated with current period transactions, (4) net 
expenses of UGl's captive general liability insurance company, and (5) UGI Corporation's unallocated corporate and general expenses and 
interest income. Corporate & Other assets principally comprise cash, short-term investments, the assets of Electric Utility and HVAC, and 
an intercompany loan. The intercompany loan and associated interest is removed in the segment presentation. 

(c) Represents the elimination of intersegment transactions principally among Midstream & Marketing, Gas UtiUty and AmeriGas Propane. 
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UGI CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
SCHEDULE I — CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT (PARENT COMPANY) 

BALANCE SHEETS 
(Millions of dollars) 

Current assets: 

Accounts and notes receivable 

Prepaid expenses and other ciurent assets 

'^^'f;.X^tej^uite§^assets '̂  '̂ -̂  ̂ > 

Investments m subsidiaries 

OtherSssetsV yS. " ' Si '" , ". ^ 

Total assets 

September 30, 
2013 2012(a) 

;K 
-Ssv 

-. 

$ 

- , ? ^ ; c '.'a,-;. ::•;:':.-,::, >?,.;_:-,:,:.. j . . , - ; i^:,;.-,.- J 

2.9 4.0 

iA«iWlli:*^*i» 
0.3 0 3 

4:5 6,6 
2,488.7 2,241.1 

, , 49.9 ' 28.3 
2,543.1 $ 2,276 0 

LIABILITIES AND COMMON STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

Ciurent liabilities. 
^"AccoiBits^and notes payable ' 

Denvative financial msdruments 

Total current liabilities 

Commitments and contingencies (Note 1) 
«%)itig^lKwKhoiders*?eqir!ty; : , -

Common Stock, without par value (authorized - 300,000,000 shares, issued - 115,783,794 and 
115,624,594 shares, respectively) 

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) 

mpmmi0^k;&tcost̂ .- c-
Total common stockholders' equity 

'^''^'Ito^mi&biUties^and'common stockholders' equity 

11.0 $ 

3.9 

14.9 
35.f 

2,492.5 

2,543.1 $ 

n.i 

-2.4' 

13.5 
3^.7 

1,208.1 
1,308.3 

8.4 
^"(32.3) 

1,157 7 
r,156.0 

(55.2) 

2,229.8 

2,276r0 

(a) Investments in subsidiaries and common stockholder's equity have been revised to reflect the effects of corrections to consolidated financial 
statements (see Note 3 to Consolidated Financial Statements). 

Note 1 — Commitments and Contingencies: 

In addition to the guarantees of Flaga's and Antargaz' debt as described in Note 6 to Consolidated Financial Statements, at September 30,2013 , 
UGI Corporation had agreed to indemnify the issuers of $52.5 of surety bonds issued on behalf of certain UGI subsidiaries. UGI Corporation is 
authorized to guarantee up to $425.0 of obligations to suppliers and customers of UGI Energy Services, Inc. and subsidiaries of which $368.6 of 
such obligations were outstanding as of September 30, 2013 . UGI Corporation has guaranteed the floating to fixed rate interest rate swaps at 
Flaga which obligations totaled $4.3 at September 30,2013 . 
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UGI CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
SCHEDULE I — CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT (PARENT COMPANY) 

STATEMENTS OF INCOME 
(Millions of dollars, except per share amounts) 

"R£fermesT:7rrr"" '̂'""""''T";̂ '/̂  : ^ •' , '" ^ •:-V'-rv, \',. •' ' 
Costs and expenses: 
.'''^G^ratitig^nd^^mihisti^tiVe^ '•'. :'•;""AAy'^''-<": A:"''•• ;f̂ ",'̂ : y ' y ' 

Other income, net (1) 

Operating (loss) income 

Intercompany interest income 

Income (loss) before income taxes 

Income tax expense (benefit) 

(Loss) income before equity in income of unconsolidated subsidiaries 

Equity in income of unconsolidated subsidiaries 

Net income 

Eammgs per common share; 

Basic 

Diluted 

Average common shares outstanding (thousands): 

Basic 

Diluted 

(a) Equity in income of unconsolidated subsidiaries have been revised to refiect the effects of corrections to consolidated financial 
statements (see Note 3 to Consolidated Financial Statements). 

(1) UGI provides certain financial and administrative services to certain of its subsidiaries. UGI bills these subsidiaries monthly for all direct 
expenses incurred by UGI on behalf of its subsidiaries as well as allocated shares of indirect corporate expense incurred or paid with respect 
to services provided by UGI. The allocation of indirect UGI corporate expenses to certain of its subsidiaries utilizes a weighted, three-
component formula comprising revenues, operating expenses, and net assets employed and considers the relative percentage of such items 
for each subsidiary to the total of such items for all UGI operating subsidiaries for which general and administrative services are provided. 
Management believes that this allocation method is reasonable and equitable to its subsidiaries. These billed expenses are classified as 
"Other income, net" in die Statements of Income above. 

""^''' 

$ 

$ 

s 

2013 

X : '̂ 'V 'i~v:' 

'^yy^yfi^^A 

(36.7) 
0.2 

(0.2) 
0.2 

— 
3.1 

(3.1) 
281.2 

278.1 

2.44 

2.41 

113,923 

115,521 

Year Ended 
September 30, 

2012(a) 
• • . < ^ y - y - - } y : A r ^ ^ . 

X'pf^^'^^Plfft 
(28.1) 

- (0.3) 

0.3 
0.2 

0.5 
, 0.3 

0.2 
210.0-

$ 210.2 

$ 1.87 

$ 1.85 

^ .112,581.-

113,432 

m' 
'ymM 

„ 

$ 

$̂  

fc-
•..- -

2011(a) 

P'-'y'r-^'^': 

f ^ ^ M ^ ' A 

(24.8) 

6.2 

(6.2) 

.0.1 

(6.1) 

' . (1-1) 
(5.0) 

250.4 
245.4 

2.20 

,- .- ,._ 2.17 

- _''111,674 

112,944 
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UGI CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
SCHEDULE I — CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT (PARENT COMPANY) 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
(Millions of dollars) 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES (a) 

Year Ended 
September 30, 

2013 

139.4 $ 

2012 

158.3 S 

2011 

201.6 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 

MWetemyestments*imuncpnsolidatedsubsidianes 
Net cash used by investing activities 

(59.1) 

(59.1) 

(54.4) 

(54.4) 

(119:4) 

(119.4) 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
Payment of dividends on Common Stock 

Net cash used by financing activities 

;̂ dash.~anl;c}ish Jquivalei^;(decrease) increase ~ 

Cash and cash equivalents 
<"Endtpfye^^ '~"' '-?.* ' -

Beginning of year 

s\^.'^(Decrease) inc|:ea^e-". 

(a) Includes dividends received from unconsohdated subsidiaries of $155.2 , $156.0 and $188.9, for the years ended September 30,2013 ,2012 
and 2011 , respectively. 

$ 

$ 

$-

(125.8) 
.. 44.5 

(813) 

^ ' (1.0)* $, 

0.9 $ ' 
19 

"" 0-0) ,s . 

(119.1) 
Jl6.t' 

(102 4) 

: 1.5 " $ 

1.9 $ 
0 4 

1.5 $ 

(113.8) 
3h0 = 

(82.8) 

H0.6) 

0.4 
10 

(0.6) 
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UGI CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
SCHEDULE II — VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS 

(Millions of dollars) 

Charged 
Balance at (credited) 
beginning to costs and 

of year expenses Other 

Balance at 
end of 
year 

30.2 $ (26.8) (1) $ 39.5 

(5.7) 26.3 (2) $ 97.6 

Year Ended September 30,2013 
iReseD^:de(fect^K^^ y/^y.. yp 
:isheet:/'\V'"''̂ '̂ '̂ -'''""7'r,:-''\''TV"''v'r7"'''-''̂ ^^ X, '\; ' 

Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 36.1 $ 

Other reserves: 

Deferred tax assets valuation allowance $ 77.0 $ 

Year Ended September 30, 2012 

a^s6iy&g,d^U^6^ft(Mii;asi#^'m:^^ (; .-• spy. A:" I" ;--,3 

Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 36.8 $ 

Deferred tax assets valuation allowance $ 78.2 $ 

Year Ended September 30, 2011 

Reserves deducted from assets in'the consolidated balance - ' . - , . ' ' ^ 
sheet: - ' ' " -- ^ '. " '̂ ^' 

Allowance for doubtful accounts _$ 34.6 $ 20.0 $ (17.8) (1) $ 36.8 

Other reserves: , . , , , . 

Deferred tax assets valuation allowance _§ 74.7 $ 3.5 $ — 5 ^8-2 

(27.2) (1) $ 36.1 26.5 $ 

(4.0) 2.8 (3) 1 77.0 

(1) Uncollectible accounts written off, net of recoveries. 

(2) Foreign tax credit valuation allowance adjustment. 

(3) Acquisition. 
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UGI Corporation 
2004 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan 

Stock Options. Performance Units and Stock Units For Employees 

Terms and Conditions 

The foUowing Terms and Conditions shall be used for purposes of administering Options, Performance Units and Stock 
Units granted to Employees under the Plan. The Committee has discretion to modify or deviate from the Terms and 
Conditions at any time, and in all events the specific terms ofthe Grant Letter shall control. The defmed terms shall hav4 
the meanings given those terms in the Plan or in these Terms and Conditions, if not defined in the Plan. 

1. DEFINITIONS 

Whenever used in these Terms and Conditions for Employees, the following terms will have the meanings set 
forth below: 

(a) "Account" means a bookkeeping account established on the records ofthe Company to record 
Performance Units, Stock Units and Dividend Equivalents credited under the Plan. 

(b) "AmeriGas " means AmeriGas Propane, Inc. 

(c) "Cocie " means the Intemal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 

(d) "Disabled" or "Disability" means a long-term disability as defined in the Company's long-term disability 
plan applicable to the Participant. 

(e) "Employed by, or provide service to, the Company" shall mean employment or service as an Employee or 
a Non-Employee Director (so that, for purposes of satisfying conditions with respect to Grants, a Participant shall not bt 
considered to have terminated employment or service until the Participant ceases to be an Employee and Non-Employee 
Director). 

(f) "Good Reason Termination " shall mean a termination of employment initiated by the Participant upon or | 
after a Change of Control upon one or more ofthe following events: 

(i) a material diminution in the authority, duties or responsibilities held by the Participant immediately 
prior to the Change of Control; 

of Control; or 
(ii) a material diminution in the Participant's base salary as in effect immediately prior to the Change 



(iii) a material change in the geographic location at which the Participant must perform services 
(which, for purposes ofthis Agreement, means the Participant is required to report, other than on a temporary basis (less 
than 12 months), to a location which is more than 50 miles from the participant's principal place of business 
immediately before the Change of Control, without the Participant's express written consent). 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Participant shall be considered to have a Good Reason Termination only if 
the Participant provides written notice to the Company, specifying in reasonable detail the events or conditions upon 
which the Participant is basing such good Reason Termination and the Participant provides such notice within 90 days 
after the event that gives rise to the Good Reason Termination. Within 30 days after notice has been provided, the 
Company shall have the opportunity, but shall have no obligation, to cure such events or conditions that give rise to the 
Good Reason Termination. If the Company does not cure such events or conditions within the 30-day period, the 
Participant may terminate employment with the Company based on Good Reason Termination within 30 days after the 
expiration ofthe caire period. 

Notwithstanding the foregouig, if the Participant has in effect a Change in Control Agreement with the Company, 
the term "Good Reason Termination" shall have the meaning given that term in the Change in Control Agreement. 

(g) "Retirement" means an Employee's retirement under the Retirement Income Plan for Employees of UGI 
Utilities, inc., for Employees covered by that Retirement Income Plan. "Retirement" for other Company Employees 
means termination of employment after attaming (i) age 55 with ten or more years of service with the Company or (ii) 
for grants made in November 2012 and thereafter, age 65 with five or more years of service with the Company. 

(h) "Severance Plan " means any severance plan maintained by the Company that is applicable to the 
Employee. 

(i) "Termination without Cause" means termination of employment for the convenience ofthe Company for 
any reason other than (i) misappropriation of funds, (ii) habitual insobriety or substance abuse, (iii) conviction of a crime 
involving moral turpitude, or (iv) gross negligence in the performance of duties, which gross negligence has had a 
material adverse effect on the business, operations, assets, properties or financial condition ofthe Company. The 
Committee may determine in its sole discretion whether, and under what circumstances, a Participant's voluntary 
termination upon a significant reduction in the Participant's duties and responsibilities will constitute a Termination 
without Cause for purposes ofthe Plan. 

(j) "Utilities" means UGI Utilities, Inc. 

2. Options 

(a) Grant of Options . The Committee will select the Employees who shall receive Options, and will determine 
:he number of shares subject to each Option, the Option Price and the other terms ofthe Opttons, The terms of each 
Dption shall be set forth in the Grant Letter. 



Unless the Committee determines otherwise, no Dividend Equivalents will be granted with respect to Options. 

(b) Exercise and Vesting. 

(i) Except as otherwise specified by the Committee in the Grant Letter, each Option shall become 
exercisable in equal one-third installments on the first, second and third anniversaries ofthe Date of Grant. The 
Committee may accelerate the exercisability of any or all outstanding Options at any time for any reason. No Option wii 
be exercisable on or after the tenth aimiversary ofthe Date of Grant. 

(ii) Except as otherwise specified by the Committee, in the event that a Participant holding an Option 
ceases to be employed by, or provide service to, the Company, the Options held by such Participant will terminate on thi 
date such Participant ceases such employment or service. However, if a Participant holding an Option ceases to be 
employed by, or provide service to, the Company by reason of (i) Termination without Cause, (ii) Retirement, (iii) 
Disability, or (iv) death, the Option held by the Participant will thereafter be exercisable pursuant to the following: 

(A) Termination Without Cause . If a Participant terminates employment or service on account 
of a Termination without Cause, the Option held by such Participant will thereafter be exercisable only with respect to 
that number of shares of Stock with respect to which the Option is already exercisable on the date such Participant's 
employment or service terminates. Such Option will terminate upon the earlier ofthe expiration date ofthe Option or thi 
expiration ofthe 13-month period commencing on the date the Participant ceases to be employed by, or provide service 
to, the Company. 

(B) Retirement. If a Participant ceases to be employed by, or provide service to, the Company 
on accoimt of Retirement, the Option held by such Participant will thereafter become exercisable as if such Participant 
had continued to be employed by, or provide service to, the Company after the date of such Retirement. The Option sha 
terminate upon the expiration date ofthe Option. However, for all Options granted prior to July 26, 2008, and all 
Options granted to Participants who retire prior to July 26, 2011, the Option held by such Participant may be exercised £ 
any time prior to the earlier ofthe expiration date ofthe Option or the expiration ofthe 36-month period following the 
Participant's Retirement. 

(C) Disability. If a Participant ceases to be employed by, or provide service to, the Company 
by reason of Disability, the Option held by such Participant will thereafter become exercisable as if such Participant ha( 
continued to provide service to the Company for 36 months after the date of such termination of employment or service 
The Option will terminate upon the earlier ofthe expiration date ofthe Option or the expiration of such 36-month 
period. 

(D) Death . In the event ofthe death of a Participant while employed by, or providing service 
to, the Company, the Option held by such Participant will be fiilly and immediately exercisable and may be exercised 
any time prior to the earlier ofthe expiration 



date ofthe Option or the expiration ofthe 12-month period following the Participant's death. Death of a Participant after 
the Participant has ceased to be employed by, or provide service to, the Company will not affect the otherwise applicable 
period for vesting and exercise ofthe Option determined pursuant to subsections (A), (B) or (C) above. After a 
Participant's death, the Participant's Option may be exercised by the Participant's estate. 

(c) Payment. An Option may be exercised, and the Option Price paid, in any method permitted by the Plan. 

(d) Change of Control. Outstanding Options granted before November, 2012 shall become fully vested upon a 
Change of Control. Outstanding Options granted in November 2012 and thereafter shall vest upon Termination without 
Cause or Good Reason Termination upon, or dtiring a specified period after, a Change of Control as described in the 
Grant Letter ("double trigger" vesting). 

3. Performance Units 

(a) Grant of Performance Units . The Committee will select the Employees who will receive Performance 
Units and will determine the number of shares subject to Performance Units and the terms of the Performance Units. 
Unless the Committee determines otherwise. Dividend Equivalents will be granted with respect to Performance Units. 
The Conimittee shall specify in the Grant Letter for Performance Units the terms and conditions ofthe Performance 
Units and the applicable restrictions and performance goals, including the objective goals, employment requirements, 
period during which the Performance Units shall be subject to restrictions and other conditions ofthe Grant. 

(b) Terms . The Committee will establish performance goals and terms for Performance Units in accordance 
with Section 13 ofthe Plan. The Committee will establish appropriate threshold, Target Amount and maximum 
payments to be made with respect to the Performance Units. 

(c) Requirements of Employment or Service . If the Participant ceases to be employed by, or provide service to, 
the Company during the applicable period specified in the Grant Letter, all ofthe Participant's the Performance Units 
will terminate. However, if a Participant holding Performance Units ceases to be employed by, or provide service to, the 
Company by reason of Retirement, Disability, or death, the restrictions on Performance Units held by the Participant will 
lapse pursuant to the following: 

(i) If a Participant terminates employment or service on account of Retirement, Disability or death, the 
restrictions on a pro-rata portion ofthe Participant's outstanding Performance Units will lapse at the end ofthe 
restriction period set forth in the Grant Letter, if the performance goals and all requirements ofthe Grant Letter (other 
than continued employment) are met. The prorated portion will be determined, for each Performance Unit, as the amount 
:hat would otherwise be paid according to the terms ofthe Performance Unit, based on achievement ofthe performance 
^oals, multiplied by a fraction, the numerator of which is the number of years during the restriction period in which the 
Participant has been employed by, or 



provided service to, the Company and the denominator of which is the number of years in the entire restriction period 
applicable to such Performance Units. For purposes ofthe proration calculation, the year in which the Participant's 
Retirement, Disability, or death occurs will be counted as a full year. 

(ii) In the event of Retirement, Disability or death, the prorated portion ofthe Performance Units shall 
be paid at the date specified for payment ofthe Performance Units in the Grant Letter, or at an earlier date determined b) 
the Committee in the Grant Letter. 

(d) Payment of Performance Units. If the Committee determines that the conditions to payment ofthe 
Performance Units have been met, the Company shall pay to the Participant, within IVi months after the end ofthe 
restriction period, (i) shares of Stock or cash, or a combination ofthe two, as the Committee determines, equal to the 
amount to be paid according to achievement ofthe performance goals, up to the target award specified in the 
Participant's Grant Letter and (ii) cash in an amoimt equal to the Fair Market Value of the shares of Stock underlying the 
Performance Units for any amounts payable in excess ofthe target amount specified by the Committee for the 
Performance Units. 

(e) Coordination with Severance Plan . Notwithstanding any other provisions of these Terms and Conditions, 
if a Participant receives severance benefits under a Severance Plan, the terms of which require that severance 
compensation payable imder the Severance Plan be reduced by benefits payable under this Plan, any amount payable to 
the Participant imder Performance Units and Dividend Equivalents after the Participant's termination of employment 
shall be reduced by the amount of severance compensation paid to the Participant under the Severance Plan, as required 
by, and according to the terms of, the Severance Plan, if permitted by section 409 A ofthe Code. 

(f) Dividend Equivalents with Respect to Performance Units . Dividend Equivalents, if granted^ shall accrue 
with respect to Performance Units and shall be payable subject to the same performance goals and terms as the 
Performance Units to which they relate. Dividend Equivalents shall be credited with respect to Performance Units from 
the Date of Grant until the date on which the Performance Units are paid. If and to the extent that the underlying 
Performance Units are forfeited, all related Dividend Equivalents shall also be forfeited. 

(g) Accounts. While Performance Units are outstandmg, the Company will keep records in an Account for 
each Participant who holds Performance Units. On each payment date for a dividend paid by UGI on its Stock, the 
Company shall credit to the Participant's Account an amount equal to the Dividend Equivalents associated with the 
Performance Units held by the Participant on the record date for the dividend. No interest will be credited to any such 
Account. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Participant may not accrue Dividend Equivalents in excess of $750,000 
during any calendar year. 

(h) Payment of Dividend Equivalents. Dividend Equivalents will be paid after the performance goals and othe 
requirements specified in the Grant Letter have been met, at the same time as the underlying Performance Units are pai<| 
or as otherwise determined by the 



Committee. Dividend Equivalents will be paid in cash, Stock or a combination ofthe two, as the Committee determines. 

(i) Change of Control. Upon a Change of Control, outstanding Performance Units granted before November 
2012, and related Dividend Equivalents shall be paid in cash in an amount equal to the greater of (i) the target amount or 
(ii) the amount eamed as ofthe date ofthe Change of Control based on the Company's achievement ofthe performance 
goals as ofthe Change of Control, as determined by the Committee. If a former Participant is entitled to receive a 
prorated award for the restriction period pursuant to Section 3(c) above, the award will be the prorated portion ofthe 
amount described in the preceding sentence. The Performance Units and Dividend Equivalents shall be paid on the 
closing date ofthe Change of Control. Outstanding Performance Units granted in November 2012 and thereafter, and 
related Dividend Equivalents, shall vest upon Termination without Cause or Good Reason Termination upon, or during a 
specified period after, a Change of Control as described in the Grant Letter ("double trigger" vesting). 

4. Stock Units 

(a) Grants of Stock Units . The Committee will select the Employees who will receive Stock Units and will 
determine the number of shares subject to Stock Units and the terms ofthe Stock Units. Unless the Committee 
determines otherwise. Dividend Equivalents will be granted with respect to Stock Units. The Committee shall specify in 
the Participant's Grant Letter the terms and conditions ofthe Stock Units and the applicable restrictions, including the 
period during which the Stock Units will be subject to vesting requirements, if any, and other conditions ofthe Grant. 

(b) Vesting of Stock Units . Stock Units will vest on such terms as the Committee determines and specifies in 
fhe Grant Letter. If the Participant ceases to be employed by, or provide service to the Company, any unvested Stock 
Units will immediately terminate, except as provided below. The Committee may authorize payment of Stock Units on a 
prorated or other basis in such circumstances as the Committee deems appropriate, including in the event that a 
Participant ceases to be employed by, or provide service to, the Company, on account of Retirement, Disability or death. 

(c) Payment of Stock Units. A Participant will receive payment with respect to Stock Units as the Stock Units 
vest, within 30 business days after the vesting date. Payment shall be made in Stock, in cash or in a combination ofthe 
two, as determined by the Committee. 

(d) Coordination with Severance Plan . Notwithstanding any other provisions of these Terms and Conditions, 
if a Participant receives severance benefits under a Severance Plan, the terms of which require that severance 
compensation payable under the Severance Plan be reduced by benefits payable under this Plan, any amount payable to 
the Participant under Stock Units and Dividend Equivalents after the Participant's termination of employment shall be 
reduced by the amount of severance compensation paid to the Participant under the Severance Plan, as required by, and 
according to the terms of, the Severance Plan, if permitted by section 409 A ofthe Code. 



(e) Dividend Equivalents with Respect to Stock Units . Dividend Equivalents, if granted, shall accme with 
respect to Stock Units and shall be payable subject to the same terms as the Stock Units to which they relate. Dividend 
Equivalents shall be credited with respect to Stock Units from the Date of Grant until the date on which the Stock Units 
are paid. If the underlying Stock Units are forfeited, all related Dividend Equivalents shall also be forfeited. 

(f) Accounts. While Stock Units are outstanding, the Company will keep records in an Account for each 
Participant who holds Stock Units. On each payment date for a dividend paid by UGI on its Stock, the Company shall 
credit to the Participant's Account an amount equal to the Dividend Equivalents associated with the Stock Units held by 
the Participant on the record date for the dividend. No interest will be credited to any such Account. Notwithstanding tht 
foregoing, a Participant may not accrue Dividend Equivalents in excess of $750,000 during any calendar year. 

(g) Payment of Dividend Equivalents. Dividend Equivalents will be paid after the vesting and other 
requirements specified in the Grant Letter have been met, at the same time as the underlying Stock Units are paid or as 
otherwise determined by the Committee. Dividend Equivalents will be paid in cash. Stock or a combination ofthe two, 
as the Committee determines. 

(h) Change of Control. Outstanding Stock Units granted before November, 2012 shall become fijlly vested 
upon a Change of Control and shall be paid in cash on the closing date ofthe Change of Control, and related Dividend 
Equivalents shall become, fully vested and paid when the underlying Stock Units are paid. Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, if the Stock Units are subject to section 409 A ofthe Code, the Stock Units shall be paid upon a Change of 
Control only if the transaction constituting a Change of Control is also a change in control event under section 409 A of 
the Code ("409A Change in Control Event"). If the transaction constituting a Change of Control does not constitute a 
409A Change in Control Event, the outstanding Stock Units will vest upon the Change of Control, and any outstanding 
Stock Units that are subject to section 409A will be paid in cash (based on the value ofthe Stock Units on the payment 
date as determined by the Committee) within 30 days after the first to occur of (i) the vesting date set forth in the 
Participant's Grant Letter or (ii) the Participant's termination of employment or service (subject to the section 409A six-
month delay, if applicable). If payment is delayed after the Change of Control, the Committee may provide for the Stock 
Units to be valued as ofthe date ofthe Change of Control and interest to be credited on the amount so determined at a 
market rate for the period between the Change of Control date and the payment date. Outstanding Stock Units granted i 
November 2012 and thereafter, and related Dividend Equivalents, shall vest upon Termination without Cause or Good 
Reason Termination upon, or during a specified period after, a Change of Control as described in the Grant Letter 
("double trigger" vesting). 



5. Reduction of Responsibilities 

The Committee shall have discretion to adjust a Participant's Options that are not yet exercisable and a 
Participant's outstanding Performance Units and Stock Units, if the Participant's authority, duties or responsibilities are 
significantly reduced. 

6. Change of Control 

(a) Authorization. In the event of a Change of Control, the provisions of Sections 2(d), 3(i) and 4(h) above 
shall apply to Options, Performance Units and Stock Units, and the Committee may take such other actions with respect 
to outstanding Options as it deems appropriate pursuant to the Plan. The term "Change of Control" shall mean a Change 
of Control of UGI, as defmed in the Plan, except as provided below. 

(b) AmeriGas Employees . For Participants who are employees of AmeriGas, or a subsidiary of AmeriGas, the 
term "Change of Control" shall mean (i) a Change of Control of UGI, as defined in the Plan, or (ii) one ofthe events set 
forth in Exhibit A with respect to AmeriGas. 

(c) Utilities Employees . For Participants who are employees of Utilities or a subsidiary of Utilities, the term 
"Change of Control" shall mean (i) a Change of Control of UGI as defined in the Plan, or (ii) one of the events set forth 
on Exhibit B with respect to Utilities. 

(d) Other Subsidiaries . The Committee may determine in a Grant Letter that a sale or other transaction with 
respect to any other Company subsidiary shall be considered a Change of Control for purposes ofthe Plan, for 
Participants who are employees of that subsidiary. 

7. French Employees . The terms of the Sub-Plan for French Employees shall apply to the grant of Options to 
Employees who are, or may become, subject to taxation on compensation in France. 

8. Section 409A . Performance Units, Stock Units and Dividend Equivalents shall meet the requirements of section 
409A ofthe Code or an exemption from such requu'ements. 

9. Companv Policies . All Shares issued pursuant to an Option, Performance Unit or Stock Unit shall be subject to the 
UGI Corporation Stock Ownership Policy, if applicable. All Options, Performance Units and Stock Units shall be 
subject to any applicable clawback and other policies implemented by the Board of Directors of UGI, as in effect from 
time to time. 



UGI Corporation 
2004 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan 

Stock Options and Stock Units For Non-Employee Directors 

Terms and Conditions 

The following Terms and Conditions shall be used for purposes of administering Options and Stock Units granted to 
Non-Employee Directors under the Plan. The Terms and Conditions were amended and restated to allow Non-Employet 
Directors to defer their Stock Units to the UGI Corporation 2009 Deferral Plan, effective as of January 1, 2009 and are 
now further amended. The Committee has discretion to modify or deviate from the Terms and Conditions at any time, 
and in all events the specific terms ofthe Grant Letter shall control. The defined terms shall have the meanings given 
those terms in the Plan or in these Terms and Conditions, if not defined in the Plan. 

1. Definitions 

Whenever used in these Terms and Conditions for Non-Employee Directors, the following terms will have the 
meanings set forth below: 

(k) " Account" means the Company's record established pursuant to Section 3, which reflects the number of 
Stock Units and the amount of Dividend Equivalents standing to the credit of a Participant under the Plan. 

(I) "Beneficiary" means the person designated by a Non-Employee Director to receive any benefits payable 
after the Non-Employee Director's death. The Company shall provide a form for this purpose. In the event a Non-
Employee Director has not filed a Beneficiary designation with the Company or none ofthe designated Beneficiaries art 
living at the date ofthe Non-Employee Director's death, the Beneficiary shall be the Non-Employee Director's estate. 

(m) "Committee " means, for purposes of Grants to Non-Employee Directors, the Board or its delegate. 

(n) "Deferral Plan " means the UGI Corporation 2009 Deferral Plan, as amended from time to time. 

(o) " Plan Year " means the calendar year. 

(p) "Retirement" means a Non-Employee Director's Separation from Service after (1) attaining age 65 with 
five or more years of service with the Company, or (2) ten or more years of service with the Company. 



(q) " Separates from Service " means the Non-Employee Director's termination of service as a Non-Employee 
Director and as an Employee ofthe Company for any reason other than death. 

(r) " Unit Value " means, at any time, the value of each Unit issued under the Plan, which value shall be equal 
to the Fair Market Value of a share of Stock on such date. 

2. Options 

(e) Grant of Options . The Board shall grant Options annually to Non-Employee Directors in the amounts set 
forth on the attached Exhibit C, on the fifth business day of each Plan Year. The Option Price will equal the Fair Market 
Value on the Date of Grant. 

(f) Exercise and Vesting . Except as otherwise specified in the Grant Letter, an Option will be frilly and 
immediately exercisable on the Date of Grant. In the event that any Options are not by their terms immediately 
exercisable, the Committee may accelerate the exercisability of any or all outstanding Options at any time for any 
reason. No Option will be exercisable on or after the tenth anniversary ofthe Date of Grant. 

(g) S eparation from Service. Except as otherwise specified by the Committee, each Option, to the extent that 
it has not previously been-exercised, will terminate when the Participant holding^such Option Separates from Service. 
However, if a Participant holding an Option Separates from Service by reason of retirement, disability, or death, the 
Option held by any such Participant will be fully and immediately exercisable and will thereafter be exercisable pursuant 
to the following: 

(A) Retirement. If a Participant Separates from Service on account of Retirement, the Option 
held by such Participant will continue in effect and terminate upon the expiration date ofthe Option. However, for all 
Options granted prior to January 1, 2009, and all Options granted to Participants who retire prior to September 27, 2011, 
the Option held by such Participant may be exercised at any time prior to the earlier ofthe expiration date ofthe Option 
or the expiration ofthe 36-month period following the Participant's Retirement. 

(2) Disability . The Committee shall have sole discretion to determine whether or not a 
Participant is "disabled." If a Participant is determined to be "disabled" by the Committee, the Option held by such 
Participant may be exercised at any time prior to the earlier ofthe expiration date ofthe Option or the expiration ofthe 
36-month period following the Participant's Separation from Service on account of disabiUty. 

(3) Death . In the event ofthe death of a Participant while serving as a Non-Employee Director 
or Employee ofthe Company, the Option held by such Participant may be exercised at any time prior to the earlier ofthe 
expiration date ofthe Option or the expiration ofthe 12-month period following the Participanfs death. Such Option 
tnay be exercised by the Participant's estate. 
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(h) Payment. An Option may be exercised, and the Option Price paid, in any method permitted by the Plan. 

3. Award of Stock Units 

(j) Annual Award of Stock Units . On the fifth business day of each Plan Year, each Non-Employee Director 
shall receive an award of Stock Units in the amount set forth on the attached Exhibit C . Such Stock Units shall be 
credited to each Participant's Account as specified in Section 3(c) below. Any Non-Employee Director who becomes a 
Non-Employee Director after the-fifth business day ofthe Plan Year shall receive, on the date such individual becomes a 
Non-Employee Director, a pro-rata share ofthe annual award of Stock Units determined based on the number of 
calendar quarters during the Plan Year that he or she is expected to serve as a Non-Employee Director. A Non-Employee 
Director will be deemed to serve for the entire quarter if he or she is a Non-Employee Director on at least one day ofthe 
quarter. 

(k) Dividend Equivalents 

(i) Dividend Equivalent to be Credited. From the Date of Grant of each Stock Unit until the 
Participant's Account has been fully distributed, on each payment date for a dividend paid by UGI on its Stock, the 
Company shall credit to each Participant's Account an amount equal to the Dividend Equivalent associated with the 
Stock Units held by the Participant on the record date for the dividend 

(ii) Conversion to Stock Units. On the last day of each Plan Year, the amount ofthe Dividend 
Equivalents credited to the Participant's Accoimt during that Plan Year shall be converted to a number of Stock Units, 
based on the Unit Value on the last day ofthe Plan Year. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event of a Change of 
Control or in the event the Non-Employee Director dies or Separates from Service prior to the last day ofthe Plan Year, 
as soon as practicable following such event and in no event later than the date on which Stock Units are redeemed in 
accordance with Section 4, the Company shall convert the amount ofthe Dividend Equivalents credited to the 
Participant's Account as ofthe date ofthe Change of Control, death or Separation from Service (the "Conversion Date") 
to a number of Stock Units based on the Unit Value on the Conversion Date. 

(1) Accounts. The Company shall keep records to reflect the number of Stock Units and Dividend Equivalents 
credited to each Non-Employee Director hereunder. Fractional Stock Units shall accumulate in the Participant's Account 
and shall be added to fractional Stock Units held in such Account to create whole Stock Units. 

(m) Directors' Equity Compensation Plan . On and after the Effective Date, Dividend Equivalents shall be 
credited and paid on all Stock Units that are outstanding under the Directors' Equity Plan on the Effective Date, on the 
same terms as described in this Section 3 and Section 4 below. All Units outstanding under the Directors' Equity Plan on 
the Effective Date, including accmed Dividend Equivalents, shall be paid according to Section 4 below. 
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4. Events Requiring Redemption of Stock Units 

The Company shall redeem Stock Units credited to a Participant's Account only at the times and in the manner 
prescribed by the terms ofthis Section 4 

(a) Death. In the event a Participant dies, the Company shall redeem all ofthe Stock Units then credited to the 
Participant's Account as ofthe date ofthe Participant's death, based on the Unit Value ofthe Stock Units credited to the 
Participants' Accoimt as ofthe date ofthe Participant's death. An amount equal to 65% ofthe aggregate Unit Value will 
be paid in the form of whole Shares (with fractional Shares paid in cash), and the remaining 35% ofthe aggregate Unit 
Value will be paid in cash. The redemption amount shall be paid to the Participant's estate within 60 business days after 
the Participant's death. 

(b) Separation from Service. In the event a Participant Separates from Service, the Company shall redeem all 
ofthe Stock Units then credited to the Participant's Account as ofthe date of such Separation from Service, based on the 
Unit Value ofthe Stock Units credited to the Participant's Account as ofthe date ofthe Participant's Separation from 
Service. An amount equal to 65% ofthe aggregate Unit Value will be paid in the form of whole Shares (with fractional 
Shares paid in cash), and the remaining 35%) ofthe aggregate Unit Value will be paid in cash, within 30 business days 
after the date ofthe Participant's Separation from Service. 

(c) Change of Control. In the event of a Change of Control, the Company shall redeem all the Stock Units then 
credited to the Participant's Account. The redemption amount shall be paid in cash on the closing date ofthe Change of 
Control (except as described below). The amount paid shall equal the product ofthe number of Stock Units being 
redeemed multiplied by the Unit Value at the date ofthe Change of Control. However, in the event that the transaction 
constituting a Change of Control is not a change in control event under section 409A ofthe Code, the Participant's Stock 
Units shall be redeemed and paid in cash upon Separation from Service or death on the applicable date described in 
subsection (a) or (b) above (based on the aggregate Unit Value on the date of Separation from Service or death as 
determined by the Committee), instead of upon the Change of Control pursuant to this subsection (c). If payment is 
delayed after the Change of Control, pursuant to the preceding sentence, the Committee may provide for the Stock Units 
to be valued as ofthe date ofthe Change of Control and interest to be credited on the amount so determined at a market 
rate for the period between the Change of Control date and the payment date. 

(d) Effect on Outstanding Stock Units and Dividend Equivalents. The provisions ofthis Section 4 relating to 
the medium of payment ( Le^, payment in cash or in a combination of cash and Shares) shall apply to all outstanding 
Stock Units and Dividend Equivalents. 

(e) Section 409A. Stock Units and Dividend Equivalents shall meet the requirements of section 409A ofthe 
Intemal Revenue Code or an exemption from such requirements. All Stock Units and Dividend Equivalents that were 
eamed and vested as of December 31, 2004 shall be administered in accordance with their terms as in effect on October 
3, 2004, except for changes that are not considered "material modifications" under the regulations issued under section 
409A ofthe Intemal Revenue Code. 
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(f) Deferral Elections . Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Non-Employee Director may make a one-time, 
irrevocable election to elect to have all ofthe Non-Employee Director's Stock Units credited to the Non-Employee 
Director's accoimt under the Deferral Plan on the date ofthe Non-Employee Director's Separation from Service, in lieu 
ofthe redemption and payments described in subsections (a), (b) and (c). If the Non-Employee Director makes a deferral 
election, the Non-Employee Director's Stock Units will be credited to the Non-Employee Director's account under the 
Deferral Plan at Separation from Service and the amount credited to the Deferral Plan shall be distributed in accordance 
with the provisions of the Deferral Plan. If the Non-Employee Director makes a deferral election and a Change of 
Control occurs: (i) subsection (c) above shall apply if the Change of Control occurs before the Non-Employee Director's 
Separation from Service and (ii) the terms ofthe Deferral Plan shall apply if the Change of Control occurs after or 
simultaneously with the Non-Employee Director's Separation from Service. An election under this subsection (f) shall 
be made in writing, on a form and at a time prescribed by the Committee and shall be irrevocable upon submission to the 
Corporate Secretary. 

5. Companv Policies . All Shares issued pursuant to an Option or Stock Unit shall be subject to any applicable policies 
implemented by the Board of Directors of UGI, as in effect from time to time. 
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Exhibit A 

Change of Control with Respect to AmeriGas 

For Participants who are employees of AmeriGas, or a subsidiary of AmeriGas, the term "Change of Control" shall 
include the events set forth in this Exhibit A with respect to AmeriGas, and the defmed terms used in this Exhibit A shall 
have the following meanings: 

1. "Change of Control" shall include any of the following events: 

(A) Completion by AmeriGas, the Public Partnership or the Operating Partnership of a 
reorganization, merger or consolidation (a "Propane Business Combination"), in each case, with respect to which all or 
substantially all ofthe individuals and entities who were the respective Beneficial Owners ofthe AmeriGas voting 
securities or ofthe outstanding units of AmeriGas Partners, L.P. ("Outstanding Units") immediately prior to such 
Propane Business Combination do not, following such Propane Business Combination, Beneficially Own, directly or 
indirectly, (a) if the entity resulting from such Propane Business Combination is a corporation, more than fifty percent 
(50%) of, respectively, the then outstanding shares of common stock and the combined voting power ofthe then 
outstanding voting securities entitled to vote generally in the election of directors, as the case may be, of such 
corporation in substantially the same proportion as their ownership immediately prior to such Combination ofthe 
AmeriGas' voting securities or the Outstanding Units, as the case may be, or, (b) if the entity resulting from such 
Propane Business Combination is a partnership, more than fifty percent (50%) ofthe then outstanding common units of 
such partnership in substantially the same proportion as their ownership immediately prior to such Propane Business 
Combination of AmeriGas' voting securities or the Outstanding Units, as the case may be; or 

(B) (a) Completion of a complete Hquidation or dissolution of AmeriGas, the PubHc Partnership 
or the Operating Partnership or (b) sale or other disposition of all or substantially all ofthe assets of AmeriGas, the 
Public Partnership or the Operating Partnership other than to an entity with respect to which, following such sale or 
disposition, (I) if such entity is a corporation, more tiian fifty percent (50%) of, respectively, the then outstanding shares 
of common stock and the combined voting power ofthe then outstanding voting securities entitled to vote generally in 
the election of directors is then owned beneficially, directly or indirectly, by all or substantially all ofthe individuals and 
entities who were the Beneficial Owners, respectively, of AmeriGas' voting securities or ofthe Outstanding Units, as the 
case may be, immediately prior to such sale or disposition in substantially the same proportion as their ownership of 
AmeriGas' voting securities or ofthe Outstanding Units, as the case may be, immediately prior to such sale or 
disposition, or, (II) if such entity is a partnership, more than fiffy percent (50%) ofthe then outstanding common units is 
then owned beneficially, directly or indirectly, by all or substantially all ofthe individuals and entities who were the 
Beneficial Owners, respectively, of AmeriGas' voting securities or ofthe Outstanding Units, as the case may be, 
immediately prior to such sale or disposition in substantially the same proportion as their 
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ownership of AmeriGas' voting securities or ofthe Outstanding Units immediately prior to such sale or disposition; 

(C) UGI and the UGI Subsidiaries fail to own more than fifty percent (50%)) ofthe then 
outstanding general partnership interests ofthe Public Partnership or the Operating Partnership; or 

(D) UGI and the UGI Subsidiaries fail to own more than fifty percent (50%)) of the then 
outstanding shares of coimnon stock of AmeriGas or more than fifty percent {50%) ofthe combined voting power of; 
then outstanding voting securities of AmeriGas entitled to vote generally in the election of directors; or 

(E) AmeriGas is removed as the general partner ofthe Public Partnership by vote ofthe limit] 
partners ofthe Public Partnership, or is removed as the general partner ofthe Public Partnership or the Operating 
Partnership as a resuh of judicial or administrative proceedings involving AmeriGas, the Public Partnership or the 
Operating Partnership. 

2. "Affiliate" and "Associate" shall have the respective meanings ascribed to such terms in Rule 12b-2 ofthe Generaj 
Rules and Regulations under the Exchange Act. 

3. A Person shall be deemed the "Beneficial Owner" of any securities: (i) tiiat such Person or any of such Person's 
Affiliates or Associates, directly or indhectiy, has the right to acquire (whether such right is exercisable immediately or 
only after the passage of time) pursuant to any agreement, arrangement or understanding (whether or not in writing) or 
upon the exercise of conversion rights, exchange rights, rights, warrants or options, or otherwise; provided, however, 
that a person shall not be deemed the "Beneficial Owner" of securities tendered pursuant to a tender or exchange offer 
made by such Person or any of such person's Affiliates or Associates until such tendered securities are accepted for 
payment, purchase or exchange; (ii) that such Person or any of such Person's Affiliates or Associates, directly or 
indirectiy, has the right to vote or dispose of or has "beneficial ownership" of (as determined pursuant to Rule 13d-3 of 
the General Rules and Regulations under the Exchange Act), including without limitation pursuant to any agreement, 
arrangement or understanding, whether or not in writing; provided, however, that a Person shall not be deemed the 
"Beneficial Owner" of any security under this clause (ii) as a result of an oral or written agreement, arrangement or 
understanding to vote such security if such agreement, arrangement or understanding (A) arises solely from a revocable 
proxy given in response to a public proxy or consent solicitation made pursuant to, and in accordance with, the 
applicable provisions ofthe General Rules and Regulations under the Exchange Act, and (B) is not then reportable by 
such Person on Schedule 13D under the Exchange Act (or any comparable or successor report); or (iii) that are 
beneficially owned, directly or indirectiy, by any other Person (or any Affiliate or Associate thereof) with which such 
Person (or any of such Person's AffiUates or Associates) has any agreement, arrangement or understanding (whether or 
not in writing) for the purpose of acquiring, holding, voting (except pursuant to a revocable proxy as described in the 
proviso to clause (ii) above) or disposing of any securities; prov;i:fe<i, /however, that nothing in this Section 1(c) shall 
cause a Person engaged in business as an underwriter of securities to be the "Beneficial Owner" of any securities 
acquired through such Person's 
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icjpation in good faith in a firm commitment underwriting until the expiration of forty (40) days after the date of 
1 acquisition. 

"Exchange Act" shall mean the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. 

'̂Operating Partnership" shall mean AmeriGas Propane, L.P. 

"Public Partnership" shall mean AmeriGas Partners, L.P. 

"Person" shall mean an individual or a corporation, partnership, trust, unincorporated organization, association, or 
ler entity. 

"UGI Subsidiary" shall mean any corporation in which UGI directly or indirectly, owns at least a fifty percent 
0%) interest or an unincorporated entity of which UGI, as applicable, directly or indirectly, owns at least fifty percent 
0%) ofthe profits or capital interests. 
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Exhibit B 

Change of Control vdth Respect to Utilities 

For Participants who are employees of Utilities, or a subsidiary of Utilities, the term "Change of Control" shall include 
the events set forth in this Exhibit B with respect to Utilities, and the defined terms set forth used in this Exhibit B, if n| 
defined in the Plan, shall have the following meanings: 

1. "Change of Control" shall include any ofthe following events; 

(A) UGI and the UGI Subsidiaries fail to own more than fifty percent (50%.) ofthe then 
outstanding shares of common stock of Utilities or more than fifty percent (50%.) of the combined voting power of the 
then outstanding voting securities of Utilities entitled to vote generally in the election of directors; or 

(B) Completion by Utilities of a reorganization, merger or consolidation (a "Business 
Combination"), in each case, with respect to which all or substantially all ofthe individuals and entities who were the 
respective Beneficial Owners of Utilities' outstanding common stock and voting securities immediately prior to such 
Business Combination do not, following such Business Combination, Beneficially Own, directiy or indirectly, more thai 
50% of, respectively, the then outstanding shares of common stock and the combined voting power ofthe then 
outstanding voting securities entitled to vote generally in the election of directors, as the case may be, of the corporation 
resulting from such Business Combination in substantially the same proportion as their ownership immediately prior to 
such Business Combination of Utilities' outstanding common stock and voting securities, as the case may be; or 

(C) Completion of a complete liquidation or dissolution of the Utilities or sale or other 
disposition of all or substantially all ofthe assets of Utilities other than to a corporation with respect to which, following 
such sale or disposition, more than 50% of, respectively, the then outstanding shares of common stock and the combined 
voting power of the then outstanding voting securities entitled to vote generally in the election of directors is then owned 
beneficially, directly or indirectly, by all or substantially all ofthe individuals and entities who were the Beneficial 
Owners, respectively, of Utilities' outstanding common stock and voting securities immediately prior to such sale or 
disposition in substantially the same proportion as their ownership of Utilities' outstanding common stock and voting 
securities, as the case may be, immediately prior to such sale or disposition. 

2. "Afftliate" and "Associate" shall have the respective meanings ascribed to such terms in Rule 12b-2 ofthe General 
Rules and Regulations under fhe Exchange Act. 

3. A Person shall be deemed the "Beneficial Owner" of any securities: (i) that such Person or any of such Person's 
Affiliates or Associates, directly or indirectly, has the right to acquire 
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LCther such right is exercisable immediately or only after the passage of time) pursuant to any agreement, arrangement 
mderstanding (whether or not in writing) or upon the exercise of conversion rights, exchange rights, rights, warrants 
)ptions, or otherwise; provided, however, that a person shall not be deemed the "Beneficial Owner" of securities 
dered pursuant to a tender or exchange offer made by such Person or any of such person's Affiliates or Associates 
il such tendered securities are accepted for payment, purchase or exchange; (ii) that such Person or any of such 
rson's Affiliates or Associates, directly or indirectly, has the right to vote or dispose of or has "beneficial ownership" 
(as determined pursuant to Rule 13d-3 ofthe General Rules and Regulations under the Exchange Act), including 
thout limitation pursuant to any agreement, arrangement or understanding, whether or not in writing; provided, 
wever, that a Person shall not be deemed the "Beneficial Owner" of any security under this clause (ii) as a result of an 
al or written agreement, arrangement or understanding to vote such security if such agreement, arrangement or 
iderstanding (A) arises solely from a revocable proxy given in response to a public proxy or consent solicitation made 
irsuant to, and in accordance with, the applicable provisions ofthe General Rules and Regulations under the Exchange 
ct, and (B) is not then reportable by such Person on Schedule 13D under the Exchange Act (or any comparable or 
iccessor report); or (iii) that are beneficially owned, directly or indirectiy, by any other Person (or any Affiliate or 
ssociate thereof) with which such Person (or any of such Person's Affiliates or Associates) has any agreement, 
rangement or understandmg (whether or not in writing) for the purpose of acquiring, holding, voting (except pursuant 
> a revocable proxy as described in the proviso to clause (ii) above) or disposing of any securities;/jrovzWec?, however, 
lat nothing in this Section 1(c) shall cause a Person engaged in business as an underwriter of securities to be the 
Beneficial Owner" of any securities acquired through such Person's participation in good faith in a firm commitment 
inderwriting until the expiration of forty (40) days after the date of such acquisition. 

k "Exchange Act" shall mean the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. 

5. "Person" shall mean an individual or a corporation, partnership, trust, unincorporated organization, association, or 
Dther entity. 

6. "UGI Subsidiary" shall mean any corporation in which UGI directly or indirectly, owns at least a fifty percent 
(50%)) interest or an unincorporated entity of which UGI, as applicable, directly or indfrectly, owns at least fifty percent 
(50%) ofthe profits or capital interests. 
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Exhibit C 

Non-Emplovee Director Grants 

Options: 

8,500 shares 
Grant Date: 5th business day of January 

Stock Units: 

2,800 units 
Grant Date: 5th business day of January 
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